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STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This suit was originally brought in the Superior

Court of the state of California, in and for the county of

Riverside.

The suit grew out of the following facts

:

The plaintiff was the owner of certain lands described

in the complaint, and of a plant for the manufacture of
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salt, consisting of many buildings of dififerent kinds, and

machinery and various appliances, including a short line

of railroad, or spur track, and which is situated at the

northern end of what is known as the Salton Sink, at

that time situated in the county of Riverside.

The waters of the Colorado river, and doubtless

waters from other sources had, in the latter part of 1904,

begun to form in the Salton Sink, and what is now

known as the Salton lake or sea, and continued to rise

until it finally overwhelmed the New Liverpool Salt

Company's property, destroyed the buildings and ma-

chinery, and a large amount of salt which had been

gathered.

At the time the suit was brought, the destruction was

not complete, but the waters continued to rise during

the whole of the years 1905 and 1906, and eventually

submerged and destroyed the entire plant.

When the suit was originally brought, it, of course,

sought to recover the damage to the plaintiff's property

which had accrued up to that time. The California De-

velopment Company had constructed a canal connecting

with the Colorado river on the west bank thereof, and

by means of which canal the waters of the Colorado river

were conducted into the Imperial Valley, and there dis-

tributed to the settlers of the valley for use for various

purposes, mainly for irrigation.

The waters from the Colorado river did overflow into

this canal and cut and enlarge the canal until finally

nearly the whole of the Colorado ri\-er was flowing into

the Salton Sink through the canal and other channels.

The claim on the part of the plaintiff was that this



overflow into the Salton Sink and the consequent de-

struction of the appellee's propert}^ was due to the negli-

gence of the defendant, the California Development

Company.

The action was brought to recover the damage to the

plaintiff's property, and for an injunction restraining

the continuance of the flow of the water from the Colo-

rado river over the plaintiff's lands.

The complaint was molded after the ordinary forms

of a suit in the Superior Court of the state of California,

and under the provisions of its law as construed by the

courts, legal and equitable actions might be joined, and

in this case they were; the only equitable feature in the

suit, being a suit for an injunction against the continu-

ance of the alleged wrongs.

See original complaint, Tr. pp. 7 to i6.

The cause was removed to the United States Circuit

Court, Ninth Circuit, for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, and after the cause was thus

removed, the New Liverpool Salt Company, construing

its complaint as we have above stated it, made its elec-

tion to bring the suit on the equity side of the Circuit

Court, and the bill was so framed.

And in the bill filed in this court, it alleged its own-

ership of the lands.

Tr. Vol. I, p. 62.

That it was engaged in the business of mining, gath-

ering and refining salt, and was the owner of, and op-

erated a mill, drying sheds and warehouses at the north-

east quarter of section 14 therein described; that the
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buildings were between 700 and 800 feet in length, and

equipped with engines, boilers and all the machinery

necessary for reducing and refining salt, and that the

buildings and equipment were of a value of more than

$50,000; that it carried on a large and extensive busi-

ness, and sold many thousands of tons of salt each year

;

that sections 15 and 23 described in the said bill were of

great value, because they had upon them large deposits

of salt.

Tr. Vol. I, p. 63.

It next describes the Colorado river, and alleges that

no part of the waters of the river would naturally flow

upon or near the lands of the complainant.

Tr. Vol. I, p. 63.

Then alleges that for more than a year last past the

defendant, the California Development Company, had

been carrying on the business of diverting the waters

of the Colorado river, and carrying the same to Calex-

ico, in the state of California, and distributing the said

water by means of various canals, and disposing of the

same for the purposes of irrigation. That it had con-

structed three intakes on the Colorado river for the pur-

pose of diverting the waters and describes the manner

in which they are conducted.

Tr. Vol. I, p. 63.

That the lands of the complainant in the Salton Sink

are about 280 feet below the sea level, and that by reason

of the contour of the land, and the slope thereof from all

points to which the water is carried by the said canal,
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all water carried by the canal to such point except such

as is used, absorbed and evaporated, finds its way-

through the various waste and distributing canals, etc.,

to Salton Sink and to the lands of the complainant.

Tr. Vol. I, p. 64.

It then alleges that for more than six months the de-

fendant had been carrying a large amount of water, the

quantity being such that a flow of between 300 and 500

cubic feet per second passed through the canal in excess

of the amount absorbed, evaporated or used for irriga-

tion or other purposes, and that such an amount of

water had been, for more than three months past, con-

tinually wasting from the canal system of the defendant,

and pouring into the Salton Sink, and had produced a

lake over 20 miles in length and several miles in width,

and overflowed and covered all of section 23, a large part

of section 15, and part of the northeast % of the south-

west yi of section 14, and that the flood had then reached

within 200 feet of the buildings described, and would

extend still further but for the fact that a dyke had been

constructed by the company to prevent it.

Tr. Vol. I, pp. 64 and 65.

That the water was continuing to increase, and if it

was not checked, would, in a short time, overflow the

dykes and flood the ground about the buildings, and en-

danger their safety by rendering the foundations inse-

cure; that the complainant had many thousand tons of

salt piled up on the ground inside of the dyke, which by

such overflow would be destroyed and ruined; that the

water carried sand and silt, which was being deposited
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upon the lands covered by the salt, damaging it by cover-

ing up the salt deposits and rendering it impure, etc.

Tr. Vol. I, page 65.

It alleged its ownership of a railroad, and gave a de-

scription of it, and alleged that that had been entirely

covered by the overflow of waste water, and the deposit

of sand and silt. That waste water in large quantities

was still running into the lake, and increasing the size

thereof ; that the climatic conditions at Salton and in the

vicinity of the lake and the property of the complainant

was such that if the flow of the water was stopped and

the defendant not permitted to divert the waters of the

Colorado river into the said lake, the same would evapo-

rate and disappear, but if not stopped, the plaintiff would

suffer great and irreparable injury by the destruction of

its business, and would suffer damages in a sum exceed-

ing $200,000.

Tr. Vol. I, page 66.

It then imputed all this overflow to the diversion by

the defendant of the waters of the Colorado river in ex-

cess of the amount required for any useful purpose, and

that a continuance of the overflow and flood would re-

sult from the continued diversion.

Tr. Vol. I, page 67.

That the defendant, the California Development Com-

pany, had made no provision at the said intakes for the

regulation and control of the flow of the waters, and

that unless restrained by the court, the defendant would

continue to divert the waters in large quantities, and

they would naturally overflow the lands of the complain-
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ant, and thereby destroy the property and business of

the complainant, and occasion complainant great and

irreparable injury.

Tr. Vol. I, page 67.

The complainant then alleged that the railroad

switches, rolling stock and their appurtenances, of the

railroad had been damaged in the sum of $50,000 by the

overflow; that just previous to the flooding of the lands,

about 15,000 tons of salt were gathered and ready to be

gathered, and which were overflowed and destroyed by

the flood, and the complainant had been damaged in the

sum of $25,000. That the lands and the salt deposits

had, by reason of the floods, been damaged in the sum

of $50,000; that the complainant had expended in con-

structing the dyke to protect its property, and in other-

wise protecting it from the flood, $6,000 ; that the build-

ings, sheds, mill and machinery of complainant had been

damaged by reason of the floods, in the sum of $25,000;

that the business had been interrupted, and would be in-

terrupted for a long period of time, and that complain-

ant had thereby been damaged in the sum of $25,000.

Tr. Vol. I, pages 68 and 69.

Supplemental bills were filed subsequent thereto as

the waters increased and the damage became greater,

but they simply alleged that the continuance and increase

in the amount of the flood caused by said acts had fur-

ther damaged the lands and salt deposits belonging to

the complainant in additional amounts, in one of them

the increased damage being in the sum of $180,000 in

addition to the amount alleged in paragraph XV of the
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complainant's bill, and that by reason of the continuance

and increase of the flood caused by defendant's acts, the

buildings, sheds, mill and machinery of the complainant's

mentioned in paragraph XVII of the bill of complaint

herein had been utterly destroyed, and complainant had

been thereby damaged in the sum of $30,000 in addition

to the amount therein alleged.

Tr. Vol. I
,
pages 79 and 80.

This was the last of the supplemental bills, and filed

after the entire property of complainant had been an-

nihilated.

After this statement of the damages, the bill then al-

leges that these acts, doings and threats are contrary to

equity and good conscience, and tend to the manifest

wrong and injury of your orator in the premises; and

forasmuch as your orator can have no adequate relief

except in this court, and to the end, therefore, that the

defendant may, if it can, show why your orator shall not

have the relief hereby prayed, your orator prays that the

defendant be required to make a full disclosure of all the

matters aforesaid and according to the best and utmost

of its knowledge, remembrance, information and belief,

full, true, direct and perfect answer make to the matters

hereinbefore stated and charged, but not under oath, etc.

Tr. Vol. I, pages 69-72, and 80.

Then, after praying for a writ of injunction, both in-

terlocutory and final, and to enjoin the defendant from

diverting the waters of the Colorado river in any way

whatever unless it should provide suitable headgates and

headworks, and control the water so that it should not
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flow in excess of the amounts which should be used for

irrigation, etc., and that there should be no waste water,

the fourth paragraph of the prayer is as follows

:

"And that the defendant may be decreed to account

for and pay over to your orator the damage occasioned

complainant by the violation of your orator's rights ; and

that your Honors, pending the rendering of the decree

above prayed, assess or cause to be assessed, the dam-

ages your orator has sustained by reason of the viola-

tion of its rights as hereinabove set forth."

Tr. Vol. I, page 74.

To the bill filed in this court the defendant demurred,

upon the ground that it appeared upon the face of the

bill that the defendant was not entitled to the relief

prayed for.

2. That the bill was multifarious, and because it

united two different suits, one for legal, and the other

for equitable, relief, and that the same could not be

united in this court.

3. That the causes set forth in the bill were not with-

in the jurisdiction of the court sitting as a court of

equity.

Tr. Vol. I, pages J^i ^^ ^^Q-

Demurrer to amended bill, and supplemental bill.

Tr. Vol. I, pages Si et seq.

The demurrer was overruled. The defendant an-

swered the bill, and subsequently thereto filed an amend-

ed answer to the bill and supplemental bill, and upon the

bill and supplemental bill, and the amended and supple-

mental answer, the cause was heard.
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The answer denies the plaintiff's alleged ownership of

the lands described in the bill.

Tr. Vol. I, pages 87 and 88.

Denies that the complainant was, at the time of filing

the bill, engaged in the business of mining, gathering or

refining salt, or was the owner of, or operated a mill,

drying shed or warehouse on the northeast ^ of section

14; denied the plaintiff's ownership of the land, build-

ings, engine, boilers, etc., and denied that the buildings

or the equipment were of the value of more than $50,000,

or any value, or that the complainant carried on the

business as alleged in the complaint.

Tr. page 88.

These denials were for the want of information or be-

lief. The defendant denied also that no part of the

waters of the Colorado river mentioned in paragraph IV

of the bill of complaint flowed naturally upon or near the

lands claimed by the plaintiff.

Tr. page 89.

Denied that the defendant had constructed, upon the

Colorado river, three intakes for the purpose of divert-

ing the waters of the Colorado river into the canals men-

tioned, and denied that at the time of the filing of the

said bill, or at any time, the defendant was diverting any

of the waters of the Colorado river; denied that any of

the waters diverted by the defendant from the Colorado

river was carried by the defendant, or allowed by the

defendant, to flow to various points, from which points

it passed into the New river or Alamo river, or into any

waste or distributing canals; and then alleged that the
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waters referred to were diverted from the Colorado

river in Mexico, by a corporation organized under the

laws of the Republic of Mexico, known as La Sociedad

de Yrrigacion y Terrenos de la Baja California (Socie-

dad Anonima), which corporation was the owner of all

the canals leading from the Colorado river in Mexico to

the town of Calexico in California, mentioned in the bill

of complaint, and denied that during any of the times

mentioned in the bill, the defendant was diverting any

water from the Colorado river which was allowed to flow

into either the Alamo or New river, or upon any of the

lands described in the bill of complaint.

Tr. pages 89 and 90.

Admitted that the complainant's land was below the

level of the sea, and in what is known as the Salton

Sink, and that water flowing into the New river or

Alamo river naturally finds its way to the Salton Sink

unless diverted from the said rivers, but denied that the

water flowed upon the lands belonging to the complain-

ant.

Denied that the defendant diverted, or was diverting,

any amount of water from the Colorado river into any

canal in such manner or quantity that a flow of between

300 and 500 cubic feet per second, or any amount, passed

through the canals in excess of the amount absorbed or

evaporated or used for irrigation and other purposes,

or that streams of water amounting all together to be-

tween 300 and 500 cubic feet per second, or any amount,

for more than three months prior to filing the bill, or at

any time subsequent, had been continually wasting from
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the canal system, or pouring into the Salton Sink, or

had produced a lake of any size whatever, or had over-

flowed or covered all or any part of section 23, or of sec-

tion 15, or of section 14, described in the complaint, or

that the said flood waters or lake, at the time of filing

said bill, had reached within 200 feet of the buildings

in the bill described, or that the waters would have ex-

tended further but for the dyke alleged to have been con-

structed by the complainant.

Tr. pages 90 and 91.

Denied that at the time of the filing of the bill the

plaintiff's buildings were in danger, or that at that time

the complainant had any salt piled up on the ground in-

side of the dyke and which might thereafter be over-

flowed or destroyed or ruined, or that the waters being

carried into the lake deposited silt, mud or sand upon

the lands covered by the overflow, or that such deposit

had, at the time of the filing of the bill, damaged the

lands described therein by covering up the salt deposited

thereon, or by rendering the same impure or more diffi-

cult to mine or refine, or that such damage was con-

stantly or at all being increased by the washing in by the

wasteway sand, silt and mud.

Tr. pages 91 and 92.

Denied the plaintiff's ownership of the railroad, and

use thereof for the purpose of carrying rough salt from

the mines to the mill for the purpose of reducing or re-

fining the same, or that it was used for any purpose.

Tr. page 92.
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Admitted that waste water, at the time of the fiHng of

the bill, was still running into the lake and increasing its

size, but denied that all or any of the property of the

complainant in said bill described would be covered by

water, or its business destroyed.

Tr. pages 92 and 93.

Denied that there were no streams of water which

naturally run upon the lands described in the bill, in

sufficient quantity to cover or flood said land with water,

but on the contrary alleged that the flood waters going

down the Alamo and New rivers in times of flood such as

existed in the years 1904 and 1905, and particularly dur-

ing the winter season of 1905, and the waters flowing

from the natural drainages from the mountains and sur-

rounding locality in said Salton Sink, will flow upon the

lands in the bill described, and that the natural flow of

said waters, if allowed to take their natural course,

would have flowed upon the lands in the complaint de-

scribed, and that the Salton Sink, without any water be-

ing carried therein artificially, during the said year 1905,

would have become a great lake, and overflowed the

lands and property in the bill described, and that if the

canals mentioned in the bill of complaint had not been

constructed or built, and the waters of the Colorado

river coming down had been allowed to take their nat-

ural course, they would have overflowed the banks of

the said river, and would have flowed into the chan-

nels leading therefrom, and found their way through

said channels and over the surrounding country through

the sloughs and bayous into the said Salton and Alamo

rivers, and woiild have gone into the Salton Sink and to



—16—

and upon and over the lands in the bill of complaint de-

scribed; and that if the canals referred to had not been

constructed, all of the lands described in plaintiff's bill

of complaint would have been overflowed by the waters

coming down the said Colorado river and finding their

way and flowing naturally into the New and Alamo

rivers.

Tr. pages 93 and 94.

Denied that the conditions at Salton and in the vi-

cinity of the lake, and the property of the plaintiff, are

such that if the flow of the waste waters in the said lake

be stopped, and the defendant be not permitted to divert

the waters of the Colorado river into said lake, the same

would evaporate and disappear, but alleges that the de-

fendant is not, and at no times mentioned in the bill of

complaint was, diverting any waters of the Colorado

river into the said lake.

And for want of sufficient information or belief to

enable it to answer certain allegations in paragraph X
of the bill, denied that if the flow of the waste water be

not stopped, the complainant would suffer great or ir-

reparable injury by the destruction of all of its property

or business, or would suft'er damages in a sum exceeding

$200,000, or any sum.

Tr. pages 94 and 95.

Denied that all or any of the flooding of the lands

of complainant was caused by or was the result of the

diversion by the defendant, from the Colorado river, of

the stream of water mentioned in the bill, in excess of

the amount required for any useful purpose, or that it
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was caused by, or was the result of the diversion by the

defendant of any waters from the Colorado river what-

soever ; or that any overflow or flood would or did result

from the continued or any diversion by the defendant of

the waters of the river which naturally flowed, or would

flow, in another direction.

Tr. page 95.

Denied that the intakes mentioned in paragraph XII

of the bill were constructed by the defendant. Denied

that unless the defendant constructed head gates for the

controlling and regulating of the amount of water flow-

ing in its canal, there would continue to flow through

said canal an amount greatly or at all in excess of that

required for proper use, which would flow in any lake

or upon the lands of the complainant, or destroy or ruin

the property or business of the complainant, and denied

that unless defendant was restrained by this court, it

would continue to divert from the Colorado river laree

or any quantities of water which would naturally flow in

another direction, in such manner that the same would

overflow and flood the lands of complainant, or destroy

its property, and denied that complainant had no ade-

quate remedy at law,

Tr. pages 95 and 96.

The defendant then, in its answer, denied specifically

the damages alleged to have been suffered by the plain-

tifl^. Denied that the railroad had been damaged in the

sum of $50,000. Denied that the plaintiff had about

15,000 tons of salt just previous to the flooding, or any

salt, gathered or ready to be gathered, which was over-



—18—

flowed and destroyed by the flood. Denied that the com-

plainant was, by such destruction of the sak, damaged in

the sum of $25,000, or any sum, or that the lands and

salt deposits had been, by reason of the deposit of silt or

mud by the flood, damaged in the sum of $50,000, or

any sum; or that complainant had expended in con-

structing a dyke for the protection of its property, or

moving the salt, or otherwise protecting its property, the

sum of $6,000, or any sum, or that the buildings, sheds,

mills and machinery of complainant, or all together, had

been damaged by reason of the floods, in the sum of

$25,000 or any sum, or that the complainant had been

engaged in carrying on the business at a profit, or had,

by reason of the flood, been interrupted in its business,

or would be interrupted, or that complainant was dam-

aged thereby in the sum of $25,000, or any sum.

Tr. pages 96 and 97.

And then, as this amended answer was filed after the

first supplemental bill was filed, denied that the com-

plainant had, since the commencement of the action, or

by reason of any acts of the defendant, been damaged in

any sum whatever.

And denied that the continuance and increase in the

amount of the flood had damaged the lands or salt de-

posits, belonging to the complainant in the sum of $180,-

000 in addition to the amount alleged in paragraph XV
of the complainant's bill, or in any sum whatever, or that

by reason of the continuance or increase of the said

flood, the buildings, sheds, mill and machinery of the

complainant, mentioned in paragraph XVII of the said
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bill, had been utterly destroyed, or that complainant had

thereby been damaged in the sum of $30,000 in addition

to the amount alleged in paragraph XVII of complain-

ant's bill, or any sum. And denied that any part of the

flood was caused by the defendant or by any of its acts,

and denied that any of the injuries or damages com-

plained of in said bill of complaint were caused by this

defendant.

Tr. pages 97 and 98.

A separate answer to the bill was then set forth, and

which in substance, is that a certain tract of land in San

Diego county in the state of California, known as the

Imperial Valley, and which contains more than 400,000

acres of land susceptible of irrigation by the waters of

the Colorado river, was, in the year 1896, public land

belonging to the United States, and of a dry and sandy

character, with little vegetation thereon, and in that

condition practically desert lands; but that with water

for proper irrigation, they were capable of being ren-

dered fertile and valuable.

Tr. Vol. I, pages 102 et seq., particularly com-

mencing at page 114.

That in 1896 the defendant corporation, the Califor-

nia Development Company, was incorporated under the

laws of the state of New Jersey for the purpose of ob-

taining the water from the Colorado river, to be supplied

to the Imperial Valley, together with a large amount of

land in the Republic of Mexico, lying immediately south

of the boundary between California and the said re-

public.

Tr. Vol. I, page 114.
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That the defendant, through an arrangement with a

Mexican corporation, undertook to divert the waters of

the Colorado river at a point on American soil, and a

short distance above the boundary between the United

States and Mexico, on the west bank of the Colorado,

and by means of a canal to be constructed to conduct the

waters of the river through the said tract of land in

Mexico, and to the boundary line between the United

States and Mexico, with a view to furnishing water for

irrigation to the lands referred to in both republics.

Tr. pages 114 and 115.

In pursuance of this arrangement the defendant did,

construct a canal, beginning the construction in the year

1900, and constructed it down to and across the lands

in the Republic of Mexico, and to the boundary westerly

from the Colorado river. That the said canal was con-

structed openly, and notoriously, and at a large expense;

that divers water companies were organized under the

laws of the state of California, known as Imperial

Water Companies Nos. i to 8 respectively, which were

organized for the purpose of taking the waters from the

said canals and furnishing the same to settlers upon said

lands in the county of San Diego, state of California, for

irrigation and domestic uses, and contracts were entered

into between the defendant and the said several Imperial

Water Companies for furnishing to them the said waters,

and in pursuance of such contracts, divers lateral canals

were constructed by them, and through which the waters

of the Colorado river so diverted by the said canal were
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to be delivered and distributed to the settlers upon the

said tracts for irrigation and domestic uses.

Tr. pages 115 and 116.

The several lateral canals and the main canals were

completed, and a large amount of land of the Imperial

Valley had been settled upon, and entered, under the

laws of the United States, by divers persons who became

purchasers of the stock of the said several Imperial

Water Companies, which stock entitled them to water

for irrigation and domestic uses.

That prior to the commencement of the suit, there

had been more than 100,000 acres of the said lands in

the said Imperial Valley brought under cultivation, and

water had been furnished to the owners of said lands

and settlers for irrigation and domestic uses, and that

said lands have been proven to be of great value for ag-

ricultural and horticultural purposes when supplied with

water for irrigation.

Tr. page 116.

That the defendant had been furnishing water to the

said several Imperial Water Companies from the main

canal connecting with the Colorado river, for two or

three years prior to the year 1904, and in the course of

the furnishing of water through the said canal at the

point of connection with the Colorado river on the west

bank thereof, and a few miles north of the international

boundary, the said canal had at its head, and for a con-

siderable distance from its head, become filled up with

silt so that the canal at its head was incapable of carry-

ing water sufficient to furnish the said owners and set-
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tiers upon the said lands with water in quantities suffi-

cient to insure the successful cultivation of said lands,

and for that reason, in the year 1904, a second connec-

tion had been made with the river, known as the second

intake to the said canal, and which intake was a few

miles south of the first intake, and connected with the

main canal at a point eight or ten miles distant from

the Colorado river ; and in the course of the use of that

intake, which also had become silted, and both intakes

had so far filled with silt that it became evident that a

sufficient quantity of water could not be obtained in the

said canal through the two intakes to furnish the said

owners and settlers upon the said lands with sufficient

waters for their purposes, and with the demonstration

of the fertility of said land when supplied with water,

new settlers were continually coming in, and other lands

were being taken up and the area of cultivation ex-

tended, until it appeared that in the season of 1904 the

cultivation would probably extend over an area of 200,-

000 acres, and to meet the demands of the then culti-

vated lands, and the prospective extended area of culti-

vation a third intake was constructed connecting with

the Colorado river on the west bank, and connecting

with the main canal at a point ten or twelve miles west-

erly from the Colorado river.

This was constructed because of the prospective de-

mand for water during the season of 1904, and up to

that time, the experience of the defendant with the

canals and several intakes, had induced the belief that

the action of the waters in the said several intakes, in-

stead of washing and expanding the capacity of the in-
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takes, tended to fill up the intakes, and to require dredg-

ing from time to time to keep the capacity thereof to a

point sufficient to carry water in sufficient quantities to

supply the people, and in the course of the said experi-

ence, it had become necessary at different times, to

dredge out the upper ends of the canals and intakes for

the purpose of obtaining water in sufficient quantity.

Tr. pages ii6, 117 and 118.

In the meantime, and prior to the year 1904, there had

sprung up in the Imperial Valley, towns that were to be

supplied with water, and the inhabitants of the valley

numbered more than 10,000 people who were dependent

upon the waters obtained by means of the canals, for ir-

rigation purposes and other uses, and in the construction

of said canals, both the main canal and intakes, and the

laterals, the defendant had provided for the use of water

diverted thereby, and for taking care of the same, by

wasting upon a broad expanse of territory, more than 25

miles south of the Salton Sink, in such way that under

ordinary conditions, or any conditions which could have

been foreseen, the said waters could have been, and

would have been, so handled and distributed that no in-

jury whatever would have occurred to the property of

others. But in the year 1904 and 1905 the rains falling

in that section of the country, and the mountains which

constitute the water-shed surrounding the Imperial Val-

ley were greatly in excess of anything that had occurred

previously thereto within the knowledge of the people of

the said sections. And by reason of these rains, the de-

mand for water for irrigation was made much less than

otherwise it would have been, and less than the demand
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reasonably to be expected for the season of 1904 and

1905, for irrigation and domestic uses and supplying the

said towns. And later in the years 1904 and 1905, and

particularly in the winter and spring of 1904 and 1905,

and summer of 1905, enormous floods occurred in the

Colorado river, w4th greater frequency and longer con-

tinuance than had ever been known to occur in the said

river, and in that section of the countr}^ before, and by

reason of these several causes, mainly the overflow from

the Colorado river during the winter of 1904 and 1905,

and the summer of 1905, and continuing on down to the

time when this answer was made, which was on the

day of December, 1906, the main canal became washed

out, and vast amounts of water poured from the Colo-

rado river until finally nearly the entire river flowed

into said canals, and such was the enormous quantity of

flood waters that if there had been no canal there, the

Salton Sink would have been filled with water to an ex-

tent quite as great as, if not greater than, has actually

been experienced. As a matter of fact, the said canals,

by embankments thrown up in the construction of them,

had prevented a large amount of water from the Colo-

rado river flowing into the Salton Sink by diverting it in

other directions to the southward from the said canal.

Tr. pages 118 to 120.

The defendant then further alleged that in the con-

struction of the main canals, of the three intakes, and

the laterals, more than $250,000 had been ex-

pended prior to the commencement of this suit,

and prior to the first of January, 1905; that a
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large amount, not less than five million dollars, had been

expended in the settlement and improvement of the said

Imperial Valley, and that the value of the property de-

pendent upon the said waters from the said canals for

irrigation and domestic uses for the inhabitants thereof

was of a value exceeding ten million dollars, and which

property would be rendered worthless without the use of

the waters from the Colorado river; and alleged that

there is no other source from which the people of that

section of the country can be supplied with water,

either for domestic uses or irrigation of their lands.

And they alleged that they are dependent upon the

waters of the Colorado river, and also upon the canals

of the defendant.

Tr. page 120.

It was alleged that since the floods began in the Im-

perial Valley, in the effort to protect the settlers of the

valley and the works of the plaintifif, and the property in

that district, from injury by the said floods, the defend-

ant had expended, or caused to be expended, a large

amount of money, to-wit, more than half a million dol-

lars, and that it was still engaged in the expenditure of

money to prevent the overflows from the said river, and

that after the defendant had succeeded in closing the

break made through the said canals, and turning the

Colorado river back into its natural channel in the fall

of 1906, another flood occurred in the Colorado river,

overflowing the banks of the said river on the western

side southerl}^ from the lower of the said intakes, and

again discharging enormous quantities of water, near-
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\y the entire Colorado river, into the district "of land

south of the said canals, and from which a large portion

thereof had entered the Salton Sink. And that the de-

fendant had been engaged, and was still engaged, in

the expenditure of large sums of money to exclude the

flood waters and to confine the said river again within

its natural channel. And it is alleged that it had not

been, by any act or omission, or any negligence on the

part of the defendant, that the said floods had filled the

Salton Sink and made the Salton lake therein, but that

the same had been caused by the enormous and frequent

and long continued floods of the Colorado river, and

that such floods could not have been foreseen and pro-

vided against.

Tr. pages 120 and 121.

Such were the issues made by the pleadings, and upon

which the cause was heard.

But for a better understanding of the various ques-

tions which arose in this case, and are now here for de-

termination, we think it proper to enter into a little fur-

ther amplification of many of the main facts upon which

this controversy depends. And we may say here, that

as voluminous as this record is, no inconsiderable part

of it consists of the description of conditions and the

statement of former and existing facts, about which

there is no controversy between the parties, and no con-

flict in the evidence.

The section of country through which this main canal

runs, is a vast area of many hundreds of square miles.

And as we approach the section known as Imperial

Valley, there is a vast amount of lands which, with ir-
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rigation, are susceptible of cultivation, and are exceed-

ingly fertile and productive. This area, while described

in the answer as about 400,000 acres, is in fact nearer a

million. The 400,000 acres refer particularly to the

tract of country which is known as Imperial Valley, and

even as to that, it is understated.

This land is, in a great measure, in its natural state,

practically a desert. The soil is of an exceedingly sandy

character, capable of great absorption, and the climate

itself one of the most arid in the United States, if not

in the world.

Evaporation in that tract of country, under ordinary

circumstances, is enormous, and the absorption of water

flowing upon the surface of the ground is also great in-

deed. The Salton Sink at its lowest depth is about 280

feet below the level of the sea, and the Salton basin

properly so-called, and as distinguished from the Im-

perial Valley and its irrigable lands, is barren of every-

thing except that now it is covered with water.

The New Liverpool Salt Works were situated at the

northwesterly end of this valley. The canals conducting

the water from the west bank of the Colorado river ap-

proaches the Imperial Valley at its southeasterly end;

the main canal from the Colorado river to the boundary

line between the United States and Mexico is about 4s

or 50 miles in length, and the canals by which the water

is taken and conducted to the place of use, extend, at

their furthest extremity, about 40 miles further north.

The New Liverpool Salt Works are situated about 45

miles from the extreme northern portion of the irrigable

lands. The Imperial Valley is 25 or 30 miles in width.
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The New Liverpool Salt Company's buildings at the

northwest extremity of the lake are at an altitude of

about 3 feet above the elevation of the lowest point in

the Salton Sink, but it is about five miles distant from

that lowest point, so that the difference in elevation over

a distance of five miles is only about three feet, from

which it will be seen that this Salton Basin is a shallow

saucer, with an inclination or grade not perceptible to

the eye, and measureable only by water levels. And

while away from this Salton Sink proper, the inclination

is greater, yet from the crest or sea level to the lowest

depth of the lake, a distance probably of 75 or 80 miles,

the difference in elevation is only about 280 feet. The

land, therefore, has no very great grade at any place,

at least not extending for any considerable distance.

The losses by evaporation and seepage of waters flow-

ing from the natural surface of this land, and in a cli-

mate such as characterizes that country, is something

enormous.

The Colorado river overflows every year. From the

evidence in this case it will be seen that there has never

one year rolled by without overflows from the Colorado

river with the possible exception of the year 1888. Every

other year the records show that the Colorado river has

overflowed its banks on the western side, but never but

once in the history of the country, or in its traditions has

there been any Salton Sink formed except once, and that

in the year 1891. At that time a lake was formed about
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five feet in depth, and covering an area of about 120

or 130 square miles.

Testimony of George W. Durbrow, Tr. Vol. II,

pp. 641 and 642.

Durbrow makes the area 360 sq. miles, but this is too

great.

Furthermore, there are innumerable sloughs or points

of overflow along the western bank of the Colorado

river, and these floods have formed channels cutting

through that country in various directions and to vari-

ous points, and among them is the channel known as the

Alamo river.

There is also a wash from these overflows which runs

into a lake 20 or 30 miles further south, known as Vol-

cano lake. This lake's discharge is from the southern

end towards the Gulf of California until the water

reaches a certain height in Volcano lake, when it spills

out over to the north side, and this overflow from the

northern end of Volcano lake has washed out another

channel which is known as New river, and which runs

northerly towards and into the Salton Sink. The Alamo

wash is another which also has its trend towards and

extends to the Salton Sink.

These and other channels, some of which will be no-

ticed further along, have been made by the overflows of

the Colorado river, and whose existence has been known

many years prior to the construction of this canal, or

the cutting of any of these intakes.

There was no canal connecting with the Colorado

river when the flood of 1891 occurred and made this lake

to which we have referred before.
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The ordinary seasons of the overflow of the Colorado

river is in the summertime, or rather, during the months

of May, June, July and August.

At the Yuma bridge there is constructed a gauge

which measures the height of the water of the Colorado

river at that point, and which gauge plays an important

part in the evidence in this suit, as it is agreed that some

point on that gauge marks the point of the flow at the

Yuma bridge at which the overflows take place in the

vicinity of these intakes.

These events, the flood of 1891, the existence of these

various washes, the annual floods had occurred and been

observed and their effects been observed for more than

30 years before the California Development Company

began its operations in that section, and when it did be-

gin, there was this Mexican company organized, which

owned the lands lying below the International boundary.

With this Mexican company the California Development

Company had a contract in regard to the construction

of the canals, and to which we shall refer further along.

The three intakes referred to in the pleadings in this

case all extend to, and connect with, this channel known

as the Alamo river, and which, as we have said before,

has existed from the time whereof the memory of man

runneth not to the contrary. And wdien this Alamo

watercourse is reached, which is at about twelve miles

west from the Colorado river and about where the canals

and these three intakes come together, they each and

every of them discharge when water flowed therein into

this Alamo wash, and the Alamo watercourse or wash
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is the canal herein complained of for a distance of about

40 miles.

Returning now to the contracts. There were intro-

duced in evidence certain contracts printed and con-

tained within a red book which was marked "Defend-

ant's Exhibit No. 34." And also contracts between the

California Development Company and the various Im-

perial water companies, marked exhibits 35, 36 and 37.

In the red book, defendant's exhibit No. 34, there are,

besides the articles of incorporation of Imperial Water

Company No. i, and its by-laws, certain contracts set

forth, one of which bears date the 6th of April, 1900,

between the Sociedad de Yrrigacion y Terrenos de la

Baja California (Sociedad Anonima), (hereinafter

called the Mexican company), and the Imperial Water

Company No. i ; and the other dated the 24th day of

July, 190 1, between Imperial Water Company No. i

and this Mexican company, and the California Develop-

ment Company.

We call attention now, first, to the contract between

the Mexican company and Imperial Water Company

No, I, and which is printed last in the book referred to.

It recites that, whereas, the first party (that is, the

Mexican company), is about to construct a canal for the

purpose of diverting certain waters of the Colorado river

to be used for irrigation and other useful purposes, and

is desirous of selling the right to use such water ; and

Whereas, the second party is a corporation formed for

the purpose of supplying water to its stockhold-

ers only upon certain lands situated in the county of

San Diego ***** ^nd within certain ex-
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terior boundary lines mentioned and described in the

articles of incorporation; and

Whereas, the second party is desirous of obtaining a

supply of water for the use of its stockholders (then

follows the agreement).

The Mexican company agreed to deliver to the Im-

perial Water Company, annuall}^ four acre feet for each

share of stock of the water company which may have

been issued and located upon land situated within the

boundaries of the lands to be supplied with water by the

Imperial Water Company No. i, provided that the ag-

gregate which the Mexican company was obligated to

deliver should not exceed 400,000 acre feet per annum.

The water was to be delivered at the point on the in-

ternational boundary line between the United States and

Mexico to be thereafter agreed upon.

And the Mexican company was to have no interest in,

or control over, the water after delivery thereof at the

international boundary line.

In consideration of this agreement upon the part of

the Mexican company, the water company agreed that

the Mexican company should have the exclusive right

to sell the entire shares of capital stock of the said Im-

perial Water Company, and to retain all moneys received

from such sales for its own use; the first 50,000 shares

of stock sold should be at a price not exceeding $8.75

per share. (By the articles of incorporation of the Im-

perial company, it will be seen that its capital stock was

a million dollars, divided into one hundred thousand

shares of the par value of ten dollars each.)

It was further agreed that the second 50,000 shares
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was to be sold at a price to be designated by the Im-

perial Water Company, but not less than $8.75 per share.

All money received from the sale of the second 50,000

shares was to be paid to the Imperial Water Company.

The first money received from the sale of the second 50,-

000 shares should be divided equally between the parties

until the water company had received an amount equal

to the amount for which said stock should have been

sold in excess of $8.75 per share. The water company

was to locate all stock upon the lands selected by the pur-

chaser of the stock, or on the order of the Mexican com-

pany at the time of the sale, the stock, however, to be

located within the exterior boundary lines of the lands

to be irrigated by the Imperial Water Company No. i

.

The Imperial Water Company agreed to order and

receive from the Mexican company one acre foot of

water each year for each share of stock so sold and lo-

cated; and agreed to pay to the Mexican company fifty

cents for each acre foot delivered. The water company

had the right to obtain from the Mexican company four

acre feet per 3^ear for each share sold and located, but

was bound to receive and pay for one acre foot for each

share, the price of each acre foot to be fifty cents.

All water received by the water company prior to the

1st day of July of each year was to be paid for on the

1st day of July, and all other sums due for water each

year should be paid on the ist day of January of the fol-

lowing year.

The water company was to construct its own distrib-

uting system commencing the same at the point of de-

livery on the international boundary line, and the work
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to be done at its own expense. The Mexican company

had the right, at any time, to enlarge, at its own expense,

any of the main canals of the Imperial Water Company

No. I, for the purpose of conveying water through the

same to other lands, and that after such enlargement,

the Imperial company should pay only its pro-rata of the

expense of keeping the same in repair.

Such was the substance of this agreement.

The agreement of the 24th of July, 1901, between the

Mexican company, the Imperial Water Company No. i,

and the California Development Company, referred to

the contract of April 6, 1900, between . the Imperial

Water Company No. i and the Mexican company, and

which agreement was annexed to the contract of July

24, 1 90 1, marked exhibit A, and made a part thereof.

It then referred to a contract made on the 28th of

December, 1900, whereby the California Development

Company entered into an agreement with the Mexican

company, in which the California Development Com-

pany agreed to deliver to the Mexican company a cer-

tain amount of water appropriated, owned and diverted,

or to be in the future appropriated or diverted by the

California Development Company, from the Colorado

river, to enable the Mexican company to furnish water

for irrigation of certain lands situated in Lower Cali-

fornia, in the Republic of Mexico, and in the state of

California, irrigable by gravity from a certain system of

canals to be constructed by the C. D. company, by which

agreement the Mexican company conveyed to the Cali-

fornia Development Company its right to sell the en-

tire capital stock of the Imperial Water Company No. i.
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This contract of December 28, 1900, is also annexed to

the contract between the three parties, and marked ex-

hibit B, and made a part of the contract of July 24, 1901.

This latter contract then recited that the California

Development Company had sold a large amount of the

capital stock of the Imperial Water Company, and had

constructed a portion of the irrigation system contem-

plated in the contract exhibit B, and was then engaged in

the further construction thereof.

Recited the fact that the waters conveyed to the Mexi-

can company under the said contract exhibit B were the

waters to be used by the Mexican company in supplying

the Imperial Water Company with water under this

agreement.

And after these recitals, and of the assessment of one

dollar per share upon the stock of the Imperial Water

Company No. i, it was then agreed between the three

parties that the contract of April 6, 1900, exhibit A,

should be rescinded, but that the rescission was not in

any way to affect any act which had been done by either

of the parties thereto.

The Mexican company agreed, upon the demand of

the water company, to perpetually deliver to it an

amount of water not exceeding four acre feet of water

per annum, for each outstanding share of stock of the

Imperial Water Company, providing the aggregate was

not to exceed 400,000 acre feet per annum.

It agreed to deliver the water to the Imperial Water

Company No. i at the point upon the international boun-

dary line where the main canal constructed by the Mexi-

can company crosses the line, being a point distant about



—36—

2^ miles easterly from monument No. 220 of said in-

ternational line; and it was agreed that the Mexican

company had no interest in, or control over, the said

water after the delivery thereof at the said international

boundary line.

The water company agreed that the California De-

velopment Company should retain all moneys or other

property which might have been, or may be, received by

it from the sale of the capital stock of the water com-

pany theretofore sold, and should have the exclusive

right to sell all of the remainder of the capital stock ex-

cept 2500 shares, upon such terms as it might desire,

and receive for its sole use and benefit all moneys or

other property that might be obtained therefor.

As to the 2500 shares of the capital stock of the Im-

perial Water Company No. i, it should be retained by

that company as treasury stock, and neither the Mexican

company nor the California Development Company had

any interest therein, or in the proceeds to be obtained

from the sale thereof, and the stock so sold by the water

company from time to time, as the second party might

require, the proceeds of such sales to pay its running ex-

penses, at the same price and upon the same terms that

the California Development Company was selling its

stock.

It was further agreed that the capital stock should be

issued by its officers at such times and to such persons

and in such amounts as the C. D. company should, from

time to time, in writing request, until the entire capital

stock of the second party should have been issued except

as to the 2500 shares.
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It was again agreed that the water company should

receive and pay for, not less than one acre foot of water

for each share of its stock outstanding upon the first day

of July of each year, and pay to the Mexican company

the sum of fifty cents per acre foot for each acre foot of

water delivered, which was the price to be paid annually

;

and in no event and under no conditions was this price

to be increased.

It was further agreed that the water received by the

water company prior to the first of July, should be paid

on that day, and all other sums on the first day of Janu-

ary following.

And it was provided that for a failure or default of

the water company for a period of 90 days to make pay-

ments for water delivered after it became due, the Mexi-

can company and the California Development Company,

or either of them, might cease to deliver such water from

the said main canal until such arrearage was fully paid.

The California Development Company agreed to con-

struct and maintain a main canal, commencing at a point

on the international boundary line where the water was

to be delivered to the Imperial Water Company, and

continuing from the point of commencement through the

lands described in the articles of incorporation of Water

Company No. i, and to be of sufficient capacity, either in

its original construction or through subsequent enlarge-

ments from time to time by the California Development

Company at its own cost and expense, to convey an

amount of water sufficient at all times for the irrigation

of the lands owned or located by the stockholders of the

water company, and of a capacity to carry at least four
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acre feet of water per annum, for each outstanding

share of stock of the water company.

The canal was to be owned and maintained by the Cal-

ifornia Development Company, which was to have the

exclusive right to navigate the said canal, and to de-

velop and use all power that might be developed from the

waters flowing therein.

The California Development Company agreed to con-

vey the water to be delivered by the Mexican company to

the water company through said canal to the lateral

ditches to be constructed by it as therein provided.

If the California Development Company failed to con-

struct and maintain the canal system, and deliver the

water to the lateral ditches to be constructed by the C.

D. company, then the water company had the right to

enter upon the canal and make such additions and re-

pairs thereto, and changes therein, as were necessar}^ in

order that it should have a capacity sufficient for the con-

veyance of the water to be conveyed to it therein, and

also had the right to convey the water through said

canal from the international boundary line to the lateral

ditches, and the cost of such additions and changes in

said canal, and expense of conveying the water through

the same would be a claim against the California De-

velopment Company.

The California Development Company further agreed

to construct a system of distributing ditches, together

with all necessary gates and water weirs for the water

company, and in such manner as to convey the waters

from said canal to a point upon each governmental sub-

division of 1 60 acres of land from which it was practi-
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cable to irrigate the same ; with some further minor pro-

visions not essential to the understanding of the rela-

tions between these different companies.

But each and all lateral ditches, as soon as completed

by the California Development Company, were to be

turned over to the water company, and thereafter owned,

possessed and controlled and maintained by it.

The lateral ditches to be constructed where necessary

to irrigate the lands owned or located by the stockhold-

ers, were to be either as originally constructed, or by

subsequent enlargement, of ample size to convey to the

stockholders of the Imperial Water Company No. i, an

amount of water equal to two-thirds of an acre foot per

month for each share of stock owned by them, with pro-

visions for refunding to a stockholder the moneys paid

in case his land was so located that it could not be

reached by gravity without going to too great an ex-

pense, and to take up the stock, which was to be assigned

to the California Development Company.

To avoid the loss by seepage and evaporation, to the

stockholder, it was agreed that the water should be

measured, not at the international line, but at the point

where the same was delivered from the main canal, so

to be constructed by the California Development Com-

pany, into the main laterals of the water company, at

which place the water company was to receive the full

amount of water agreed to be furnished, and an addi-

tional two per cent.

The moneys collected from the assessment No. i were

to be paid by the treasurer of the water company to the

California Development Company, to be used by it in the
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construction of these canals and laterals, or the Califor-

nia Development Company would, at the option of the

stockholders, credit the stockholders with the amount

of the assessment paid by them upon their obligation to

the C. D. company last falling due, or issue receipts as

thereinafter provided.

Provision was then made for issuing receipts.

By another provision, it was declared that the inter-

est due from the stockholders of the water company to

the California Development Company should not com-

mence prior to January i, 1902, and that no money

would be collected from the water company for any

water furnished prior to that time.

An acre foot of water was defined.

Passing now to exhibit B annexed to this contract,

and which was between the California Development

Company, the party of the first part, and the Mexican

company, the party of the second part, it was recited that

the party of the first part was the owner of a certain

tract of land situated in the county of San Diego, (and

which was particularly described), containing 318.51

acres, more or less, and that the C. D. company had ap-

propriated and was the owner of a large amount of the

waters of the Colorado river and engaged in the diver-

sion of the water from that river upon the lands so

owned by the California Development Company, and

was engaged in the construction of headworks and a

canal on said land for the purpose of diverting these

waters, and in the construction of an irrigation system

and system of canals whereby the waters of the Colorado

river so diverted upon the said lands of the C. D. com-
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pany described therein, might be used for the irrigation

of lands in Lower CaHfornia and in the state of Cahfor-

nia.

It was further recited that the Mexican company, the

party of the second part, was the owner of a tract of

land containing about 100,000 acres, situated in Lower

California, a portion of which lay immediately south of

the international boundary line, and the said boundary

line was also a boundary line of the said tracts of land.

That the system of canals so being constructed by the

party of the first part crosses the said international line

from a point upon the land owned by the California De-

velopment Company therein described, to a point on the

lands owned by the Mexican company. That the pro-

posed extension of said canals and irrigation system ex-

tends through and across the lands of the Mexican com-

pany in a generally southwesterly direction, and then in

a generally northerly direction across the lands of the

Mexican company, to various points upon the interna-

tional boundary line, from which lands in California

could be irrigated, and also extended to other points

upon the land of the Mexican company from which its

lands and other lands in Lower California might be ir-

rigated.

Referred then to the contract between the Mexican

company and the Lnperial Water Company No. i, of

April 6, 1900, whereby the Mexican company had

agreed to deliver to the Imperial AA^ater Company No.

I, at a point on the international line, a certain amount

of water;

That whereas the Mexican company contemplated en-
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tering into additional contracts with other companies al-

ready formed or to be formed in the state of California,

for the purpose of delivering to such water companies a

large amount of water for the purpose of irrigating cer-

tain large tracts of land in California, and desired to ob-

tain water for the purpose of complying with the con-

tract entered into with Imperial Water Company No. i,

and to obtain water for the purpose of complying with

the contracts proposed to be entered into with these other

water companies, and also desired to obtain a supply of

water for the purpose of irrigating the lands belonging

to the Mexican company itself in the Republic of Mexi-

co; and desired to obtain water for the purpose of fur-

nishing waters for irrigation of other lands situated in

Lower California.

Then recited the fact that under the contract already

made, the Imperial Water Company No. i had granted

to the Mexican company the right to sell all of its water

stock, and that the Mexican company proposed to make

similar contracts with other California corporations,

then in consideration of the obligations imposed upon the

Mexican company, the California Development Com-

pany, the party of the first part, agreed to build the sys-

tem of canals from the point upon the lands of its ow^n

where the water was to be diverted from the Colorado

river, to and across the international lines, and across

the lands of the Mexican company in Lower California,

to other points upon the international line from which

large tracts of land situated in California could be ir-

rigated ; and also a system of canals from said point upon

the Colorado river where the said water was to be di-
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verted from which the lands of the Mexican company

and other lands in Lower California could be irrigated.

The California Development Company agreed to per-

petually deliver to the Mexican company a sufficient

amount of the water so appropriated, owned and divert-

ed, or to be in the future appropriated or diverted by the

California Development Company from the Colorado

river, to enable the Mexican company to furnish water

for the irrigation of the lands situated in Lower Cali-

fornia irrigable by gravity from the system of canals so

to be constructed, and to be delivered by said system of

canals to form an irrigation system, for the purpose of

irrigating lands situated in California and in Lower Cal-

ifornia, and which agreement to deliver the said water

was made dependent upon certain conditions, viz.

:

1. No contract made or to be made, whereby the

Mexican company agreed, or in the future should agree,

to grant, transfer, deliver or in any manner convey the

right to use any of the said waters, to any person or cor-

poration should, by reason of priority in date or any

other reason, give to such person or corporation any

prior or superior right over any other person or cor-

poration who should in any manner acquire from the

Mexican company the right to use any part of said

water.

2. The California Development Company should not

be responsible for failure to deliver the water agreed

to be delivered from any cause beyond its control, but it

was to use due diligence in protecting the system of

canals so to be constructed by it as aforesaid, and in re-

storing and maintaining the flow of water therein.
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The Development Company agreed also to keep the

canals so to be constructed by it in repair at its own cost

and expense, and enlarge the same from time to time as

might be necessary to enable it to comply with the pro-

visions of the agreement. And in consideration of these

obligations, the Mexican company granted, assigned and

transferred to the Development company all right which

it had in and to the stock of the Imperial Water Com-

pany No. I, and all right which it had to receive any of

the moneys which would be otherwise due and payable to

it under the said contract with Imperial Water Company

No. I from the sale of stock of said water company, and

agreed also that it would make like assignments in the

future of all rights which it might acquire under con-

tracts similar to said contract with Imperial Water Com-

pany No. I, which it might make with other water com-

panies in the state of California, for the sale of stock of

said companies, or the proceeds to be derived therefrom.

Ex. 34, Tr. Vol. VI, pp. 2270; for contracts

therein

;

Id. pp. 2284-2308.

Such is the substance of these agreements.

There were seven other water companies organized

under the laws of the state of California, making eight

all together, and being Imperial Water Companies Nos.

I to 8.

It will be remembered, in the contracts already re-

ferred to, there is a limitation of Imperial Water Com-

pany No. I in the distribution of the water received b}^

it, and by which limitation it is confined to certain dis-

trict of lands. Now, each of these companies was organ-
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ized in the same way, each had its own particular dis-

trict in which the water to which it was entitled under

these contracts was to be delivered and used.

A map was introduced in evidence, entitled, Map of

the Imperial Settlement, showing the boundaries of the

several mutual water companies, the systems of canals,

etc., and marked upon this map were the boundaries of

the different districts to which the several companies

were limited.

Those districts were marked Imperial Water Com-

pany No. I, its boundaries in brown; Imperial Water

Company No. 4; Imperial Water Company No. 5, lying

to the east of the Alamo river, marked in green; Impe-

rial Water Company No. 6, lying to the west of the New
river, and marked in red ; Imperial Water Company No.

7, the boundaries marked in purple ; and Imperial Water

Company No. 8, marked in black.

This map is marked defendant's exhibit No. 7,7,.

Tr. Vol. VII, page 2408.

The canal was begun in 1900, and connected with the

Colorado river at a point about 100 yards above the in-

ternational boundary line, and from this point to where ii:

crosses into Mexico, the distance was about 1200 feet,

and it was constructed to that point in October, igoo;

tliere entered into Mexico, and some water was first ob-

tained from it at what is now Calexico, in June, 1901.

Testimony of C. R. Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill,

pages 1 161 and 1162.
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The water was brought down to the Mexican boun-

dary Hne in the neighborhood of Calexico, and was., to

that point, under the control of the Mexican company.

Id. Tr. Vol. Ill, page 1162.

And it was there delivered over to the mutual water

companies.

These mutual water companies were all organized in

the same way and had identically the same objects in

view in every instance, and were organized to cover cer-

tain topographical districts with the idea in view that

the appellant company, instead of being a retailer of

water, delivering water to the individual users, became

a wholesaler of water, and delivered water to the vari-

ous districts.

Id. Tr. page 1163.

Imperial Water Company No. 3 never actively en-

gaged in business at all at any time.

Of Imperial Water Company No. 2, some of its stock

was issued, but it afterwards became merged into Water

Company No. 4, so that at the time of the trial there was,

in active existence, only six of these mutual water com-

panies, numbered i, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8.

Testimony of Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, page 1163.

Besides the contract with Imperial Water Company

No. 4, there were introduced also the contracts with

Nos. 4, 5, and 8, marked defendant's exhibits 35, 36 and

And also No. 7, which was to be filed afterwards.

Tr. Vol. VI, p. 2308-2358.
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The contract between the Mexican company and Im-

perial Water Company No, 8, and the CaHfornia De-

velopment Company, refers to the contract of the 28th

of December, 1900, between the Mexican company and

the California Development Company, whereby the De-

velopment company agreed to deliver the water to the

Mexican company as hereinbefore particularly set forth,

and which contract was annexed to the contract with

Water Company No. 8, marked exhibit A, and made a

part of it, with all of its recitals and conditions. And

by this contract the Mexican company agreed to deliver

to Water Company No. 8, fonr acre feet of water for

each share of its stock issued and located upon lands

within its boundaries, the aggregate not to exceed 160,-

000 acre feet per annum, but it is in no essential par-

ticular different from the contract with Imperial Water

Company No. i.

The contract with Imperial Water Company No. 5

was made between that company and the California De-

velopment Company, and of date December 24, 1901.

This contract referred to a contract of the 15th of

March, 1901, between the Mexican company and Impe-

rial Water Company No. 5, which was similar to the

contract between the Mexican company and Imperial

Water Company No. i. It recited the fact that the con-

tract between the Mexican company and the Develop-

ment company, of date December 28, 1900, by which the

Mexican company had conve3^ed to the Development

company the right to sell the entire capital stock of Im-

perial Water Company No. 5, had been entered into.

And after many recitals of facts, it was then agreed by
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the California Development Company that it would, at

its cost and expense, forthwith contract and complete for

the Imperial Water Company No. 5, a main canal from

the point on the Salton river in San Diego county, dis-

tant about 12 miles north of the international boundary

line, where the California Development Company had

already begun the construction of a diverting dam, down

to the lands upon which the stock of the Water Company

No. 5 had already been located, and agreed to construct

a system of distributing ditches with all necessary gates

and water weirs to convey the waters from the canals

to each governmental subdivision of 160 acres, etc. And

in its main provision in regard to the furnishing of the

water, the price to be paid therefor, it is substantially the

same as the contracts hereinbefore already more par-

ticularly noticed.

It should be here stated that the persons who organ-

ized the California Development Company and launched

the enterprise of the diversion of the waters from the

Colorado river for the purpose of irrigation of Imperial

Valley did, at the same time, contemplate a system of

canals for the irrigation of the lands below the boun-

dary line, and were in fact the purchasers of the 100,000

acres of land which belonged to the Mexican company;

that under the laws of the Mexican Republic, as we un-

derstand it, foreign corporations were not permitted to

hold lands, and the Mexican company was organized

under the laws of the Republic of Mexico for the pur-

pose of taking the title of the properties south of the

boundary line, and did take the title of this 100,000 acres

of land for the California Development Company, which
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was the owner of the stock of the Mexican company with

the exception of a few shares held by the directors of

that Mexican company.

Now, in the Hght of these contracts and of the oper-

ations of the various companies, and the development of

the various plans of the system, the plan of the system

becomes quite obvious.

It was a gigantic enterprise for the settlement of

tracts of land, mainly in California, partly in the Re-

public of Mexico, which were, in a state of nature, prac-

tically desert lands ; that there was no source from which

waters could be obtained for the Imperial Valley, nor

probably for the lands south of the line, that would fur-

nish an adequate supply, except the Colorado river.

The plan contemplated a canal capable of carrying a

large volume of water, and to be conducted along the

lines of gravity and crossing the boundary line between

the two Republics near the town of Calexico, from which

main canal waters could be furnished and distributed

upon the lands below the boundary line, and also on those

of the Imperial Valley; that to properly develop and

complete a permanent system for the supply of settlers

upon these lands in California, the organization of these

Imperial water companies with their various numbers,

was undertaken and accomplished, and at the outset of

this enterprise and of its business it is undoubtedly true

that the California Development Company did practical-

ly control the Mexican company and these Imperial

water companies. But it will be noticed that these con-

tracts provided for the sale of the stock of these mutual

companies by the California Development Company
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through its contract with the Mexican company, and this

stock so sold was the evidence of the right of the holders

thereof to be furnished with water to the extent pro-

vided in these contracts. The furnishing of the settlers,

the stockholders themselves, and the distribution of the

water to them, was through these Imperial water com-

panies, and though, as said before, they were themselves

controlled by the California Development Company at

the outset, that was only because the California Develop-

ment Company at the outset owned practically all the

stock of each company, or at least controlled it, but as

this stock was sold off, the power of the stockholders in

the various companies was continually increasing, and

that of the California Development Company diminish-

ing, and at the time of the trial of this cause the stock

of many of these companies had been sold off by the

California Development Company until the controlling

interest therein had passed into other hands. These oth-

er hands are the settlers themselves.

This stock was transferred to the settlers, ordinarily,

on the basis of one share of stock for each acre of land

owned by the individual settlers, and the water compa-

nies were to be furnished with water to the extent of

four acre feet per annum for every share thus disposed

of. And the stock so held by the settlers constituted the

evidence and the measure of their rights to water from

the distributing company.

But at the time of this trial, 98% of the stock of Im-

perial Water Company No. i had passed from the Cali-

fornia Development Company into the hands of settlers,

and it was then owned by them.
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All of the stock of Imperial Water Company No. 4,

and of No. 2 as well, which was consolidated with No. 4,

has been sold to the settlers, all of the land in those dis-

tricts having been taken up by the settlers who, at the

time of the trial of this action, owned all of the stock

of those companies.

As to the other companies, the stock had not all passed

from the control of the California Development Com-

pany, and enough has been said to make it appear that

while the Development company procured the incorpora-

tion of the mutual water companies, and virtually con-

trolled those companies by its power over the stock, yet

as the stock was sold, then the power of the California

Development Company would grow less and less, rmtil

the control would pass into the hands of the settlers.

Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1167, 1170 and 1173-1178.

And that control had passed into the hands of the set-

tlers, and in some cases, as we have shown, the Califor-

nia Development Company no longer holds any stock in

them.

In Imperial Water Company No. i, it held only 2%
at the time of this trial. And the board of directors is

not the same, nor is the board of directors of the Cali-

fornia Development Company, nor of the Mexican com-

pany, the same.

Such are the undisputed facts in this case concerning

the inception of the enterprise, the plans which it had in

view, and the methods by which those plans have been

carried into effect so far as they are perfected.

Under these contracts, and in pursuance of this plan,

and to supply the water, induce the settlement of these
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lands, and to build up a great agricultural and horticul-

tural settlement, the construction of the canal began in

the year 1900.

C. R. Rockwood was the chief engineer of the com-

pany, although this canal was begun by George Chaffey

under a contract with the California Development Com-

pany, of which Rockwood was one of the directors.

The enterprise had been conceived and its plan

wrought out by C. R. Rockwood. When the first in-

take was cut by Chaffey, and the canal put in condition

by which water could be conducted to the Imperial Val-

ley, the settlements began, and the experiences which the

company had had with these canals, and the intakes, had

been that the main difficulty which they had to encounter

was to prevent the intakes from filling up with silt, and

with such rapidity that the water could not be delivered

in sufficient quantities to the valley. The Colorado river

probably carries more silt than any other river on the

Continent of America. And in its flood seasons, and

particularly when united with flood seasons of the Gila,

the percentage of silt is enormous. And as the canals

are constructed through a country of loose and porous

material, they cannot be carried on a very heavy grade.

And because of the difficulty of keeping the silt out of

the intakes, and to maintain the canal so that the water

would flow in sufficient quantities, the second intake was

cut after some two years' experience, or a little more,

with the first intake.

But they had the same difficulty there, and the third
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intake was cut in the fall of 1904, and completed about

the middle of October of that year.

Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1189, 1190 and 1198.

The California Development Company had, through

C. R. Rockwood, made a thorough investigation of the

conditions which might reasonably be expected to be en-

countered, and concerning the dangers which might be

presented before they undertook the construction of the

canal at all.

(Testimony of Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages

1229, 1230 and 1233 to 1237.)

The Yuma gauge of the Southern Pacific Railroad

Company had been itself established for 30 years ao*

more.

Inquiry was made of various persons, including the

oldest inhabitants. The result of those inquiries was

that the Colorado river overflowed every year, and in the

vicinity of these intakes ; that the overflow waters had

made these various channels which were found running

in every direction through this country, and including

the Alamo and New rivers.

The Yuma gauge marked about the height which the

waters of the Colorado river reached at that point, and

neither history nor tradition furnished any account of

the formation of a lake or sea in this Salton Sink upon

any other occasion than the flood of 1891.

When the first intake was constructed, headworks

were put in, but the silting of the channel above those

headworks soon made them absolutely useless, and a by-
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pass was cut around in order to pass the water through

there at all.

The character of the country we have already at-

tempted to describe. And in that character and its cli-

matic conditions, there was an amply sufficient explana-

tion why it was that the waters did not gather in the

Salton Sink. It was because seepage and evaporation

were so enormous, and the distance so great, that not-

withstanding the vast quantities of water which over-

flowed the banks of the Colorado river westward, and

made its way in that direction, the waters pouring over

this large surface and in this arid climate, and the soil

peculiarly permeable to water, it disappeared before it

reached the depths of the Salton Sink and formed a lake.

These conditions, and the past history of the country,

and the experience of the California Development Com-

pany, were before Rockwood, the then chief engineer of

the California Development Company, when he cut this

new intake in 1904.

In the meantime, the settlement had grown; 100,000

acres were in cultivation, and the area was being ex-

tended, and a greater amount of water was necessary, or

was reasonably supposed to be necessary, for the needs

of the country.

Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1194 and 1195.

These contracts with the various Imperial Water

Companies had been made. The settlers had, to the ex-

tent of their settlement, taken the stock of these com-

panies, and they were entitled to the waters under those

contracts.

The floods of the latter part of 1904, and of the years
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1905 and 1906, came, and they were such as were un-

known, both in frequency and long continuation. And

we call attention here to this fact, that while the New
Liverpool Salt Company was contending, and contended

successfully in the court below, that the loss of its prop-

erty was due to the negligence of the California Devel-

opment Company, it never made any attempt to refute

the facts which we have just stated, viz., that nothing

known in the history of that country, or in its traditions,

was at all comparable to what occurred during the times

of which we have just spoken.

Another fact upon which the evidence presents no con-

flict, the property claimed by the plaintiff, the entire salt

plant, buildings, machinery and railroads, were utterly

demolished, destroyed, every vestige of them buried up,

we don't know how many feet under water before this

trial concluded, and the last supplemental complaint was

filed for the purpose of alleging this utter destruction.

During the progress of the trial, the plaintiff intro-

duced evidence to establish the amount of its damages.

Here again the evidence is all one way except such

slight differences as may be found in the testimony of

the witnesses for the plaintiff' itself. The defendant of-

fered no evidence upon this question of damages, nor

was it at any time during the hearing of the cause, called

upon to account for anything. The account was all

made by the New Liverpool Salt Company, and consist-

ed in an attempt to prove the amount of its loss by evi-

dence concerning the value of the property destroyed,

and its destruction. That value was sought to be proved

by evidence concerning the cost of construction of the
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buildings, and other things that were destroyed, and

was of so uncertain and indefinite a nature, and proceed-

ed upon hnes which it is claimed by the defendant, were

not the measure of the responsibihty of the defendant, if

responsible at all, and that the judgment, so far as the

amount is concerned, is not supported by the evidence.

One item alone, but which was by far the largest of

all, we refer to here in this statement of the facts out

of which the various questions involved in this contro-

versy arise.

The waters which overflowed the lands claimed by the

plaintiff, dissolved the salt existing therein, and that salt

is held in solution by those waters.

The testimony as to the amount of this salt in the

crust, as it is termed, made by the plaintiff's witnesses,

shows 1 ,500,000 tons, and it was valued, in the salt crust,

at 25 cents a ton. And in making up the judgment of

the court, that claim was allowed for the full amount,

$375,000, which, of course, proceeded upon the theory

that that salt was a total loss, absolutely destroyed for-

ever.

As to the other items constituting damages decreed

in this case, the objections to them are, that the evidence

proceeded upon wrong theories, and even if correct in

theory, was too indefinite to furnish any conclusion at

all.

The questions involved in this cause, and arising out

of the facts above set forth, are the following:

I. Was the demurrer to the bill, filed in this

CAUSE, PROPERLY OVERRULED.^
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2. Was the plaintiff entitled to an injunction

at all, of any kind, and to wliat extent?

3. Was the plaintiff entitled to, and could

the court grant, the injunction in this decree

WITHOUT BRINGING IN THE IMPERIAL WaTER COMPA-

NIES, AND EACH OF THEM, IN ACTIVE OPERATION, AND

THE Mexican Company, as parties defendant here-

in?

4. If the Mexican Company could be dispensed

WITH, WERE NOT THE IMPERIAL WaTER COMPANIES

necessary parties before any such injunctive re-

lief could be granted ?

5. Assuming the bill to be good as against a

demurrer, was the decree for damages properly

given under the evidence in the case?

6. Was the defendant guilty of negligence in

the construction of its canals in omitting to pro-

vide means for controlling the flow of the water

into the intakes?

7. If it was guilty of such negligence, was that

negligence the proximate cause of the injury?

8. Assuming such negligence to have existed,

did it contribute to the injury?

9. Was not the overflow and the formation of

THE Salton Sink, and the destruction of plain-

tiff's PROPERTY, CAUSED BY THE ACT OF GOD, AND NOT

THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DEFENDANT?

10. If the DEFENDANT WERE NEGLIGENT, AND THAT

NEGLIGENCE CONTRIBUTED IN SOME DEGREE TO THE LOSS,

WAS THE New Liverpool Salt Company entitled to
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RECOVER OF THE DEFENDANT ANY DAMAGE BEYOND THAT

CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DEFENDANT?

II. Did not the court err in giving judgment

IN FAVOR OF THE PLAINTIFF FOR DAMAGES, AND ALSO IN

GIVING THE DECREE FOR THE INJUNCTION?

The assignment of errors will be found in the tran-

script, volume VI, pages 2371-2376.

The cause was argued before the court and submitted

and afterwards decided by the court, and in delivering

the opinion or conclusions at which the court had ar-

rived, the specific points ruled were set forth by the

learned judge. Those conclusions will be found in Tran-

script, volume I, pages 128-132. In the course of that

opinion the court said, among other things, that the com-

plainant was entitled to the compensatory relief claimed

at the hearing and shown by the annexed summary of

damages, omitting, however, the sums claimed for "rail-

road" and "loss of business." At page 132 that sum-

mary of damages will be found, and from the sum total

are to be deducted the damages claimed for the railroad,

$42,500.00, and the loss of business, $2,500.00, making

a total of $45,000.00. These items were not allowed by

the court and when deducted from the sum total will

give the amount for which the judgment was entered in

this cause.

The appellant now specifies the following particulars

in which the decree in this cause is alleged to be errone-

ous and the errors relied upon and intended to be urged

by the appellant.

/. The court erred in overruling the demurrer to the

bill in this cause.
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2. The court erred in deciding that the jurisdiction

of the circuit court as a court of equity to restrain the

wrongful diversions of water, draws to it the cognizance

of the damages, if any, which had resuked from such di-

versions.

J. The court erred in deciding that neither the Mexi-

can company nor the mutual water companies were

necessary parties to the action.

4. The court erred in deciding that the said compa-

nies were organized by the defendant and are now act-

ing as instrumentalities for effectuating the diversions

complained of and should be considered for the purposes

of this suit as identical with defendant or as mere agency

corporations.

4.. The court erred in deciding that even though they

were to be considered separate and distinct companies

and not agents, that they were joint tort-feasors and suit

might be brought against one or more or all of them at

complainant's election, and in deciding that there was

no defect of parties therein.

5. The court erred in deciding that if when the suit

was brought there were grounds for injunction, such

grounds had not been removed by the destruction of

complainant's works and by the closing of defendant's

intakes.

6. The court erred in deciding that the complainant

was entitled to have its free-hold protected under the evi-

dence in this case without regard to the amount of dam-

age threatened.

7. The court erred in deciding that the evidence did

not show such resulting damage to the settlers in the Im-
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perial country from the injunction as would justify its

refusal if complainant were otherwise entitled to it.

8. The court erred in deciding that the waters which

overflowed the complainant's land and destroyed its

property were largely, if not entirely, the waters di-

verted from the Colorado river through defendant's in-

takes.

p. The court erred in deciding that the defendant

was negligent in not selecting proper places for the in-

takes and in not providing suitable head gates to control

the flow of water through the intakes.

10. The court erred in deciding that the defendant's

said negligence was the direct and proximate cause of

the overflow of complainant's lands and the resulting

loss of its property.

11. The court erred in deciding that the floods of

1905 in the Colorado river would not have overflowed

the banks of the river and submerged complainant's

lands if the defendant's intakes had not existed.

12. The court erred in deciding that the complainant

was entitled to the injunction in this cause.

IJ. The court erred in deciding that the complainant

was entitled to the compensatory relief sued for.

14. The court erred in granting the injunction in

this cause in the absence of the said Mexican company

and the said several Imperial water companies, and the

court erred in decreeing the injunction in this cause.

ij. The court erred in granting the judgment for

damages in this case because the evidence is insufficient

to prove any damage to the complainant from any negli-

gence of the defendant, or to justifying a judgment

against the defendant for any damages.
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i6. The court erred in deciding that the flooding of

the Sahon Sink in the years 1904 and 1905 and 1906 and

the destruction of the complainant's property was oc-

casioned by the fauU of the Cahfornia Development

Company or by any negligence of said company.

I/. The court erred in deciding that the flooding of

the Salton Basin with water and the destruction of the

complainant's property occurred through the negligence

of the defendant and not the act of God.

18. The court erred in deciding that the loss of salt

destroyed at the mill and the destruction of the ma-

chinery of the complainant and the buildings of the com-

plainant, resulted from the negligence of the defendant

and not from the complainant's own negligence.

ip. The court erred in giving a decree in this cause

either for the injunction or the damages or any part of

said damages.

20. The evidence in the cause was insufficient to

prove the damages alleged and for which the judgment

was given, or any item thereof, and the evidence in the

cause is too uncertain to prove or establish any amount

of damage suffered by the complainant.

21. The court erred in giving judgment in favor of

the complainant for the sum of $456,746.23 because the

complainant was not entitled to recover any damages at

all in this suit.

22. If the complainant is entitled to recover damages

at all the court erred in awarding damages up to the

time of judgment.

2^. The court erred in permitting the complainant

to file the several supplemental bills herein.
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BRIEF OF THE ARGUMENT.

I.

A. It is a rule of the federal courts that legal and

equitable causes cannot be blended together in one suit

in a Circuit Court of the United States, nor are equitable

defenses permitted in an action of law.

Scott V. Armstrong, 146 U. S. 499, 36 L. Ed.

1059, 1064;

Scott V. Meely, 140 U. S. 106, 35 L. Ed. 358-360;

White V. Berry, 171 U. S. 366, 43 L. Ed. 199;

Cates V. Allen, 149 U. S. 451, 2,7 L. Ed. 804, 807-

80^;

Van Norden v. Morton, 99 U. S. 380, 25 L. Ed.

453;

Hurt V. Hollingsworth, 100 U. S. 100, 25 L. Ed.

569;

Mansfield v. Scott, iii U. S. 386, 28 L. Ed. 465;

Cherokee Nation v. Southern Kansas Railway

Company, 135 U. S. 641, 34 L. Ed. 295, 300.

The constitution of the United States secures the right

of trial by jury in all actions at law where the amount in

controversy exceeds twenty dollars ($20.00) and this

right to a jury trial in a federal court cannot be defeated

by blending legal and equitable claims.

U. S. V. Ingate, 48 Fed. 253, 256;

Eng. V. Russell, 71 Fed. 821, 824;

Harrison v. Farmers etc. Company, 94 Fed. 729.

When a suit, involving both legal and equitable

remedies is brought in a state court and where the laws
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of the state permit the joinder of such actions in one suit

and the cause is removed to a federal court, the plead-

ings must be recast and the causes of action stated in

accordance with the course of proceedings on the law

and equity sides of the court respectively.

Perkins v. Hendryx, 23 Fed 418;

La Croix v. Lyons, 27 Fed. 403

;

Jones V. Mutual Fidelity Company, 2^^ Fed. 506,

517;

In re Foley, y^ Fed. 390;

Fletcher v. Burt, 126 Fed. 619;

I Beach Mod. Eq., Sees. 5-6.

And where there is a plain, adequate and complete

remedy at law, the plaintiff must not only proceed at law

because the defendant has a constitutional right to trial

by jury, but even if the objection to the jurisdiction in

equity of a national court is not made by demurrer,

pleading or answer, or suggested by counsel, it is the

duty of the court, where it clearly exists, to recognize it

at its own motion and give it effect.

India Land and Trust Company v. Shoenfelt (8

C.C. A.), 135 Fed. 484, 485-87.

B. The bill in this case does unite an action at law

for damages with the bill in equity for an injunction. It

will scarcely be denied that the complaint filed in the Su-

perior Court of Riverside county sets forth a cause of

action for damages [Transcript pages 7-13], and which

is followed by an allegation that no provision had been

made to control the flow of the water, and the defendant

would, unless constrained by the court, continue to di-
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vert from the Colorado river large quantities of water,

which would naturally flow in another direction, so that

the same would flood and overflow the lands of plaintiff

and thereby destroy the property and business of plain-

tiff and occasion great and irreparable injury, [Com-

plaint, paragraph 12, transcript, pages 13 and 14.] Then

followed allegations concerning the damages already

suffered with a prayer for an injunction and for a judg-

ment in favor of plaintiff for the sum of eighty-seven

thousand dollars ($87,000), the damage already suf-

fered as hereinbefore set forfJi in costs of suit, etc.

[Transcript, pages 15 and 16.] That this was an action

for damages in the state court for injuries past and for

an injunction against future injuries in the complaint

framed in accordance with the practice in the state

courts, is, we think, indisputable. While the admissions

of counsel or their conduct cannot deprive a federal

court of equity of jurisdiction any more than a consent

could confer jurisdiction, is doubtless true, however that

their action in this case shows that they themselves

view the complaint in the state court exactly as we do,

for when the cause came into this court, they, evidently

under the belief that they were required to elect and to

replead in the federal court, did file the bill herein and

several supplemental bills [Transcript, volume i, pages

61-72], to which bill a demurrer was filed. [Transcript,

Vol. I, pages 72-74.] This demurrer was overruled.

[Transcript, Vol. i, pages 75, 76 and yy.] On Janu-

ary loth, 1906, the court granted the complainant leave

to file the supplemental bill [Transcript, pages 78-79],

and in that supplemental bill additional damages were
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claimed. [Transcript, Vol. i, pages 79-81.] The supple-

mental bill was demurred. [Transcript, Vol. i, pages 81-

84.] This demurrer was overruled. [Transcript, Vol. i,

pages 85, 86.] By the order permitting the said supple-

mental bill, it is recited that it was allowed against the

objection of the solicitor for the defendant. [Transcript,

Vol. I, pages 78, 79.] An answer was filed to the bill and

supplemental bill. [Transcript, Vol. i, pages 87-99.] Sub-

sequently the defendant was granted leave to file an

amended and supplemental answer, which was filed De-

cember the 27th, 1906. [Transcript, Vol. i, pages 102-

123.] Afterwards leave was granted to the complainant

to file a further supplemental bill. Defendants objected

[Transcript, Vol. i, pages 125, 126], and it was filed on

the 19th day of December, 1907. [Transcript, Vol. i,

pages 126, 127.] Each of these supplemental bills, how-

ever, added nothing to change the character of the pro-

ceedings, but simply averred damages accruing subse-

quent to the filing of the previous bill and supplemental

bill. Thus, it will be seen that the complainant did elect

and proceed on the equity side of the court and filed its

bill upon that theory. Now a comparison between the

complaint in the Superior Court and the bill filed in the

Circuit Court will show that they differ in nothing ex-

cept that in the former court it called itself the plaintifif,

in the United States Court "Your Orator," in the Su-

perior Court it demanded damages, and in the Federal

Court it prayed for an accounting. If in the state court

the complaint united a suit in equity for an injunction

with an action at law for damages, that character was

not done away with by the bill filed in the Federal Court.
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The distinction between legal and equitable actions can-

not be defeated by mere names.

C. It is sought to rescue this bill from the demurrer

upon the ground that the court having obtained jurisdic-

tion in equity for the purposes of an injunction, may pro-

ceed to the relief which was actually given in this cause.

The principle expressed sometimes, thus, that when a

court of equity has acquired jurisdiction as such court

of equity, it will determine the whole case and give what-

ever relief may be proper, both to avoid a multiplicity of

suits or to the end that justice may not be done by piece-

meal. If that be a sufficient reason here then that prin-

ciple was equally applicable in the Superior Court of the

county of Riverside, sitting as a court of equity, and a

repleading or a recasting of the pleadings in the federal

court was wholly unnecessary.

D. The bill cannot be sustained upon the theory that

the compensatory relief was to be obtained through the

medium of an accounting. There isn't an element of ac-

counting in the case. Courts of equity to be sure have

jurisdiction independently of other equitable grounds in

suits for an accounting and it may make compensation

in many cases where the jurisdiction does rest upon

other grounds, though in the particular case an account-

ing might be one more particularly the subject of legal

action, but the term "account" has a well settled legal

distinction. It is a detailed statement of the mutual de-

mands in the nature of debit and credit between parties

arising out of contracts or some fiduciary relation.

Equity has concurrent jurisdiction with courts of law in

matters of account on three grounds.
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1. Mutual accounts.

2. Dealings so complicated that they cannot be ad-

justed in a court of law.

3. The existence of a fiduciary relation between the

parties.

In addition to these particular grounds of jurisdiction

equity will grant discovery in cases of account on the

general principles regulating discovery.

I Bouvier's Law Dictionary, word "Account."

The foundations of equity jurisdiction in matters of

account and illustrations of the exercise of that jurisdic-

tion are fully considered and set forth in i Story's Eq.

Jurisprudence, Sees. 442, 443, 446, 449, 450, 455, 457,

458, 509, 510, 513. 514a, 515-518^% 519- 520.

O. Pomeroy Eq. Jur. S. 178;

3rd Id., Sees. 1420-142 1

;

Meres v. Chrisman et al., 7 B. Monroe 422, 423;

Echols V. Hammon, 20 Miss. 177-178;

Fowle V. Laurason, 5th Peters 495,

in which Chief Justice Marshal said

:

"That a court of chancery has jurisdiction in matters

of account cannot be questioned; nor can it be doubted

that this jurisdiction is often beneficially necessitated;

but it can be admitted that a court of equity may take

cognizance of every action for goods, wares and mer-

chandise sold and delivered, or of money advanced

where partial payments have been made, or of every

contract, express or implied, consisting of various items

on which different sums of money have become due and

different payments have been made. Although the line
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may not be diawn with absolute decision, yet it may be

safely affirmed that a court of chancery can draw to

itself every transaction between individuals in which an

account between parties is to be adjusted."

See further upon the general questions herein in-

volved :

Askew V. Myrick, 54 Ala. 30

;

Stone V. Stone, '^^^ Conn. 142, 144;

Johnson v. Conn., Book 21 Conn. 148, 156;

Badger v. McNamara, 123 Miss. 117;

Vose V. Philbrook, Fed. cases No. 170 10, Vol.

28, page 1293, particularly pages 1296- 1297.

It is submitted that this bill cannot be sustained as one

for an accounting, nor are these items of damage in the

nature of an accounting, whether in an action at law or

a suit in equity, founded upon an accounting. This suit

is on the equity side only insofar as it is a suit for an

injunction.

E. The sole ground upon which the right to railroad

damages in this case can rest is upon the principle that

having acquired jurisdiction for the purposes of an in-

iunction the court will proceed to give complete relief

and make compensation, no matter what may be the char-

acter of the compensation to be given. It is submitted that

this ground fails here. The act of congress declares that

a court of equity has no jurisdiction where there is an

adequate remedy at law and the meaning of that term is

defined to be that which is not in its nature or character

fitted or adapted to the end in view.

Thompson v. Allen, 115 U. S. 554; 29 L. Ed.

472;
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Rees V. Watertown, 19 Wall. 107; 22 L. Ed. 72;

Safe Deposit Etc. Company v. Anniston, 96 Fed.

663;

Van Wyck v. Knevals, 106 U. S. 360; 27 L. Ed.

201

;

Southern Pacific Railroad Company v. Goodrich,

57 Fed. 879, 882;

Whitehead v. Shattuck, 138 U. S. 151, 34 L. Ed.

873;

Northern Pacific Railroad Company v. Amacker,

C. C. A. 49 Fed. 537.

Under no head of chancery jurisdiction can a federal

court sustain a bill to obtain only a decree for the pay-

ment of money by way of damages when the like amount

can be recovered at law.

City of Parkersburg v. Brown, 106 U. S. 500,

27 L. Ed. 238;

Ambler v. Choteau, 107 U. S. 586, 27 L. Ed. 322

;

City of Litchfield v Ballou, 114 U. S. 190, 29 L.

Ed. 132;

Buzard v. Houston, 119 U. S. 352, 30 L. Ed. 451

;

Zeringue v. Texas, etc. R. Co., 34 Federal 243.

If the wrong complained of can be adequately com-

pensated by a pecuniary sum the remedy is at law and

the injunction will not issue.

Wagner v. Drake, 31 Federal 849;

Hempsley v. Myers, 45 Fed. 287.

See also:

Mills V. Knapp, 39 Fed. 592

;

Frey v. Willoughby (C. C. A.), 63 Fed. 865;
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Thomas v. Council Bluffs Cannon Co., 92 Fed-

eral 424.

The constitutional right of a jury trial in an action at

law cannot be defeated, avoided or evaded by merely

linking an action at law with a suit in equity. '

Jones V. Mutual Fidelity Company, 506, 517-519.

The principle, that courts of equity, having acquired

jurisdiction, will proceed to do complete justice, is most

frequently applied to accountings incidental to the com-

plete determination of a suit in which the court has ac-

quired jurisdiction upon some other grounds. The other

grounds, too, are generally bills for a discovery and in

order to entitle plaintiff to relief, which relief was ob-

tainable by an action at law, the bill must be both for

discovery and relief.

Cook V. Davis, ^2 N. E. 176-177;

Patterson v. Glassmire, 31 Atl. 40.

In that case it was said, among other things:

"In this country it is generally accepted that a court

of equity has power to decree compensation as incidental

to other relief. '' '^ '^ Not indeed as damages in the

sense in which the law gives them, but as a substitute

for damages. * * * By some the power is based upon

the necessity of preventing a multiplicity of stiits.

* * * By others from the necessity of doing complete

justice as between the parties. * * * And the rule

above set forth is, of course, to be accepted with the

qualification that a court of equity will not give both

legal and equitable relief at the same time, or, in other

words, decree the specific performance of the contract,
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while at the same time giving damages such as will com-

pensate for its permanent abrogation."

They refer to the case of Peltz v. Eichele, 62 Mo.

171 ; and then said the court:

"In the present case the circumstances are further

complicated by the entrance of a third party in the field

whose presence very probably contributed to plaintiff's

loss, but in what measure cannot be ascertained. The

amount by which the plaintiff's income fell short would

accordingly be no measure of their damages ; and in such

case it would seem, recourse must be had to estimate de-

fendant's profits. * * * This method is well recog-

nized in equity, being based on the principle that a

wrongdoer shall never profit by his own wrong ; and the

compensation is computed by the same rule that courts

of equity apply to a trustee who has wrongfully used the

trust property for his own advantage. * * * 'The

court does not, by an account, accurately measure the

damages sustained. =i^ * >!= But, as the nearest ap-

proximation which it can make to justice, takes from the

wrongdoer all the profits which he has made by his pi-

racy, and gives them to the party who has been

wronged.'
"

31 Atl., page 43.

As illustrating the circumstances under which this

doctrine is applied, see further

:

Trammeh v. Craddock, 13 So. 911 -912;

Virginia & A. Mining & Mfg. Co. v. Hale, 9th

So. 258.
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See Stieffel v. New York Novelty Co., 43 N. Y. Sup.

1012, where the rehef granted was obviously a mere in-

cident to the general relief that was being sought, name-

ly, the proper appropriation of the assets to the payment

of creditors as required by the statute.

United States v. Guglard et al., 79 Fed. 21, was a suit

to enjoin the cutting of timber and where an accounting

was taken for the timber, trees and wood which had al-

ready been cut and received by the defendants, and evi-

dently proceeded upon that general principle that the

wrongdoer, making a profit by his wrong, will be com-

pelled to account for it.

Vicksburg & Yazoo Tele. Co. v. Citizens Tele.

Co., 89 Am. State Rep. 656, 30 So. 725,

Is another case illustrative of the circumstances under

which this rule is applied. There the court said, among

other things

:

"The ascertainment of these damages is a mere inci-

dent to the subject matter of equitable cognizance con-

firming the chancery jurisdiction, to-wit: the enforce-

ment on the theory of a trust of complainant's equitable

right to satisfaction out of the property of the Citizens

Telephone Company in the hands of the Cumberland

Telephone Company. It is that subject matter which

gives the jurisdiction. The ascertainment and award of

the damages is a mere incident in the exercise of that

jurisdiction."

89 Am. St. Rep. 659.

In Brown v. Solary, 19 Southern 161, the

lands in controversy were principally valuable for
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their phosphates and the defendants had en-

tered upon the land and were mining it for the phos-

phates and had taken phosphate from the soil, of great

value, and an accounting was necessary to ascertain the

amount. This principle is frequently applied in suits to

recover mining property or for trespasses upon it and

where the defendant has not only entered upon it but

taken minerals therefrom.

Pierpont v. Fowle, 19 Fed. Cases, page 652, case

1 1 152, and especially pages 654-655, where this doctrine

is discussed and the principles upon which the rule is

applied are considered. Among other things it is said:

"Hence it follows that a case will not always be al-

lowed to go on in chancery merely because the power

there is concurrent with that at law, but it must be

fuller, more appropriate or better. * * * Some cases,

cited to show that the United States courts here will pro-

ceed to sustain suits in equity, when the relief is entirely

ample at law, rest upon a different principle when ana-

lyzed."

And again:

"Asking a discovery separately or with other matter

was thus often, enough to give jurisdiction in chancery.

* * * But quaere, unless the other matter was of a

chancery character."

And again:

"My own impression is that from a strong fondness

for a trial by jury, the common law and all its principles

and forms, rather than those in equity, it was the design

of our fathers, in that clause of the judiciary act, not to

permit proceedings to go on in chancery, if it turned out
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in the progress of the inquiry that full and adequate re-

lief could be had at law, and therefore no necessity ex-

isted to go into chancery, or after being in to proceed

further there."

19 Fed. Cases, page 656.

It is submitted that from these authorities it is not

true that every bill filed in equity upon some well recog-

nized head of equity jurisdiction can draw to that court

as incidental to the relief, every sort of purely legal ac-

tion that might also be involved in the controversy. But

if the rule has any limitations at all, this case is clearly

outside of the rule. If it be not, the rule of the state

court that a suit in equity for an injunction may be

coupled with an action at law for the damages already

accrued, is equally the rule of federal practice and the re-

casting of the bill was unnecessary.

II.

The court erred in deciding that the jurisdic-

tion of the Circuit Court, sitting as a court of

equity, to restrain the "wrongful diversions of

-water, draws to it the cognizance of the dam-
ages, if any, w^hich had resulted from such di-

version.

This question, of course, needs no separate considera-

tion. An examination of the cases which we have al-

ready cited in support of the proposition that the bill was

demurrable will show that it is not true that a bill in

equity in the federal courts, bringing the case within the

jurisdiction of that court, will draw to that jurisdiction
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every sort of legal action or warrant every sort of legal

relief as incidental to it. The cases all show that the

legal relief must be of a kind similar to that over which

equity has jurisdiction independently of any other kind.

We do not mean that it must be the same. Thus, where

a real account is to be taken, in order to give complete

relief in equit}^, the court will proceed to take that ac-

count although the accounting itself in the particular

instances might be such that a court of law would have

jurisdiction, though perhaps equity would not take juris-

diction independently of other grounds, but it must be

an actual accounting. So, too, as already stated, where,

in addition to a legal wrong occasioning legal damages,

the defendant has made some profit or taken to himself

the property of the complainant, there the bill in equity

to restrain further depredations gives jurisdiction to

compel an accounting for that which the defendant has

taken from the plaintiff. Cases, too, are numerous

where in bills to restrain the infringement of a patent,

the defendant may be called upon, in a court of equity,

to account for the profits accruing to it by reason of the

infringement. But it is not true that because a court

of equity has acquired the jurisdiction upon some par-

ticular ground of equitable jurisdiction, that from thence

to the end of the case all distinctions between law and

equity are abrogated, and the court becomes a court of

law as well as of equity.
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' III.

The court erred in deciding that neither the
Mexican company nor the mutual -water com-
panies "w^ere necessary parties to the action.

The contracts between these companies have already

been referred to. They are contained in the red book

and in the Transcript, Vol. I, page 226-249, will be

found the contents of the red book. The first is the

agreement of July 24th, 1901, between the Mexican

company and Imperial Water Company No. i and the

California Development Company. This agreement re-

ferred to the contract of April 6, 1900, between the

Mexican company and the Imperial Water Company

No. I and which was annexed to it and made a part of

it and marked exhibit A.

Trans. Vol. I, page 227.

It referred then to the contract between the Califor-

nia Development Company and the Mexican company,

of date the 28th of December, 1900, and annexed that

contract and made it exhibit B. It recited that the C.

D. company had sold a large amount of the capital stock

of the water company and had constructed a part of the

irrigating system contemplated in the contract exhibit

B and was engaged in the further construction thereof.

Trans. Vol. I, pages 227-228.

Recited that the waters conveyed to the Mexican com-

pany by the C. D. company under the contract exhibit B

are the waters which were to be used by the water com-

pany.

Trans. Vol. I, page 228.
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By that contract, in its first article, they rescinded the

contract of April 6th, 1900, marked exhibit A. The

rescission was not to affect any act which had been done

by either of the parties under it. Second, there was to

be delivered by the Mexican company to the water com-

pany four acre feet of water per annum for each out-

standing share of stock of the Imperial Water Company

No. I, but not to exceed in all 400,000 acre feet.

Vol. I, page 228, Par. II.

The water was to be delivered at a point upon the In-

ternational boundary line where the main canal crossed

the line and being a point about 2^ miles easterly from

monument 220 of that boundary line, and after that de-

livery the first party had no interest in or control over

the water.

Trans. Vol. I, pp. 228-229, Par. III.

There were then provisions for the sale of the capital

stock by the C. D. company, except 2,500 shares, which

was to be retained by the water company.

Trans, pages 229-230, Par. IV.

The water company was bound to receive and pay for

at least one acre foot for each share of its stock out-

standing each year. The price to be paid for water was

50 cents per acre foot annually, which amount was never

to be increased.

Vol. I, page 230, Par. 5.

It was agreed that all water received by the water

company prior to the ist day of July of each year should

be paid for on the ist of July and all sums due for water
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received after that we're to be paid on the ist day of Jan-

uary of the following year.

Trans. Vol. I, pp. 230-231, Par. 6.

The C. D. company agreed to construct and maintain

the canal and of sufficient capacity to convey an amount

of water sufficient at all times for the irrigation of the

lands owned or located by the stockholders, and being an

amount in the aggregate not less than sufficient to fur-

nish four acre feet per annum for each outstanding

share. The canal to be owned and maintained by the

California Development Company, which had the ex-

clusive right to navigate the canal and develop and use

all power that might be developed in the waters flowing

therein, and agreed to convey water to be delivered by

the Mexican company to the water compan}^ through

said canal to the lateral ditches to be constructed by it

as thereinafter provided.

Trans. Vol. I, page 231, Par. 7.

If the California Development Company failed to con-

struct or maintain the canal or deliver the water to be

conveyed to it to the lateral ditches to be constructed by

it, then the water compau)^ had the right to enter upon

the canal and make such additions, etc.

The substance of this contract we have set forth be-

fore in the statement of facts and we call attention to

the whole of the contracts as contained in the three pa-

pers referred to.

The agreement between the California Development
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Company and Imperial Water Company No. 4 is set

forth—

Trans. Vol. I, pp. 250-261.

And between the Mexican company and Imperial

Water Company No. 6

—

Trans. Vol. I, pp. 262-269.

And with Imperial Water Company No. 7, between

the three companies, namely, the Mexican company, Im-

perial Water Company No. 7 and the California De-

velopment Company

—

Trans. Vol. i, pp. 269-285.

And it was shown in the testimony that all of the

other contracts were substantially the same, and those

to which we have last referred to are, so far as the pres-

ent question is concerned, in substance the same.

While it is true that these companies and the Mexi-

can company were organized by the stockholders of the

California Development Company, still they never were

either mere agencies of or identical with the California

Development Company, or mere instrumentalities ol

that company and directed to the same end. It is true

that the California Development Company was the cor-

poration organized at the instance of Mr. C. R. Rock-

wood, who planned this enterprise, and its object was to

take the waters of the Colorado river and conduct them

into the Imperial Valley through the northern portion

of Lower California and there to be used on both sides

of the international boundary line, for irrigation, do-

mestic and all other lawful purposes. The plan contem-

plated from the beginning was that so far as the Cali-
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fornia Development Company was concerned, it was

seeking its fortune or the fortune of the stockholders in

the building up of a great canal system and for the di-

version of waters and the sale or distribution thereof

perpetually. To the success of this enterprise the colon-

ization of these lands and the bringing of them under

cultivation and the building up of a great settlement

with all agencies and industries of modern civilization

was, of course, essential. But the Mexican company

was organized because a foreign corporation is not per-

mitted by the Republic of Mexico to own lands, and one

of the things which they were contemplating should be

accomplished through the Mexican company, was the

acquisition of about 100,000 acres lying immediately

south of the boundary line and susceptible of irrigation

by these waters. On the north side of the line the lands

were almost entirely public lands of the United States

and the California Development Company had to depend

upon drawing to that section of the country settlers who

were seeking homes. These Imperial water companies,

I to 8, were all formed for the same purpose, namely

that as lands were acquired, either the Mexican com-

pany or California Development Company, and after

1901, the latter, would sell the stock to these settlers and

that stock would represent their right to water. Each

share was entitled to four acre feet per annum and was

bound to take one acre foot. Under this system the Im-

perial Valley did become a fertile section of the coun-

try and a large number of people settled there and did,

at the time of this trial, number more than 10,000 and

they had built up four or five towns, all dependent upon
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water for irrigation from the Colorado river, and water

for all other purposes from the same source, there be-

ing no other source of supply, and as this country set-

tled up the stock was sold ofif to the settlers and in Im-

perial Water Company No. i ninety-eight per cent had

been sold at the time of this trial. In some of them, the

stock had all been sold; so that while in the beginning

the California Development Company did, doubtless,

have the power to control these Imperial water compa-

nies, yet that control was not the thing which they had

in view and the influence of the California Development

Company grew less and less as the stock was sold, un-

til, when this case was tried, as to some of those com-

panies, it had no voice whatever and in others, so little

as to practically amount to nothing. Such were the con-

ditions proven at this trial.

See Trans. Vol. Ill, pp. 1167, 1170, 1173 to 1178.

Leaving out of sight this present controversy, would

anyone doubt that the position of the C. D. company and

these various water companies and the Mexican com-

pany is really hostile? Suppose the California Develop-

ment Company should fail or refuse to furnish to any-

one of these water companies water on demand, which

demand was within the limits of the contract rights,

would not the water company have a right of action for

damages or to sue for a specific performance or to ob-

tain a writ of mandate to compel the furnishing of it?

Would not the settlers on the lands sold or leased and

now cultivated in Lower California on the Mexican com-

pany's lands have the same right? Would it be any

defense, in any such action, for the California Develop-
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ment Company to pleatd that it was enjoined from de-

livering the water or was only permitted to deliver it

upon certain conditions and that those conditions might

be violated by responding to the demand made upon it?

It certainly would not. The water company, not being a

party to the suit, is not affected by the injunction nor is

the judgment either a bar to any sort of an action by it,

nor would it be admissible in evidence against them.

Mr. Daniell says

:

"It is the constant aim of a court of equity to do com-

plete justice by deciding upon and settling the rights of

all persons interested in the subject of the suit, so as to

make the performance of the order of the court perfect-

ly safe to those who are compelled to obey it, and to

prevent future litigation. * * * For this purpose,

all persons materially interested in the subject ought,

generally, either as plaintiffs or defendants, to be made

parties to the suit, or ought, by service upon them of

a copy of the bill, to have an opportunity afforded of

making themselves active parties in the cause if they

should think fit. In pointing out the application of this

rule I shall consider it, firstly, with reference to those

whose rights are concurrent with those of the party in-

stituting the suit ; secondly, with reference to those who

are interested in resisting the plaintiff's claim.

"With respect to the first class, it is to be observed

that it is required in all cases where a party comes to a

court of equity to seek for that relief which the princi-

ples there acted upon entitled him to receive, that he

should bring before the court all such parties as are

necessary to enable it to do complete justice; and that
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he should so far bind the rights of all persons interested

in the subject matter as to render the performance of

the decree which he seeks perfectly safe to the party

called upon to perform it, by preventing his being sued

or molested again concerning the same matter either at

law or in equity. For this purpose, formerly, it was

necessary that he should bring regularly before the

court, either as co-plaintiffs with himself, or as defend-

ants, all persons so circumstanced that unless their

rights were bound by the decree of the court, they might

have caused future molestation or inconvenience to the

party against whom the relief was sought."

I Daniell's Chancery Pr., Perkins' Ed., top

paging 245-246; Ch. V", mar. pp. 240-241.

In this case it is obvious that the injunction sought is

really a mandatory injunction. It is not claimed that

the case is such that the court ought not absolutely to

restrain the diversion of the water from the Colorado

river, but that it should not do so unless it constructed

headworks for the control of the flow of that water,

and though prohibitive in form, it was in fact manda-

tory.

Stewart v. Superior Court, 100 Cal. 543, 546-547.

Mark v. Superior Court, 129 Cal., i, 5-7.

Now, another fact which appears in this case is that

this intake No. 3 is on land belonging to the Mexican

company and the canal itself extends a distance of thirty

or forty miles on its lands.

Trans. Vol. Ill, pages 1158, 1161, 1162, 1184,

1200.

Maps, Vol. VII, page 2404.
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Now, while undoubtedly a court of equity has the

power to issue mandatory injunctions either preliminary

or final, they are more loath to do so than to grant a

merely prohibitive injunction. It has been said that

mandatory injunctions are issued only in extraordinary

cases whether the injunction sought is permanent or

preliminary.

Gardner v. Strover, 89 Cal. 26.

But without regard to the form of the injunction, it

is submitted that the presence of these water companies

and the Mexican company, and certainly the former, was

necessary to the granting of any injunction in this cause

against the defendant. In support of this proposition

we call attention to the following cases:.

Consolidated Water Co. v. City of San Diego,

93 Fed. 849;

Lawyer v. Cipperly, 7 Paige's Ch. 281, 282;

Parrott v. Byers, 40 Cal. 614, 624;

Tyson v. Virginia & T. R. Co., Fed. Cas. No. 14;

321 ; 24 Fed. Cas. pp. 493, 495;

Berry v. Berry's Heirs, 3 T. B. Monroe, (Ky.)

263, 264-265;

Sweet's Heirs v. Biggs and Craig, 5 Littell

(Ky.) 18;

Samis v. King, 40 Conn. 298;

Morse v. Machias Water Power and Mill Co.,

42 Me. 119, 127-129;

Brandis v. Grissom, 60 N. E. 455

;

Bradley v. Gilbert, 39 N. E. 593, 595

;

Kussem v. Sanitary District of Chicago, 61 N.

E. 544-553;
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New York Bank Note Co. v. Hamilton Bank

Note Engraving & Printing Co., 31 N. Y.

Supp. 1060, 1063-1064;

Jeffries-Basom v. Nation, 65 Pac. 226.

IV.

The court erred in deciding that the said

Tv^ater companies and the Mexican company
were organized by this defendant and now acting

as instrumentalities for effectuating the diver-

sions complained of and should be considered for

the purposes of this suit as identical -with the de-

fendant or as mere agency corporations.

The facts have been sufficiently presented upon which

the correctness of this decision depends. Technically

we do not see just how one corporation can organize

another. The organization of other corporations is

never, so far as we know, one of the purposes or ob-

jects, of any corporation, nor does the statute authorize

such a thing. We suppose, however, the meaning here

is that the same persons or same interests which organ-

ized the one caused the other to be organized and tbar

is true here, but it does not at all follow that they be-

come thereby identical or that either is to be regarded

as a mere instrumentality of another or an agent of the

others.

The Mexican company is the owner of land, the Im-

perial water companies corporations having the right

to demand and receive from the Californin Development

Company water to the extent of the contract rights and

are engaged in the business of distributing water. The
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California Development Company is the constructor of

the canals and has diverted and appropriated the water

and is engaged in furnishing the same to various com-

panies in California and to others in Lower California

for use and for a compensation or rate to be paid to it.

They never were identical. They never had the same

objects in view. While, as we have already stated, the

business of both the IMexican company and Imperial

Water Company was essential to the success of the C.

D. company, that does not make them either identical

with or agencies or instrumentalities of the California

Development Company.

Even if the Mexican company and the C. D. company

and the Imperial water companies had the same stock-

holders and directors, this does not make them idenlical

nor one company the agent of the other. Nor does the

fact that the stock of the Mexican company is owned by

the California Development Company, mainly or even

wholly, affect the question.

In Leavenworth v. Chicago, Etc. Ry. Co., 134 U. S.,

688, 707, Justice Blatchford delivering the opinion, said

:

"I am unable to see anything in the fact that some

of the same men were found to be trustees in this deed

and directors in the Rock Island Company, and that di-

rectors in the Southwestern Company were also direc-

tors in the Rock Island Company, which sliould block

the course of justice, paralyze the powers of the court,

and deprive the creditor corporation of all remedy for

the enforcement of its lien. If it could show that the

Southwestern Company did not owe this interest, or that

the Rock Island Company had in its hands the means of
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the Southwestern Company to meet this obHgation, and

that by reason of colhision between those who controlled

both companies this fact was suppressed or concealed,

it would present a strong case for relief. But this would

be actual fraud, and one not necessarily growing out of

the influence of the Rock Island directory over that of

the Southwestern. Notwithstanding this commingling

of officers, the corporations zvere distinct corporations.

They had a right to make contracts with each other in

their corporate capacities, and they could sue and be

sued by each other in regard to these contracts ; and the

question is not, could they do these things, but have the

relations of the parties—the trust relations, if indeed

such existed—been abused to the serious injury of the

Southwestern Company."

In Pauly v. Pauly, 107 Cal. 8, 19, the Supreme Court

of California approved of this decision, and quoted the

passage just set forth.

The case was approved, also, in San Diego v. Pacific

Beach Company, 112 Cal. 53, 59, and this language was

again quoted at page 59, and then the Supreme Court

of California said:

"We will notice one or two other recent authorities

to the same point. In Coe v. East etc. Ry. Co. 52 Fed.

Rep. 543, Judge Pardee says : 'That the East & West

Railroad Company could lawfully contract with the

Cherokee Iron Works, although all the stockholders of

the one were also stockholders of the other, in the ab-

sence of fraud and misrepresentation, is indisputable;

nor would the fact that the two corporations had sub-

stantially the same directors, who were the active agents
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negotiating the contract, render it void—at worst, only

voidable, but subject to ratification.'
"

On this same subject we also call attention to Coe v.

East & W. R. Co., 52 Fed. 531-542-543.

In Cunningham v. City of Cleveland, 98 Fed. 657,

665, it is said:

''It is a fact that the incorporators of the Water &

Electric Light Company were stockholders of the West,

Virginia Company, but that circumstance does not show

that one company was to be a mere cloak for another.

It is a common plan to have a parent company engaged

in a national business of installing local companies and

having stock in the local companies, but they are dis-

tinct legal entities, and the interest of the larger com-

pany in the smaller is no reason for holding otherwise."

See also,

Phinizy v. Augusta R. Co., and

Central Trust Co. of New York v. Port Royal &

W. Ry. Co., 62 Fed. 771, 77y77A',

People V. American Bell Telephone Co., 22 N. E.

1057;

U. S. V. Telephone Co., 29 Fed. 17;

Commissioner v. Telephone Co., 18 Atl. 122.

From which latter case we quote this

:

"For one person to supply the means to another to do

business with, or on, is not the doing of that business by

the former. Transactions such as the American Bell

Telephone Company has had with the licensee corpora-

tions of Ohio, with its place of business in Boston and

not elsewhere, are not the carrying on by it of business
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in Ohio, nor are such Hcensee corporations its managing

agents."

This doctrine was approved, and the above passage

quoted, in People v. American Bell Telephone Co., 22

N. E. 1057, 106 1, a decision of the New York Court

of Appeals.

In Waycross Air Line Company v. Offerman R. Co.,

35 S. E. 275, the court said:

"One person may own all of the stock of a corpora-

tion and still such individual shareholder and the cor-

poration would in law be two separate and distinct per-

sons." (Citing authorities.)

"One corporation may own all of the stock in another

corporation, but notwithstanding this, the two corpora-

tions would not become merged, but would remain sepa-

rate and distinct persons." (Citing authorities.) "It

would necessarily follow from the rulings in the cases

cited that two corporations would not become merged

into each other merely because the stock in each was

owned by the same persons. Therefore the contract

made by the Southern Pine Company was not the con-

tract of the Offerman Company, even if the stockhold-

ers in each were identical."

The cases cited are:

Manufacturing Co. v. White, 42 Ga. 148;

Exchange Bank of Macon v. Macon Const. Co.,

25 S. E. 326;

Sparks v. Dunbar, 120 Ga. 129; 29 S. E. 295.

In Smith v. Ferries & C. H. Ry. Co., 51 Pac. 710,

the dealings between two railroad corporations were in-
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volved and called in question. And we call attention to

what was said in that case.

51 Pac. 717.

We further cite on the same propositions:

Richmond Constr. Co. v. Richmond R. Co., 68

Fed. 105,

which case is approved in

United Mines v. Hatcher, 79 Fed. 517, 519.

The question is fully discussed in

Exchange Bank of Macon v. Macon Const. Co.

(Ga.) 25 S. E. 326.

Corporations organized by the same individuals for

the same object are not identical.

White V. Pecos Land Co., 45 S. W. 209;

Fitzgerald v. Missouri Pac. R. Co., 45 Fed. 812;

Williamson v. N. J. R. Co., 28 N. J. Eq. 2yy',

National Water Co. v. Kansas City, 78 Fed. 428

;

Lange v. Burke, 69 Ark. 85

;

Farm Etc. Co. v. Alta Co., 65 Pac. 22

;

Atchison R. Co. v. Cochran, 43 Kans. 225;

East St. Louis R. Co. v. Jarvis, 92 Fed. 735

;

Watson V. Bonfils, 116 Fed. 157;

Alabama Etc. Co. v. Chattanooga Co., 2)7 S. W.
1004;

Fisher v. Adams, 63 Fed. 674;

Cook on Corporations, 5th ed., pp. 1540-1541,

and the cases cited.

These cases treat of every phase in which this ques-

tion has arisen. And the grounds upon which this point

was ruled against us in the court below are not tenable.
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IV-A.

The court erred in deciding that the suit

could be maintained against this defendant as a
joint tort-feasor.

The rule to which the court here refers is, we submit,

a rule governing actions at law but not suits in equity.

It is true that for a wrong done by several joint tort-

feasors the person injured may bring an action against

any one or more or all of them where the action is to re-

cover damages for the wrong done. But this does not

obviate the rule of which we have just been speaking,

that in courts of equity it is necessary to make all per-

sons parties whose presence is necessary to the complete

determination of the cause and who may be bound by

the judgment to the extent that the decree may be obeyed

without danger of molestation from other parties who

have an interest in the same matter.

The converse of this is also true. That is, where

several wrongdoers, not acting in concert, are occasion-

ing damage, the person injured may, in many instances

at least, maintain a suit to enjoin them all, but he could

not bring a joint action against them to recover the

damages.

Foreman v. Boyle, 88 Cal. 290;

Churchill v. Lauer, 84 Cal. 22,^.

The foregoing discussion covers all of the grounds

upon which the court in its opinion based the decision

that neither these water companies nor the Mexican

company was a necessary party to this suit in order to

grant the injunction.
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See Opinion, Transcript Vol. i, page 128.

It is submitted that the decision cannot be sustained

upon any of these grounds and that even though grant-

ing an injunction may have been proper in the case, the

court erred in granting it in a suit against the California

Development Company alone.

V.

The court erred in deciding that if -when the

suit "was brought there ivere grounds for in-

junction, such grounds had not been removed by

the destruction of complainant^s -works and by

the closing of defendants intakes.

It will be noticed that the court places this upon the

proposition that the complainant is entitled to have its

free-hold protected without regard to the amount of

damage threatened. Otherwise the overflow sought to

be abated might by a prescription ripen into a servitude

upon the land. And further that the present safeguards

against overflows might be temporary, while the com-

plainant's remedial rights, if it has any, include per-

manent relief.

Conclusions of Court, Trans. Vol. I, p. 129, 3rd

Paragraph.

Of course the court is not here considering the ques-

tion of what would be the effect upon the right to any

sort of relief, if the evidence showed that the plaintiff

was never entitled to an injunction. But the court is

proceeding upon the theory that notwithstanding the

purposes of an injunction may have been in every other

respect made unnecessary subsequent to the commence-
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merit of the action, the court could still go on and grant

an injunction for the protection of the free-hold. This

is the question presented by the specification and we sub-

mit that upon this proposition, as every other, there is

no universal rule of the character decided by the court,

and whether that be correct or not must depend upon the

circumstances of the different cases as they arise.

We call attention now briefly to the facts in this case,

undisputed, as nearly all of them are, which, as it seems

to us, show that the court erred in this particular. In

the first place the evidence proves conclusively that the

destruction of the property of the plaintiff was not

wrought by the voluntary diversions made by the Cali-

fornia Development Company, but on the other hand

the same cataclysm which destroyed the property of the

plaintiff was destructive of the property of the Califor-

nia Development Company. No matter whether the de-

struction was due originally to the negligence of defend-

ant or not, still we say that the final result was not due

to any voluntary act on the part of the California De-

velopment Company; but in truth, it exhausted its own

resources in the attempt to shut the water out of the

canal;—in other words, to do the very thing which tiie

plaintiff was seeking to compel it to do, and finally ac-

complished it through the aid of others and large ex-

penditures of money.

Trans. Vol. Ill, p. 1270 ct scq., Vol. IV, pp. 161 1,

1612, 1617, 1618 et seq.

So far, then, as the command to build headworks by

which the water was to be controlled, it was an accom-
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plished fact nearly a year before the decree was given.

Trans. Vol. IV, page 1617.

So far as the lake was concerned, it was an accom-

plished fact and no injunction could affect it. The set-

tlers in the Imperial Valley were numerous, the demands

for water great, their properties exceedingly valuable

and they would perish without the water. The lake

covered an enormous area and extended a distance of

forty-five miles southerly from the plaintiff's works,

which were already destroyed. From an irrigating sys-

tem so great as this, indeed from any irrigating system,

some waste is necessary, and in one so enormous as this

the waste must be quite considerable. The plaintiff's

lands, as we have said, and its salt works, were over-

whelmed with the flood and the waters are standing

there to this day, seventy or eighty feet in depth in the

deepest place. Enormous damage might accrue to the

Imperial Valley, its land owners and cultivators of the

soil and the towns and the various industries that have

grown up therein. The court, in granting compensatory

relief, had taken the estimate of the salt crust in the

lands of the plaintiff, made by the complainant's own

witnesses. It had been testified to be 1,500,000 tons. It

was valued by the same witnesses at 25 cents a ton.

Testimony of Henton, Tr. Vol. II, pp. 625, 628;

Testimony of Sherman, Tr. II, p. 471.

This is one of the items allowed by the court in the

summary of damages and is included under that title,

"Salt Crust Destroyed $375,000."

That this land never had any value except for the salt
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and the defendant was charged with that salt as a total

loss and all the value which the land possessed was com-

pensated for by that one item.

Trans. Vol. II, page 470 et seq.

The only other property that the plaintiff had upon

the lands claimed by it was its buildings and machinery,

its plant generally, including the railroad. For all this,

except the railroad, the court awarded damages as for a

total loss. Indeed, they had been completely destroyed

and their value as determined by the court was allowed

as a part of this compensatory relief.

We have then this conceded condition existing at the

time this decree was given. The plaintiff's property was

utterly destroyed. It had nothing left except merely

the bare land which had been a salt bed and was value-

less for any other purpose. It was awarded damages

for that loss. On the other hand, the Imperial Valley

was a flourishing settlement with more than 100,000

acres in cultivation absolutely dependent for its value

upon the waters of the Colorado river and through this

irrigation system of works. It had its towns, five in

number.

Trans. Map. Vol. VII, page 2408.

And these and everything that pertained to municipal

life was also dependent upon the waters of the Colorado

river. The value of these properties amounted probably

to more than ten millions of dollars and their very ex-

istence depended upon this water. Without it the de-

struction of the property of the Imperial Valley would

be as complete from drouth as the plaintiff's property
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was by the flood. The defendant had, at enormous cost,

not only constructed the controhing headworks in the in-

take, but had been compelled, for the protection of the

country against overflow, to build about sixteen miles of

levee on the west bank of the Colorado river, all of which

was completed before the trial ended.

Trans. Vol. IV, page 1 630-1 631.

The office of a writ of injunction, as its name implies,

is a preventive, not a remedial one; it is to restrain the

wrongdoer, not to punish him after the wrong has been

done, or to compel him to undo it.

Stewart v. Superior Court, 100 Cal. 543, 54b-

547-

Preliminary injunctions will not be retained where it

appears that the acts, the performance of which is

sought to be restrained, have been performed before the

order for the injunction is made or served.

Gardner v. Strover, 81 Cal. 148, 151

;

Clark V. Willett, 35 Cal. 534, 547-549;

Pensacola, etc. R. Co. v. Spratt, 91 Am. Dec.

747, 750;

McCurdy v. City of Lawrence, 57 Pac. 1057.

In that case, among other things, the court said:

"At the final hearing of the case in the District Court

it appears that all the things sought to be prevented by

said action had actually been done. As said by the Su-

preme Court in City of Alma v. Loehr, 23 Kansas, 368,

22 Pac. 424; the exclusive function of a writ of injunc-
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tion is to afford only preventive relief. It is powerless

to correct wrongs or injuries already committed."

Street Ry. Co. of East Saginaw v. Wildeman, 25

Northwestern, 193, 194;

Carlin v. Wolf, 51 S. W. 679;

Same case, 55 S. W. 444;

Barney v. City of New York, 82 N. Y. Sup. 124;

U. S. V. La Compagnie Francaise Des Cables

Telegraphiques, et al., yy Fed. 495, 496;

Baring, et al. v. Erdman, et al., 2nd Fed. Cas.,

p. 784, Case No. 981, p. 790;

Cecil National Bank v. Thurber, 59 Fed. 913,

915-

A second principle which we here invoke is that in-

junctions will not be issued where the effect would be

to defeat great enterprises or business in which a large

number of people are interested.

McCarthy et al. v. Bunker Hill & Sullivan Min.

& Coal Co., 147 Fed. 981, 984-985.

The doctrine of this case applies here. This

court knows judicially that no system of irri-

gation was ever so complete that there was

absolutely no waste of water, but here the wa-

ter must flow from sixty to ninety miles before it

reaches the point of use and it requires two or three days

for it to reach the point of delivery into these canals

from the place where it is diverted. Under such circum-

stances the immediate control is impossible and even

after the control is exerted it is still two or three days

before the water has passed away. In this decree the
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defendant is enjoined from diverting from the Colorado

river any of the ivaters thereof in excess of the substan-

tial needs of the people dependent upon the canal de-

scribed in complainant's bill of complaint for water sup-

plied for domestic and irrigation uses and purposes and

such other lawful purposes as the same may be applied

to.

Tr. Vol. I, page 136.

Second, that the said water so diverted, whatever may

be the amount, shall be so controlled and used that the

same shall not flow upon the lands of the complainant

described in the bill, etc.

Id.

Third, that the defendant be required to regulate the

flow of any water that may be diverted by it so that

there shall be no waste zvater flowing therefrom as the

result of such diversion upon or over the lands of com-

plainant above described.

Fourth, that defendant be restrained from turning out

of its canals any waste water at any point where the

same will naturally flow upon or over the lands of com-

plainant or flow into the lake now covering the Salton

Sink and thereby substantially increase the amount of

water therein, or maintain the amount of water therein

or prevent the decrease thereof by natural causes and

that a writ of injunction be issued in accordance there-

with.

Tr. Vol. I, pp. 136-137-

This injunction may doubtless be construed, and we

think equally doubtless should be construed, in such
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manner as not materially to interfere with the adminis-

tration of the system. The learned judge of the Circuit

Court has recently given an interpretation which we

think is manifestly a correct interpretation of the injunc-

tion, yet nevertheless the presence of the injunction com-

pels the administration of a great and growing system

of water distribution under the menace of proceedings

for a contempt. And it is plain that acts not amounting

to carelessness in any employe of the company might

nevertheless result in what the court would adjudge to

be a violation of that injunction.

It will be noted that all water that is turned into the

intake from the Colorado river at all naturally flows to-

wards this Salton Sink. The difference in elevation be-

tween the point of the intake and the lowest depths of

the Salton Basin will perhaps amount to 300 feet. No
use can be made of the water so that it would not nat-

urally flow towards this Salton Sink, and if enough of

it, it would reach there. According to the estimate

made at the trial of this cause, it will take at least ten

years for that water to disappear by evaporation;

Tr. Vol. Ill, page 1144.

And no probability that it will evaporate in that time,

for the lake is now nearly eighty feet in depth and cov-

ers an area of about 460 square miles.

While this latter fact does not appear in the testi-

mony, yet it does appear as the government estimate of

the area as made a few months ago, and of which we

suppose this court will take judicial notice. The settle-

ment of the Imperial Valley, as other lands of the Unit-

ed States, has been invited by the government of the



—100—

United States and the policy and the interest of both

the United States and state governments are concerned

in the maintenance of this settlement and in the encour-

agement of the still further extension of that settlement

and of the cultivation of the soil thereof.

Of course, it is true that there is, on the other hand,

the ownership by the complainant of certain lands and

it holds that title in fee simple, and it is property, and

though it be not of the value of a farthing, it is a prop-

erty right and not unworthy of consideration. Yet the

point here is that a complete and adequate remedy lies

at law, and upon the question of an issuance of an in-

junction the mere existence of a title to property does

not determine the question, but courts are influenced by

the enormous damage that may accrue on the one hand

and the insignificant and mere technical injury resulting

on the other.

The granting of injunctions, whether permanent or

preliminary, are, to a very considerable extent, matters

of discretion, and that discretion should be exercised in

favor of the party most likely to be injured or in favor

of him who would suffer the greatest injury.

Page V. Aikens, 112 Cal., 401.

And the proof must be clear and convincing and the

damage real and substantial.

Yarwood v. Michaud, 132 Cal, 204;

Fisher v. Feige, 137 Cal., 39;

Coleman v. Le Franc, 137 Cal., 214;

Real del Monte, etc. Mining Co. v. The Pond etc.

Min. Co., 23 Cal., 83, 85.
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It is submitted that upon these principles, even if the

right to an injunction existed at the commencement of

the action, it ought to have been denied on the final hear-

ing. Though, as above stated, the learned judge of the

Circuit Court has given such reasonable construction to

the injunctive part of the decree as does, to a very con-

siderable extent, obviate the objections to it, yet never-

theless it does not wholly relieve the appellant from the

menace of contempt proceedings day by day in attempt-

ing to comply with its contract for the delivery of water

and in the administration of its system, furthermore, the

appellee has contended with great earnestness that the

construction given is not the correct construction.

VI.

The court erred in deciding: that the com-
plainant \iras entitled to have its free-hold pro-

tected under the evidence in this case without
regard to the amount of damage threatened.

This proposition decided by the court does not require

a separate treatment, but we call attention of the court

to certain thoughts that are necessarily involved in the

court's expression of opinion upon that proposition. The

language is this:

"Complainant is entitled to have its freehold protect-

ed without regard to the amount of the damage threat-

ened. Otherwise the overflow sought to be abated

might, by prescription, ripen into a servitude upon the

land."

Tr. Vol. I, page 129.
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First, if complete compensation is given for the full

value of the land, there is no reason why the right

should not accrue upon the payment of those damages.

In other words, no reason why the judgment, coupled

with satisfaction, should not operate as a condemnation

of the property.

If an injury to the land is temporary the measure of

recovery is the depreciation in the rental value of the

land from the time of the injury.

Crab Tree Coal M. Co. v. Hamby's Admrs., 90

S. W. 226.

In an action for damages from overflow the rental and

market value prior to the overflow may be shown.

Central of Georgia R. Co., v. Keyton, 41 So. 918.

Injury to land is considered as permanent when it is a

continual one; when it is done at once by the unlawful

act and negligent omission from which the loss results,

without repetition of the act, there being but one act

or one damage, though the latter may be composed of

several items.

Masp V. Sapp, 55 S. E. 350.

In Hargreaves v. Kimberly, 53 Am. Rep. 121, the

court, in the course of the opinion, said, among other

things

:

"In Thayer v. Brooks, 17 O. 489 * * * the ac-

tion was for nuisance in diverting the water from the

mill of the defendant in error and the court held that

the rule of damages in an action for nuisance is the in-

jury actually sustained at the commencement of the

suit. In Blunt v. McCormick the court said: 'The rule
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of damages laid down by the court was erroneous. In

this action the plaintiff could only recover for injuries

actually sustained before suit was brought and not for

supposed prospective damages.'
"

59 Am. Rep., page 122.

In a note to this case it is said that the most careful

review ever made of this doctrine was by the New York

Court of Appeals, Uline v. N. Y. Central R. R. Co.,

4th N. E., 536. It was a case of a railroad crossing a

street and raising the grade of the plaintiff's land. In

the notes there are liberal extracts from the opinion in

that case, and among other things, it is said, after say-

ing that the right to recover damages existed

:

*'The question, however, still remains, what damages ?

Are her damages upon the assumption that the nuisance

was to be permanent or only such damages as she sus-

tained up to the commencement of the action ? We have

here for consideration an important principle of law

which has to be frequently applied and which ought to

be well known and thoroughly settled. There never has

been in this state, before this case, the least doubt ex-

pressed in any judicial decision, so far as I can discover,

that the plaintiff in such a case is entitled to recover

damages only up to the commencement of the action.

That such is the rule is as well settled here as any rule

of law can be by repeated and uniform decisions of the

courts; and it is the prevailing doctrine everywhere."

53 Am. Rep. 123-124.

In Troy v. Cheshire R. Co., 55 Am. Dec, 177, a suit

for obstructing the highway, the court said

:
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"It is evident that a recovery in this action is a bar

to any future action for this cause. In cases of nui-

sance the injury is of two kinds: i. The direct injury

caused by the act complained of, and; 2. The injury

which may be afterwards occasioned by the unauthor-

ized continuance of that cause. The declaration, in this

case, alleges injury from the first construction of the

railroad, and from its continuance to the date of the writ.

The plaintiff can, in no event, recover for any cause of

action not included in his writ; and on this ground, he

can recover for no damage not sustained when his ac-

tion is commenced. For any future damage he may

recover in an action based upon a continuance of the in-

jurious cause ; and in such action it would be no answer

to say that the damage now claimed has been recovered

in a former suit because the writ in that case warrants

a recovery only for damages sustained previous to its

date. The principle for which the defendants contend is

sound, and the only question which can arise here is as

to the application of that principle. The damage done

at the date of the writ is to be compensated, and that

only. If that damage consists in the exposing of the

party to expenditures of money, the test is not the time

when those expenditures are made, for they may be paid

at once or their payment delayed without, in any way,

affecting the rights of the parties. The question is not,

—When was the money paid—whether before or after

suit; but was the liability to those expenditures occa-

sioned by the acts complained of in the writ? Or was

it by the continuance of the same acts or of the state of

things produced by those acts, after the action was
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brought? If they are the result and consequence of the

wrongful acts complained of, they are to be recovered in

that action. If they result, not from the wrongful acts,

but from the wrongful continuance of the state of facts

produced by those acts, they form the basis of a new

action. There may, of course, be cases where it may

be difficult to draw the line, but, it is apprehended, they

will not be numerous. Wherever the nuisance is of such

a character that its continuance is necessarily an injury

and where it is of a permanent character, that will con-

tinue without change from any cause but human labor,

there the damage is an original damage and may be at

once fully compensated, since the injured person has no

means to compel the individual doing wrong to apply

the labor necessary to remove the cause of injury, and

can only cause it to be done, if at all, -by the expenditure

of his own means."

55 Am. Dec, pp. 186-188.

In the note in this case the court did not limit the

damages to the date of the writ, and we say that it was

not limited to the time of trial, but the case was treated

as one of permanent nuisance, and damages given as for

a total loss of the property; the court refused the item

of "loss of business." Why? Because the court had

taken their estimate of the whole amount of the property

upon which this business was to be done and had taken

their estimate of the value of it in that natural state,

and had awarded them the whole sum thus determined.

In other words, the whole value of the business was

transacted and the profit of it decreed to the plaintiff.

And in view of the fact that the plaintiff's land is worth
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absolutely nothing, never having had any value except

for the salt, it is submitted that an injunction ought not

to have been given in this case, if the judgment of dam-

ages is correct in principle. The general rule is that

damages are only recoverable up to the time of the com-

mencement of the action.

Stincke et al v. Bently et al, 34 N. E. 97, 98-99

;

Henry v. Ohio River Co., 21 S. E. 863, 866, 869;

Ready v. Mo. Ry. Co., 72 S. W. 142.

The same principle is decided and the court in its

opinion, among other things, said:

"In this class of nuisances, where the cause of the in-

jury may at any time cease by act of the party or inter-

vention of the court, the rule of damage is not the whole

difference in the value of the estate just prior and just

after."

See page 143

;

The Redemptorist v. Wenig, 29 Atl. 667, 668.

There it was said, among other things, that the rule

allowing one to recover damages, past and future, is

based upon the theory that the injury will be permanent.

Possum V. Chicago M. & St. P. Ry. Co., 82 N.

W. 979,

is strongly illustrative of the principles for which we here

contend. There the railroad company had constructed

a culvert in lieu of one formerly constructed and gave as

the reason for it that the culvert, where previously lo-

cated, was in such a place as to render the roadbed un-

safe, and the court said if that were true, and it did ren-

der the operation of the railroad hazardous and it was
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moved to the place where it then was for that reason and

did render the use of the railroad property less danger-

ous than it was before then it was an injury of a perma-

nent character, and the rule of damage is the deprecia-

tion or diminution of the value of the plaintiff's farm in

consequence of it, and it is in this view that they regard-

ed the evidence competent and material. The principle

here is obvious. Having been charged with the differ-

ence in the value of the plaintiff's land, occasioned by the

construction of this culvert it necessarily meant that the

railroad could go on using the culvert. In other words,

it was practically a condemnation of the property for

that purpose. See also,

Rosenthal v. Taylor B. & H. Ry. Co., 15 S. W.
268.

We submit that it was error to give damages practic-

ally upon the theory that the plaintiff's free-hold was

destroyed or permanently occupied by this nuisance and

then enjoin the nuisance.

VII.

The court erred in deciding that the evidence
did not show such resulting damage to the set-

tlers in the Imperial country from the injunc-

tion as -would justify its refusal if complainant
were otherivise entitled to it.

This we need not discuss further. It may be admitted

that under the operation of the injunction given, if con-

strued to mean that the defendant may do whatever is

necessary to supply the settlers of the valley with water
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for all lawful purposes, it Is possible to administer the

system without any very frequent deviations from the

meaning of the injunction. But accidents do arise in

the operation of all systems and especially one of such

magnitude as that of the defendant. And for many

other reasons, as we have said before, the injunction is

always a menace and the danger of proceedings for con-

tempt very considerable, and in this case, unnecessary.

Just what the damage to settlers might be, it would, of

course, be impossible to determine since all the contin-

gencies and vicissitudes attending the operation of this

system cannot be foreseen, much less proven satisfac-

torily.

VIII.

The court erred in deciding that the Tv^aters

-which overflowed the complainant's land and
destroyed its property w^ere largely, if not en-

tirely, the w^aters diverted from the Colorado

river through defendant's intake.

One feature which might be properly included or in-

volved in the decision of this proposition, namely,

whether this injury occurred through the negligence of

the defendant, we shall not here discuss, and have stated

this specific error as one relied upon, for the reason that

the word ''diverted" does, in its general meaning, and

especially as applied to such a subject, imply or include

within it the idea of some active interference by the de-

fendant in taking the waters of the Colorado river from

their natural course and conveying them to the Imperial

Valley. ^
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The fact which we here call attention to is that when

we come to the consideration of the evidence for other

purposes, it will be seen that in so far as this may include

the active interference with the waters of the Colorado

river by the defendant, the decision is not correct.

The Alamo water course, made by ancient overflows,

ante-dating all artificial works of any kind, was the re-

sult of overflows of the banks of the Colorado river

through various depressions, greater or less, and which,

making their way along the lines of gravity, the waters

of these various overflowed places came together and

from their confluence had made a wider water course,

and which was known as the Alamo river. This Alamo

river or wash, as we have before stated, constituted forty

miles or more of the defendant's canal, but the defend-

ant's canal had no more to do with the diversion of the

waters from the Colorado river in times of overflow than

had these natural depressions, nor was the effect any dif-

ferent, and, as we have said before, what the defendant

was really engaged in when these floods were sweeping

into the Imperial Valley, was in giving its utmost efforts

to prevent it from flowing into its intake or overflowing

the banks at all.
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IX.

The court erred in deciding that defendant

ivas negligent in not selecting proper places for

the intakes and in not providing suitable head-

gates to control the flow of "water through the

intakes.

The principal witness for the complainant in this case

was Mr. Duryea, Jr. His co-worker was Mr. Sherman.

The California Development Company had made three

intakes, one of which was made in the year 1900 and

the beginning of 1901, and was the upper of the three;

the second was made later and is the middle intake, and

lower down the river; the third, in the fall of 1904, in

October, and is the lower intake.

The first was about 1200 feet above the Mexican

boundary. The second and third lower down and below

the boundary.

Duryea, Tr. Vol. I, page 302;

Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1161 and 1162.

These intakes were all denounced by Duryea as having

been made in improper places. The lower especially,

one which admitted of carrying the water into Imperial

Valley much quicker because more easily constructed,

but unfitted by reason of the danger which threatened

the Imperial Valley, or the plaintiff's works on account

of it. In his mind the proper place was at a certain

rocky point which was above all three of these intakes,

and where the banks of the Colorado river, on the west

side, presented a more formidable barrier to the water

and a place where proper works controlling it might
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more easily have been constructed, and the control of

the water better assured.

Tr. Vol. I, pages 307-308.

His foresight in this particular instance was, to some

extent, fortified by his hindsight, from the fact that ulti-

mately the intake was cut in this rocky point and the

successful turning of the water out by this intake no

doubt had much to do with the determination in this

cause. Mr. Duryea gave it as his opinion that the selec-

tion of these intakes, and each of them, was negligence,

and for the reasons above stated.

Tr. Vol. I, pages 308 to 311 inc.

Sherman, of course, concurred.

It is respectfully submitted that the opinions of these

gentlemen and the opinions of all other experts upon this

subject were not admissible in evidence in this cause. An
expert is not permitted to give an opinion upon the very

point in the case to be decided. The question in this case

was whether the defendant was negligent or not and the

opinion of the expert was not competent upon that ques-

tion. And especially, too, when it will be seen that all of

the facts were before the court which the experts them-

selves knew, either personally or from hearsay, and from

those facts the negligence was to be determined and

though that negligence was in a sense a matter of opin-

ion, yet it was the judicial opinion which was to deter-

mine it and not that of hydraulic engineers. And unless,

from the facts which are established in this case, negli-

gence is shown to exist, the opinion of these experts will
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not make it exist, nor is their evidence competent for any-

such purpose.

Giraudi v. Elec. Imp. Co., 107 Cal. 120, 48 Am.

St. 114;

Kerrigan v. Am. St. Ry. Co., 138 Cal. 506;

Hanley v. Cal. Bridge, etc., Co., 127 Cal. 232;

Lumans Golden Channel Min. Co., 140 Cal. 700.

We make the following quotation from Giraudi case,

48 Am. St. 118:

"The cases do undoubtedly hold that an expert cannot

be asked whether a structure is a safe one, or whether

certain methods are prudent, but all hold that facts may

be elicited from the witnesses from which the conclusion

unavoidably follows."

Now for the evidence upon this proposition. We
have stated the general facts quite fully, and as we have

said before, they are undisputed : The enormous area of

desert lands between the point of diversion and the New
Liverpool salt works; the arid climate; the absence of

rains ; indeed, every feature of the country most favor-

able to the disposition of large quantities of water be-

tween the Colorado river and the New Liverpool salt

works. In addition to that, past experience; the over-

flows of the Colorado river from time immemorial; the

fact that there never was but one flood which materially

afifected the Salton Basin at all, and that in 1891, and

under circumstances which we shall hereafter explain

more particularly ; the actual experiences of the defend-

ant with these intakes.

At the first a headgate to control the waters was
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placed. It soon became useless from the silting and it

became necessary to cut a by-pass around this gate in

order to get water through for the use of the settlers.

Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1181, 1185 to 1188,

1 190, 1 194;

Sexsmith, Vol. Ill, page 914.

The intake itself became useless, which was the rea-

son for cutting the second. The experience with the

second was exactly the same.

Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, page 1194;

Sexsmith, Tr. Vol. Ill, page 918, 919.

The third was cut, and in that also dredging had been

necessary to clear away the silt before the floods came.

As we have said before, all experience was that the trou-

ble they were to have was to get water through the in-

takes and not to keep it out. In all previous experience,

whenever they had occasion to turn the water out, they

had done so without difficulty.

Follett, Tr. Vol. IV, p. 15 17;

Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1190, 1241;

Sexsmith, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 915-917 inch

Under the records of previous overflows and the ex-

perience with these intakes and the canal, it is submitted

that the selection of them was not negligence.

Now, the fact, even if it were a fact, that the rocky

point were a more suitable place for various reasons,

that does not of itself make it negligence to select an-

other. But now, for the purposes of safety, what advan-

tage, pray, was the rocky point, and an intake at that

place and headworks to control the flow of the water?
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The rocky point has been there from the foundations of

the world, so far as we know. It has always stood as an

impervious barrier to the flow of the waters of the Colo-

rado river and its elevation prevented the overflow on

the surface. In other words, the rocky point itself was

performing all the functions of the rocky point plus an

intake with solid cement headworks to control the water.

In spite of this fact, the Colorado river has overflowed

its western banks along for miles below that rocky point,

notwithstanding the presence of the rocky point. Can

it be pretended that the presence of an intake with solid

headworks would have had any tendency whatever to

have prevented the waters of the Colorado river from

overflowing below? It will be said that since the intake

was constructed there the defendant has prevented the

water from overflowing the country. The reasons are

as plenty as blackberries.

(i) The floods ceased to come one on top cf another

as they had for two years before.

(2) The overflow of the river did not cease until the

defendant had leveed its banks for eleven or twelve

miles ; without that levee the rocky point intake and the

headgates would not and could not have had any effect

whatever towards preventing the overflow.

It has been claimed that that which constituted prin-

cipally the negligence of the defendant lay in the fact

that by allowing the waters to flow in the intakes, the

Alamo canal was washed out and the intakes were

washed out, until the whole of the Colorado river at one

time went through the Alamo river. How would that

have been prevented by an intake at the rocky point
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and the headworks there? The Alamo river, the New
river, and divers other streams, as will appear in the

record in this cause, had been made by just such floods

of the Colorado river when there was no canal. The

Alamo river had itself been cut to pieces prior to the

time that there were any intakes. In the flood of 1891,

the gentlemen who went on an exploration for the South-

ern Pacific Company, found this Alamo channel or

water course, one day of one dimension and in a short

time afterwards increased in its size nearly or quite

four times.

E. L. Swaine, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 874, 875 et seq.

It had cut out, both deepened and widened, in the

meantime. Now, the cause of the 1891 flood was simi-

lar to those of 1905 and 1906, differing only in the de-

gree. In the flood of 1891, the waters, in February, at-

tained a higher point on the gauge than it did at any

time in 1905 or 1906, or any other time.

In February, 1891, the Yuma gauge attained a height

of 32 feet.

Tr. Vol. I, page 163.

The waters which poured over in the flood of Febru-

ary were impounded by sand dunes and retained until

the floods came later. In March the Yuma gauge at-

tained a height of 23 feet.

Tr. Vol. I, page 163.

In April, 20 feet; in May, 25 feet; in June, 23; in

July, 22.

Now, when the floods of the flood season came, the

flood waters, united with the impounded lake, cut
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through the sand banks and turned practically the con-

tents of both floods into the Salton Sink at once. The

bank of the Colorado river has been reported by the

United States government to have been increasing at

the rate of about an inch a year.

Follett, Tr. Vol. IV, page 1473;

Duryea, Tr. Vol. V, pp. 1941 and 1942.

The gauge height which marked the point of overflow

in 1 89 1 was stated by Mr. Duryea and Sherman to be

122 feet, or 22 feet on the Yuma gauge.

Tr. Vol. V, page 1941.

The same is taken as the height of overflow of 1891,

by the engineers of the defendant, particularly Hawgood

and Rockwood.

Rockwood, Tr. Vol. IV, pages 1548-9, 1551 to

1557;

Hawgood, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1120 and 1121 and

1 122 and 1 128.

Estimating the increase according to the resvilts of

the government observation, it was deemed in 1904, 13

inches, making the Yuma gauge height, in 1904, that

marked the overflow, substantially 123.

Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1120 et seq.;

Tr. Vol. IV, pages 1551 to 1557 and 1599 ef scq.;

H. T. Corey, Tr. Vol. IV, pages 1630 for 1906

and 1907.

The floods which caused the havoc that produced this

controversy began in January, 1904. It was shown, too,

that when it is said that 22 in 1891 and 2^ in 1905,
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marked the point of overflow, it was meant the point of

general overflow, and that in fact, the water was flowing

over the west bank in many places of depressions before

the gauge height reached 22 in one of those years or 23

in the other.

Hawgood's testimony, Tr. Vol. Ill, page 1151;

Corey, Vol. IV, pages 1704, 5 and 6.

In Vol. \''I of the transcript, page 2139, there will be

found a complete record of the gauge heights in Yimia

for the entire year of 1891. We have said that the great-

est height which it attained in that month was ^2 feet

on the 27th of February. We think that somewhere it

was testified that the ^2 was a mistake and that it should

be ^^, but it will be seen from that table that the water

ran from 28 on the 23rd; 25 on the 24th and 25th; 27

on the 26th to 32 or 3 on the 27th ; 28 on the 28th ; and

that it remained above overflow point on March ist and

2nd. In the same volume the gauge heights are given

from 1891 to and including 1902, pages 2199-2210.

Then we have the reports of 1904 and 1905, in the

printed volumes, to which we shall refer hereafter, and

for the first 11 months of the year 1906, in Vol. VI of

the evidence between pages 2267 and 2269, marked on

the back 2268.

These tables we shall have to refer to again and pass

them now, remarking only that, looking at those gauge

heights alone, it will appear that if the original intake

had been cut at the rocky point and an immovable head-

gate constructed therein, the result would not have been

any different in any respect, in the years 1905 and 1906,

from what it was.
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Furthermore, the Cahfornia Development Company

had no reason to anticipate any such resuhs as occurred

from the construction of those intakes, and that it is not

neghgence to do anything where there is no reason to

anticipate any such resuhs as fohow. The authorities

upon this proposition we shall cite under another head.

X.

The court erred in deciding that the defend-

ant's said negligence was the direct and prox-

imate cause oi the overflo-w of complainant's

lands and the resulting loss of its property.

We shall not, under this head, enter into any extended

discussion of this question, since the whole matter will

more properly be considered under another. If what

we say under the last point is correct, then the court did

err in the matter just referred to. The Colorado river

did overflow every year and it submerged the plaintiff's

property on the occasion here referred to because there

were such a succession of floods coming one upon the

heels of another, in the years 1905 and 1906, as never oc-

curred before in the world's history, so far as known,

and that the quantity of water discharged by those

floods, when compared with that of 1891, would have

made an overflow of eight or ten times the water that

poured into the Salton Sink in 1891, and we know that

the Salton Sink attained an area that year of about 360

square miles.

Testimony of George W. Durbrow, Supt. of com-

plainant company, Tr. Vol, II, page 642.
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And was of a depth, in its deepest place, of about five

feet, and that, measured by the due proportion, it is sus-

ceptible of a mathematical demonstration that the floods

of 1904, '5 and '6, should have made a lake of anywhere

from forty to sixty feet in depth in its deepest place, and

would have submerged and utterly destroyed every par-

ticle of the plaintifif's property, if there had not been an

intake of any kind on the Colorado river.

On the computation of the proportionate amount see

testimony of Hawgood, Vol. Ill, pages 1120 ct seq.;

Corey, Vol. X, pages 170 ct seq.; Follett, Vol. IV, pp.

1473 ef seq.; ]. D. Schuyler, Vol. Ill, pp. 1289 and 1290;

C. R. Rockwood, Vol. Ill, pp. 1230 et seq.

These figures were gone over by Mr. Duryea, who

testified that there was no objection to be made to the

computation. The only doubt that he expressed was

that he thought the overflow point was put too low, but

he agreed to the fact that the increase of elevation on the

bank of the Colorado river was about an inch a year.

Tr. Vol. V, pages 1853, 1857, 1935, 1941 to 1943

and 1964.

And he admitted that it would make no practical dif-

ference at what point the overflow really took place in

189 1 and 1905, if you maintain the proportional height.

In other words, if the point of overflow in 1891 was 24

feet instead of 22, still the proportional amount of flood

water would be practically the same if you take 25 for

1904. However, it is submitted that the testimony is

overwhelming that the overflow points assumed in this

case are practically correct because there were many

years in which there would have been no overflow at all,
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or at least none worth speaking of, if we were to sup-

pose these greater elevations to control, when we know

that the overflow did take place.

XI.

The court erred in deciding: that the floods of

1905 in the Colorado river would not have over-

flowed the banks of the river and submerged

complainant's lands if the defendant's intakes

had not existed.

We pass this point for the present, upon the proposi-

tion already presented.

XII & XIII.

The court erred in deciding: that the com-

plainant w^as entitled to the injunction in this

cause and in deciding: that the complainant was
entitled to the compensatory relief sued for.

These questions have already been, to a considerable

extent, discussed, and we shall present no further ar-

gument at this moment in support thereof.

XIV.

The court erred in g:ranting: the injunction

in this cause in the absence of the Mexican com-

pany and the said several Imperial w^ater com-
panies and in decreeing the injunction in this

action.

The principal point here involved is that these water

companies and the Mexican company were necessary

parties to the granting of such relief and it is submitted

that under the facts proven in this cause, having refer-
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ence especially to the contracts, that the court did err in

this respect. These companies are not only independent

companies, but the defendant company delivers water

into the canals of the various water companies at differ-

ent places, and from that moment has no control what-

ever over such canals, but from that time they are entire-

ly under the control of the Imperial water companies and

those water companies are not under the control of the

defendant. Hence, if the defendant company delivers

water to those companies in proper quantities, and no

more than is necessary for use, some negligence or some

action or inaction on the part of those companies may re-

sult in that water going to waste and flowing into the

Salton Lake, a matter over which the defendant has no

control, and for which it ought not to be punished for a

contempt, and it is submitted that the relation of the par-

ties are such that those companies w^ould not be amenable

to the process of contempt in this suit.

XV.

The court erred in granting the judgment
for damages in this cause because the evidence

is insufficient to prove any damage to the com-
plainant from any negligence of the defendant

or to justify a judgment against the defendant

for any damages.

We shall cite the portions of the evidence relied upon

under this point further along.
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XVI.

The court erred in deciding that the flooding

of the Salton sink, in the years 1904 and 1905 and
1906 and the destruction of the complainant's

property, -was occasioned by the fault of the

California Development company, or by any
negligence of said company.

This proposition we shall consider with the seven-

teenth specification, namely, that the destruction was

wrought by the act of God.

The seventeenth specification is this : The court erred

in deciding that the flooding of the Salton Basin with

water and the destruction of the complainant's property

occurred through the negligence of the defendant and

was not the act of God.

In discussing this question we shall consider two dif-

ferent portions of the time. In the fall of 1904, and after

the construction of the lower intake and after the flood

season was over, the water began to appear in the Sal-

ton Sink. Mr. Drury, whose testimony begins Vol. II,

page 558, says that he thinks he first observed the waters

accumulating in the Salton Sink in November, 1904,

about the middle, and at that time it had not approached

nearer to the mills than two or three miles, and possibly

as much as four or five miles. That they began to

be apprehensive of danger as soon as the water reached

the place where they were working and that was some-

time in December. They were working on section 22

and the water was then about three and a half miles

from the mills and machinery. That he thinks the water

rose thereafter about one-half an inch a day perpendicu-
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larly, and later increased. He thinks that sometime in

December they began to be a Httle afraid and built a

levee around the mills. Can't tell just when the water

reached this levee; thinks the levee was built in Decem-

ber and the water reached that levee shortly afterwards

and thinks that they abandoned it on March loth be-

cause the whole thing was swamped. That was in 1905

;

and he thinks that the water first overflowed into the

buildings and machinery on March 5th, 1905.

Tr. Vol. II, pages 600-603.

Now, it does not appear that any damage had been

done to the property of the plaintiff during the year

1904, nor very distinctly that any damage was done, ex-

cept to the salt crust, prior to March, 1905. But Mr.

Drury informs us that the salt crust is never dry; that

the water is usually from the surface to one or two inches

below the surface ; that the salt crust varies in depth

from nothing to 18 inches on section 22.

Tr. Vol. V, pages 1964- 1966.

He admits that during his experience at the salt works

they have sometimes been interfered with in their op-

erations as concerns drying the salt by reason of rains.

Id. 1966.

Mr. Drury produces a copy of the notes kept by him

of the various events occurring as the waters rose.

Vol. V, pages 1967- 1968.

And then gives us the dates from those notes. They

will be found

Tr. Vol. V, pages 1968- 1970.
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October 31, 1904, water appeared about 4 or 5 miles

from Salton; November ist, about i mile from end of

salt company's track ; November 7th, water coming with

a rush on section 34; November 14th, water reached and

covered all of the salt to a depth of 3 inches; 15th,

planned levee to protect mill and piles of salt; 21st, water

4 inches from rails of the company's railroad on the

marsh; December 5th, water driven back by strong

wind, leaving the salt uncovered except for dirt, silt and

lime ; track badly damaged. December 8th, telegraphed

for sacks to use in protecting levee; December 20th,

levee nearly completed; December 28th, levee, as orig-

inally planned, completed; January 6th, 1905, parties

left Salton but sent back for boat. January 9th, water

reached point about 600 or 700 feet from the mill. Janu-

ary loth, 1905, Dovers and Sherman returned to Salton.

January nth, water at main levee. January 14th, water

coming up on levee; 15th, telegraphed to rush pump;

1 6th, commenced to move salt; 19th, pump arrived and

being installed; 24th—he does not complete the answer;

and on February 7th the levee badly damaged. March

5th, levee broke and much salt destroyed. And so on

until finally the buildings were entirely destroyed.

Vol. V, pages 1968- 1970.

Turning now to the reports of the stream measure-

ments published by the United States for the calendar

year 1904, being Water Supply and Irrigation Paper

No. 1 34, we find there reports of the Yuma gauge height

for that year, pages 21-24, and all collected together on

page 25. Assuming 23 feet as the overflow point, it will

be seen that that height was first attained on May 20th,
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1 904, and continued above that point continuously down

to and including July 15th. It did not again attain that

height until August 24th and 25th and did not attain

that height again that year. Therefore, a general over-

flow probably did not take place after the 15th of July,

except on the said two days of August, but the overflow

point had continued for a long time; and now we call

attention to this fact, that while the overflow point is not

reached, the gauge does not fall below 22 until August

5th, and then it is 21.95 ; ^"d on the 6th, 21.85, and then

goes above the 22 and hovers around that point, reach-

ing 23 the two days in August referred to, and contin-

uing through September and October and the first part

of November, either at or above the 20 mark all the time,

with the exception of but four or five days.

Now, Hawgood has said that the 23 mark marks the

general overflow, but that water is overflowing through

the low places of the Colorado bank before it reaches the

27,; even in the year 1905, one of enormous floods, the

gauge does not mark a uniform height so great in Au-

gust, September, October, November and December, as

it did in 1904.

Now, Rockwood has testified that no amount of water,

wasted from the canals of the defendant, could have oc-

casioned the influx or gathering of the waters of the

Salton Basin in the fall of 1904.

Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1212, 1215, 1216.

Duryea testified that 500 cubic feet per second wasted

upon this extensive area of porous land would never have

brought about the overflow in the Salton Sink.

Tr. Vol. V, pages 1926 ct seq.
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And from the testimony of Rockwood it was shown

that no such quantity had been diverted during those

months by means of this canal.

Tr. Vol. Ill, page 1212.

Furthermore, this canal was constructed in October,

1904, and had to be dredged out in order to get water

through it before the fall season was over.

Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1200 and 1201

;

Sexsmith, Vol. Ill, page 921.

It was shown, moreover, that the fall of 1904 and the

winter of 1905, was one of unusual rainfalls in that sec-

tion of the country.

Tr. Vol. Ill, pages 1220 et seq.

That the season was unusually cool and the atmos-

phere unusually humid.

It was testified by Mr. Durbrow that a cloudburst in

the summer of 1891 raised the lake in the Salton Basin

that year two feet in depth [Tr. Vol. Ill, page 643],

and there were many rains in the fall of 1904 and the

early part of 1905.

Tr. Vol. II, page 643.

If we turn now to the testimony of Duryea and Sher-

man, and perhaps others, it will be found that they give

it as their opinion that the waters which accumulated in

the Salton Basin in the fall of 1904, probably came

through the defendant's canal, and they seem somewhat

more positive that the water came from the Colorado

river.

Tr. Vol. II, pages 437 ct scq., 497, 507.
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But it will also be seen that neither of them ever took

the trouble to follow up the waters in their examinations

and to determine with any degree of certainty where

those waters did come from. [Tr. Vol. II, pages 487

et seq. ] They do not appear to have made any examina-

tions of their own or inquiries of others in regard to the

rainfall during that period.

Observe the discharge measurements in second feet of

the Colorado river in 1904, Water Supply & Irrigation

Paper No. 134, pages 21-24. The last column on these

pages shows these discharge measurements and will show

the vast difference between the ordinary flow of the river

and its flow during the flood seasons. And see particu-

larly, on pages 2^ and 24, the discharges after the flood

season up to October 25th. On page 25 will be found,

under the head of Estimated Monthly Discharge of Col-

orado River at Yuma, Arizona, for 1904, a summary of

the maximum, minimum, mean and total in acre feet.

It will be observed that in the bill in this case the com-

plainant alleges the diversion from the Colorado river

of large amounts of water during this fall. The plain-

tiff undoubtedly took this from the reports of the stream

measurements in 1904, to which we have referred, and

they have relied apparently upon the table on page 28 of

that report and of the title "Discharge Measurements of

Imperial Canal at Heading in Mexico, Four Miles Below

the International Boundary Line, New Gauging Sta-

tion." Note that this is at the heading in Mexico and

four miles below the international boundary line. On

page 29 an explanation is given of what was done for the

purpose of determining the waste.
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"In October," says this report, "a canal known as

canal No. 6 was completed, which enters the valley west

of Calexico, California, and a station was constructed

at this canal in November and weekly discharge meas-

urements are being made. A large quantity of waste

water was discharging from the Imperial Valley below

all irrigated lands, into the Salton Basin. To determine

this waste, discharge measurements were made on New

river at Brawley, on Alamo channel at Rockwood, and

on canal No. 5 at Bernice."

Report 1904, page 29.

Now, the first discharge measurements are given of

the Holt canal near Calexico and that report is made in

second feet, pages 29 and 30, and it will be seen that the

greatest amount of waste discharge at any one time was

62 second feet, and it varied between 2y and 62.

On page 31 is given the discharge measurements of

Hemlock canal near Calexico, and which amount, as will

be seen, to little or nothing, running from 1.8 second

feet to 14.5, but being less than 10 except on three dif-

ferent days.

And on page 32, for the months of July, August, Sep-

tember, October, November and December, it will be

seen that for those months the discharge measurement

never amounts to 2 second feet.

The next is the discharge measurement of the Alamo

canal and it will be seen that from July 24th to the end

of the year it varied from a mininuim of 36.5 to a maxi-

mum of 256 second feet.

Same Report, page 33.
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Discharge measurements of Alamitos canal, during

the same period, never exceeded 36 second feet, and va-

ried from 8.2 to 36.

Same Report, page 35.

The discharge measurements from the Imperial canal,

near Calexico, are given at page 37, but that is not below

the lands of irrigation, and besides that, the maximum

there is 717 and measures the total flow. The discharge

measurements of the boundary canal near Calexico will

be found at page 39 and amount to very little.

The points mentioned on page 29 as being below the

irrigated lands, and which constitute the waste, will be

found at page 40. These are the discharges at Brawley,

Rockwood and Bernice, the three points named on page

29, and from which it will be seen that the waste never

amounts to 500 second feet. The first measurements are

not complete, as Bernice is not included; but at Braw-

ley (New river), 208 second feet; at Rockwood

(Alamo), 43. For the month of October, the i8th and

19th, the sum total of waste was 502 second feet. The

next sum total at the three points, 498, and so on, never

attaining 500 at any time, except in the month of Octo-

ber, and then but two second feet over.

This marks the real waste from all these canals dur-

ing that period, for these are the points which lie below

the irrigated lands, and according to Duryea's testimony,

a constant flow of 500 second feet would not have ac-

counted for the waters in the Salton Sink in 1904.

In Water Supply and Irrigation Paper No. 177, at

page 24, is given the portion of the Colorado river di-

verted by Imperial canal during 1904. The discharge
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measurements made at the Imperial canal headings dur-

ing 1905.

Id. page 23.

The daily gauge height at Yuma for 1905, is given

—

Id. pages 15-16.

Now, taking the month of January, it will be seen that

the overflow point is reached the first time on the i8th

of January.

Id. page 15.

The water then stands high from that on until in

February, and on the 8th of February it attains the

height of 27.2; the next day, 28.75; the loth, 26.6; the

nth, 24.1 ; then it falls below 23, but keeps well up the

mark until on the 19th it attains 22.65 5 24.9 on the 20th;

25.75 on the 2 1 St; 25.85 on the 22nd; 23.55 on the 23rd.

But without repeating these measurements, we call at-

tention to the flood of 1905, beginning on January i8th,

and it was just one flood after another until the summer

overflow came, and during the months of February,

March, April, May, June and July, down to the loth, it

was almost constantly above the general flood point.

And in November it began again on the 29th, and it

continued so to the 4th day of December.

We have the first ten months' gauge heights for

1906

—

Tr. Vol. VI, p. 2268, Defendant's Exhibit No. 28.

Here again we find that on the 15th of March of that

year the waters attained a gauge height of 26.20; on

the i6th, 27.53; 17th' 25.50; i8th, 23.20. Falls below
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the flood mark till the 27th, when the gauge height was

22.10, and does not fall below it till the 7th of April. In

the flood seasons of May and June, indeed from the

25th day of April, until the 5th day of July, it was never

below the flood mark.

In the same Vol. VI, are the reports of the gauge

heights from 1891 to 1902.

Vol. VI, pp. 2 199-22 10.

While the notes do not show it, apparently, we are

positive that the printed reports for the year 1903, were

used on the trial of this action and the gauge heights at

Yuma are shown in the volume for 1903, Water Supply

and Irrigation Paper No. 100, from pages 20 to 24. And

then are brought together, independent of the discharge,

pages 24 and 25.

In the report for the year 1905, page 17, is given the

yearly maximum and minimum gauge heights at Yuma
from 1878 to 1905, and this table will become important

a little farther along.

We have referred the court here to these tables to the

end that we may not have need to refer to them any

further, except to the report on the page last referred to,

and we submit that upon the evidence in the cause the

court was not justified in finding that the waters which

accumulated in the Salton Basin in the fall of 1904 and

preceding the flood of January i8th, 1905, was caused

by the negligence of the defendant, or that the waters

which there accumulated came from the canals of the

defendant company at all. The daily gauge height at

Yuma was sufficient to account for the overflow of

waters in low places on the west bank of the Colorado
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river for a long period of time, and much of which

might have made its way into the sink. The rainfall

had much to do with the accumulation of those waters.

It was shown that the cultivators of the soil, ordering

water for a particular day, and that water being deliv-

ered to them, found themselves unable to use it because

the rain had just occurred, and these things and the lit-

tle evaporation that took place because of the state of the

atmosphere, was the explanation of these things, or at

least upon this state of the evidence the court was not

justified in concluding that it was the fault of the defend-

ant.

Now, if, as we say, the uncontradicted evidence shows

an abnormally long continued height of waters in the

Colorado river, during the latter part of the summer

and fall of 1904, though just below the overflow point,

the unusual quantities of rain that fell in the surround-

ing mountains, the abnormally low temperature and

humid atmosphere, and all concurring in that fall, were

things which the defendant had no reason to anticipate,

and, as we shall show by the authorities hereafter, one

is not guilty of negligence in not anticipating things

which are so unlikely that he has no reason to expect

them or to provide against them.

And we remark generally here that the evidence was

not sufficient to prove that any damage had occurred to

the plaintiff's property prior to the floods of 1905, or, if

any, to give any sufficient data upon which to estimate

the amount of damage.

Passing now to the next period, beginning with the

floods of 1905, which began on the i8th day of January.
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It is submitted that there is no conflict in the evidence

concerning the period between the i8th day of January,

1905, and the beginning of the year 1907. There was

never anything Hke it seen in the world. The oldest in-

habitants, who had known it from forty to fifty years, or

more, have testified that they never saw any such condi-

tions before and that there never were any such. The

gauge heights show that there was nothing like it ever

in any season before. Nobody pretends that any such

succession of floods and long continued floods, one after

another, ever did occur.

We here cite the volumes and pages where the testi-

mony upon these facts may be seen.

Testimony of men, including steam boat captains, who

have lived and worked on that river for many years.

Hall Hanlon, Vol. II, pages 853 et seq.; lived on the

Colorado river for 55 years, page 853; remembers the

flood of 1 89 1, id.: Floods of 1904, 1905, 1906 unprece-

dented: "From the year 1854 until this time, neither I

nor any man on earth has known a succession of floods

of such magnitude as occurred in 1904, 1905, 1906." Id.

page 855.

J. A. Mellon (steamboat captain), Tr. Vol. II, page

789.

Been engaged as steamboat captain on Colorado river

since 1863, id. page 789:

''There has been three funny years down there. We
have never had so much water below Yuma as we have

in the last three years;" id. page 797; 1905 was the big

flood; id. pages 799, 808, 809: "The floods just kept
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coming one after the other. I have never seen such a

condition since I have been there of the Gila coming up

as it did that year, and last year and the present year

:

at no time during the whole time that I have been there.

* * * If it did come up once a year that was all we

would expect ; but here it is coming up three times in a

year one after the other. One don't pass by imtil there

is another one right on its heels. By that I mean a

flood.

"And such conditions as that I never have known in

that section before and no person else. Mr. Hanlon has

been there since 1854 and I warrant he has never seen

anything like it. The Indians have not seen anything

like it. I have asked them about it. The oldest Indian

[id. pp. 812-813]. * * * Joseph S. Carter [Vol. 2,

pp. 763, et seq] . Lived in that section for 20 years. Was

there when the flood occurred in the Salton Sink in i8gi.

I went through to the Salton Sea in 1891. In June I

think. Was with Mr. Harry Patton and a man by the

name of Converse. Made the trip by boat [id. pp. 763-4]

(describes trip made in that j^ear, pp. 764 to 768 inc).

Was there from i860 to 1866 continuously. Saw the

flood of 1862. We considered it a very large flood [id.

p. 769]. Since 1891 and up to 1905 have observed the

floods of the Colorado river constantly [id. p. 769].

None of the floods between 1891 and 1905 were as great

as the flood of 1905. I have seen a good deal of high

water, more in the last three years I seen more than I

have seen before I think" [p. 778].

George C. Sexsmith, Vol. 3, p. 910, et seq.:

"I have been familiar with the Colorado river during
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the winter seasons since 1893. [Tr. Vol, 3, p. 922.]

There were greater floods in January, February and

March, 1906, than I have ever known in the river since

I have been there." [Id.; see also p. 931, also 934.]

Walter D. Smith, Tr. Vol. 3

:

"The year 1891, if I remember, was the year that we

had the great flood from Gila. That was the greatest

flood that was known up to that time and my recollec-

tion is that its maximum was greater than the flood we

had in 1905, but that it did not last near so long and

that there was not the continuous high water in 1891

that there was in 1905, not nearly so continuous, and that

the total volume did not amount to as large. Now that

is my recollection. Of course the record will show that.

That the total discharge during the year 1905 was

greater, considerably greater, than in 1891. [Vol. Ill,

p. 867.] In 1 89 1 I think the flood measured ^2 on the

Yuma gauge. Of course that only lasted a day. It just

went up to that, barely touched that and went right

down. The regular annual flood in May and June, as I

remember it in 1905, was unusually high and long, and

in addition to that we had several rises. I think they

were from the Gila and the Colorado both. We had

several unusual rises in January, February, March and

April, and had the summer floods in addition" [pp. 868-

869].

C. R. Rockwood, Tr. Vol. Ill, pp. 1232 ef seq. :

'T don't remember the exact number of distinct floods

in 1905. My general recollection is that it was a year

of floods, one coming after the other. We had unusually
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high water for that season of the year in January. In

February I know that we had very heavy floods, fol-

lowed by heavy floods in March and very heavy floods in

April. In May of course the water rose to the summer

flood and continued in flood until July and then fell and

rose again to the highest point reached in November.

The highest point reached on the Yuma gauge since

February, 1891. I have made a very careful study of the

situation and of the floods of the Colorado river. From

all information obtainable, not only now but previous to

the exploitation I had made already during the exploita-

tion of the canal proposition, I had made in 1892 and

'93, and from no information that I have been able to

obtain would it have been possible for me to justify my-

self in the belief that such a series of floods as hap-

pened in 1905 could have happened. The Colorado river

proper, by which I mean that portion of the Colorado

river which is fed by the drainage area above the Gila,

is exceedingly regular in its rise and fall. There may be

a very considerable difference in the height of the sum-

mer floods but it is very, very seldom that you find any

fluctuation amounting to anything in the river, except

during the summer rise. The Gila, which enters the

river at the town of Yuma, seems to be somewhat more

regular in its flood and we find from a study of the river

and the records obtainable, that there is some danger of

floods during the months of February and March from

the Gila, but practically at no other season of the year

except during the summer season. And I find in study-

ing over the records and from the information obtain-

able, that where during the past 30 years there is one
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year in which a flood of any moment could come down

the Gila, there would probably be three years in which

there would be no flood condition at all [p. 1234]. The

only record that I have of a heavy flood coming down

the Colorado was during the flood of February, 1891.

A heavy flood had been coming down the Colorado at

the same time that the flood came down the Gila [p.

1235]. From all the data I have been able to gather, I

find no succession of floods such as that had during the

year 1905. [Vol. IV, p. 350.] Conditions arose which

I had no reason to believe could arise. A study of the

history of the Colorado river would not lead me to be-

lieve that such a succession of floods could occur. If

there had been but one flood of ordinary duration it

would have done no harm. [Vol. IV, p. 1357.] I don't

believe that the February flood of 1891 alone would have

opened the intake so as to have caused any trouble." [Id.]

Sec also testimony on cross-examination, pp. 1390-91,

et seq.

An examination of the record of the Yuma gauge and

of the government records will show that the volume of

water which came down the river in the years 1904,

1905, 1906 and 1907 was greater by many times than in

any previous year. The volume in 1905 being very much

greater than that in 1904, and 1906 being greater than

that in 1905, and 1907 being greater than that of 1906.

The history of the river shows that in the winter and

spring whenever floods had occurred they consisted only

of one flood wave going right up and right down, while

the floods which came upon the management of the Cali-

fornia Development Co. in the winter and spring of 1905
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were a succession of flood waves following each other in

such close succession that there would not be a subsid-

ence of one before the other would be coming down the

river. A single flood wave, that is, a flood of short

duration, no matter how high the river rose, would not

result in the eroding of the banks of the intake to any

dangerous extent. It was only the succession or con-

tinued floods which no one had any right to expect in that

season of the year that could cause any damage, and it

was these continued floods of the winter and spring of

1905 that destroyed the successive attempts to close the

intake and which resulted in the flooding of the lands of

the complainant company.

We proceed now to present the legal principles bear-

ing upon the question of the negligence of the defendant,

and here let us say first, that the construction of this

canal and cutting the intakes and diverting the water,

with or without headworks, was the exercise of a legal

right and the accomplishment of an enterprise encour-

aged by the laws both of the federal and state govern-

ment, and these channels known as the Paradones and

the Alamo, the latter of which, as we have before stated,

constitutes the defendant's canal for many miles, and

many other small and nameless channels had been made

by the overflows of the waters of the Colorado river be-

fore anybody connected with the defendant knew any-

thing of that section of the country. The means whereby

overflow water came in sufficient quantities to reach the

Salton Sink had been provided by the force of the Colo-

rado floods and the laws of nature anterior to the con-

struction of any canal or intake along the river. Ex-
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perience had shown that with these means of approach

to the Salton Sink, no flood of any extent had ever

reached that sink except in the year 1891.

Now, when it is said that where damage is occasioned

by the act of God, and if the act of man concurs with it

to produce the injury, the man is still liable, it is always

meant that the action or omission on the part of the per-

son charged was itself negligence and that that negli-

gence contributed directly to the result, and we contend

here, first, that there was no negligence. Every person

engaged in a work of this character is bound, of course,

to foresee and provide against the ordinary perils of the

country, which may reasonably be foreseen and an-

ticipated; but is not bound to provide against unusual

and extraordinary events such as have never been known

to occur and could not have reasonably been foreseen by

competence and skill. *

A railroad company, in building a bridge over a

stream, is bound to provide sufficient space for the pass-

age of waters and also against such perils as arise from

rainfalls known by experience to be incident to the par-

ticular section of the country, and which includes the

ordinary floods, and such as, though rarely occurring,

may reasonably be foreseen and anticipated.

Columbus, etc., Ry. Co. v. Bridges, nth Am. St.

58;

Kansas City, M. & B. R. R. Co. v. Smith, 48 Am.

St. 579.

In the latter case it was held that where the waters

of the stream overflowed the country for a considerable

distance, the waters thus pouring over a large extent of
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country are surface waters and the railroad company is

not limited in its rights and duties of making bridges

across the channels of the streams, to streams of such

chiaracter. The general proposition is that it is the duty

of the railroad company to construct and maintain cul-

verts sufficient to properly pass the waters of such floods

as might be reasonably expected.

Sullens V. Chicago, etc., Ry. Co., 7th Am. St. 501,

505;

Emery v. Raleigh, etc., R. R. Co., nth Am. St.

727;

De Baker v. Ry. Co., 106 Cal. 274.

But if the bridge is so constructed as to leave open-

ings sufficient for the passage of water under circum-

stances reasonably to be anticipated, the railroad com-

pany is not liable to the land owners whose land was

overflowed by an extraordinary flood, though its ob-

struction of the stream aggravated the damage.

Peoria, etc., R. Co. v. Barton, 38 111. App. 469,

470-473;

Piedmont, etc., Ry. Co. v. McKenzie, 24 Atl. 157-

158.

The principles which govern railroad companies in

these matters are simply the general principles appli-

cable to all cases where the question of negligence of the

character here claimed arises.

Furthermore, a defendant is not liable if the destruc-

tion would have happened though the works constructed

by him had never been made, even though it may be said

to have been negligence in him to have constructed the
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particular work complained of. This is employed in the

case last cited, and also, we think, in

Central Trust Co. v. Wabash, St. L. & P. Ry.

Co., 57 Fed. 441, 446.

It was there held that the railroad company is only

required to exercise reasonable diligence and precaution,

and is entitled to select a safe and massive structure in

place of a lighter one which would less obstruct the

water; that it is not liable to action for damages if it

fails to construct a culvert or bridge so as to pass extra-

ordinary floods. That if, after all precautions have been

made, excluding the idea of negligence, the overwhelm-

ing power which is technically called the ''act of God,"

intervenes and works injury, the party is not respon-

sible.

In

Austin & N. W. Ry. Co. v. Anderson, 2-^ Am. St.

Rep. 350,

the court below had told the jury, among other things,

that if the embankments and culverts diverted the water

from its usual course and contributed to the damage of

the land and crops of the plaintiff, but it should appear

that the damage was caused in part by water falling and

running on the land regardless of the embankments and

culverts, then the defendant would be liable only for

such proportion of the injury as was caused by the em-

bankment ; and if the verdict should be for the plaintiff,

it should be for only the damages occasioned by the

embankments and culverts.

This instruction was approved by the Supreme Court.
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Now, here in this case the evidence will show that the

waters of the Colorado river overflowed their bank

everywhere, above and below the intake of the defendant

and that these surface waters were accumulating and

flowing into these various water channels, including the

Alamo and the New river. The canals of the defendant

were never constructed for the purpose of accumulating

and collecting the surface waters that might flow over

the banks of the Colorado river and even if it were re-

sponsible at all, it would not have been responsible for

the damage wrought by the overflow waters. The fact

that they subsequently cut out the Alamo channel to

such an extent that it carried pretty much the whole

Colorado river does not make the defendant liable.

In

The Inhabitants of China v. Southwick, et al.,

1 2th Me. 238,

the court below had been requested to instruct the jury

that if defendants' dam was instrumental in producing

the injury complained of, they were liable, although the

jury might believe that the wind also contributed there-

to, and that if they were satisfied that if there had been

no dam whatever where the defendants' dam was in

183 1, the injury would not have happened, the defend-

ants were, in that case, still liable for the injury. The

court, however, instructed the jury that if the damage

was occasioned by great rains or by the violence of the

wind, the defendants were not liable, if the jury was sat-

isfied that the head of water raised by defendants' dam

in 1 83 1 was not high enough to flow plaintiffs' bridge
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or do damage thereto; the verdict was for the defend-

ants.

Chief Justice Weston, in deHvering the opinion of the

court, said, among other things

:

"The jury have found that the head of water raised

by the defendants' dam was not, at the period complained

of, high enough to flow the plaintiffs' bridge or do dam-

age thereto. Its erection then was a lawful act, not in

itself calculated to do any injury to the plaintiffs. Their

loss was occasioned, as the jury have found, by great

rains or by the violence of the wind. If the dam had not

raised the water to a certain height, the rain or the

wind, super-added, might not have done the damage. It

may have been one, then, of a series of causes, to which

the injury may be indirectly ascribed. Their connection,

however, was fortuitous and resulted from an extraordi-

nary and unusual state of things. Neither the rain nor

the wind was caused by the dam. The bridge had con-

tinued unimpaired for a series of years while the dam

was higher than it was when the bridge was carried

away. Such an event could not, therefore, have been

reasonably calculated upon or foreseen. It would be

carrying the doctrine of liability to a most unreasonable

length to run up a succession of causes and hold each

responsible for what followed, especially where the con-

nection was casual and unexpected, as it was here, and

where that which was attempted to be charged was in

itself innocent. The law gives no encouragement to

speculations of this sort. It rejects them at once. Hence,

the legal maxim, causa propinqiia non remota spectator.

This principle has been extensively applied in insurance
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cases * * * and it is of great practical value in set-

tling the rights and liabilities of contending parties.

Were it departed from, it would open a field of litigation

which might unexpectedly bring ruin to persons engaged

in lawful pursuits. If there had been no dam the injury

might not have happened ; but the defendants had a right

to erect it and that without being held responsible for

remote and unforeseen consequences."

And see the quotation in that case from

Thompson v. Crocker ef al., 9 Pick. 59.

Every word of this applies here. Neither of the in-

takes was the cause of the successive and long continued

floods of the Colorado beyond all precedent in the history

of the country. It may be that the presence of that canal

enabled the flood waters, by cutting it wider and deeper,

to discharge a greater quantity of water in the Salton

Basin than would have entered there but for the presence

of the canal. Admit that to be true, yet the principle

which is here decided shows that the defendant was not

liable, even though the plaintiff's work would not have

been damaged but for the presence of the canal.

Coleman v. Kansas City, St. Joseph & Council

Bluffs R. R. Co., 36 Mo. App. 476,

fully sustains the principles for which we are contend-

ing. After referring to the instructions, Id., page 481-

483, Judge Ellison, delivering the opinion, said

:

"Instruction No. 2 in effect directed the jury to find

for plaintiff, notwithstanding the storm may have been

unprecedented, if they believe that defendant's negli-

gence concurred and combined with such extraordinary
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storm in causing plaintiff's injury. It was in this re-

spect misleading. It is perhaps taken from the language

of the court in Pruitt v. R. R. Co., 62 Mo. 540. This

is general language used in stating an abstract rule of

law. Such abstract statements are dangerous material

for an instruction. Negligence, even in case of carriers,

must be a co-operative cause of the loss. * * * The

rule as to carriers invokes a stricter principle of law than

is applicable here. For the much greater reason, there-

fore, the negligence in a case like the present must have

been such as to have effectually caused the destruction

of the crops. It must have been an efficient cause though

it need not have been the sole cause. When the act of

God is the cause of a loss, it is not enough, under this

rule of law, to show that defendant has been guilty of

negligence. The case must go further and show that

such negligence was an active agent in bringing about

the loss, zmthout zvJiich agency the loss zuould not have

occurred."

We invite attention to the whole case, but particularly

36 Mo. App., pp. 491-494. We quote, however, another

passage from that opinion

:

"For even though the dam and overflow would not

have occurred at the railroad bridge, if there had been

no pilings left there, defendant is still not liable unless

the pilings would have caused a dam and overflow from

an ordinary storm." (Italics ours.)

We have shown in this case, by mathematical compu-

tations, that without any canal there, while the Salton

Sink may not have been made a lake of seventy or eighty

feet in depth, if there had been no canal there, yet from
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the volume of water from those floods pouring over in

such rapid succession, the Salton Basin would have been

filled to a depth of forty or fifty feet and the plaintiff's

property would have been thereby completely annihi-

lated just as it was.

Testimony of Hawgood, Rockwood, Follett,

Corey, and Schuyler, heretofore cited on this

point.

Another alleged ground of negligence is the want of

controlling works at the intake. What good would a

controlling works have done? We are not left to con-

jecture here. The defendant did construct a cement

headgate for the control of the water that did effectually

shut the water out, but with what result ? It overflowed

the banks of the Colorado both above and below this

headgate and this intake, cut its way again into the

Alamo canal and swept on into the Salton Sink, notwith-

standing this headgate stood firm as the rock of ages,

and is, so far as we know, standing there to this day. It

was here that it was learned that a headgate would do no

good if the waters were left to overflow the banks every-

where and the levee was built to protect it against that

overflow. The proof amounts to a demonstration that

if there had been no canal at all, or being one, if there

had been a headgate and controlling works which neither

frost nor snow, nor thunder, nor earthquake, nor tem-

pest, nor any other power known to man, could have

moved, the destruction of the plaintiff's property would

have resulted just the same.

In support of the same principle see

Proctor V. Jennings, 3d Am. Reps., 240, 242-245.
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It is said that the past experience and records were

such that the defendant should have anticipated such

things as floods in the fall of 1904, and of January and

February of 1905, and the others occurring out of the

usual flood season of the Colorado. It is here that the

published pamphlet for the year 1905, page 17, becomes

important. The ground upon which this claim is made is

this: That the maximum gauge heights in feet of the

Colorado river is shown to have been four times attained

in seasons of the year which were not the flood season.

Referring to that page they will be seen to be the follow-

ing:

1891, February 26th; 1895, January 25th; 1896, De-

cember 20th; 1905, September 22nd.

We first remark that the maximum height on Septem-

ber 22nd, 1905, is of no significance for the canal had

been constructed in October, 1904, and hence Rockwood

had not that experience. Of the other three, let it be

observed that no two of them occurred in the same

month and each was a single flood wave of short dura-

tion. Now, the fact that these maximum heights have

been known to occur out of the usual annual flood season

did not put the defendant upon notice of possible dangers

for these reasons:

/. Neither one of them resulted in any flood in the

Salton Sink at all, unless it should be said that of Feb-

ruary, 1 89 1. But, as we have before said, that did not

do so, for the flood did not come until May or June.

Durbrow, Tr. Vol. II, page 642.

On that occasion the flood mark was attained on Feb-
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ruary 23rd and continued for one day or less, the over-

flow continuing to March 2, and then the gauge went

down and remained below the flood mark continuously

until May 6th. Hence, there were only eight days in

February of a flood mark on the gauge and the flood into

Salton did not come until the summer flood following.

The next out of season flood period is January 25,

1895. This would seem to be a mistake. The maximum

in that 3^ear was January 21st, but again it will be ob-

served that the flood period, even if we assume 22 as the

overflow mark, continued for only six days, and there

were no waters flowing into the Salton Basin from any

flood during that year.

The next one noted in the printed document is De-

cember 20th, 1896, where it is said the height was 24.5.

We do not know how to account for that, for, according

to the gauge heights as given at Vol. VI, page 2204, for

1896, the gauge did not reach the flood point in the

month of December at all, nor in November, nor in Octo-

ber, nor in September, until the 29th and 30th. Those were

the only two days in which the flood mark was reached,

if we assume that it was then 2}^ instead of 22, and only

three days if we take 22. The 30th of September does

appear to have been the maximum point for that

year, but in comparing it with the flood seasons of May
and June it will be seen that the water did not last for

any length of time, and there was no flood, if we include

1905, in which it is said the maximum was reached on

November 30th

—

See Published Report, p. 17,
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and which is given as 31.3 inches. This corresponds

with the report for the whole year of 1905.

Same Volume, page 15.

But note now that the point of overflow was not

reached until the 26th of November, where it was 26.2,

and it continued over the flood point until December 3rd,

a total of five days. But this is one of the floods which

happened during the period here under consideration

and created its havoc mainly because it was only one of a

succession of floods during the same year.

2. To constitute an act of Providence it is not neces-

sary that storms or floods should be unprecedented. If

it is unusual, extraordinary and unexpected it is an act

of God, and the defendant will not be liable, although

such a thing may have occurred before.

Norris v. Savannah, Fla. & Western Ry. Co., 11

Am. St. 355, 358-359-

There it was claimed that the rise should have been

foreseen because it had occurred in 1882 and in 1883,

but the court said that that fact did not deprive the rise

of 1884 of the character of an act of God, or required

the appellee to have reconstructed its road or provided

other means of transportation across the river to meet

such emergency.

Pittsburg, Ft. Wayne & Chicago Ry. v. Gilleland

;

and same v. McClinton, 94 Am. Dec. 97, 104-

106.

The same point is decided and the diligence required

of parties concerning such matters is discussed. We
quote only this much

:
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"In effect this was to leave it to the jury to find Ha-

bihty for extraordinary floods because a second and

third happened like the first and came in rapid succession.

If all were extraordinary, as the instruction conceives,

the surprise at the second and third could not be less

than at the first, and it was still more surprising that they

should come in this rapid succession. Being extraordi-

nary, neither the second nor third could have been ex-

pected more than the first."

Hence, upon the principles of these cases, the floods

in January, February and March of 1905, and those

which occurred subsequently in December of the same

year and at other periods of 1906, were not any more to

have been anticipated because of the fact that in three

instances before, in dift'erent months, floods had occurred

outside of the usual annual overflow. Neither was the

defendant to anticipate the terrific destruction occa-

sioned by such a flood if it should happen to occur, for

none such had ever occurred before, and it would not

have been occasioned this time, but for what we have so

frequently alluded to, viz., the unprecedented, unheard

of, continuous floods.

Finally, upon this subject and upon the question of

negligence or no negligence, it is submitted that it is to

be regarded by this court and considered from the stand-

point of the parties at the time the thing was done and

not from the events which have occurred subsequently.

In

Long V. Pa. R. R. Co., 147 Pa. St. 343, 30 Am.

St. Reps. 732, 7ZS-7Z^,

which opinion was written concerning the Johnstown
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flood, the court at the pages indicated, explicitly held in

accordance with this proposition.

While on this subject we call attention to other propo-

sitions applicable alike to the question of whether an in-

junction should have been issued in this cause or the

damages awarded.

The burden of proof is upon the plaintiff and to war-

rant the court in issuing an injunction, the evidence

should be clear and explicit. We have already cited

some of the authorities to the effect that the proof must

be clear and convincing and the damage real and sub-

stantial.

Yarwood v. West L. A. Water Co., 132 Cal. 204;

Fisher v. Feige, 137 Cal. 39;

Coleman v. Le Franc, 137 Cal. 214;

Real del Monte Min. Co. v. The Pond Min. Co.,

23 Cal. 83, 85.

It is not enough for the plaintiff merely to produce a

conflict in the evidence, nor even a probability of the re-

sult. Courts of equity will not grant injunctions and un-

dertake to control the management of the business of

people or restrain them in the exercise of their property

rights unless the right to the injunction is clearly proven

by competent evidence. Merely to raise the probability

of irreparable injury is not sufficient.

McCarthy v. Bunker Hill & Sullivan Min. Co.,

147 Fed. 981, 984.
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The injunction will not be granted on conflicting evi-

dence.

Bank of Commerce v. McAfee, et ai, 34 S. E.

1037.

Nor upon doubtful evidence.

Philadelphia's App., 78 Pa. St. 2,3-

That the burden of proof is upon the plaintiff is de-

cided in

Hampson v. Adams, 57 Pac. 621, 622.

And furthermore, where the act of God concurred

with the act of the defendant, the burden of proof is upon

the plaintiff to show that the injury was not the result

of the act of God.

Morris v. Receivers, etc., R. Co., 65 Fed. 584-585.

We quote this one remark:

"Our law holds that where damages occurred from an

act of God and from the negligence of man concurring

co-incidentally, there can be no recovery unless it be af-

firmatively proved that if there had been no act of God

the damage would still have occurred."

In all legal controversies the plaintiff must prove, by

a preponderance of evidence, the facts which constitute

his cause of action, and the damages must be proven by

evidence which fairly leads to a certain conclusion. If

it is left as a mere matter of conjecture the proof is not

sufficient.

Patton V. Texas & P. R. Co., 179 U. S. 658, 45

L. Ed. 361, 364;

Waters-Pierce Oil Co. v. Van Elderen, 137 Fed.

557;
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Soremson v. Menasha P. & P. Co., 14 N. W. 446,

447-448;

Trapnel v. City of Red Oak Junction, 39 N. W.

884, 885.

Before passing this, we call attention to one kind of

evidence introduced in this case upon this subject of

negligence, which, it is submitted, is absolutely worth-

less, and indeed, is not competent at all. These were cer-

tain declarations of officers of this company offered in

this case. Among them Drury testifies that Rockwood,

when first at Salton, looking over the waters, said that

he supposed that he would have to pay for the damage

then done.

Tr. Vol. V, pages 1970, 1971.

Rockwood denies this.

Tr. Vol. IV, pages 1573 and 1574.

Another declaration claimed to be made by somebody,

either Chaffey or Rockwood, or Chaffey in the presence

of Rockwood, is that he could cut a canal that would

take the waters of the Colorado river and fill the Salton

Sink in sixty days to such an extent that it could not be

gotten out in sixty years. Of what place this statement

referred to, nobody seems to have known.

Testimony of Ferguson, Cross-examination, Vol.

II, page 426.

But these declarations are admitted apparently for

the purpose of bringing home to the defendant a knowl-

edge of the fact that there was danger from the cutting

of these canals. Of course, no one can be held respon-
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sible for things which he could not foresee, and to con-

stitute negHgence, it must be shown that the party has

knowledge of the dangers or that the facts are such that,

as a prudent person, he ought to have known.

But these declarations, it is submitted, were not ad-

missible in evidence at all. Even if Rockwood had been

the agent of the defendant, his declarations sought to be

proved against him would not have been admissible un-

der any principle. The rule admitting declarations of

an agent is founded upon the legal identity of the agent

and principal, and therefore they bind only so far as

there is authority to make them.

1st Greenleaf on Evidence, Sec. 1 14.

And see

1st Greenleaf, Sees. 108 to 114.

Whenever these declarations are merely narrative of

a past occurrence, they cannot be received as proof of

such occurrence,

1st Greenleaf, Sec. no.

The declaration of Rockwood that he supposed that he

would have to pay for this has no tendency to show that

he had knowledge, when the intake was constructed, that

any such a result would follow. On the contrary it

would seem to very strongly imply that he did not have

the knowledge.

As to the other declarations, they are only admissible

upon the theory that some such relation existed as

agency, partner, etc., and that the declarations were
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made while he was engaged in the business concerning

which they were made.

Strong's Executors v. Br^vver, 17th Ala. 706;

Walden v. Purvis, 73 Cal. 518;

20th Century Digest, Col. 1233, Sec. 867;

Walker v. Blassingame, 17th Ala. 810;

Gregory v. Walker, 38 Ala. 26;

Prater v. Frazier, nth Ark. 249.

They must be made while engaged in the performance

of an act in the scope of his authority and at the time

he is doing it and must be concerning the act he is doing.

Garfield v. Knight's Ferry, etc., Water Co., 14

Cal. 36;

Neely V. Naglee, 23 Cal. 152;

Herman Waldeck & Co. v. Pac. Coast S. S. Co.,

83Pac. 58;

Barkly v. Copeland, 86 Cal. 483, 492

;

People V. Stanley, 47 Cal. 114.

They are not admissible as the declarations of an offi-

cer of a corporation.

1st Johns on Evidence, Sees. 269-270;

American Life Ins. Co. v. Mahone, 21 Wall. 152,

22 L. Ed. 593, 595

;

Packet Co. v. Clough, 87 U. S. 528, 22 L. Ed.

406, 408

;

Fogg V. Pew, 71 Am. Dec. 662, Id. 664;

ist Natl. Bank of Lyons v. Ocean Natl. Bank,

19th Am. Rep. 181, 191-192.
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A corporation is not chargeable with knowledge of

facts merely because those facts were known to its in-

corporators or stockholders or clerk.

2nd Cook on Corporations, Sec. ^2^]
;

Davis etc. Co. v. Davis etc. Co., 20 Fed. Rep.

699, 700-701

;

Goodloe V. Godley, 21 Miss. 233;

Edwards v. Carson Water Co., 21 Nev. 469.

Of the supposed declaration of somebody that a canal

could be cut that would put in the Salton Basin the

waters of the Colorado in sixty days that could not be

gotten out in sixty years, there is this further to be said.

Nobody pretended to say to what the supposed declara-

tion was alluding. The remark itself seems to be the

statement of something to be avoided rather than to be

done. It is not in any way connected with any one

of the three intakes, and it could have had no reference

to any except the first, for that is the only one that

Chafifey had anything to do with.

Tr. Vol. II, page 426.

XIX.

The court erred in giving a decree in this

cause either for the injunction or the damages,
or any part g£ said damages.

Of course if we are correct in our contention that the

injury was not due to the negligence of the defendant,

but was the act of God, plaintiff was not entitled to any

relief against the defendant.

So, too, we maintain that if an injunction could not be
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given in this cause because of the absence of parties

materially to be affected thereby, then the bill should

have been dismissed.

It has no doubt been held in many cases, that where a

court of equity has acquired jurisdiction on some grounds

of equity jurisprudence, and at the commencement of

the suit the plaintiff was entitled to relief by injunction

or other equitable relief, but from some cause interven-

ing after the commencement of the suit, the right to

equitable relief has ceased, the court may nevertheless

proceed to award the relief to which the plaintiff may

have proved himself entitled, though that relief might

not have been of a character over which the court of

equity had jurisdiction. But we take it that the rule is

universal that where a bill is filed for equitable relief,

and other relief is sought incidentally thereto which is

not of itself within the cognizance of a court of equity,

if there is a failure of proof of the equitable cause of ac-

tion, and it is determined by the court that the complain-

ant was not at the commencement of the suit entitled to

the relief in equity, the bill will be dismissed and will not

be retained for the purpose of allowing legal relief

though plaintiff may have shown himself entitled thereto.

Dowell V. Mitchell, 105 U. S. 430, 26 L. Ed. 1142.

From this case we quote the following passage

:

"The rule is, that where a cause of action cognizable

at law is entertained in equity on the ground of some

equitable relief sought by the bill, which it turns out

cannot, for defect of proof or other reason, be granted,

the court is without jurisdiction to proceed further, and
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should dismiss the bill and remit the cause to a court

of law."

26 L. Ed. 1 143. (Many cases are cited.)

To the same effect we cite the following cases

:

Clark V. Smith, 86 N. Y. Suppl. 472, 474;

Crowell V. Young, 64 S. W. 607, 608-609
5

Dodd V. Home Mutual Ins. Co., 28 Pac. 881, 884;

Denny v. McCown, 54 Pac. 952, 954;

Dakin v. Union Pac. Ry. Co., 5 Fed. 665, 666;

Alger V. Anderson, 92 Fed. 696, 707, 712-713,

714.

In this last case the question is very thoroughly consid-

ered, and the authorities, both English and American,

reviewed.

Kessler v. Ensley Company, 123 Fed. 546, 547;

Capen v. Leach, 65 N. E. 63.

Collier v. Collier, ;^;^ Atl. 193,

goes further and holds that it is by no means a universal

rule that a court of equity will proceed to give legal re-

lief, although the equitable right may be proven, and

cites, among other cases,

Iszard v. Water Power Co., 31 N. J. Eq. 511.

And then the court makes this remark

:

"A moment's reflection will satisfy every one that

nothing could be more mischievous than the adoption of

the principle contended for by the complainant. In such

case it would only be necessary for the defendant in an

action at law to make some pretense of claim against the

plaintiff in such action of fraud, mistake, accident or

right to an account, in order to change the forum of liti-
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gation, and to compel the determination of questions

purely legal in a court of equity."

SS Atl. 194.

And where one against whom the plaintiff's demand

is purely legal is unnecessarily made a party to a suit in

equity, the legal demand cannot be enforced in that suit.

Bradford v. Long, 4 Bibb (Ky.) 225;

Fultz V. Walters, 2 Mont. 165.

The plaintiff never was entitled to an injunction in

this cause, and the bill should have been dismissed.

XX.

The evidence in the cause was insufficient to

prove the damages alleged and for which the

judgment "was given, or any item thereof, and
the evidence in the cause is too uncertain to

establish any amount of damage suffered by
the complainant.

We have already established by the authorities cited

the following propositions

:

1. The burden of proof was on plaintiff.

2. That under the conditions admittedly present in

this cause, the burden of proof was upon the plaintiff to

show that the injury was not caused by the act of God.

3. That if part of the damage was due to the negli-

gence of the defendant, and another part to the act of

God, the burden was upon the plaintiff to prove con-

vincingly what part was due to the negligence of the de-

fendant, and as to the other part, the plaintiff was not

entitled to recover.

4. That the burden is not only upon the plaintiff, but
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the facts upon which the right of action depends, must

be proven clearly and convincingl}^

5. It is not enough to establish facts from which an

inference might be drawn, but the facts must lead by

certain and definite conclusion to the inference against

the defendant.

6. In the proof of damages, the amount ascertained

must be either directly established, or the amount must

be the fair and legitimate conclusion from the evidence;

to establish facts from which either the existence of dam-

age or the amount may be conjectured, or afford the ma-

terial for a guess, does not entitle the plaintiff to recover

at all.

Under this proposition, we call the court's attention to

the following objections to the evidence

:

I. In awarding damages for the buildings, machin-

ery, etc., the evidence is mainly directed to the proof of

cost of reconstructing the buildings,

Frederickson, Tr. Vol. II, pages 572 et seq.

Drury, Vol. II, pages 558 et scq., and pages 613

to 617.

To do this, prices of material were taken which were

obtained from lumber merchants in part, within a week

before the evidence was given, although the destruction

occurred nearly two years before. The price, too, was

the price at Los Angeles.

The buildings were, many of them, of many years

standing, and the machinery had been long in use. And

it is submitted upon the evidence of the character which

we have just stated, the court could not form any certain
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and definite conclusion as to the amount of damage

suffered by the plaintiff.

2. The salt crust. To this we have already referred.

The manner of ascertaining the amount of the salt crust

did not warrant any definite conclusion as to the amount.

The compensation made was the full value as testified by

the plaintiff, of that salt crust. And that assumed, of

course, that the salt crust was utterly destroyed. And

that fact is not only not established by any clear and con-

vincing evidence, but the evidence shows beyond contro-

versy that it wasn't lost, that it was simply held in solu-

tion, and there was no reason to believe that the plain-

tiff's salt beds would have any less salt when the water

was evaporated than it had before the flood.

It is uncertain where that salt crust was located.

Testimony of Henton, Tr. Vol. II, pages 627 et

seq.;

Testimony of Sherman, Tr. Vol. II, pages 469

et seq., and page 476

;

Testimony of Drury, Tr. Vol. II, pages 598 et

seq. and 6i(^ et seq.

And see testimony of Durbrow as to the effect of the

flood of 1 89 1 on the salt.

Tr. Vol. II, pages 643, 646, 647, 661.

As to other times, from rains,

Pages 653, 654, 658.

3. It was shown by the evidence that the plaintiff

never did manufacture or take salt from any lands except

a part of section 15, and section 22, and upon this latter
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section they were mining at the time of this destruction,

and had been for a long time previous.

Now, the lands in section 22 did not belong to the

plaintiff, and yet it is not certain that in the estimate of

the 1,500,000 tons the witnesses were not including salt

crust on section 22 as well. The salt was then being

mined from section 22, which the complainant did not

own.

Tr. Vol. II, p. 629.

4. The plaintiff was not entitled to recover for the

salt in the vats.

The evidence shows that this salt was all on section

22, and that the plaintiff was not the owner of the land,

nor of any right, title nor interest in it.

See description in the bill of complaint,

Tr. Vol. I, p. 7 (Complaint in Superior Court),

id. p. 61 (Bill in Equity).

In the decree,

Tr. Vol. I, p. 136.

In the evidence.

Exhibits D to L, inclusive, Tr. Vol. V, pages 2034

et seq.;

Henton, Vol. II, page 623.

These vats were shown to consist of trenches or pits

dug in the ground, of varying lengths where the waters

naturally in the soil are all the time seeping in, and

evaporated leaving the salt, and when evaporated the

salt in the vats is left on section 22.



5. In the items of damage in the summary [Vol. I,

p. 132], is "Salt destroyed at mill."

Now a large part of that salt had been moved once,

but wasn't moved out of danger. And the expense of

protecting works and moving salt is also charged up in

the bill, and is allowed in the decree.

Tr. Vol. I, p. 132.

They took the wreckage of one of the buildings, and

built another building. And that was subsequently de-

stroyed by the flood. And we are charged with the work

of moving it, and with the buildings destroyed.

They constructed a levee which was utterly insuffi-

cient for protection, and which was itself swept away.

Drury, Tr. Vol. II, pages 601 and 602, 605 to

610;

Henton, id., pages 628 et sea.

It is the established doctrine that there is an obliga-

tion imposed upon him whose property is threatened with

destruction, or, damage is about to result either from a

tort or breach of a contract, to use all reasonable means

to make the damages as small as possible.

Mabb V. Stewart, 147 Cal. 413, 417, 419;

Warren v. Stoddart, 105 U. S. 224; 26 L. Ed.

1 1 17, 1 120;

Baird v. United States, 17 Wall. 463, 21 L. Ed.

519.

And this the plaintiff recognized, and undertook to

prove that it had discharged that burden.

Drury, Tr. Vol. II, pages 601 ct seq.;

Henton, Vol. II, p. 627.
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But it will be seen that mtich of the property was

moved twice, and yet destroyed by the subsequent rise

of the waters. From the time the waters began to threat-

en the plaintiff's works, the plaintiff could have removed

everything there was there to destroy except -the salt

crust. It has endeavored to excuse the building of an

insufficient levee by saying that they hoped by the levee

to gain time to move the property. But looking at the

evidence of the time that it took them to build the levee,

and up to the time the water reached the levee, they

could have moved everything.

Now, the point we make upon this proposition is this

:

The New Liverpool Salt Company knew everything

about that country, the Colorado river, its various over-

flows, the channels which they had made, the elevation

of the Salton Sink, that it was far below the sea level;

we say it knew all these things, or ought to have known

them better than the defendant.

The plaintiff's works were established in i88

—

Tr. Vol. II, pages 634 et seq.

It was there in the flood of 1891, and its property was

injured during that flood.

If it could have removed the property from danger

and did not, was it not, under the circumstances, guilty

of negligence, and was not the loss of much of its prop-

erty the result of its own negligence, and not that of the

defendant ?

It makes little difference, as it seems to us, which way

this question is answered.

That the plaintiff could not be held guilty of negli-

gence in not foreseeing the results that happened, we are
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not disposed to deny. But if it was not guilty of negli-

gence in not anticipating such results, then upon what

ground is the defendant to be held guilty of negligence in

not foreseeing the same thing? If proper prudence re-

quired the defendant to anticipate such havoc, then

proper prudence required plaintiff to remove this prop-

erty to a place of safety. If it built a levee which it

ought to have foreseen would prove insufficient, upon

what principle can the cost of that construction be

charged to the defendant ?

Finally, we submit that the evidence of the plaintiff

does not proceed upon the true measure of damages;

that if we are to proceed upon the theory that this was a

permanent injury, then the difference between the value

of the plaintiff's property before and after this flood,

was the true measure of damages.

And no proof was offered of any such damages.

In many cases it has been said that the rental value,

where the injury is not permanent in the sense of being

everlasting, is the true measure.

But if that measure were adopted here, then the de-

fendant could not be charged with the value of the salt,

for, as the land had no other value than for the salt upon

it, its rental value would have consisted of the carrying

on of a business which would eventually exhaust the

property of all value.
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XXI.

The court erred in giving judgment in favor

of the complainant for the sum of $456,746.23.

To this is added, that the complainant was not en-

titled to recover any damages at all in this suit.

Every question involved in this specification has al-

ready been sufficiently discussed.

XXII.

If the complainant is entitled to recover

damages at all, the court erred in awarding

damages up to the time of judgment.

The point here intended to be raised is this: If the

injury here is not permanent, and the plaintiff is entitled

to recover at all, then it was only entitled to recover dam-

ages accruing up to the time of the commencement of

the action.

XXIII.

The court erred in permitting the complain-

ant to file the several supplemental bills herein.

Upon this proposition we desire to add nothing fur-

ther than this:

1. If the plaintiff was not entitled to the injunction

from the beginning, it was not entitled to recover any

damages, and as the supplemental bills deal with nothing

but additional damages, they ought not to have been al-

lowed.

2. If the plaintiff was entitled to recover damages

only up to the time of the commencement of the suit, it
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was not entitled to file these supplemental bills, nor to

recover in accordance with them after they were filed.

It is respectfully submitted that because of the errors

aforesaid, the decree herein ought to be reversed, with

directions to the court below to dismiss the bill.

J. S. Chapman,

E. A. Meserve,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

Following is a brief statement of the facts

:

In November, 1904, and for a long time prior to that

date, complainant (appellee) was the owner of lands

in Salton Basin described as follows:

Sections eleven (11), fifteen (15) and twenty-three

(23), and the northeast qnarter of the northwest quarter

of section fourteen (14), and the northeast quarter of

the northeast quarter of section fourteen (14), all in

township eight (8) south, range ten (10) east, San



Bernardino Meridian, in the County of Riverside, State

of California; and was the owner of a mill, warehouse,

railroad track and other imi)rovements used by it in

gathering and refining salt, in which business it was

at that time engaged. The lands owned by it contained

very extensive deposits of marketable salt.

Long prior to November, 1904, defendant constructed

a canal leading from Colorado River to Imperial Valley.

Its first intake was protected by a gate, which was con-

structed under the supervision of one Chaffee, who was

then in charge of the construction of its works. This

gate was placed at what is described in the record as

intake No. 1. Later, probably in the early part of 1904,

it connected its canal with the river by a second intake.

This second intake was never protected by any gate or

headworks and, with the exception of temporary brush

dams, remained open from the time it was cut until

all of complainant's property was destroyed. In Octo-

ber, 1904, a third intake was cut connecting the canal

with the river, and no headgate or works were con-

structed to control the flow of water into this intake

until long after the destruction of complainant's

property. All of these intakes were cut in low allu-

vial soil, and nothing whatever was done, so far as in-

takes 2 and 3 were concerned, to prevent the current

cutting and widening the openings, as might naturally

and inevitably have been expected to be the result

without protecting headworks.

So far as the record discloses, there was no flood in

Salton Sink—after the subsidence of what is known as



the 1891 flood—up to October, 1904, when water began

to collect there. The water continued to accumulate

until the latter part of 1905, and, indeed, continued to

increase after that date, but by October, 1905. it had

accumulated to such an extent as to destroy all of com-

plainant's improvements and salt and make it impossi-

ble longer for it to carry on its operations.

According to the testimony of the experts who specu-

lated upon the subject it will require twenty years or

more for the water to evaporate from Salton Sink.

Colorado River almost invariably overflows its banks

during what is known as the summer flood, which ordi-

narily lasts during portions of the months of May,

June and July. However, some of the largest floods

which ever occurred happened in the spring of the

year. The gauge records, which were offered in evi-

dence, show that it is quite impossible to say with any

degree of certainty when high water will occur. Indeed,

it Ijas occurred—looking at the record for twenty years

—

in almost every month of the year; that is to say, not

in every month of every year, but for the period covered

by the gauge record, there is hardly a month of the

twelve in which exceedingly high water has not pre-

vailed during one or more years.

The flood season of 1904 was of very short duration,

and that year was a period of comparatively low water.

1903 was a year of comparatively high water, but no

water appeared in Salton Sink during that year.



As has been said, intakes 2 and 3 were not cut until

1904. Intake No. 1 was cut before 1903 and was in use

during that year, but was protected by a headgate.

There is no claim or pretense that any of the flood

waters of 1904 reached Salton Sink.

That a great deal of water was diverted from Colo-

rado River through the intakes of defendant in 1904

and carried through defendant's canal and eventually

discharged so as to flow into Salton Sink, and that

this continued through 1905, is practically not denied.

It is testified positively, and we may fairly say is conclu-

sively shown, and is not denied with any show of sin-

cerity, that the water which reached the salt works up

to October, 1905, and worked the destruction of com-

plainant's property, flowed into the intakes and through

the canal of defendant.

The present suit was commenced in the Superior Court

of California, for the County of Riverside, by the filing

of a complaint which alleged, in substance, that plaintiff

was the owner of a certain large tract of land in said

county upon which plaintiff was engaged in the business

of mining and refining salt, and upon which was a mill

and various buildings used in said business; that the

business carried on was large and extensive, and that

plaintiff was engaged in mining, refining and selling

many thousand tons of salt yearly; that certain por-

tions of the land were of great value by reason of having

upon them large deposits of salt; that the Colorado

River did not naturally flow upon or near the said lands

of plaintiff; that defendant for more than one year had



been diverting the water of the Colorado River and dis-

tributing it by canals, and had constructed upon said

river three intakes for that purpose and was thereby

diverting from 800 to 3,000 cubic feet per second to such

places; that the water, except such as is absorbed and

evaporated, naturally finds its way to plaintiff's said

lands; that defendant, for more than six months had

been, and then was, diverting said water in such man-

ner and quantity that from 300 to 500 cubic feet per

second passed through defendant's canals in excess of

the amount absorbed or evaporated or used, with the

result that for more than three months prior to the filing

of said complaint, said flow of from 300 to 500 cubic feet

per second had been continuously wasting from the canal

system of the defendant and pouring into the Salton

Sink and upon the lands of plaintiff, and had produced

in said sink a lake of over 20 miles in length and several

miles in width, and had covered various portions of the

lands of plaintiff, and would extend stiil further but for

the dikes built by plaintiff ; that the amount of water in

said lake, at the time of the filing of said complaint, was

constantly increasing and, unless checked, would in a

short time overflow the dikes and flood more lands of

the plaintiff, and particularly the lands about plaintiff's

buildings and endanger their security by rendering their

foundations insecure; that many thousands of tons of

salt piled by plaintiff upon the ground would be de-

stroyed and ruined; that said waste water carried with

it large quantities of sand, silt and mud, and had already

damaged the salt naturally on said lands of plaintiff,

and that said damage was constantly being increased;



that plaintiff was the owner of a railroad running from

its mill for a distance of over three miles ; that said rail-

road had been entirely covered by the overflow of said

waste waters, and that, by reason of the continued exist-

ence of said lake, the deposit of said silt and mud there-

on was constantly increasing; that waste water in very

large quantities was, at the time of the filing of said com-

plaint, running into said lake and increasing the size

thereof, and there was danger that all the property of

plaintiff would be covered by water and its business de-

stroyed ; that if the defendant should be restrained from

diverting the waters of the Colorado River into said lake,

the lake would evaporate and disappear; that otherwise

plaintiff would suffer great and irreparable injury by

the destruction of its property and of its business; that

the flooding and overflow of the lands of plaintiff was

caused by the diversion by defendant of water from the

Colorado River in excess of the amount required for any

useful pur})ose whatever, and that by a continuance of

said waste, a flood would result from the continued

diversion by defendant of the waters of the Colorado

River; that defendant in the construction of its intakes

had made no provision whatsoever for the control or

regulation of the amount of water diverted by it into

said intakes and canals, and that, unless defendant were

required to construct headgates for controlling the

amount of water flowing into its canals, the water would

continue to flow through said canals in amounts greatly

in excess of that required for any proper use and would

flow into the said lake and upon the lands of plaintiff and



destroy and ruin the property and business of plaintiff;

tliat defendant, unless restrained, would continue to

divert large quantities of water and flood the lands of

plaintiff and thereby destroy its property and business.

Damages in the sum of $87,000 were specified as already

sustained by plaintiff, and there was a prayer for an

injunction, for said damages and for general relief

(Trans., Vol. I, pages 7 to 16).

The case of

McLaughlin v. Del Re, 64 Cal. 472,

in the decision of which Judge Ross participated, is

sufficient authority for the above complaint in the State

Court. It was held that

''The action is in equity, the main purpose of it

being to obtain a final decree restraining the con-

tinuance or repetition of the trespasses alleged,

which are of a character, as claimed, to produce ir-

reparable injury."

It was accordingly held that the Court, and not a jury,

must determine the incidental issue as to damages.

The present case was, upon petition of defendant, re-

moved into the Circuit Court for the Southern District

of California. There the plaintiff modified the form of

the complaint in order to comply with the formal re-

quirements of the equity rules. For example, the plead-

ing was designated as a "bill in equity"; it was directed

''To the Justices of the Circuit Court" etc.; its phrase-

ology was generally adapted to the chancery practice,

and, most important, answer under oath was expressly

waived (Trans., Vol. I, pages 61 to 72). This remodelled



bill of complaint was filed in the Circuit Court on June

16, 1905.

On January 29, 1906, complainant filed a supplemental

bill showing that, by reason of the continuance and in-

crease in the amount of flood, additional damage in the

sum of $180,000 had been done to the lands and salt

deposits of complainant, and, further, that the building,

sheds, mill and machinery of complainant had been

utterly destroyed, to complainant's further damage in

the sum of $30,000 (Trans., Vol. I, pages 79 to 80).

On December 19, 1907, complainant filed an amend-

ment to the supplemental bill of complaint, substituting

$325,000 for $180,000 as the additional damage to the

lands and salt deposits, and substituting $75,000 in place

of $30,000 as the damage to sheds, mill and machinery of

the complainant (Trans., Vol. I, pages 126-127).

The answer upon which defendant based its defense

consists principally of a denial of responsibility for the

flooding of complainant's lands (Trans., Vol. 1, pages

102 to 122).

After a most protracted hearing and elaborate argu-

ment, the Court found that the principal questions in the

case were questions of fact ; that the waters which over-

flowed complainant's lands and destroyed its property

were largely, if not entirely, the waters diverted from

the Colorado River through defendant's intakes; that

defendant was negligent, among other respects, in not

selecting proper places for said intakes, and in not pro-

viding suitable headgates to control the flow of water



throngh the intakes, and that such negligence was the

direct and proximate cause of the overflow of complain-

ant's lands and the resulting loss of its property, and

held that complainant was entitled to a perpetual injunc-

tion against the continuance of the overflow. Damages

were assessed in the sum of $456,746.23 for the injuries

theretofore sustained by complainant (Trans., Vol. I,

pages 128 to 132).

The above brief statement of the simple facts is per-

haps sufficient to enable the Court to decide the few

uncomplicated questions of law that are raised by ap-

pellant; but to comprehend and realize the magnitude of

the negligence of the defendant corporation, it will be

necessary for the Court to study carefully each of the

twenty-four hundred odd pages of the record.

A dramatic summary of the case may be found in the

message of the President of the United States relative

to the overflow of the Colorado River caused by the

appellant (Trans., Vol. V, pages 2086 to 2099).

ARGUMENT.

UNDER THE CASE STATED BY THE BILL AND FOUND BY THE

COURT, A COURT OF EQUITY HAS JURISDICTION TO GRANT

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.

In the present case, there are many grounds, upon any

one of which equity is accustomed to grant injunctions.

The real property of complainant was threatened with

irreparable injury. Its salt mines were in process of

absolute destruction; its business was being ruined, and
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for the loss of profit there could be no adequate com-

pensation at law. Further, the wrongs and injuries be-

ing inflicted were continuous and uninterrupted, and if

not restrained would require plaintiff to bring successive

actions at law in order to prevent the wrong from ripen-

ing by prescription into a right. We do not understand

counsel for appellant to contend that, at the time of the

filing of the bill, there was any lack of equity jurisdiction

to issue an injunction.

Pomerotj, 3rd Ed., Sees. 138, 1356-1357.

In

Story's Equity, Section 927,

it is well said:

"Cases of a nature, calling for the like remedial

interposition of courts of equity are, the obstruction

of water courses, the diversion of streams from
mills, the hack floivage on mills, and the pulling

down of the banks of rivers, and thereby exposing

adjacent lands to inundation, or adjacent mills to

destruction."

The principal ground upon which this Court is asked

to reverse the decision of the Circuit Court is that dam-

ages cannot be given in a suit in equity in the federal

Courts where the jurisdiction has attached by reason of

the right to injunctive relief. The contention, briefly

stated, is that "legal and equitable causes cannot be

blended"; that "the constitution of tlie United States

" secures the right of trial by jury in ai] actions at law";

that "where there is a plain, adequate and complete

" remedy at law, the plaintiff must * * * proceed

" at law because the defendant has a constitutional right
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** to trial by jury" and so on (Brief of Appellant, pages

62 to 75).

The general rule stated by counsel may well be con-

ceded. But the point to be determined here is whether

a court of equity, having acquired jurisdiction of the

controversy by reason of the necessity for injunctive

relief, may not, in order to do complete justice between

the parties and put an end to the controversy, assess the

damages that have been sustained by reason of the

wrongs the continuance of which is to be enjoined. Is

the Court, after having heard and determined the issues

in the case, to send the plaintiff out of Court with only

a portion of the relief to which he is entitled and jjut

upon him the necessity of re-litigating the case at law?

Such is not the practice of courts of equity.

In

Jesus College v. Bloom, 3 Atkins 262, 263,

Lord Chancellor Hardwick said:

"So, in bills for injunctions, the court will make
a complete decree, and give the party a satisfaction,

and not oblige him to bring an action at law, as well

as a bill here. '

'

And speaking of compensatory damages in cases where

an injunction is prayed, he says, '4t is the common

case". That was in the year 1745.

Winslow V. Nayson, 113 Mass. 411,

was a bill in equity to prevent a threatened trespass

upon land. Mr. Justice Gray, then Chief Justice of

Massachusetts, than whom there has been no Judge

better acquainted with, or more adherent to, authority,
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in delivering the unanimous judgment of the Supreme

Court of that State, said (page 421) :

"And the court having obtained jurisdiction in

equity of the case for tliis purpose, may properly,

in order to prevent multiplicity of suits and to do
complete justice between the parties, under the

prayer for general relief, also award damages for

the injury already done by the defendants to the

plaintiffs' premises instead of obliging them to

bring a separate action at law therefor," citing

cases.

In

Hopkins v. Grimshaw, 165 U. S. 342; 41 L. Ed.

739,

Mr. Justice Gray declared the judgment of the Supreme

Court to the same effect.

In

Omaha Horse Ry. Co. v. Cable Tramway Co., 32

Fed. 727,

Mr. Justice Brewer, in a suit for an injunction against

the unlawful construction of a street railway, directed

an assessment of the damages sustained by complainant

on the theory that

'^ inasmuch as the prayer for relief contains also the

general prayer for other and further relief, it is

familiar law that the court may award such other

relief as is justified by tlie facts stated in the bill,

and may fairly have been considered within the con-

templation of the parties in the litigation."

In
Woodbury v. Marblehead Water Co., 15 N. E. 282,

which was a bill to restrain a water company from tres-

passing on plaintiff's land, Mr. Justice Holmes, speak-
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ing for the Supreme Court of Massachusetts, ordered an

assessment of damages although the ground for issuing

an injunction had been removed since the filing of the

bill.

In JJ. S. V. Guglard, 79 Fed. 21, it is said

:

"Where a bill shows cause for equitable relief by
injunction to stay destructive and continuous tres-

pass in the nature of waste, the court, to prevent

another suit, will decree an account and satisfaction

for the injuries already done. (Citing cases.) And
when jurisdiction is thus acquired, the fact that

items of account are all on one side does not affect

the rule. In some of the cases cited above there was
no mutuality in the accounts. As already stated,

complainant's right to an injunction is sufficient to

sustain the jurisdiction of a court of equity, and, in

the exercise of such jurisdiction, the court will grant

all the relief which the circumstances of the case

require. '

'

In

High on Injunctions, 2nd Ed., Section 669,

the rule is stated to be that

"Wliere, therefore, a proper case is presented for

an injunction, an account of the waste already com-
mitted and a decree for damages may be had in the

injunction suit. Indeed, this would seem to be but

the exercise of the ordinary prerogative of equity,

that when one resorts to a court of equity for one

purpose, his case will be retained until the entire

matter is disposed of, upon the principle that the

court having jurisdiction of the cause for one pur-

pose will retain it to give general and complete re-

lief, thereby preventing a multiplicity of suits.
'

'
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«

In

Pomeroy's Equity Jurisprudence, Sections 236

and 237,

the cases are reviewed and the rule stated that

"Equity therefore assumed a jurisdiction to grant

an injunction restraining the commission of actual

or threatened waste; and having obtained jurisdic-

tion for the purpose of awarding this special relief,

which, in many instances, is not complete, the court

will retain the cause, and decree full and final re-

lief, including damages, and when necessary, an

abatement of whatever creates the waste or causes

the nuisance."

And in 16 Cyc. 109, it is said that

''Under a variety of circumstances the court for

the same reason, and as incidental to equitable re-

lief, may order the payment of money, although a

separate action at law would lie therefor. Thus the

jurisdiction of equity having been invoked to re-

strain the further commission of wrongful acts,

damages already suffered will quite generally be

aivarded."

In
Whipple V. Village of Fair Haven, 21 Atl. (Vt.)

533,

a suit to restrain town trustees from flooding the land

of complainant, the court said:

''The defendant also claims that the orators have

an adequate remedy at law and therefore cannot

resort to chancery. The case of Field v. West
Orange, 36 N. J. Eq. 118, above referred to, which

is very much like this case in its facts, is full author-

ity for granting the injunction prayed for ; and it is

a familiar rule that, when the court of chancery has

jurisdiction of a case for one purpose it will retain
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it for all other purposes, and dispose of the ivhole

matter. And this is a salutary rule for it prevents
litigation, and to that end is for the public good."
The Court proceeded to assess damages.

In

Garvey v. Long Island R. R. Co., 159 N. Y. 323,

the contention of appellant, bj^ way of amusing contract

to the contention of appellant here, was that *Hhe judg-

''ment is fatally inconsistent in that it awards no dam-
" ages, but, nevertheless, grants an injunction" (page

327), but the Court said:

"A court of equity has jurisdiction of an action

to restrain the commission of a continuing trespass,

because the injunction prevents a multiplicity of

actions at law, which is a grievance to the parties

and a burden upon the public" (citing cases).
'

' While in such an action the court may also render
judgment for the damages already sustained, that

relief is merely incidental and is not an essential

part of the main cause of action for a permanent
injunction. '

'

In

Martin v. Price, L. R. 1 Ch. 277 (1894),

the order of the Court of Appeal was (see page 285)

:

*'To grant an injunction in the ordinary form to

restrain the defendant from continuing to build

higher than the old building above the level of the

street, to the injury of the plaintiff, and to grant an
inquiry by the official referee as to the damages
sustained by the plaintiff by reason of the building

already erected beyond that height, and to order the

defendant to pay such damages."
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We have carefully examined all the cases cited by

appellant upon this point. The only case that to our

mind has the slightest bearing is that of

Indian Land S Trust Co. v. Shoenfelt, 135 Fed.

484.

There it was held that

"A court of equity has no jurisdiction to enjoin

a single trespass upon agricultural land where the

probable injury is not shown to be destructive of

any part of the real property or irremediable, and

an action at law for damages will afford adequate

satisfaction.
'

'

Consequently, inasmuch as the bill showed no grounds

for injunctive relief, it was not retained for the mere

purpose of giving damages.

Appellant cites (Brief, page 63) 1 Beach Modern

Equity, Sections 5-6. The effect of these sections is

that the distinction between legal and equitable modes

of proceeding is maintained in the Federal Courts. We
do not dispute the general proposition there laid down.

But, to show how inapplicable the above mentioned gen-

eral rule is to the facts of the present case, it is only

necessary to turn to Section 91 of the same treatise.

There it is said:

"Upon a bill for an injunction to i)revent a threat-

ened trespass, the court may, under a prayer for

general relief and in order to avoid a multiplicity

of suits, award damages for the injury done hy such

trespass before the injunction teas issued.''
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JVEITHEE THE MEXICAN COMPANY NOR THE IMPEKIAL WATER

COMPANIES WERE INDISPENSABLE PARTIES DEFENDANT.

The companies that appellant contends were indis-

pensable parties defendant were,

First. A corporation called the '' Mexican Company",

organized by the stockholders of the California Develop-

ment Company for the express and admitted purpose of

carrying out the will of the California Development

Company in transacting its business and owning lands

in Mexico, the laws of which forbid the owning of lands

by foreign corporations;

Second. Certain corporations called "Imperial Water

Company Nos. 1, 2, 3", and so on, formed by the same

stockholders (Appellant's Brief, pages 76-92).

The purpose of these companies was to systematize

the work of distribution of the water after diversion.

These subsidiary Imperial Water Companies made con-

tracts (Trans., Vol. I, pages 226-249) with the Mexican

Company for a certain amount of water a year for each

share of stock to be sold by the California Development

Company.

Concerning the relation of the defendant to the so-

called Mexican Company—which defendant claims

should have been formally made a party defendant here

—Mr. Meserve, in his Washington statement, said

(Trans., p. 2151)—and we may say in passing that it is

only necessary to accept the statements of Mr. Meserve

in order to conclusively show the negligence of defend-

ant and its responsibility for the damage worked to

complainant

:
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" It was the purpose of the California Development

'' Company to purchase these lands direct, but it was

" found that, under the laws of the Republic of Mexico,

" American citizens could not buy land within a certain

" prohibited zone, except by special permission of the

" President of the Republic of Mexico. Accordingly

" there was organized a Mexican Company, having a

" small capital stock, the same being known as La So-

'' ciedad de Irrigacion y Terrenos de Baja California

'* (Sociedad Anonima), always referred to as 'the

" Mexican Company'. The title to the 100,000-acre

'
' strip and to the rights to the channel of the Salton or

" Carter River (properly the Alamo River), was vested

" in this Mexican Company, all of the stock, with the

'' knowledge of the authorities of Mexico, being owned

" by the California Development Company, the directors

" of the Mexican Company being all American citizens,

*' there being, however, a Mexican citizen, resident of

'

' Los Angeles retained by requirement as secretary, and

" on whom all papers are served by the Mexican Gov-

" ernment.

"

*' About this time, the California Development Com-

" pany, in the name of the Mexican Company, was

" granted by the Republic of Mexico a concession by

*' which it was permitted to take 10,000 second feet of

" water from the Colorado River, in Mexico, with the

'' right to carry one-half of that water and such water

" as was delivered to it at the boundary line by the

'* California Development Company, back into the

" United States; the other one-half of all such waters
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"to be devoted primarily to the irrigation of lands in

" Lower California, with permission, however, to carry

" into California all of that one-half of the water which

" was not needed for use in Mexico." (Trans., pp.

2153-2154.)

The Imperial Water Companies—some times referred

to in the record as mutual water companies—were

organized by the defendant for the purpose of promot-

ing its enterprise. At the time the contracts were made

with the mutual water companies, which contracts are

claimed to make them necessary parties defendant here,

they, the mutual water companies, were absolutely under

the control of the defendant. In effect, the defendant

was contracting with itself. (Trans., pp. 1172-1173.)

It is to be borne in mind that the bill of complaint

asks no relief against any except the defendant, Cali-

fornia Development Company, and that the decree does

not purport to affect or bind the rights of any other

company. The case does not in any respect involve the

construction of any contract or property rights, or, in

fact, any other rights of any person or corporation.

The only question that the Circuit Court had to consider,

and the only question that exists in the case is whether

or not defendant, California Development Company, is

responsible for the flooding of complainant's land and

the destruction of its mines and business. It is the case

of a pure tort, in the determination of which it is only

necessary to consider whether the defendant has been

guilty of doing this injury to complainant. As in the

case of all otlier torts, the liability of the tort-feasors
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is joint and several, and one or all, or any number, may

be sued, at the election of the i3erson injured.

Lovejoy v. Murray, 3 Wall. 1, 18 L. Ed. 129.

If it were conceded that these other companies were

themselves equally responsible for the injury to com-

plainant, appellant cannot object that they were not

joined as parties, for appellant is, nevertheless, liable

to the whole extent of the injury in the perpetration of

which it has unlawfully participated.

If a hundred wrong-doers are concertedly engaged in

casting stones at the windows of my place of business,

and if they give evidence of their intent to continue their

wrong-doing, to the injury of my property and business,

can it be that I must learn the identity of each and every

one of them and join them all as defendants before a

court of equity will grant protection 1 Is it possible that,

if a dozen men are engaged in casting water upon my
land and flooding my mill, I cannot get equitable relief

against any unless I shall succeed in suing all? Un-

doubtedly, under such circumstances, every wrong-doer

is a proper party defendant to any proceeding whether

at law or in equity, but that they are all necessary

parties is a proposition too monstrous to be contem-

plated.

In the language of Mr. Chief Justice Marshall in

Oshorn v. Bank of U. S., 9 Wlieaton 739, 843,

6 L. Ed. 204, 229,

since the defendant

"is responsible for his own act, to the full extent of

the injury, why should not the preventive power of
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the court also be applied to him? Why may it not
restrain him from the commission of the wrong,
which it would punish him for committing?"

And again:

"Now, if the party before the court would be re-

sponsible for the whole injury, why may he not be
restrained from its commission, if no other party
can be brought before the court?"

It is the rule in equity, as at law, that in actions

ex delicto tort-feasors need not be joined.

In

Boyd V. Gill, 19 Fed. 145-146,

Judge Wallace and Judge Brown said:

"The right of action in such a case arises ex

delicto and in equity as well as at law the tort may
be treated as several as well as joint," citing cases.

In
Hopkins v. Oxley Stave Co., 83 Fed. 912,

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit held,

in a suit to restrain tortious acts, it was said

:

"The rule is as well settled in equity as it is at

law, that, where the right of action arises ex delicto,

the tort may be treated as joint or several, at the

election of the injured party, and that he may, at

his option, sue either one or more of the joint

wrong-doers" (citing cases). "We perceive no rea-

son, therefore, why the case was not properly pro-

ceeded with against the appellants, although nu-

merous other persons were concerned in the alleged

combination or conspiracy. '

'
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In

Rocky Mountain Bell Telephone Co. v. Montana

Federation of Labor, 156 Fed. 809,

Judge Hunt held the same thing.

The fact that the Mexican Company and the various

Imperial Water Companies had contracts with the Cal-

ifornia Development Comj^any for the purchase of

water, cannot affect the question. There is no issue as

to these contracts or the construction of them. There is

no attempt to decide anything with reference to them.

If it be the case that the California Development Com-

pany cannot perform its contracts with these subsidiary

companies without violating the property rights of com-

plainant, then that result would follow from its own un-

lawful acts, and not from any direct effect of the decree.

If it were necessary to join these subsidiary companies

as defendants, it would inevitably follow that all com-

panies and persons, however numerous, must be joined

in any suit to restrain a wrong-doer from trespassing

upon property, if the suggestion be made that the par-

ticular defendant sued cannot perform his contracts with

third persons without trespassing upon the property of

complainant.

The existence of a rule of procedure so absurd and

obstructive was repudiated in

Marker v. Marker, 9 Hare 1.

There a tenant, under a claim, of right (and it is to he

noticed that in the present case there is no claim of right

on the part of defendant to flood complainant's lands)
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had sold to a stranger a large quantity of timber still

uncut and standing on the premises occupied by him

A bill was subsequently filed to restrain the vendor

from cutting the timber, in order that he might fulfill his

contract of sale, but without making the purchaser a

party. On objection for want of parties, the Court held

that the purchaser was not a necessary party (See

page 16).

Judge Sawyer says that ''this case determines the

principle".

See

Cole Silver Mining Co. v. Virginia, etc. Water Co.,

Fed. Case No. 2989, 1 Sawyer, 470.

See also

Kaukauna Water Potver Co. v. Green Bay, etc.

Co., 44 N. W. 638.

In

Peoples Tel. S Tel. Co. v. East Tennessee Tel. Co.,

103 Fed. 213,

an injunction was asked against the defendant to re-

strain it from making connections for its patrons with

the lines of the plaintiff company. It was objected that

the patrons were necessary parties. The Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, in reply to this objec-

tion said: ^

''Besides, the defendant is, if the facts be as they

appear on this motion, a trespasser, and has no sub-

stantial ground for claiming that co-trespassers

should be joined with it. The complainant may, if

it sees fit, refrain from pursuing them. It owes no
duty to the defendant to do so."
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In
New York Phonograph Co. v. Jones, 123 Fed. 197,

which was a suit for an injunction, it was held, upon an

objection for defect of necessary parties, that

"The rule is that a person receiving injury from

the tortious acts of others has a remedy against one

or all of the wrong-doers, and may enforce that

remedy against one or all at his election."

It is submitted that there is no rule of administration

requiring tort-feasors to be joined in equity any more

than at law.

But there is another principle especially applicable to

this Court of limited jurisdiction. Neither the Mexican

Company nor any of the various Imperial Water Com-

panies could be brought into the Circuit Court without

defeating the jurisdiction. The Mexican Company is, as

its name denotes, a Mexican corporation, and the various

Imperial Water Companies are California corporations.

Revised Statute, Section 737, provides:

"When there are several defendants in any suit

at law or in equity, and one or more of them are

neither inhabitants of nor found within the district

in which the suit is brought, and do not voluntarily

appear, the court may entertain jurisdiction, and

proceed to the trial and adjudication of the suit

between the parties who are projierly before it; but

the judgment or decree rendered therein shall not

conclude or prejudice other parties not regularly

served with process nor voluntarily appearing to

answer; and non-joinder of parties who are not in-

habitants of nor found within the district as afore-

said shall not constitute matter of abatement or

objection to the suit."
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And the 47th Equity Rule further provides:

"In all cases where it shall appear to the court

that persons, who might otherwise be deemed neces-

sary or proper parties to the suit, cannot be made
parties by reason of their being out of the jurisdic-

tion of the court, or incapable otherwise of being

made parties, or because their joinder would oust

the jurisdiction of the court as to the parties before

the court, the court may in their discretion proceed

in the cause without making such persons parties;

and in such cases the decree shall be without preju-

dice to the rights of the absent parties."

Most clearly, even if it could be held that the sub*

sidiary companies were under the general rules of equity

procedure necessary parties with respect to the subject

matter of the present suit, yet they cannot be deemed

indispensable parties. Nothing is alleged against them;

nothing is asked from them. No property, contract or

other rights of theirs are construed or determined.

In

Cole Silver Mining Co. v. Virginia, etc. Water Co.,

Fed. Case No. 2989; 1 Sawyer 470,

there ivere contracts and property rights to he con-

strued, for the trespass ivas there committed under a

claim of right. Nevertheless, Judge Sawyer held:

''Upon the omission of Glauber the court would
have jurisdiction over all the other parties, and
their rights as against the complainant, may be

determined without his presence. The acts com-
plained of are tortious, and the cause of action is

several, as well as joint. I do not think Glauber an
indispensable party to the action. While the decree

will finally settle the rights of the parties before the

court, it will not bind him, and he may still litigate
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his claim with the complainaut in another action,

or he may voluntarily appear in this ; for it is not

to be presumed that he is in fact ignorant of the

pendency of the suit. If Glauber is an indispens-

able party, it will be impossible for the court to re-

strain the commission of waste; the working or de-

struction of a mine; the diversion of water; the

flooding of an upper riparian proprietor; or the

erection or continuation of any nuisance, however
offensive, dangerous, or destructive to the rights

of another, when the wrong-doer has an associate or

confederate residing out of the jurisdiction of the

court, or when the tort-feasor himself keeps beyond
the jurisdiction of the court, and performs the tor-

tious acts through his agents and servants. It is

notorious, that in the mining regions of Nevada,

Oregon and California, and all the mining terri-

tories, many trespasses and wrongs of the kind men-
tioned, requiring the almost daily interposition of

the courts, are perpetrated by parties having as-

sociates residing in other states. To deny relief

against wrong-doers in such cases in this circuit, on
account of the absence of one tort-feasor, would be

to paralyze the right arm of the court in those cases

wherein its effectual interposition is most impera-

tively demanded, and most frequently invoked. Let

it be once established that the courts cannot inter-

fere, or grant relief in the absence of one of the

joint tort-feasors, and the mining interests of all

the gold and silver producing states will, thereafter,

be at the mercy of any bad men, who, relying upon
a confederate beyond the jurisdiction of the court

to enable them to evade all redress for injuries com-
mitted, may choose to combine for the purpose of

wrongfully availing themselves of the labors and
discoveries of others. In my judgment, in such

cases it would be far more equitable to compel the

absent tort-feasor to appear and defend his right,

or submit to any inconvenience that may incident-

ally result from tlie execution of any decree entered

against his co-trespassers, rather than deny all re-
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dress, no matter how grievous, to the injured party,

because one of the wrong-doers withdraws and keeps

himself beyond the jurisdiction of the court. In the

one case the absent party may appear and have his

rights adjudicated, if he so desires, and justice will

be awarded to all ; while in the other, the most griev-

ous injuries must necessarily go wholly unredressed,

*'For example, can the courts of the United States

properly refuse to redress clearly manifest injuries

to its own citizens, by restraining the working of a

gold or silver mine, waste, or the erection or con-

tinuance of a nuisance, because a citizen of Great
Britain, residing in England, is interested in the

profits of the wrong, or himself, safe in his retreat

beyond the jurisdiction of the court, perpetrates it

by means of his agents, servants and employees?

The court, in such instances, must, from the neces-

sity of the case, assume jurisdiction and proceed to

a decree as to the parties before it, or sit helplessly

by and permit an absolute failure of justice, by
suffering our ovth citizens to be ruined with impun-
ity by irresponsible, non-resident wrong-doers, or by
parties in collusion with them.

''On this principle of preventing a failure of jus-

tice, and even on grounds of convenience, courts of

equity have often dispensed with parties interested

in and aifected by the suit, in cases calling far less

loudly for such action, than the class of cases to

which this belongs. Smith v. Hibernian Mine Co.,

1 Schoales & L. 240, 241 ; Rogers v. Linton, Bunb. 200,

201; Attorney General v. Baliol College, 9 Mod. 409;

Thompson v. Topham, 1 Younge & J. 556; Cockburn
V. Thompson, 16 Ves. 326; Williams v. Whinyates,

2 Brown, Ch. 399; Wallworth v. Holt, 4 Mylne & C.

635, 636; Taylor v. Salmon, Id. 141, 142; Harvey v.

Harvey, 4 Beav. 220-222; Reynoldson v. Perkins,

2 Amb. 565.

''In my apprehension, it is no good answer to say,

that the injured party may have his remedy in the

state courts, where service may be had on non-resi-
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dent defendants by publication of summons. The
constitution and the laws entitle parties in certain

cases to seek redress in the national courts, and the

class of cases mentioned, is the very one in which
the remedy in the national courts is most valued by
litigants, and in this circuit most frequently sought.

Besides, it is a mere accident if the state laws admit
of acquiring jurisdiction in this mode. I doubt
w^hether many of the states, if any, east of the

Rocky Mountains, authorize a publication of sum-
mons at all, in that class of cases. If they do, when
an action is commenced in a state court by a citizen

of the state, and all the defendants are citizens of

another state or foreigners, it is their absolute right

to have a transfer to the national courts, and a
transfer by the defendants served in the state would
oust the jurisdiction, if any defendant should be a
non-resident; for, in the national courts service by
publication couid not be recognized. Thus there

would still be an evasion of the remedy and a fail-

ure of justice.

"To my mind there is an obvious distinction be-

tween torts of the class to which this action belongs,

wherein the injury and right of action are several

as well as joint; and actions of partition, for the

canceling of contracts, settlement of partnership
affairs, and the like, wherein the decree is not bind-

ing even on the parties before the court in the ab-

sence of a party in interest. Such were the cases of

Shields v. Barrow, 17 How. (58 U. S.) 139, and
Barney v. Baltimore City, 6 Wall. (73 U. S.) 280.

"In Marker v. Marker, a tenant under a claim of

right, had sold to a stranger a large quantity of

timber still uncut and standing on the premises oc-

cupied by him. A bill was subsequently filed to re-

strain the vendor from cutting the timber, in order
that he might fulfill his contract of sale, but without
making the purchaser a party. On objection for

want of parties, the court held that the purchaser
was not an indispensable party. 9 Hare 1, 5, 12,
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16. This case determines the principle, for the de-

cree must necessarily have affected the rights of the

purchaser of the timber.

"Had Glauber's name been omitted there could

have been no question as to jurisdiction, and he has

not been brought within the jurisdiction of the court

by service or appearance. My impression is that

the jurisdiction is not ousted by merely naming him
in the bill when it appears that he cannot be served.

Glauber himself is not present to make, and he does

not make, the objection to the jurisdiction, and the

other parties who do raise the objection are in no
way affected by his absence, or by his being named
in the bill. But, however that may be, since he
might have been omitted in the first instance to pre-

vent an ouster of the jurisdiction as to the other

parties, I see no reason why the bill may not now
be amended, before he is brought in, by omitting his

name for the same purpose, without prejudice to the

motion for an injunction; and the complainant asks

leave to amend. I can perceive no good reason why
leave should not be granted."

For a further reason neither the Mexican Company

nor the Mutual Water Companies can be considered nec-

essary parties. Upon consideration of the evidence,

Judge Wellborn found that

"said companies were organized by the defendant
and are now acting as instrumentalities for effect-

uating the diversions complained of, and should be

considered, for the purposes of this suit, as identical

with defendant, or, if necessary to avoid technical

objections, as mere agency corporations."

Trans., Vol. I, page 128.

Appellant does not dispute the facts in this regard

(Brief, pages 76-92), but contends that the fiction of
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separate corporate entity will close the eyes of a court

of equity to the facts as they are. Now it is not denied,

nor can it be successfully denied, that defendant is in

absolute control of the Mexican Company. It also or-

ganized all the Mutual ¥/ater Companies as agencies to

facilitate the sale of the water diverted by it. Against

its will and without its direction, none of the injuries

complained of could have been done. The independent

investigations of the Government are to the same effect

as the conclusion reached by Judge Wellborn. The

money of the directing company, it has been forcibly

said,

''was not used in permanent development, but ap-

parently disappeared either in profits to the prin-

cipal promoters or in the numerous subsidiary com-
panies, which to a certain extent fed upon the

parent company, or served to obscure its operations,

such as a construction company, a comjjany to pro-

mote settlement, and a company to handle the secur-

ities of the various other corporations. The history

of these deals is so complicated that it would re-

quire careful research, extending through many
months, to unravel the devious ways by which
money and valuable securities have disappeared.

In brief, it is sufficient to state that the valuable

considerations which were received for water rights

were obviously not used in providing necessary and
permanent works for furnishing water to the set-

tlers."

Senate Document No. 212; Trans., Vol. V, page

2089.

In view of the admitted facts can a wrong-doer, after

having committed the most disastrous act of negligence

of which there is record or tradition, be heard to say
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that a decree against it can not be allowed to stand, be-

cause certain subsidiary corporations, organized by it-

self, were not made parties to the suit! And this, too,

when the Court can not get jurisdiction over the sub-

sidiary corporations?

The fiction of separate entity, like all other fictions, is

a legal device invented for the purposes of justice. Will

not that fiction be brushed aside and disregarded when

the ends of equity require?

In

Anthony v. American Glucose Co., 146 N. Y. 407,

the New York Court of Appeals said:

'

'We have of late refused to be always and utterly

trammelled by the logic derived from corporate

existence where it only serves to distort or hide the

truth."

But, if the fiction be so opaque that truth cannot be

discerned through it, and a court of equity can not see

that for the purposes of this suit the defendant is

identical with its subsidiary companies, can not the sub-

sidiary companies, without violence even to a fiction, be

deemed mere agents of the defendant? Surely a cor-

poration may act as agent of another. Qui facit per

alium facit per se; and if, as is admitted (Appellant's

Brief, page 85), the subsidiary companies were formed

for the purpose of assisting in the transaction of the

business of the parent company to facilitate its opera-

tions in the settlement of the country and the distribu-

tion of water, then they must bear to the parent com-

pany the relation of agent to principal.



32

In

Hunt V. Davis, 135 Cal. 34,

it is said:

"The case, we think, comes directly within the

authority of Shorb v. Beaudry, 56 Cal. 450, and
other cases following that decision. 'The corpora-

tion was formed as a mere agency for the more con-

veniently carrying out the agreements' of the par-

ties; and tlie relation sustained by it to them is

* substantially, if not technically, that of trustee'

And, as in the case cited, it must be held that 'sub-

stantial justice can be administered in this case by
treating the parties in the light of the agreements

between themselves, independentl}^ of their incor-

poration, and in no other way'. (Shorb v. Beaudry,

56 Cal. 450, and Charter v. San Francisco etc. Co.,

19 Cal. 247, there cited. Cornell v. Corbin, 64 Cal.

200; Kohl v. Lilienthal, 81 Cal. 397; Behlow v.

Fischer, 102 Cal. 214-215)."

And in

Negaunee Iron Co. v. Iron Cliffs Co., 96 N. W.

(Mich. 1903) 468,

in which an injunction was asked against certain in-

dividuals to restrain threatened trespasses upon mining

property, the individuals claiming a right under a lease

to the Pioneer Iron Company, it is said:

"It is also urged as a fatal objection to the main-
tenance of the bill that the Pioneer Iron Company
is not made a party. Under the allegations of the

bill, as well as under the proofs, the Pioneer Iron

Company is used as a ' dummy ' for the benefit of the

defendant companies. The defendants owned, and
have owned for many years, all its capital stock, its

furnaces and property, both real and personal.

They have managed all its affairs, and for their
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own benefit. * * * Admitting that the Pioneer

Iron Company is not a dead corporation, yet all its

property, franchise, and rights are owned by the

defendant companies, so far as the rights under the

99 year lease are concerned, and are fully repre-

sented hy those now before the court."

Clearly agents need not be joined.

22 Cyc. 915.

THE ACCOUNT OF DAMAGES WAS PROPERLY TAKEN AS OF

THE TIME OF THE DECREE.

It has already been seen that at the time of instituting

the suit in the State Court, and at the time of filing the

remodelled bill in the Circuit Court, the flow of water

upon complainant's property was continuous. Only a

portion of the damage had then been done. Thereafter

the damage continued to increase. At the time of the fil-

ing of the complaint in the State Court $87,000 of dam-

age had been inflicted. At the time of the decree in the

Circuit Court, the damage, growing day by day and

hour by hour, had reached $456,746.23. Were we re-

quired to institute a new action every day while waiting

for an injunction? Appellant so contends.

The first principle and highest merit of equity is that,

by its decree, complete justice is done between the par-

ties and litigation finished. If that principle had not

been applied by Judge Wellborn to the present case, it

would have been necessary to try the issues again in an

action at law, to recover for the damage done subsequent

to the institution of the suit and prior to the issuance of
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the injunction. Such is equity in tlie view of counsel for

appellant.

In

Providence Ruhher Co. v. Goodyear, 9 Wall. 788;

19 L. Ed. 566,

it was held that

"In taking the account the master was not lim-

ited to the date of the decree. In such cases, it is

proper to extend the account down to the time of

the hearing before him, unless the infringement had
ceased prior to that time. The rights of the parties

are settled by the decree, and nothing remains hut

to ascertain the damages and adjudge their pay-

ment. The practice saves a multiplicity of suits,

time, and expense, and promotes the ends of justice.

We see no well founded objection to it."

In accordance, therefore, with the practice of equity,

we believe that it was unnecessary to file supplemental

bills showing the damage done subsequent to the in-

stitution of the suit. But out of an abundance of cau-

tion the supplemental bills were filed.

In

Foote V. Burlington Gaslight Co., 72 N. W. 755

it was held (see page 756)

:

'
' 1. Why not permit damages since the beginning

of an action to be claimed in a supplemental peti-

tion, when of the same nature, and occasioned by the

same cause? The nuisance was a continuing one.

Had no supplemental petition been filed, another

action could have been maintained for the damages

therein alleged. But, if the original action had been

dismissed, the plaintiff might well have claimed, in

a new petition, damages for the entire period, and

no one would contend two causes of action were
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stated. It follows, then, that the original and sup-

plemental petitions, when read together, state but

one cause of action, and the relief sought is only

enlarged. The true criterion for determining the

propriety of a supplemental petition does not lie in

ascertaining whether it states a cause of action

which might be independently maintained. If it

may be read with the original petition, and both

considered as one pleading, and if its scope is lim-

ited to strengthening, developing, or re-enforcing

the original cause of action, or of enlarging the

extent of or changing the relief sought, then it meets
the very purpose of such a pleading. Leach v. As-
sociation (Iowa), 70 N. W. 1090. The new cause of

action which the law will not permit to be thus

pleaded is one not related to that stated in the orig-

inal petition, and which, under the rules of pleading,

must be set up in a separate count or division. It

is the policy of the law to grant relief as far as

possible, for all wrongs complained of growing out

of the same transaction, and thus put an end to

litigation. Cliilds v. Railroad Co. (Mo. Sup.), 23

373; Richwine v. Presbyterian Church (Ind. Sup.),

34 N. E. 737 ; Boone, Code PL, Sec. 40. It was held

in Childs v. Railroad Co., supra, that a continuance

of the same grievance after the commencement of

the suit might be pleaded by way of supplemental

petition. See Buckley v. Buckley, 12 Nev. 423;

Phil. Code PL, Sees. 317, 318. No good reason has

been suggested for not disposing of this entire con-

troversy between these parties in one action, and
we think the ruling of the district court in per-

mitting the supplemental petition was correct."
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THE COURT DID XOT ERR IN DECIDING THAT THE FLOODING

OF SALTON SINK AND THE DESTRUCTION OF COMPLAIN-

ANT'S PROPERTY WAS OCCASIONED BY THE NEGLIGENCE

OF THE CALIFORNIA DEVELOPMENT COMPANY.

It is an admitted fact—and we use tlie word ''ad-

mitted" in the sense that the testimony is all one way

on the subject— that the works and property of the

complainant in what is called Salton Basin were de-

stroyed during the years 1904 and 1905. There is no

controversy as to the discharge into Salton Basin of a

very large quantity of water, nor is there any dispute

regarding the destruction of the works of complainant

by that water.

The question which was determined by the Court

below was, through whose fault did the water get there?

According to the admissions of the defendant's wit-

nesses enough water to work the destruction of com-

plainant's property reached Salton Sink through the in-

takes constructed by defendant. There is no testimony

in the record which shows, with any degree of satisfac

tion, that during the years 1904 and 1905 any water

reached Salton Sink, except through the intakes con-

structed by the defendant. It is true that some of de-

fendant's witnesses did testify that water would have

reached Salton Sink whether defendant's intakes had

existed or not, but we think we are well within the rec-

ord when we say there is nothing to show that any water

actually reached the sink during the years 1904 and 1905

except water which came from Colorado River through

the intakes of the California Development Company.
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Mr. Schuyler, one of defendant's witnesses, said

that he had been at the intake when the entire flow of the

river was passing through it, and that at that time the

discharge into the canal was probably 25,000 second feet.

He said he had been there several times when that con-

dition existed. (Trans, of Record, pp. 1339-1340.) The

same witness stated that if there had been a headgate

at the intake, the entire 25,000 cubic feet would have

gone down the river instead of going into the canal.

(Trans, of Record, p. 131:1.)

Mr. Cory was asked: "From your knowledge of the

' existence of an open channel from the Colorado River

' extending down to Imperial Valley, and from your

' knowledge of the topography of the country including

* Imi3erial Valley and the Salton Sink, and assuming

' there was sufficient water discharged in 1904 to engulf

' the salt works, what was the cause of it?" (the word

'engulf" was explained to him to mean to surround the

salt works), and he answered, "Well, assuming that

* there was an open channel from the Colorado River

' leading to the Imperial Valley of a sufficient capacity,

' and leading from the channel into the Salton Sink, I

* would say the open channel would be the cause of it."

(Trans, of Record, p. 1745.)

" Q. From your examination of the situation, your

" examination of these records, the gauge records, is

" it not in your opinion an indisputable fact, assuming

" Salton Sink to have filled with water in 1904 to such

" an extent as to engulf the salt works, that that flood

" was due solelv and entirelv to the existence of that
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** channel leading from the Colorado River to the Im-

*' perial Valley?

"A. So far as these records are concerned, that

'' would be the natural assumption." (Trans, of Rec-

ord, p. 1746.) Of course, Mr. Cory had nothing but the

record.

" Q. Taking into consideration the fact that the

'' channel existed in 1904 communicating between the

** Imperial Valley and Colorado River, and that two in-

" takes leading to that channel were open, can any

*' plausible explanation be afforded for the discharge

" into Salton Sink in 1904 of sufficient water to engulf

*' the salt works except the existence of that channel!

"A. It might be, but it would be improbable."

(Trans, of Record, p. 1749.)

Mr. Cory could not find any explanation for the dis-

charge into Salton Sink in 1904 of sufficient water to

surround the salt works, except the existence of the

canal leading from Colorado River to Imperial Valley,

the head of which canal at the Colorado River was open.

He also said (Trans, of Record, pp. 1780-1781): ''The

" fact that from the early part of 1905 a large portion

*' of the flow which but for this cut would have gone on

" down the river flowed into the cut instead of down the

" river had an effect upon silting the river below. It

" materially raised the bed of the river for a distance

" of two miles. That naturally decreased the amount

" of water going down the river and increased the

" amount going towards the sink through the canal."

He said it was his opinion, from what he knew of the
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subject, that Salton Sink might have been flooded to

such an extent as to destroy the works of complainant

without one drop of overfloiu luater having reached

Salton Sink from Colorado River. He admitted that he

could not tell what proportion of the water that found

its way into Salton Sink came from the intakes at times

when there was no overflow. (Trans, of Record, pp.

1785-1786.)

As has been said, the record is silent with reference

to any showing that any of the overflow water reached

Salton Sink in the years 1904 or 1905.

According to Water Supply and Irrigation Paper No.

177, there were two and three-fourths times as much

water taken into the Imperial Valley in 1905 as was used

for irrigation.

Mr. Rockwood says (Trans, of Record, p. 1347)

:

" There was no flood condition in the year 1904 after

* * June or July—not enough to overflow the banks of the

'' river."

" We had very heavy rains in February and March,

'^ 1905. Prior to that we had heavy rains during Aug-
'' ust, 1904, and a heavy flood coming from the natural

** overflow down the New River during that summer. I

*' believe there was but one heavy storm in August.

" Q. Do you tell us seriously you think Salton Sea

" was caused by that storm?

" A. Caused by that storm and by flood waters com

-

*' ing down the New River.
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'
' Q. What flood had occurred subsequent to August,

" 1904, and up to December, 1904, that could have re-

" suited in flooding Salton Sink?

'

' A. The summer floods of June and July. I do not

" know when the water reached Salton Sink and I do

" not know the duration of the summer floods of 1904."

(Trans, of Record, pp. 1358-1359.)

" I have never heard that Salton Sink was flooded in

'

' 1903, and I knew the water was higher in 1903 than in

" 1904.

" Q. If it was the flood of 1904 that flooded Salton

" Sink, why didn't it flood in 1903 when the water was

" higher?

" A. My recollection is that there were no heavy

" rains in 1903. The only lieavj^ rain I can get any rec-

'* ord of is the one of August, 1904, and that was a pre-

" cipitation of about 2 inches." (Trans, of Record, pp.

1360-1361.)

He further says (Trans, of Record, p. 1361): ''I

" seriously attribute the presence of a large amount of

*' water in Salton Sink to that storm. I think storms

'' are partially responsible for the flooding of the plain-

'' tiff's property. The rest of the responsibility is par-

'' tially upon the flood waters coming down the Alamo
^' and New River, partially upon the natural seepage and

** drainage from the irrigated lands.

'' Q. ^mmt else? Is that all?

''A. It is probable that some waste from the canals

'^ of the California Development Company.

^' Q. It is probable. That is only a probability, is it?
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'

' A. The waste water alone never could have reached

" Salton Sink. If the storm of August took place over

** the Sink the water would have gotten there imme-

" diately.

"

Transcript of Record, p. 1362 he said: "I don't

" think I told you I attributed Salton Sea entirely to

" that storm. It might have taken those storm waters

" only two or three minutes to reach the Salton Sink.

''Assuming the storm had been what I think it was, I

'

' supjDOse it would have taken three or four days for the

" water to reach Salton Sink. I did not hear of any

*' water in Salton Sink in August, 1904, or in Septem-

" ber, 1904. I don't know anything about water in

'* Salton Sink until November, 1904, I heard the water

'' was approaching the salt works. There was no water
'

' overflowing the banks of the river after July, 1904, so

'' far as I know. It is not conceivable that if the flood

'' ceased by the 1st of July, 1904, it would have taken

'
' until the latter part of 1904 for the water to reach the

" Salton, but the south end of the Sink would neces-

'' sarily fill to a considerable extent before the waters

" would go farther north towards the salt works."

Transcript of Record, p. 1405-7: ''I first saw water

'' in Salton Sink while passing on the railroad. It had

** been charged that the defendant was responsible for

*' the presence of that water. I don't know of any water

" that could have reached Salton Sink after November,

" 1904, and ujd to January, 1905, except water which we
'' were diverting from Colorado River."
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Mr. Rockwood said he was very familiar with con-

ditions which prevailed in that country. He claimed to

be very familiar with ail the water courses leading to

Salton Sink. He was engaged in the business of divert-

ing water. He knew that it had been charged that his

company was responsible for the gathering of water in

Salton Sink, and yet admitted that he knew of no water

which could have reached Salton Sink between the dates

named, except water which was diverted by his company

from Colorado River.

This admission, taken in connection with the other un-

contradicted testimony in the record, is entirely sufficient

to warrant the conclusion of the Court that complain-

ant's property was destroyed through the negligence of

defendant.

Referring again to Rockwood 's testimony (Trans, of

Record, p. 1407) he was asked: ''Is it not your opinion,

*' and are you not positive that if, after being notified in

" November, 1904, that Salton Sink was filling, you had

*' absolutely cut off the diversion of water from the Colo-

'

' rado River, the salt works would not have been flooded

" in the latter part of 1904 or early part of 1905?

"A. I do not know that to be absolutely the case.

" Q. You haven't any doubt about that, have you?

" A. There was water coming down New River and
*' the Volcano Lake was coming down, I know, some time

'' during the winter and spring of 1905. No flood con-

" ditions prevailed during the fall of 1904 and up to

'' January, 1905. I think I was advised in December,

** 1904, that the salt works were being ruined. There
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" had been no flood conditions up to that time. There

" had been no overflow since the summer floods. The

'' summer floods may have subsided, but at the same

" time the flow might have been longer than that from

'* New River and the Alamo.

" Q. That is speculation, isn't it?

^' A. I don't remember whether it was the case this

' time or not. I knew the salt company was charging us

' with the responsibility for the waters in Salton Sink.

'' Q. Now, then, knowing that, and having it in your

' power to ascertain positively whether or not it was

' the waters which you were diverting at that time, you

' did not make any eiiort to ascertain the fact?

*' A. As I explained before, at the time when this

' was brought to my attention we most assuredly were

' not turning a sufficient amount of water, waste from

' our canals, to injure the salt works. So I believed.

' My recollection is that the government records do not

' show that we were wasting water in 1904. I am not

' aware of the fact that the government records show

' that the loss in October, 1904, was 502 second feet."

(Trans, of Record, p. 1409.)

This witness was the chief engineer of the defendant's

enterprise. According to his statement, he had made it

his business to study these government records very

carefully, very industriously, and he did not know, until

he was confronted with the fact upon the stand, that the

government records for October, 1904, showed that his

company was wasting 502 second feet per second into

Salton Sink. We only cite this as one illustration show-
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ing his inaccuracy and unreliability in estimating and de-

termining the amount of wastage discharged by the de-

fendant. It is true he said later that his estimate of

the waste was simply an estimate, that it was not based

upon actual measurement. He does say (Trans, of Rec-

ord, p. 1412) : "In estimating the amount of Avaste from

" the canals of the California Development Company the

" government engineer is measuring the flow of water

" at Rockwood and Brawley in the New River and the

" Alamo. They were measuring the wastage from all

" sources.

" Q. In October, 1904, there was no water coming to

'

' that part of the country, except through the system of

'

' the California Development ComjDany, was there ?

" A. Quite so; but we had nothing to do with the

" water after we had given it to the water companies."

Admittedly defendant was diverting a large quantity

of water and taking it to a region from which if not

used, it must inevitably flow into Salton Sink. How
much water defendant was diverting, its own records,

or at any rate the records disclosed by it, do not show.

The government records show that it was carrying

towards Salton Sink a very much larger quantity of

water than was needed, or at any rate than was used for

irrigation or for any other beneficial purpose. It will

probably not be disputed as a proposition of law that if

defendant was carrying to Imperial Valley very much

more water than was needed for irrigation and that

Salton Sink did fill with water, and no other reason can

be assigned for the presence of the water in the Sink
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than the diversion by the defendant, and, indeed, if the

chief engineer of the defendant cannot tell of any other

water which could have reached Salton Sink than the

water diverted by his company, then certainly a prima

facie case was made that the presence of the water there

was due to the act of defendant.

Mr. Rockwood said he could have prevented the diver-

sion of more water than was needed for irrigation

(Trans, of Record, p. 1414), and was asked:

" Q. Did you in this case?

"A. I don't think that at that season of the year, in

" October or November, we were diverting much more

" than we really needed. I do not believe we were

' diverting five hundred or odd cubic feet per second,

" unless it was immediately after a rain, that is, divert-

" ing it into Salton Sink. It would take several days
*

' to shut water oft" at the river, and immediately upon the

'

' rain stopping the Imperial Water Companies would de-

*' mand that we turn the water back into the canal or

'* river. They shut off their supply at once. We had no

" "tneans of cutting off the supply from the river, so we
" necessarily had to let just as much water in ivhen there

" was a rain as ivhen there was no rain, and ivhen they

" did not need the water for irrigation it wotdd go into

" New River and the Alamo, and from there into Salton

" Sink, and thus get so much closer to the salt company's
*' property. I knetv that at the time the ivater ivas being

" turned in.

*' Q. Your concern all the time was to have a full

" canal without regard to whether the people took it out

'* for irrigation or not?
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'^ A. My concern was simply to get a sufficient

*' amount of water there for the people. It wasn't par-

" ticularly to have a full canal. My instructions to the

" men at the headworks were to keep the canal open."

(Trans, of Record, pp. 1414-1416.)

His attention was called to the fact that on the 15th

of October, 1904, his comi3any diverted 1976 cubic feet

per second, and he was asked what was the occasion of

the diversion of that quantity of water at that time, to

which he replied (Trans, of Record, pp. 1417-1419)

:

" If there was that amount diverted, it was on account

" of the rise in the river undoubtedly. That all went

" into Salton Sink with the exception of the amount we
" were using for irrigation.

'^ Q. If you diverted 900 cubic feet and lost 200 feet,

" that would mean a need for 700?

"A. A need for 700 feet.

" Q. I will ask you whether your average consump-

" tion for January, 1905, exceeded 328 second feet!

*' A. It would be necessary for me to refer to the

'

' records at Calexico before I could reply to that.

'' Q. If you have any records that show that you
'' used more water than that, we would like to have

" them. Also whether you have any records that will

*' show that your average consumption for February
'^ was more than 268 second feet, for March 265 second
'

' feet and for April 682 second feet.

The respective figures named in this question were

the quantities shown by the government records to have

been consumed. It is worthy of comment that the de-
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fendant did not produce any records showing its con-

sumption during the months named to be any greater

than the quantities stated in the government records.

His attention is again called to the government record

and the statement made to him that "according to this

" government record the average diversion (into the in-

" take of the defendant) from May 8 up to and including

'

' September 17, 1904, was about fourteen or fifteen hun-

" dred second feet", and he was asked how many second

feet he was using during those months

:

" A. The major portion of the water was carried off

" through the waste gate." (Trans, of Record, p. 1422.)

" Q. Were you at the waste gate at all from the 8th

" of May to the 17th of September, 1904!

"A. I can't give you any dates now. I know there

" was water wasted through the gate between the 8th

" of May and the 17th of September, 1904, otherwise it

" would have come down to the canal at Calexico, and it

" didn't come." (Trans, of Record, p. 1424.)

At another time he testified that the flat country in

front of the waste gate had been filled up so that the out-

let of that gate was practically ineffective except during

periods of very high flood.

And again he said that he knew the water didn't get

to Calexico because he measured the water at Calexico

and also measured the water that was coming in at the

heading. If any such measurements were made they

should have been in the possession of defendant and

should have been produced at the trial, but notwithstand-

ing the urgent and insistent demand of complainant that
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they be produced, no such measurements were forth-

coming. The witness said that it was questionable

w^hether the measurements had been preserved and the

question arises, if taken, why were they not preserved?

What was the motive for their destruction?

The failure of the defendant to produce accurate

measurements showing the quantity of water which it

diverted and the quantity which it wasted into Salton

Sink is one of the most suspicious circumstances con-

nected with the case. It is almost incredible that the

management of an enterprise of this character would

not preserve measurements showing the discharge into

its canal from day to day, as well as measurements of the

quantity of water which it was selling. These two facts,

if correctly shown, would have been of great aid in deter-

mining the quantity of water which defendant was

wasting and which eventually found its way into Salton

Sink. What is the reason that those measurements, if

preserved, were not produced? Probably because they

would have demonstrated beyond the shadow of a doubt,

the truth of the statement of Mr. Meserve to the Secre-

tary of State at Washington when he was appealing to

him to prevent the Eepublic of Mexico from revoking the

permit which it had given to the California Development

Company.

Rockwood says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1425 and 1205)

:

" We kept the flow at Sharp's, also the flow of water

'' through the waste into the Alamo. I paid no partic-

** ular attention to the amount of water which was

*' wasted except when there was a shortage of water.
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*' If we were short of water, I attempted to prevent

** waste."

Wlien tlie canal was running bank full, when it was

filling Salton Sink to the detriment and injury of com-

plainant, he paid no attention to it. It was no concern

of his. But when there was a shortage of water, he at-

tempted to prevent waste. When the business of defend-

ant was likely to be interfered with, whea its income was

likely to be lessened, then its chief engineer intervened

to prevent any more waste taking place than was abso-

lutely necessary, but when there was sufficient water to

answer the needs of the irrigationists in Imperial Valley,

he gave himself no concern about the quantity of waste.

We made a further attempt to get some information

about the measurements of flow preserved by the defend-

ant and asked Mr. Rockwood (Trans of Record, p.

1425)

:

" Q. Who took those measurements of water from
'

' the waste way into the Alamo ?

'

' A. They have been—if there was any water flowing

*' through the waste into the Alamo, they would have

" been taken probably by—might have been taken by

" our watchman at Sharp's, or by the head zanjero."

Would it be possible to present a better example of

equivocation than is given in this answer? He first

made the positive statement that measurements had been

taken, that they had been taken under his direction, but

it was questionable whether they had been preserved,

and when asked by whom they were taken he made the

lucid answer which we have just quoted.
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And again he says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1425-1426)

:

* Measurements were undoubtedly taken. What we

' called our waste way at Sharp's wasted into the

' Alamo, which water was taken out at a point farther be-

' low for irrigation into the Rose system. We call that

' a waste way. We have some measurements of water

' wasted from the canal system which did not get back

' into it. Whether we have a perfect record I cannot

' tell. I think not. These measurements were taken

' by employees of the defendant under my instructions

' for the purpose of preserving at least a partial meas-

' urement for general information. I wanted to know

' and I found out.
'

'

However, the witness if he did find out failed to in-

form the Court of the result of the measurements or

any information derived from them.

Again he says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1426-1428)

:

' I wanted to know afterwards how much water was

' being discharged into Salton Sink. Think we had

' measurements made in November or December to de-

' termine how much water was being discharged. Those

' records have not been produced because they were not

' asked for and they are not in my charge at present.

* I was asked on direct examination what the wastage

* was.

'' Q. And 5^ou knew at that time that your company

' had preserved records showing the wastage through

' certain waste gates, did you?
*

' A. I think for the latter part of that season through

" what is called main wasteway for Imperial Canal No.
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''
1, that is the main canal that was referred to in the

^' previous evidence—by the latter part of the season
'

' I mean the latter part of 1904.

" Q. Those measurements were preserved by you,

" were they, in anticipation of a claim by the New
'' Liverpool Salt Company?

*' A. No, not with that anticipation. They were

'' taken after I knew the salt company had charged

*' that my company was responsible for this overflow.

'' With reference to those measurements, I simply re-

" member that they varied very greatly. I don't know

" what the maximum wastage was after I had been in-

'' formed of the salt company's claim. After being in-

" formed that the complainant charged us with the re-

*' sponsibility of flooding its works, we did at times dis-

'^ charge water that we knew flowed into Salton Sink.

'' Q. And you diverted it from the river knoimng it

'^ ivould flow in there?

''A. / coiddn't help but do it.

'' Q. Wliy couldn't you help it?

" A. Because we could not close the intake in time

'^ to prevent it from reaching SharjD's. I believe it was
'' in December, 1904, I was notified of this claim of the

" salt company."

During all of the time that the injury was being suf-

fered by complainant, Rockwood was the chief engineer

of the defendant and practically in entire charge of its

operations.

Wliat was the condition prevailing in 1904 or up to the

1st of February, 1905, that would have prevented the
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defendant from closing not only one but all of the three

intakes I There is absolutely nothing in the record that

can be suggested as an excuse for its failure to shut off

the water when it was notified that the property of com-

jDlainant was being seriously endangered by the accum-

ulation of water in Salton Sink.

Rockwood says (Trans, of Record, p. 1428): "I be-

'' lieve it was in December, 1904, that I was notified of

" the claim of the Salt Comjoany" (that is, that the de-

fendant was responsible for the discharge of water into

Salton Sink). "There had been no flood up to that time

" that would have prevented us from closing the intake,

"Q. Why, then, could you not close it and stop the

" discharge of water onto the salt company's property?"

Bear in mind in connection with this that the wit-

ness said that the only water which was finding its way

to that part of the country at that time was water which

defendant was diverting from Colorado River. Now,

mark his answer.

" A. The indications were from the state—from the

history of the river, that the trouble with the Califor-

nia Development Company would be an insufficiency

of water within a very few days. My recollection is

that I first received notice of the water in Salton Sink

in November, 1904. I did not at that time make or

cause to be made any investigation to ascertain the

source from which the water in the Sink came. I

knew from general reports or rumor that the salt

company was blaming the irrigation company for the

water in the Sink. I knew this as earlv as November
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or December, 1904. I didn't believe we were respon-

sible." (Trans, of Eecord, pp. 1428-1433.)

** Q. And you didn't make any effort to ascertain

what the fact was?

"A. I knew we were wasting at that time but a very

small amount of water anj^way, and that was the

only water with which we could be charged.

" Q. How long did you continue to make measure-

ments of the water which you were wasting into

Salton Sink after you had been notified that the com-

plaint charged you with the responsibility for the

filling of the Sink?

" A. Why, I cannot answer that. I suppose that

the measurements at certain wastes would have been

kept up, intermittently at least.

" Q. And those measurements were made for the

purpose of knowing how much water you were dis-

charging and which eventually found its way into

Salton Sink?

"A. They were made for the purpose of knowing-

how much water we were wasting. The waste waters

undoubtedly found their way into Salton Sink unless

they were lost by evaporation or seepage before it

reached there. Whether they increased the size of

Salton Sea depends upon the amount of waste.

"Q. Then according to you, it was absolutely neces-

sary, as one of the elements of that system, that you

should continue to divert a full head of ivater at all

times, and that whenever natural irrigation happened

to come, there ivas nothing for you to do ivith the

ivater but to dump it into Salton Sink?
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'' A. We didn't dump it,

'' Q. Wiiatl

" A. We didn't necessarily dump it. It was dumped
'' by tlie Mutual Water Companies. Wlien we turned

" it over to the Mutual Water Companies, we had no

" right to ascertain whether they could make use of it

" or not. We could either turn the water over to the

" Mutual Water Companies, or into the Alamo or New
" River. If ive didn't happen to have need for the

" water, we did one of two things, turned it out of the

" ivaste gate into the Alamo, or the Mutual Water Com-
" panics turned it out of their waste gate to flow into the

" Salton Sink." (Trans, of Record, pp. 1433-1437.)

There was an adjournment at this stage of the testi-

mony of the witness, and when the session was resumed,

he was asked whether he had produced the records

of the defendant or any of its subsidiary companies

showing wastage into Salton Sink, and he replied:

'' I have produced all of our original records. I

'' have not as j^et had time to go through these records

'
' and obtain final results. I have a paper from Calexico

'' showing waste at the point called Five Gates, which

'* was the principal wasteway into New River. The
*' records of the waste into the Alamo would have to

" be compiled from original zanjero measurements
*' which would take a very considerable length of time.

'' There is only one iioint at which defendant has wasted

*' water into the Alamo." (Trans, of Record, pp. 1527-

1528.)
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That is substantially all of the information which we

were able to derive from, the defendant with reference

to records of measurements preserved by it or its em-

ployees.

He was asked (Trans, of Record, p. 1531) whether

he had delivered more water to the Imperial Water

Companies than the irrigationists were demanding, to

which he replied:

"A. We may have done so at times. "Water Com-
'' pany No. 1 has a waste way running to the north of

" Mesquite and emptying into the Alamo. During the

'' year 1905 it was necessary for us to carry through

" the waste ways in the neighborhood of Calexico all of

'' the water from the Colorado River, and inasmuch

" as our effort to close intake No. 3 had been unsuc-

'' cessfulj there is no doubt but that the amount of water

'' which was passing through our waste ways would
'

' have reached the salt works in that year.

" Q. In other words, there was imter enough com-

" ing down your canal which you could not use for any

" beneficial purpose to create a sea large enough to reach

" and envelop the salt works in 1905?

" A. Yes sir." (Trans, of Record, pp. 1531-1536.)

Again the witness said (Trans, of Record, pp. 1591-

1592) : ''There was no flood water from the river in

'' October and nothing to make any discharge from Vol-

" cano Lake, New River or the Alamo, and the same
*' is true of November and December, 1904."

The witness alsc testified (Trans, of Record, p. 1537)

that the defendant was selling water to the Holtville
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power plant under an arrangement by which the de-

fendant was to get $2 per month per horse power, and

that the greater the jDower the greater the income of

defendant. No i3rovision was made to use the waste

from that plant. It all flowed into the sink.

Capt. Mellon, one of defendant's witnesses, testified

that before June, 1905, the Colorado River was navig-

able below the intakes. (Trans, of Record, p. 810), but

that it ceased to be navigable at that time.

Mr. Cor}^, one of defendant's witnesses, prepared a

set of hydrographs which he used and which very largely

formed the basis of his testimony with reference to the

filling of Salton Sink. He said (Trans, of Record, p

1745 )

:

" There is no reason from the hydrograph to believe

" that the overflow waters of 1904 would have reached

'' Salton Sink. There is nothing to indicate that from
'' any information found in this (government) record."

The court will find some instructive information in

the government gauge records of 1904 and 1905 with

reference to the quantity of water which reached Salton

Sink from the intakes of defendant. During that time

there were three intakes in use by the defendant. The

first measurement reported in these records is that of

the 7th of October, 1904, on which day 1213 second

feet were diverted through the Mexican intake. We do

not know how much was being diverted during 1904

through intakes, Nos. 1 and 2. I refer now to page 28

of the 1904 record;
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On the 15tli of October, the diversion was 1976 second

feet; on the 21st, 1356 second feet; on the 28th, 1016

second feet ; November 4, 898 second feet ; November 11,

937 second feet; November 18, 954 second feet; Novem-

ber 25, 886 second feet; December 2, 826 second feet;

December 9, 879 second feet; December 20, 899 second

feet and December 28, 607 second feet.

Beginning with the 8th of March, 1905, (Geological

Survey Record for 1905, page 23) measurements of the

inflow at the three headings were preserved by the Gov-

ernment. This record, considered in connection with the

attempted excuses of Rockwood, presents some very in-

teresting information.

There is nothing tending to show any effort on the

part of defendant to close the first or second intake in

the fall of 1904 or the spring of 1905. A brush dam

was placed at the head of one or both of those intakes,

not for the purpose of keeping water out of the canal,

but in order to force more water into the third intake.

Those brush dams were washed out in December, 1904.

From December, 1904, there never was any effort to

close the first or second intake.

The defendant attributes all of the damage suffered

by the complainant to its, the defendant's, inability to

close the third intake. That claim is flatly contradicted

by these government records. On the 8th of March,

1905, there was being diverted into intake No. 1, 1110

second feet and into intake No. 2, 1530 second feet. On

the 18th of March, 1905, defendant was diverting

through intake No. 1 (we are referring now to page 23
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of the 1905 record) 1270 second feet and through in-

take No. 2, 2200 second feet. On the same day there

was diverted through intake No. 3, only 1530 second feet.

On the 21st of March there was being diverted through

intake No. 1, 2590 second feet, through intake No. 2, 2240

second feet and tlirough intake No. 3, only 1920 second

feet. On the 28th of March there was being diverted

through intake No. 2, 1180 second feet and through in-

take No. 3, 1750 second feet.

There is no claim or pretense that any effort what-

ever was made in the spring of 1905 to close intake

No. 1 or intake No. 2, and this government record shows

that sufficient water was diverted through those intakes

to cause very much, if not all, of the damage suffered by

the complainant.

Mr. Eockwood claims that he made every effort to

close intake No. 3. These government records show that

up to and including the 6th of April, 1905, the greatest

quantity of water which passed through intake No. 3

was 1920 second feet. If Mr. Eockwood had at his com-

mand men, material and money without limit—and he

attempted to give the impression that he had—his fail-

ure to close No. 3 intake prior to the 6tli of April, 1905

cannot be attributed to anything but incompetency.

These government records beginning with October,

1904, and extending through the year 1905, show that

an enormous quantity of water was diverted through the

intakes of the defendant and flowed into Salton Sink.

And that the water which actually flowed through the

intakes caused the destruction of complainant's property.



59

The government record for 1905 shows that the aver-

age quantity of water used for irrigation in Imperial

Valley in January, 1905, was 328 second feet ; in Febru-

ary, 1905, 269 second feet; in March 265 second feet; in

April 682 second feet; in May 542 second feet; in June

596 second feet; in July 520 second feet; in August 532

second feet; in September 478 second feet; in October

351 second feet; in November 168 second feet.

In November, 1904, defendant, according to Rockwood,

was diverting 900 and odd cubic feet although three of

the four government measurements for that month show

the quantity to have been more than twice nine hundred

feet. Rockwood said (Trans, of Record, pp. 1213, 1411-

1419) that the loss in carrying the water to the point

where it was to be used was about 200 second feet, leaving,

by his admission, 700 second feet to be disposed of during

the month of November, 1904. If the consumption was

as great in November, 1904, as it was in November, 1905,

—and it is impossible from Rockwood 's testimony to

assume that it was greater in 1904,—there must, by his

admission, have been at least 500 cubic feet per second

wasting into Salton Sink in November, 1904. The gov

ernment record for 1904 shows the wastage to have been

367 second feet for the week ending November 9; 386

second feet for the week ending November 15; 395

second feet for the week ending November 24; 304 sec-

ond feet for the week ending November 30th. It must

not he forgotten that these records do not purport to

shoiv all the waste but only waste from certain canals.
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The government record shows that in September, 1904,

the total irrigated area in Imperial Valley was 31,318

acres; whereas in March and Ai)ril, 1905, the irrigated

area was 79,591 acres. These seventy-nine thousand

acres required only 265 second feet in March, 1905. How
much was required to irrigate 31,000 acres in November

and December, 1904? As everybody knows these are

not irrigation months. Unfortunately we have no means

of determining accurately just how much water was

used for irrigation during those months. Defendant

should know how much was used. It must have been

jmid for the water. The best evidence of which the case

is susceptible indicates quite conclusively that the con-

sumption for those months could not have exceeded 150

second feet.

The water having collected in Salton Sink, and hav-

ing destroyed complainant's property, the next question

which presents itself is, was that destruction caused by

the act of defendant? That naturally suggests the ques-

tion, did defendant conduct its operations along the

Colorado Eiver in a prudent and businesslike way, and

in a manner calculated to afford to others whose in-

terests might be affected, the protection to which they

were lawfully entitled?

We desire to call the court's attention very hurriedly

to the testimony in reference to the character of the

country in which these intakes were cut. All the wit-

nesses testified that Colorado River in this particular

section was an alluvial stream, that its banks were shift-
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ing, and changed very suddenly, and that the river fre-

quently cut new channels.

Cai^t. Mellon, who has been familiar with the country

as long as any living person, testified that for a period

of years the river had shifted back and forth over a

piece of territory seven or eight miles wide, and he

described the various channels which the river followed

during those years.

Rockwood said that before he began operations on the

enterprise, he made it his business to interview people

who had lived in the neighborhood for many years, and

among others from whom he made inquiries was Capt.

Mellon. It is hardly conceivable that these inquiries did

not elicit to Mr. Rockwood information with reference

to the character of the river, but we take it that any man,

whether an engineer or not, could have told by a very

casual inspection of the country that the stream was a

treacherous one, and that any one who contemplated

cutting an intake connecting the river with a canal should

do so only with a great deal of care, not only for the

protection of his intake and canal, but for the protec-

tion of others whose interests might be affected by a

reckless method of carrying on his operations. Why
were these intakes located as they were? Was there

any reason for it? Were they located because those

points were looked upon and regarded as the most ad-

visable places in which to begin their construction? Not

at all. We make the bald statement, which is supported

by the record, that those points were selected as mere

expedients, and that at the time of their selection, and
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at the time when work was performed upon each one of

them, it was recognized by everybody connected with

the enterprise that not one of those three places was a

safe or proper place to locate an intake.

Among the men who were identified with this enter-

prise in its early history was Mr. Fergusson, who testi-

fied that work was not begun at Hanlon's Heading be-

cause water could be secured quicker and cheaper where

Chaffee began. (Intake No. 1.) Chaffee made the cut at

that point for the purpose of serving the settlement as

quickly as possible. When the work was begun by Chaf-

fee, it was not intended to be permanent. It was called

a temporary heading. That is the statement of one of

the men who was identified with the enterprise in its

incipiency. Another is the statement of Heber who

said in his deposition, "These intakes were temporary

" to enable the defendant to get water down quickly."

Sexsmith, the foreman of defendant, said: " The point

" for the third intake was selected because we could

" get water there and increase the water supply more

" rajDidly than at any other point, because it was the

" shortest distance between the river and the canal. It

" was simply a matter of moving materials that we were

" figuring on. The shortest distance between the two

" points." (Trans, of record, p. 959.)

Mr. Cory testified that the third intake was located on

an old channel. Bear in mind in connection with that,

the testimony of Fergusson that in a conversation with

Chaffee, when they were discussing the point at which
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the intake should be located, Chaffee said to him: "I
'^ wouldn't dare go down to this point three or four

" miles below the international boundary line because,

*' if we did, we might in sixty days turn enough water

*' into Salton Sink that would require sixty years to get

rid of it." (Trans, of Eecord, pp. 425-426.)

Now, what happened? As an expedient, as a means

of saving a little money, because, as Sexsmith said, it

was a question of time and a question of moving ma-

terial, defendant went to this third point, which Mr.

Chaffee in his conversation with Fergusson described as

dangerous, and connected the canal with the river at

that point.

If the court will look at the maps and diagrams of-

fered in evidence, it will find that the most casual ex-

amination should have been sufficient to induce the fear

expressed by Chaffee to Fergusson, that untold danger

would be created by the cutting of an intake at the point

where the third intake was subsequently cut. The de-

fendant built about four miles of canal, the building of

nearly all of which could have been avoided, if the point

at which intake No. 3 was subsequently cut, had been de-

termined to be a safe place at which to locate an intake.

Why did defendant build four miles of canal when by

building about half a mile, it could have accomplished

the same object, if its purpose was simply to divert

water? Does not that of itself indicate that there was

some substantial reason operating upon the mind of the

man who laid out the system originally, for building that

extra four miles of canal, and when that is coupled with



64

the statement of Chaffee that the place where intake No.

3 was subsequently located was an exceedingly danger-

ous point, it seems to lead irresistibly to the conclusion

that when Rockwood cut the third intake, he threw

chances to the wind and concluded to cut it regardless

of consequences.

Fergusson says further (Trans, of Record, p. 419)

:

'* Rockwood always seemed to be firmly of the opinion

'
' that the only way of controlling the water was to have

" a thoroughly modern up-to-date intake constructed at

'' the Rocky Point." Rockwood advised the acquisition

of Hanlon's Heading as a desirable point at which to

construct the headgate and never indicated to Fergus-

son that there was any other safe point.

Duryea said (Trans, of Record, pp. 308-310)

:

" As a place to build an intake to get water into the

' canal quickly, the place for the third intake was well

' selected. As a place in which to build an intake which

' could be easily protected against harmful enlarge-

' ment, I don't think it was well selected for the reason

' that the banks are low at that point and the materials

' soft. Any one of those three intakes is quite liable to

' great enlargement. All three are in very light alluvial

' soil. None of them is safe against enlargement. All

' of them were too dangerous for use."

" I formed the opinion that the only location at which

' controlling works could be built with the certainty of

' being effective was near the river, and that it was still

* practicable to build such controlling works at a mod-

' erate cost. I believe that at that time the flow could
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*' have been controlled without great difficulty. In my
^' opinion, no work of building the canal should have

" been done before controlling works were put in, and
'

' the works should have been located at the Rocky Point

" just above what is now known as intake No. 1."

(Trans, of Record, p. 307.)

*' Rockwood told me it was the intention of his com-

" pany to construct headgates as soon as the legal com-

*' plications in regard to taking water had been settled,

'' and when that point had been arrived at permanent

'' headgates would be built at the point which I have

" described." (Trans, of Record, p. 324.)

'' The only reason from an engineering standpoint for

" not putting the first and only intake at the Rocky

" Point would be the saving of expense and the saving

'' of time." (Trans, of Record, pp. 372-373.)

Rockwood did not deny the statement to which Duryea

testified.

Duryea again said (Trans, of Record, p. 373)

:

'' It was a saving of money whichever way you put it.

* * They could get the canal in use sooner by using a place

'* where they could dredge the intake easily and they

" could also get it much cheaper."

On this subject, Rockwood said (Trans, of Record, pp.

1371-1372)

:

" Originally we didn't contemplate but one intake.

" It was my intention to take the water from the river

" at a point about a mile and a quarter above the con-

" Crete gate, at a point where the American Girl pump
'* is located. That place was selected because there was a
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** cement gravel formation there, in which I expected to

'' make the opening, and tiie fact that the hills of that for-

'* mation came down and encroached upon the river at

" that point, to my mind, prevented the possibility of the

'

' river cutting in back. It was safer than where the cut

'

' is now located. '

'

'' Originally I planned two gates, not two intakes, but

" two gates, one at the river and the second gate at the

'' point where we have now built the concrete gate."

(Trans, of Record, p. 1373.)

Mr. Meserve's statement to the Secretary of State

seems to afford strong corroboration of the claim we

are now making. He said (Trans, of Record, p. 2154)

:

" The California Development Company, by acquir-

** ing the title to the land at Hanlons, had acquired the

" only site for controlling headgates on the river below

" what is now known as the Laguna Dam. The site also

'' controls what might be called or termed the gate-way

" for the carrying of water into Mexico and through

'' Mexico again into the United States. By the terms

" of the concession from the Mexican Government to

*' the Mexican Company it ivas provided that no intake

" connecting ivith the Colorado River should he con-

" structed in Mexico until the plans of all proposed

" structures were first approved by the proper engi-

" neering authorities of Mexico."

Again Mr. Meserve said, speaking of a shortage of

water in Imperial Valley (Trans., pp. 2154-2155)

:

** This condition continued until matters became so

** serious, in June, 1904, that Mr. Rockwood stated to
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" Mr. Heher that he believed they would have to take

" the chance and cut a third intake from the river to the

" canal, about four miles below the boundary line, stat-

" ing that as the fall of the canal was so much more

" rapid than the fall of the river, lie believed there

" would be no trouble in keeping the intake open. The

" company had no money with which to build structures,

" and even if it had, there would not have been time

'^ either for the building of structures or the submit-

'' ting of plans for approval to the City of Mexico."

Again Mr. Meserve said (Trans., pp. 2155-2156)

:

" Mr. Rockwood and Mr. Heber made every effort

'' possible to get money sufficient to build the structures

" necessary to regulate this floiv, but before money could

*' be furnished the intake would be widened and the ex-

*' pense increased. Numerous efforts, however, were

" made with the means at hand, all proving failures."

It is not very clear when intake No. 2 was cut. Rock-

wood says (Trans, of Record, p. 1193) that intake No. 2

was opened in June, 1904. Heber says it was cut in the

spring of 1904. Mr. Meserve in his statement to the

Secretary of State said it was made in the early part

of 1904. Schuyler (Trans, of Record, p. 1313) said the

upper intakes, (referring to intakes 1 and 2) had been

left open during seasons of high water ; that one of them

had been left open during at least one season, and possi-

bly two seasons, without any headworks to control the

water. He also said he didn't consider that prudent.

The intake which was left open during the season of high

water must, of necessity, have been intake No. 2, and,
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therefore, intake No. 2 must have been made before, and

must have been open during, the summer floods of 1904.

Sexsmith said (Trans, of Record, p. 917 that intake

No. 2 was used from the time it was cut for probably

two years or two years and a half.

If intake No. 2 was used during the summer of 1904

—

and masmuch as the Chaffee gate always remained at in-

take No. 1, it is not possible that Mr. Schuyler can re-

fer to anj^thing but intake No. 2 as having been open

during the season of high water—the defendant is by

this fact alone convicted of criminal negligence. What

sort of prudence was manifested by the defendant and

those in charge of its operation when they allowed the

upper intakes to remain open during any flood season?

That fact of itself conclusively shows that Rockwood's

statement that he did not put a dam in intake No. 3

because he did not anticipate high water in February,

1905, is entirely lacking in candor. His conduct, in the

light of Schuyler's testimony, that the upper intakes

were open during seasons of high water, shows conclu-

sively that he had no intention of putting a dam in in-

take No. 3, but that he proposed to take his chances with

that intake just as he had with intake No. 2 during the

summer floods. It is true he put brush dams at intakes

Nos. 1 and 2, but they were not placed there for the pur-

pose of preventing water from entering the canal, but

rather for the purpose of forcing more water through

intake No. 3.
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He says (Trans, of Record, p. 1228) " I did not have

*' in mind the construction of dams to prevent floods

" from coming in there."

It is fairly, and in fact irresistibly, deducible from the

testimony of the defendant on this branch of the case

that it left intake No. 2 open during the flood season of

1904. It fairly, and in fact irresistibly, follows from

defendant's testimony that that intake was made prior

to the summer floods of 1904, and there is absolutely

nothing in the record to indicate that any obstruction

was placed at its head, except a temporary obstruction

placed there in December, 1904, for the purpose, as has

heretofore been said, of forcing more water into intake

No. 3.

In his statement made to the Secretary of State

—

made as the attorney for, and on behalf of, the Cali-

fornia Development Company—Mr. Meserve said

(Trans, of Record, p. 2155)

:

** In the latter part of June or the early part of July,

* 1904, before making this connection, Mr. Rockwood

* stated to Mr. Heber, the president of the company,

* that if he was furnished with lumber with which to

* build a controlling gate one month before the time

* when floods were to be expected, he would not have to

* close the intake even in the tvinter season. This Mr.

' Heber promised he would furnish, expecting to be able

* to do so, but the financial condition of the company

* continued to be such that he was never able to fur-

* nish the material for this temporary structure. This

' lower intake silted up once and had to be dredged in
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'' order to keep the water flowing there through. The

*' floods in the fall of 1904 came earlier than usual with

'' the result that the opening at this third intake began

'* to wash and the inflow to increase and from that day

" until the close of 1906 the condition continued to grow

" worse. By the middle of December, 1904, sufficient

*' water was going into the canal through this lower

*' intake to pass into the New River and on through th^^

*' New River into the Salton Sink, starting ivhat has

*' since been known as the Salton Sea."

Of course it will not be claimed for a moment that

there was any flood condition or any high water during

December, 1904. The highest gauge reading during that

month was 19.10. (1904 Record, p. 24.)

Mr. Meserve, referring to Chaffee's management of

the defendant, said (Trans., pp. 2152-2153): "Instead

" of doing this he built what might be called only a

" temporary canal, and with a heading which never wan

" of any service, and so handled the securities which the

" company acquired from the parties to whom it sold

" water rights, and the moneys received, tliat in De-

*' cember, 1901, the stockholders of the company found

" that he and his associates were taking from the com-

" pany everything that it was taking in, and that they

" were not expending one dollar of their own money in

'
' developing the company 's property. * * *

" The result of necessity was that the system con-

" structed was not what it ought to have been or what

" it would have been if the funds and property of the

" company had been proj^erly used instead of being
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" diverted into the private hands of the former manage-

'' ment."

It is an admitted fact that the highest water ever

known in Colorado River was in February, 1891. That

was not only the highest spring flood, but it was the

highest flood known in the history of the river.

In attempting to excuse his recklessness in leaving open

a cut connecting the river with the canal of the de-

fendant, Rockwood said (Trans, of Record, p. 1201) that

he had no records which would lead him to believe that

the river would rise in January. This answer followed

a statement made by the witness with a great deal of

care, as to the investigation which he had undertaken

and pursued to ascertain the conditions prevailing,

and which had prevailed for many years, in order that

he might fully acquaint himself as to what was neces-

sary to be done to prudently divert water from the river.

He did say that "the record shows some danger from

** floods during February and March from the Gila."

(Trans, of Record, p. 1234.)

'* During the past thirty years, there is one year in

" which a flood of any moment has come down from the

" Gila." (Trans, of Record, p. 1234.)

'* The only record I have of a heavy flood coming

" down the Colorado and the Gila was the flood of

" 1891." (Trans, of Record, p. 1235.)

*' You can ordinarily assume that the rod records of

" the Yuma gauge which would show a rise during the

" month of February would come from the Gila."

(Trans, of Record, p. 1235.)
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*' Q. And the only record you have of any Colorado

" flood in February was in that same February of 1891,

" when there was a concurrence of flood stages in both

'' rivers?

*' A. Yes, of course, there would be some rise."

(Trans, of Record, p. 1236.)

" Before I went on with this work I made a critical

'' examination of the gauge record from 1878.

" My recollection is there were two years when there

'

' was a flood in February or March : 1884 and 1891.

*'I did not discover until today that in 1895 the maxi-

'' mum height was reached on January 20th." (Trans, of

Record, p. 1364-1365.)

This does not mean the maximum height for January,

but it is the maximum height for the year.

Rockwood's statement with reference to the care dis-

played by him to get information regarding conditions

which had existed during previous years was very elab-

orate. He began with the statement that there was but

one year when there had been a spring flood. On cross

examination, his attention undoubtedly having been

directed meantime to the record, he found that there

were two years during which there were spring floods,

namely, 1884 and 1891; but he still did not discover that

during the year 1895 the maximum height of the river

for that year was reached on the 20th of Januarj^ This

is a very significant fact because it was not until after

February, 1905, that any effort or attempt was made to

close the third intake.
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Another very peculiar feature develops in the testi-

mony of Rockwood. He realized that it would be rather

awkward for him if a spring flood, very much less in

volume than the spring flood of 1891, should widen his

canal beyond repair. He knew, or probably knew, that

he could not by a mere statement that he did not antici-

pate high water, escape the responsibility for the action

of a flood for which there were three precedents. It iis

interesting to contemplate his effort to get out of this

predicament. He says (Trans, of Record, p. 1241)

:

*' The effect of the February flood on the third intake

* was, it amounted to practically nothing as far as

' either widening or deepening the intake was con-

* cerned. '

' And he says again, '

' the effect of the second

* flood upon the canal was to enlarge it somewhat. To

' what extent I am not able to state now, but nothing

' that alarmed me at all. It was not widened material-

My." (Trans, of Record, pp. 1246-1247.)

This brings us down to about the first of April, so that

according to Rockwood from the time that high water

came in February until the first of April, the canal had

not been enlarged so as to alarm him.

Again he says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1246-1247)

:

*' The canal was not broken by the February flood

" from the outside at any place. I don't think the canal

*

' broke at all from the March flood.
'

'

It follows from this that the water which went down

the canal passed through the intakes, and was not over-

flow water. It was not water which found its way into

the canal after overflowing the banks of the river.
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Again Rockwood says (Trans, of Record, p. 1257:

" I do not remember that in the April flood the canal

" broke at any place below the intake."

And now mark what he says (Trans, of Record, p.

1354)

:

" I didn't think it made any difference whether the

" February flood came or not. If a flood came in Feb-

" ruary I had every reason to believe it would be of

'' short duration."

He did then anticipate a February flood, and as Mr.

Meserve says in effect in his Washington statement

'

' took the chance on his ability to control it.
'

'

It was not, according to Rockwood, that he did not an-

ticipate that a flood might come at that season of the

year, but he did not think any damage would result from

such a flood. Probably because he had left intake No. 2

open during the high floods of 1904, and fortunately no

damage was done to the salt company, he concluded to

take the same chance on the third intake for the Febru-

ary flood, the possibility of which he clearly recognized.

Indeed he says (Trans, of Record, p. 1355) :
" I would

" not have feared such a flood as that of February,

'' 1891."

Confessedly the flood of 1905 was not comparable to

the flood of 1891. What value is to be attached to the

statement of an engineer who will say that, anticipating

the possibility of a flood like that of 1891, the highest

flood that ever occurred in the Colorado River, he would
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not have considered it imprudent to open tlie third in-

take and leave it without protection.

We do not need the advice of an engineer as to

whether it was prudent or imprudent to connect a canal

with a river like the Colorado at a point where this third

intake was located. Common sense tells us that it was

highly imprudent, and any engineer who will say that

it was not imprudent robs himself of the right to any

respect.

Sexsmith says (Trans, of Record, p. 1045)

:

** The canal from the third intake was originally

'' dredged to a width of 50 feet." He made an effort

to close the intake after high water came, and after that

effort had failed and when he began the second effort,

the canal had widened to 125 feet. (Trans, of Record, p.

927.)

It is impossible to reconcile the statements of Sex-

smith and Rockwood on this subject, and it would not

serve any useful purpose to further point out the dis-

crepancies between them.

The Geological Survey Record shows that the canal

must have been enlarged with the first high water. No

other explanation can be afforded for the quantity of

water diverted after the middle of February. But long

before high water came the property of complainant was

materially damaged and some of it entirely destroyed.

According to Rockwood (Trans, of Record, p. 1244)

the first dam placed or attempted to be placed at intake

No. 3 was washed away by a March flood. According to
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the gauge record the highest water between the 1st and

the 15th of March was 26.70 feet, the river remaining at

that height for only one day, namely, the 3rd of March.

The next high water in March was on the 16th, when the

gauge read 26.10. On the 17th it was 27.35 ; on the 19th

it was 28 ; and on the 20th it was 30.25.

On the 18th of January of that year the water reached

the maximum height for the month at 23.95. It remained

below that figure until the 8th of February, when it

reached 28, and on the 9th of February it reached 28.75.

An examination of the gauge readings from the time

when Rockwood says the first flood occurred down to the

3rd of April will show that no substantial reason existed

for the failure to build a dam or gate at intake No. 3

except the indifference of the defendant or its inability

to obtain the necessary means to prosecute the work.

There is no doubt that about the 1st of June, 1905, Mr.

Perry began the construction of a dam and prosecuted

the work for some time. This work was actually going

on the 5th day of June, 1905, when Mr. Sherman, Mr.

Duryea and Mr. Wynn of the Engineering Department

of the Southern Pacific Company were at the intake. On

that day the gauge registered 28.3. There was no over-

flow of the banks at that time. If work could have been

prosecuted with the gauge registering 28.3, no plausible

excuse for the failure to close the break before the 3rd

of April is to be found in the record. If Perry and his

men could work without difficulty with the gauge read-

ing 28.3, how many days were there between the first of

February and the third of April, 1905, when work could

not have been prosecuted?
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If the point is deemed to be of sufficient importance

an examination of the record will show that no engineer

was actually in charge of the work upon the ground until

the cut had widened to such dimensions as to make it

I^ractically impossible to control the flow, even with un-

limited money, men and material.

Unless we conclude that the defendant was desirous

of working injury to somebody, there must be some

reason for its apathy between February 1st and April

3rd. That reason is supplied by the testimony of Schuy-

ler, one of its own witnesses, who says (Trans, of Rec-

ord, p. 1316) that the reason why some of the work was

not prosecuted in good season was that the defendant

did not have the material with which to do it. The ma-

terial was not on hand with which to prosecute the work.

The third intake was cut in utter disregard of the pro-

visions of the concession.

The failure of the defendant to erect headworks to

control the flow of water in the canal was nothing short

of criminal negligence. We have referred to the testi-

mony of Duryea to the effect that it was not safe to

construct any one of the three intakes leading into the

canal without controlling works.

Hawgood, a witness for defendant, said (Trans, of

Record, pp. 1146-1148)

:

" If cuts were made in the bank of the river without

" protection, the tendency would be for them to cut

" wider with rising water, and if the water is high

'' enough and there is a considerable current in the cut
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" it will have a washing effect, and if the cuts are ex-

*' pected to be permanent, they should be jarotected

" against that effect in some way. To prevent a larger

*' flow into the intake it is necessary there should be

" some way of controlling the flow. I consider the con-

" struction of intakes on the banks of the Colorado

'' River without provision for controlling the flow of the

'' water very much of an experiment."

Why should Mr. Hawgood consider it an experiment?

He didn 't know anything more about the conditions than

Rockwood claimed to know when he made the cuts.

Hawgood then says (Trans, of Record, p. 1148):

" But if I had succeeded in doing it before I would

" have attempted to do it again. If I had been success-

" ful I would be tempted to take chances on it."

Will any one claim that yielding to temptation to take

chances in a work of this nature is good engineering?

When an engineer takes chances in a business of this

nature he throws discretion and judgment to the winds.

It is true Rockwood said he took the chance because

he had done it successfully once. But that is no sufficient

reason why he should have shown such hardihood a

second time. He took a chance according to Hawgood

when he made the first cut. It was just as bad judg-

ment, just as criminally negligent, for him to take the

first chance as it was to take the second or the third.

The third intake was cut in October, 1904. It was

claimed by Rockwood that plans for a gate at the head
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of this intake were made in November, 1904; in other

words, one month after the cut was actually made.

According to Mr. Meserve's statement, defendant had

no authority to cut the intake until plans for a gate had

been prepared and approved by the Republic of Mexico.

Rockwood said (Trans, of Record, p. 1352)

:

" It appeared to me entirely reasonable to cut the

" banks of the river so as to connect it with the canal,

'* and some time after I had cut the banks I prepared

'' plans for a gate, which plans I knew would have to

*' be sent to the City of Mexico for approval. After I

*' had cut the banks I prepared plans for a gate."

" After the February flood the river fell, so that the

'* work of constructing a gate, could have been carried

'

' on. It was not carried on, because we did not have the

" approval of Mexico. We did not have the approval

" of Mexico when we cut the river bank and turned the

*' water into the canal.

" Q. Was it more important in your opinion that

*' you should have the permission of Mexico to construct

'* that headgate than you should have its permission to

" cut the banks and let the waters flow out of the river?

** A. It would take very much longer to construct

*' the headgate than to cut the channel through to the

'' river, and apparently there was no particular danger,

*' and seemingly there was no danger in cutting the

'* channel through into the river. I did not think it

'' made any difference whether the February flood came

" or not. If a flood came in February I had every

'' reason to believe that it would be of but short dura-
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'^ tion, also that if it did, I would have ample time to

** close the channel between the time of such flood and

'' the rise of the summer flood." (Trans, of Record, pp.

1353-1355.)

This statement is entirely inconsistent with the claim

that Rockwood did not anticipate a February flood. It

is impossible to reconcile this with the statement else-

where made by him that he had no reason to anticipate

high water at that season of the year. He did anticipate

high water and speculated upon the effect it would have

upon the canal. Admitting, inferentially at least, that

he anticipated high water at that season of the year, he

said (Trans, of Record, p. 1352)

:

" What I might not have anticipated was a succession

" of floods such as had never happened before in the

" history of the river."

It is to be borne in mind that it was the February

flood, the flood which Rockwood anticipated, which did

the damage. An inspection of the records of the Geo-

logical Survey shows beyond controversy that the vol-

ume of water which was flowing to Salton Sink through

the intakes in February was sufficient to account for

much of the damage suffered by the complainant.

Again Rockwood says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1352-

1355)

:

** All the floods had a tendency to enlarge the channel.

*' My recollection is that the February flood did not wid-

'* en the channel. I would not have feared such a flood

*' as that of February, 1891."
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As has heretofore been said, the largest flood that

ever occurred in the history of the Colorado was that of

February, 1891. That is the flood which, according to

the defendant's experts, caused the formation of a lake

in Salton Sink in 1891. How Rockwood can reconcile

the history of the flood of 1891 with the claim that it

was not imprudent to cut the third intake and leave it

open during February, 1905, is hard to understand. He

said (Trans, of Record, pp. 1356-1357)

:

" If an engineer had known of the flood of February,

'* 1891, and the extent of that flood, and had reason to

" believe that it might repeat itself, it would not have

'* been imprudent for him to cut the river and to allow

*' water to flow into the canal, which was not to be pro-

" tected by a headgate, and have left it in that condi-

'' tion from October, 1904, until February, 1905."

We have heretofore called attention to the fact that,

on direct examination, Rockwood said there was but one

year prior to 1905 when there was high water in the

spring of the year. The government records show that

there were three years prior to 1905 when high water

occurred in January, February and March. When these

records were called to his attention, and he was asked

whether, in view of the facts disclosed, he considered it

prudent to cut the third intake and leave it open, he re-

plied (Trans, of Record, p. 1367)

:

*^ I consider that prudent engineering for the reason

'' that I am jDositive that one flood would not have in-

'' jured the canal or have opened it up."
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Eockwood says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1369-1370)

when questioned with reference to the prudence or lack

of prudence in connecting the canal with the river with-

out any headgate to control the flow: "It was always

" the intention to construct headgates. Plans were got-

'

' ten up for it. It was considered a portion of the canal

" system. There may have been discussions with Fer-

" gusson, Beatty, Chaffee and Heber with reference

*' to the necessity of headgates to control the flow of

" water into the canal. I knew that headgates would

" have to be put in, and so advised my associates. Those

" headgates were to be put in to prevent the flow into

" the canal of more water than was needed for irriga-

'

' tion. Mr. Chaffee built the first at intake No. 1, which

" was the only gate ever built until 1906. There was

" no gate built at intake No. 2, nor at intake No. 3."

He said (Trans, of Record, p. 1347) that the break

could have been closed in 1905 by the means that were

successfully adoi3ted in 1906 and 1907. And further:

(Trans, of Record, p. 1389): "During the latter part

" of 1904 we had money enough to make provision to

" prevent the water from flowing into the canal, but we

" did not have time. It was necessary, in order to get

" water for the use of the people at Imperial, to get the

" intake through there at once. A gate could not have

" been constructed inside of three or four months."

It was not that Rockwood did not recognize the neces-

sity for the gate, but all of these quotations go to em-

phasize the fact that he was willing, in the language of

Mr. Hawgood, "to take chances on it".
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Again he says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1389-1391)

:

" When I cut the banks in October, I knew a gate

'
' could not be constructed inside of three or four months.

" I recognized there was a possibility of high water

" in January, February and March. I would not call it

" a probability, unless the chances were in favor of a

'' flood. I thought it perfectly proper to make the cut

** under the circumstances, because I did not believe that

'' the flood coming in February or March or January

" would so open the channel as to do any particular

" harm to any of the interests. I thought it prudent to

" make this cut because. I had closed practically the

*' same kind of a channel three times before."

(Trans, of Record, pp. 1403-1404): "The third in-

" take was cut because it was the belief that it was nec-

" essary to do so in order to furnish the people of Im-

** perial Valley with a sufficient amount of water for

" their use during the seasons of 1904-1905. Notwith-

'

' standing my very careful investigation, and the efforts

" which I made to ascertain the conditions existing, T

" did not until today discover the fact that there had

" been high water in January in any year."

(Trans, of Record, pp. 1576-1577) : "At all times dur-

" ing Mr. Fergusson's connection Vv^ith the defendant, I

" was supposed to be in control, at least of its engineer-

" ing force; part of the time I was vice president."

We now call attention to the testimony of Mr. Follett,

a witness for the defendant, given in answer to a very

long question propounded by counsel for defendant. He
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consideration an engineer was justified in making this

cut, to which he answered (Trans, of Record, p. 1516)

:

" My answer is that I believe he would have been jus-

" tified. 1 think I would have done it myself if I had

*' been in his place, and my reasons for it are these:

'' In an irrigation enterprise a man has to take chances

'
' generally which he would not take in other engineering

" work, for the reason that funds are generally scarce;

" that the monej^ put into the enterprise has got to lie

'' there a number of years, at least, waiting for settlers

*' coming in under the enterprise, before he can get any

'' return. So the engineer must spend money carefully.

" In this particular case it ivould, of course, have been

*' the best and wisest policy to have built a steel con-

*' Crete headgate at Ilanlons before the canal ivas

" opened, to have built that canal full size all the way
" down, to have arranged sand gates for taking the

" water out at quails cuts, and done a lot of other things

*' that would have cost a whole big sum of money, and

'^ then sat down and waited until settlers came into the

'' valley before you got any return on your investment;

" or, if you had borrowed the money, in the meantime
** you would be paying interest on it. But there is not

" one case in a hundred where that can be done. In this

'* case it could not be done. A temporary gate was
'' built, and built too high. They had to make an open

^' cut around it. That open cut was in a sharp bend,

'' and the water ran through it in a whirlpool."
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Is it for Mr. Follett to tell us, or are we to believe,

that that sort of thing is prudent ? Counsel on the other

side will probably say that the fact that the water went

through that cut like a whirlpool without doing any

serious damage is evidence of the fact that the act was

prudent, notwithstanding the fact that Follett a little

later on says that the cut was made upon a quicksand

foundation. (Trans, of Record, p. 1518.)

The defendant is convicted by Follett of the grossest

sort of imprudence for, instead of pursuing what he says

was the wisest policy, namely, that of putting in a gate

before the canal was connected with the river, defendant

cut a by-pass in a bend in a quicksand foundation and

let the water go round it like a whirlpool, and continued

that policy for three years.

Another witness who testified on this subject for de-

fendant was Mr. Schuyler. He said (Trans, of Record,

pp. 1310-1313): ''The break at the third intake could

" have been prevented by building controlling works.

" Q. Is that the reason the break occurred, the fact

'^ that there were no controlling works?

" A. TJiat and the volume of water that was in the

*' river.

" Q. No matter how great the volume of the water,
'

' could not the break have been prevented if proper con-

" trolling works had been constructed before the high

** water came?

" A. Certainly.

'^ Q. Would that have been prudent engineering, in

*' your opinion?
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'' A. Yes.

" Q. Was it not very imprudent engineering not to

'' have done that, in your oj^inionl

" A. It is work that should have been done with the

" possibility

'' Q. Now, Mr. Schuyler, answer the question, and

*' then you can make your explanation. Was it not very

'^ imprudent engineering not to do that work before the

" high water came?

"A. I don't know that I care to criticise it so

'' severely as that. It was always recognized by Mr.

" Rockwood and me as necessary to construct a gate.

" The upper intakes had been opened during seasons of

" high water."

Schuyler was consulting engineer for this enterprise

from the early part of 1904, and said that the upper in-

takes had been open during seasons of high water; that

one of them had been left open during at least one sea-

son, and possibly two seasons of high water without any

headworks having been constructed. (Trans, of Record,

p. 1313.)

He says further (Trans, of Record, p. 1313-) : "I
^' didn't consider that prudent, no. I always preferred

" that controlling gates should be put in all intakes of

** that sort, although the necessity for them was not so

** emphatically evident because of the repeated and per-

" sistent filling of the channel or the canal by silt."

On this same subject Schuyler said (Trans, of Record,

pp. 1314-1320) : "The fact that one channel leading out
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tion that another channel would not be enlarged, but

there was no intention of leaving this lower intake

without a gate, without control. Headgates could have

been constructed within thirty days after the material

was on the ground, and it would take ordinarily four

to six weeks to get the material on the ground. I would

say that within ten weeks at the outside from the

time the material was ordered, a gate could have been

constructed which would have controlled the flow of

the water into the canal.

** Q. As consulting engineer for the company, there

is no reason that now suggests itself to your mind why

that gate was not constructed within ten weeks from

the time when the river bank was cut, so as to allow

water to flow into the canal I

" A. The only reason I know is the fact that the

Mexican Government had not approved the plans for

the gate. I think the Mexican Government approved

the plans for the gate in December, 1905, about thir-

teen months after the channel had been cut.

" The material composing the banks of the Colorado

River is rather unstable, the river changes its channel

very frequently, very suddenly.

'' Q. Do you say it is prudent to connect a canal or

channel with a stream that has that inclination before

you make any provision to control the flow into the

channel 1

''A. In this particular locality there had been no in-

dication of a change in the channel for a long time.

Its banks were quite permanent. '

'
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Here it may be well to suggest that Mr. Cory, an-

other witness for the defendant, said that the point

where this third intake was cut was the place from, which

in 1891 the water got from the Colorado into the Alamo.

Again Schuyler says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1321-

1328): "The gauge records of 1891 show very high

" water in February. It was prudent in constructing a

" canal leading out of a stream of that kind to assume

" that an extraordinary condition might occur again. It

" would not have been considered prudent to assume
*

' that extraordinary conditions might not occur again.

" Q. From an engineering standpoint, is it not a

*' fact that the only reason why that break occurred was

" that there were no headgates constructed in that

" canal?

" A. That ivas certainly the starter of the break. I

" am not prepared to say that by extraordinary floods

" like 1905, a new channel might not have broken out

" that might have made a new channel.

" Q. Is it not a fact that the only reason that that

" break occurred in that channel was that no headgates

" were constructed in the channel?

"A. I know it is fair to assume that if there had
*' been headgates in that channel, the channel ivould not

'' have enlarged to carry the entire river as it did.

" Assuming that there had been headgates, there is

" no certainty as to the effect which the overflow of the

" river would have had upon the canal."

As bearing upon this last answer of Schuyler's, it is

well to have in mind a portion of Rockwood's testimony
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previously quoted. He spoke of the February, March

and April floods and said they did not break the banks

of the canal. The fact is that when the banks of the

canal broke in February, March or April, they broke

from the inside, that is to say, because of the pressure

of water from the inside, and not because of any over-

flow water causing pressure from the outside.

Going back now to Schuyler, he said (Trans, of Rec-

ord, pp. 1328-1332)

:

"It is certain that the break was enlarged, the chan-

'* net was enlarged because of the absence of headgates.

" Q. It is certain that nearly the entire flow of the

water in the Colorado River was diverted into that

canal because no headgates were put in there when the

river banks were cut, is it not 1

" A. Well, that is another ivay of putting the same

question.

" Q. Do you wish to be understood as saying that,

in your opinion as an engineer, no works could have

been constructed there that would control the flow of

water into the canal?

" A. No, I do not. A gate connected ivith a strong

levee system that would have prevented any over-

flow at all on the west side of the river would have

prevented any water getting through this channel, but

without a levee system the gate would not have pre-

vented and controlled the flow

" Q. The construction of a gate would not have ag-

gravated the condition? In other words, it would not

have made it worse than if the river had been left in

its original condition?
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" A. Oh, no. So far as I know there were no phys-

ical obstacles preventing the construction of a gate

which would have entirely controlled the flow of water

into the channel, prior to the 15th of January, 1905.

That was the plan which I advised Mr. Rockwood to

follow.

" Q. And unless you had understood that a headgate

was to have been constructed immediately so as to

control the foiv of the water into the channel, you

never icoukl have consented that the river banks

should be cut, would youf

*' A. Probably not. We never anticipated any diffi-

culty in getting the gate in and controlling the river.

I advised Mr. Rockwood that a gate was necessary

several tijnes."

And yet according to Mr. Bockwood, the thought of

the necessity of a gate never entered his head.

" Q. You say the plans for closing the break were

'' feasible. Why did they fail?" (Trans, of Record,

p. 1332.)

Bear this in mind, because it has something of a bear-

ing on the testimony of Mr. Eockwood and Mr. Sexsmith

as to the sufficiency of the material at all times to prose-

cute all needed work down there.

'' Why did it fail?

'' A. Because of the long delay in getting to work, in

" getting supplies. In the meantime the channel had en-

'' larged. The principal occasion for the long delay was

** the substitution of Mr. Edinger's plan for that of Mr.

'' Rockwood, for which the manager or president of the
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" company was responsible." (Trans, of Record, p.

1332.)

In view of this showing by defendant's witnesses, it is

asking a good deal of the Court to say that defendant's

operations were carried on prudently from an engineer-

ing standpoint.

The defendant admits that a very large quantity of

water which passed through its intakes reached the prop-

erty of complainant and caused very serious damage;

but it claims that if the water had not flowed through the

intakes and reached complainant's land, it would have

overflowed the banks of the river and finally reached the

land and would have worked the same damage as was

caused by the water which flowed through the intakes.

That, of course, is pure speculation, and was so held to

be by the Court below.

Cory, one of the defendant's witnesses, said (Trans,

of Record, pp. 1672-1674)

:

*' Practically most of our testimony is speculation in

' this case. It is a matter of assuming certain conditions

* in accordance with the best knowledge we have on the

' subject, and then figuring what would happen. I am
' not sure of anj^thing down there, because I don't know

' anything about them except by hearsay. I know the

' situation and I know the channel as it existed then

' connected with the river, and in seasons of high water

' an enormous volume of water would go down the

' canal."

(Trans, of Record, pp. 1692-1693) : ''It is a fact that

** at seasons of high water, and medium and low water
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'

' for the last two years, water has flowed into the Salton

" Sink from the Colorado River. A great deal of it got

*' there from the Paradones River, via Volcano Lake,

" but not in seasons of low water."

Again he says (Trans, of Record, p. 1693) : "In low

" water it got down there through the Alamo channel

" and reached the Alamo channel through the Mexican
'

' intake No. 2 and the Mexican intake No. 3. That
'

' flow into Salton Sink was very considerable.

" Q. Would any of it have gotten in there if it hadn't

" been for intake Number 2 and intake Number 3?

'

' A. That is the very point. '

'

The witness then goes into a long explanation about

the deposit of silt, and states that what happened was

that the Alamo channel became enlarged right where

the cut was and the river went down tliat channel. And

yet Mr. Follett says it was perfectly prudent to make the

cut at that particular place.

Again Cory says (Trans, of Record, pp. 1696-1697)

:

' I don't believe that a little cut 50 feet wide that silted

' up twice, like everything else in those canals, is re-

' sponsible for that great big change. I think one flood,

' or two floods, or three floods, would not have done it,

' but I think the succession of floods that came down
' here since 1904 and 1905 and 1906 enlarged the chan-

' nel.

*' Q. Of course we know that as a fact. About that

'^ there can be no speculation?

"A. Exactly."
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Again (Trans, of Record, p. 1697)

:

*' Q. Can one say it would have happened if the little

" cut had not been made?
*' A. No; but, on the other hand, I don't think one

'
' can say the reverse. '

'

And again (Trans, of Record, p. 1697-1698)

:

'' It is more than probable that the little cut contribu-

** ted to the enlarged channel. To what extent I am not

*' prepared to say.

" Q. Why are you unable to say that the little cut

'' was not entirely responsible?

" A. Because there is considerable probability that it

'

' would have happened without it.

" Q. That is speculation again, isn't it?

" A. That is what we are dealing in most of the

" time."

Again (Trans, of Record, p. 1753) : "It is improbable

" but not impossible that the same conditions which ex-

" isted in 1891 might have existed in a subsequent year

" or in a former year and not have produced the same

'' result with reference to the flooding of Salton Sink."

And then he goes on (Trans, of Record, p. 1754)

:

*' From conditions existing in one year you can't prog-

" nosticate with absolute certainty as to what might ex-

^' ist in another year so far as the flooding of Salton

'' Sink is concerned."

It is fair to say of this testimony that it is of such a

speculative character as that it is impossible for the

Court to adopt it as a rule or guide.
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It was claimed by the defendant in tlie Court below

that if it had not dug the canal nor opened an intake

connecting the canal with the river, nevertheless on ac-

count of the high water which prevailed in 1905 and

1906, the overflow from the river would inevitably have

reached Salton Sink and destroyed complainant's prop-

erty. In support of that claim much testimony was

offered for the purpose of showing the probable overflow

of the river during those two years. No one pretends to

know what the overflow was in fact, nor the gauge height

at which the river overflowed its banks.

While having in mind the highly speculative nature of

defendant's testimony as to the destruction that would

probably have been suffered by complainant from the

high water of 1905 and 1906, it must not be overlooked

that, before the very high water came in 1905, the prop-

erty of complainant had been practically destroyed. The

testimony of Mr. Drury, a witness for complainant,

—

which stands in the record, we think, without any con-

tradiction—shows the following facts (Trans, of Record,

pp. 1968-1970) : On the 31st day of October, 1904, water

appeared in Salton Sink about four or five miles from

Salton. On November 1st the water was about one mile

from the end of the Salt Company's railroad track. On

November 7th the water was coming with a rush on sec-

tion 34. On November 14tli it reached and covered all of

the salt deposit to a depth of three inches. On the 15th

the witness planned a levee to protect the salt mills and

the piles of salt. On the 21st the water was four

inches from the rails of the Salt Company's track on

the marsh. On the 9th of January, 1905, it reached a
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point about 600 or 700 feet from the mill. On the 11th

it was at the main levee around the mill, works and

buildings. On February 7th the levee, which had been

thrown up to protect the works against the water, was

badly damaged. On March 5th the levee broke and much

salt was destroyed. On March 7th the water was two

feet deep on the tracks at the mill. On March 26th the

mill buildings were destroyed and the warehouse was

completely destroyed. On May 3rd all of the build-

ings below the main mill were destroyed. On August

25th the water was on the floor of the store. On Sep-

tember 3rd it was in the library. On September 6th all

buildings, except the dwelling houses and offices, were

destroyed. On October 13tli the temporary mill—which

had been erected on account of the flood conditions—was

washed away. On October 25th all of the buildings were

about gone ; and on October 27th all of the buildings had

completely disappeared.

It appears from this testimony, which, as we have

said, is not contradicted, that by the 26th of March,

1905—up to which date there had been no exceedingly

high water in the Colorado; at any rate, if high water

had prevailed it did not last for a protracted period

—

the property of complainant was practically destroyed.

The record will be searched in vain for any explanation

of the cause of this great damage and injury to com-

plainant other than the reckless method pursued by de-

fendant in the conduct of its operations.

For the purpose of making a comparison between the

quantity of overflow in 1891 and in 1905, some of defend-
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ant's witnesses assumed that in 1891 the river over-

flowed when the gauge reached 22. As to the fact, we

know nothing. No one testified that in 1891 the river

overflowed when the gauge reached 22. No one knows

what the condition of the bed of the river was in 1891.

No one knows what conditions prevailed at the time the

overflow began in 1891, except that the river did over-

flow its banks in February of that year, and that there

was also an overflow of the banks during the summer of

that year.

Much stress was laid by the other side upon a state-

ment which appears to have been made by ]\lr. Sher-

man that he was at the intake at one time when the

water was overflowing the banks when the gauge regis-

tered 22.5. Sherman afterwards said that he had at-

tempted to find that date, but could not find any date

when he was there that the gauge registered 22.5. He

was there on the 5th of June, 1905, when Mr. Perry was

prosecuting the work of attempting to close the break

and when the gauge registered 28.3, and when admit-

tedly—we say "admittedly" because it has not been de-

nied—there was very little water overflowing the banks

in the vicinity of the intakes.

Walter D. Smith, one of the defendant's witnesses,

said (Trans, of Record, p. 868): "When the gauge

" reaches 24 or 25 the river overflows in the vicinity of

" the Headings."

Whether he meant a general overflow or not, we do

not know.
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Heber said :

'

'My opinion was the river did not over-

flow until it got about 27 feet—26 or 27 feet gauge

height at Yuma. I know that when the river is at

about 25 to 26 feet, our canals have kept out the flood

right along."

Cory said (Trans, of Record, pp. 1656-1663): "It is

a fact that at the present time it requires a gauge

reading very much above 23 at Yuma to cause a gen-

eral overflow of the river in the vicinity of the break.

" Q. Will you not say it requires a gauge reading of

at least 26 at Yuma in order to bring about a general

overflow all along the banks, making it impossible for

a man to walk along the banks'?

"A. I really don't know, but I should say it would

be pretty much there. I should say, to take a guess

at it, 26 would be about right; but that contemplates

an overflow which overflows the entire length of the

bank, and then the water along portions of the bank

would be very shallow in some places. There would

be some little islands. With knee boots a man would

have no difficulty in making his way along. When the

Yuma gauge read 26.4, I would say that for four miles

above and four miles below the dam, one-third of the

banks was entirely submerged. If you describe a gen-

eral overflow as one which covers the banks entirely,

it is necessary that the gauge at Yuma should register

more than 26.4."

Again (Trans, of Record, pp. 1735-1736)

:

*' Q. And at best one gets into the realm of specula-

" tion when he attempts to say that any given reading
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" of the gauge would indicate a general overflow of the

'* river, does he not?

"A. It is not certain at all, but I hardly think it is

" fair to consider it speculative, because if we were to

'

' do that, practically all of our hydraulic determinations

" as to quantities of water would be classed as specuia-

*' tive, until recent years, throughout the west."

Again (Trans, of Eecord, p. 1794) : "After the break

'

' was first closed in November, 1906, the bed of the river

" below the break scoured about three and a half feet."

No one can tell just what effect the piling of three and

one-half feet of silt in the bed of the river just below the

intake had upon the overflow of the river above that

point. That it had a very decided effect, no one will

deny. That was a condition brought about by the de-

fendant. Complainant was not responsible for it. Na-

ture was not responsible for it. It cannot be attributed

to any natural condition. Defendant was, therefore,

directly responsible for so much of the overflow as was

caused by the piling up of that silt.

Cory said (Trans, of Record, p. 1795): "The silt in

" the river did not account for the overflow entirely at

" that point in 1906. It simply meant a greater height

" of overflow than otherwise would have occurred."

Yet all of defendant's engineers used the overflow

of 1905 and 1906—or rather the supposed overflow

—

brought about very largely by the piling up of that silt

in the river due to the operations of defendant, for the

purpose of showing that a very large quantity of over-
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flow water probably found its way into Salton Sink in

1905 and 1906.

Mr. Duryea said (Trans, of Eecord, pp. 1827-1830)

;

I visited the river in June, 1905. At the third intake

on June 5, 1905, Mr. Sherman and Mr. Wynn were

with me. Tlie bank was caving then on the down-

stream side of the intake. The bank was visible above

the water. It is my conviction the bank must have

been two feet above water at that time. I am positive

it was more than one foot. The gauge height which I

have from my own notes, as well as the government

records, was 28,3. At that time the height of water

on the Yuma gauge which would have been necessary

to overflow the land just to the south and just to the

north of the third intake would have been about 130

feet (a gauge reading of 30). This is not a matter of

doubt with me, not a matter of opinion and belief in

the ordinary sense ; it is a matter of certainty with me.

'' Q. How did you get about there?

** A. We walked about.

" Q. Where did you walk?

" A. We walked about in the neighborhood of the

' north bank, or the upstream bank, of the intake, in the

' immediate neighborhood of where Mr. Perry was do-

' ing the work. There was a large number of Indians

' working there at the time. Some were cutting brush

' and some were placing brush on the barrier. The
' bank was not wet at the intake. My recollection is

' that back in the woods there were many wet spots,

' but no general overflow. '

'
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All of the witnesses for defendant who testified to the

quantity of overflow water which would probably have

reached ISalton Sink in iyU5 and 1906, even though the

canal and intakes of defendant had not existed, assumed

that there would have been a general overflow of the

river when the gauge stood at 23. in tiiis connection it

is well to remember that Rockwood testified that the

third intake was opened between the first and fifteenth

of October, 1904, and when asked for some explanation

for cutting the intake without first installing a gate, he

said there was no reason to anticipate high water at that

time. On the 17th day of October the gauge read 22.35.

The record finds Mr. Rockwood in a very awkward

dilemma. If a gauge reading of 23 meant a general over-

flow of the banks of the river, then the overflow point

had about been reached within a few days after they

began to use the third intake. On the other hand, if 23

was not the gauge reading at which there was a general

overflow of the banks, the figures presented by defend-

ant's experts to show the quantity of overflow water

which would have reached Salton Sink in 1905 and 1906

are altogether incomplete and unreliable. In other words,

the kej^stone of their structure is gone.

As heretofore said, all this testimony,—and that was

the conclusion of his Honor Judge Wellborn—is of the

most highly speculative nature and cannot be relied up-

on to establish the conditions which defendant claims to

have existed.

Cory admitted, rather reluctantly, that it was not at

all certain that a given reading of the gauge would in-
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dicate a general overflow of the river. There is nothing

in the record that establishes the unreliability of the

gauge record as a guide to determine the height at which

the river will ovei*flow at the intake better than the

record itself. Referring to the 1905 gauge record, it

will be found that with the gauge reading 18.60 on one

day, the flow of the river was 3895 second feet. When

at a later date the gauge read 18.50 the flow was 6440

second feet, or nearly double that of the previous read-

ing. With a gauge reading of 21.3 at one time, the flow

was 23,220 second feet, and with the same gauge reading

at another time, the flow was 28,650 second feet. With

a gauge reading of 19.6 at one time, the flow was 6000

second feet, and with the same gauge reading at another

time the flow was 13,800 second feet. With the gauge

reading 22.3 at one time the flow was 20,000 second feet,

and with the same gauge reading at another time the

flow was 30,000 second feet. With the gauge at 23.95

at one time the flow was 27,000 second feet, and with the

same reading at another time the flow was 41,000 second

feet. With the gauge at 25 at one time, the flow was

27,000 second feet, and with the gauge at 25.10 at an-

other time it was 47,000 second feet. With the gauge at

26.20 the flow was 39,000 second feet and with the gauge

at 26.10, or one-tenth lower, the flow was 60,000 second

feet. With the gauge at 28 at one time the flow was

67,000 second feet and with the gauge reading 28 at an-

other time the flow was 73,000 second feet. With a

gauge reading of 28.78 the flow was 77,000 second feet

and with a gauge reading of 28.90 the flow was 91,000

second feet. With a reading of 30.25 the flow was
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110,000 second feet, and with a reading of 31.3, the flow

was only 102,000 second feet. And yet the Court was

asked to accept the gauge records for the purpose of

determining at what height of the river there was a

general overflow of the banks at a point 12 miles below

Yuma; Yuma being the point at which the gauge was

located.

For the purpose of showing how very speculative the

testimony of defendant on this branch of the case is it

is instructive to put an extract from the testimony of

Hawgood alongside of an extract from the testimony of

Cory. Hawgood was asked (Trans, of Record, pp. 1129-

1130) why it was that the flood of 1905—and the flood

of 1891 is the only flood which reached Salton Sink prior

to the flooding of the sink in 1905, so far as we are

advised—why it was the flood of 1905 reached Salton

Sink, and he replied that it was because the flood of 1891

had left open the channel leading from Colorado River

to Salton Sink. He said (Trans, of Record, p. 1129)

:

'
' In my opinion the flood of 1905 found the channel lead-

" ing from Colorado River to Salton Basin open," and

he explains that it was opened by the flood of 1891.

Cory said (Trans, of Record, p. 1726) : ''The flood of

'

' 1891 probably left a good deal of drift in the channels,

" and at the same time, on the other hand, probably
*

' washed them out, but as the water went down it would

'' doubtless leave a good deal of drift, so that the chan-

*' nels may or ma}^ not have been choked."

And at Trans, of Record, p. 1751: ''It would be a

" matter of speculation whether the channels leading
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'' towards Salton Sink were any more open after the

'' flood of 1891 than they were before."

In the foregoing discussion of the facts, we have rehed

almost entirely upon statements of defendant's wit-

nesses. Complainant's witnesses, particularly Duryea,

Sherman and Druiy, after making exhaustive investiga-

tions to determine the source of the water which was

being discharged into Salton Sink and which worked the

destruction of complainant's property, testified, posi-

tively and unequivocally, that it came from Colorado

Eiver through the intakes of defendant and through the

canal leading from those intakes to Imperial Valley.

We deem it unnecessary to quote the testimony in de-

tail. The subject is fully covered in the direct examina-

tions of those three witnesses.

The Court is asked, in effect, to arbitrarily determine

that the river would have overflowed in 1905 at a cer-

tain gauge height, and that the water which did, in fact,

reach the sink through the intakes of defendant would

inevitably have reached there, although there had been

no intakes.

That is very dangerous sort of speculation to employ

in determining the rights of parties such as are in con-

troversy here. We all have the right to speculate and

theorize. We have as much warrant for doing that as

any of the defendant's engineers. It may sound egotist-

ical, but we think we know as much about the subject as

they do. In other words, they do not know anything

more about it than we do. The following theory is

more plausible than and quite as sound as that exploited
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by the defendant's witnesses, namely: That the sub-

sidence of the flood of 1891 automatieaiiy—so to speak

—

closed the channels leading from Colorado Kiver to

Salton Sink. There is no otiier explanation under the

sun for the fact that the flood waters of 1892 did not

reach Salton Sink and increase the size of the sea then

there. I'rom 1891 to 1905 there was an annual suunner

flood, and during some of those years there was a spring

flood. The flood waters for all those years was s^Dread

over a territory extending for miles back from the banks

of the river. If it were worth the time, we could refer

the Court to the testimony of Sexsmith to the effect that

in a period of six weeks willows would sprout and reach

a height of two feet in intake No. 1. If vegetation will

grow as rapidly as that, who is to say what was the

effect of the vegetation produced by the overflow water

for all those years in the country extending for miles

back from the banks of the river and which, at the time

defendant cut the third intake, was, in fact, covered by

a very thick growth 1 Who is to say that when the flood

of 1905 would have occurred, in the ordinary course of

nature, it would not have found the eountrj^ and the old

channels so overgrown with vegetation of all kinds as

that it would have been impossible for the water to cut

a channel through to tlie sink? Who is to say that it,

like the floods of previous years, would not have been

held back and in the course of time have been lost by

evaporation and seepage? However, the more we dis-

cuss this phase of the case, the deeper we get into the

realm of speculation.
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DAMAGES

In appellant's brief is a mild criticism of the conclu-

sion announced by the Court below on the subject of

damage suffered by complainant. It is said that in

awarding damages for buildings, machinery, etc., de-

stroyed, the evidence was mainly directed to the point

of the cost of reconstructing the buildings.

Without going into the matter at length, it would seem

that the cost of reconstructing the buildings would, inas-

much as they were in actual use at the time the destruc-

tion took place, be prima facie evidence of their value.

However, this criticism is not just, as will readily appear

from a reading of the testimony of Drury (Trans., pp.

558-599), which shows the value of the buildings.

Frederickson (Trans., pp. 512-550) stated what the

cost of construction would be. This, and some slight

testimony given by Sherman and Henton, was the only

testimony offered on the subject of damage caused by

destruction of buildings and improvements. Defendant

did not attempt to question the correctness of any part

of the testimony with reference to damages.

As to the salt crust. Henton (Trans., pp. 623-630)

and Sherman (Trans., pp. 470-473) state the quantity of

salt on the lands of complainant. This was not ques-

tioned or contradicted by any testimony on the part of

defendant. Sherman (Trans., p. 476) said that after

the land was covered with water, he made tests for the

purpose of determining whether there was any salt

crust left; that he found nothing but mud and silt. On

page 477 he said the salt was now all dissolved. He
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also said that, when the water subsides, the lowest por-

tions of the sink will be covered with a salt formation

again, and the amount of commercial salt will depend

upon how that deposit is made. That if the salt deposits

slowly and carefullj", a commercial article will result.

If the deposition takes place when storms prevail, the

salt will be so mixed with sand and silt as to be practi-

cally useless for commercial purposes. The witness

also testified that the lands of complainant were not the

lowest lands in the sink. It should not be overlooked

that more than twenty years will go by before the water

will have disappeared from complainant's land. That

the salt crust was destroyed no one will deny.

It is suggested that it is not certain that, in the es-

timate of one million five hundred thousand tons of salt

on the land of complainant, the witnesses were not in-

cluding the salt crust on section 22. There is absolutely

no foundation for this criticism. Sherman and Henton

testified to the quantity! The former said that covering

the whole of section 23, that is to say, one mile square,

the salt was from one foot to eighteen inches in depth.

This would make an average of fifteen inches. He also

gave the weight of the salt per cubic foot, and it simply

requires an arithmetical calculation to show that there

was more than one million tons on that section. Hen-

ton (Trans., pp. 627-628) said, replying to the question

as to how much salt there was on sections 15 and 23,

that in his opinion there was a half million tons more

than the figures given by Sherman. He also said

(Trans., p. 625) the salt was worth from 25 to 50 cents
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a ton, and that 25 cents was a very conservative esti-

mate. The average of the figures given by him was

thirty-seven and one-half cents per ton.

As has been said, there luas no testimony contradict-

ing, or tending to contradict, that of Sherman and Hen-

ton on this subject. It will hardly seriously be claimed

that it did not make a prima facie case warranting the

allowance made by the lower Court.

The criticism of complainant for failing to remove

some of its salt and certain of its improvements to a

point of safety, seems rather far fetched, and must pro-

ceed upon the theory that complainant should have

known that defendant would continue to discharge water

into the sink, and hence that any effort to remove the

salt and buildings to points of safety would be unavail-

ing. There is certainly nothing in the record to show

or indicate that the salt which complainant had collected

and placed in vats on section 22 was not its property

and that it did not have the right to remove it. It was

in possession of the salt and as against the defendant

was unquestionably the owner of it.

Again it is suggested that the evidence of complainant

did not proceed upon the true measure of damage, and

it is said that the damage which was actually suffered

was the difference between the value of the property

before and its value after the flood, and that no proof of

any such damage was offered. That is simply, in effect,

another way of stating the rule which was adopted by

the Court. The land,—in addition to its value for pur-

poses other than the gathering of salt,—was the value
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of the salt deposit and the vahie of the buildings and

other improvements, and to the extent to which the salt

and the buildings were destroyed, the value of the land

was lessened. We cannot conceive what more reason-

able theory could have been adopted by the Court in

arriving at what the complainant's damage actually was.

That the damage actually was as found by the Court, no

one can read the record and be in doubt. To say, there-

fore, that complainant was not entitled to a judgment

for the damages awarded by the Court is to say that a

Court of equity was impotent to render complete relief.

Respectfully submitted,

EdWAED J. McCuTCHEN,

PUECELL ROWE,

Attorneys for Appellee.

Page, McCutchen & Knight,

Of Counsel.
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STATEMENT.
It is conceded that inasmuch as the suit was brought

on the equity side of the court, the decree must be re-

versed and the bill dismissed unless it be established that

under the allegations and proof, complainant was at the

time of the commencement of the suit, entitled to equit-

able relief.

It will not be attempted by present counsel in this brief

to add to the convincing argument contained in the
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opening brief of counsel for the appellant upon the two

propositions,

First: That the destruction of complainant's prop-

erty was not occasioned by the act of the defendant, but

by the act of God; and

Second: That the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court

sitting as a court of equity did not draw to it the cog-

nizance of the damages.

But, it will be earnestly insisted that, conceding de-

fendant's liability for the inundation of complainant's

property, nevertheless, under the allegations of the bill

and the proofs, complainant was not at the time of the

filing of the bill entitled to injunctive relief, and that

therefore the decree should be reversed and the bill dis-

missed.

The allegations of the bill with respect to the diversion

of the waters of the Colorado river by the defendant

are interpreted and controlled by paragraph 12, which

appears at page 6^ of the transcript of record.

While it is alleged in paragraphs 5, 7 and 8 that the

defendant at the time of the commencement of the suit,

was diverting waters from the Colorado river in such

manner and quantity as to establish a lake in the Salton

Sink, and destroy complainant's property and business,

it is in said paragraph 12, alleged as follows:

"That defendant, in the construction of its said in-

"takes, has made no provision whatsoever for the control

"or regulation of the amount of water diverted by it into

"said intakes, and unless it be required to construct head-

agates for the controlling and regulating of the amount

"of water flowing into its said canal, the said water will



-5-
"continue to flow through said canal in amounts greatly

"in excess of that required for any proper use, and will

"flow into the said lake and upon the lands of complain-

"ant and destroy and ruin the property and business of

"said complainant."

The intakes referred to in said paragraph are the

three intakes which it is alleged in paragraph 5 that the

defendant constructed for the purpose of diverting the

waters of the Colorado river into its canals. It fol

lows therefore from the allegations of the bill, that the

diversion complained of will necessarily continue, with

the consequent destruction of complainant's property,

imless the defendant, by process of court, be compelled

to close such intakes or construct headgates.

It further follows that any injunction would be inef-

fective and futile, unless such injunction, either directly

or indirectly, should require the defendant to construct

headgates or close the intakes.

It is respectfully contended that the complainant was

not entitled to injunctive relief at the time of the filing

of the bill, for the following reasons

:

I.

The Circuit Court for the Southern District of

California Had no Jurisdiction to Decree an

Injunction in Effect Abating a Nuisance

Caused by the Construction of Intakes in the

Republic of Mexico.

II.

The Circuit Court Had No Jurisdiction to Com-

pel the Defendant to Construct Headgates



IN THE Republic of Mexico for the Reason

THAT THE DEFENDANT WoULD NOT HaVE BeEN

Permitted by the Laws of the Republic of

Mexico to Construct Such Headgates.

III.

The Evidence Does Not Establish that the De-

fendant Was Committing a Continuing Nui-

sance OR Trespass, and Therefore Presents No
Case for an Injunction. The Remedy of the

Plaintiff, If Any, Was for Damages in an

Action on the Case.

IV.

The Defendant Was Not Diverting or Threaten-

ing to Divert Water from the Colorado River

AT THE Time of the Commencement of the

Suit, and Therefore No Injunction Should

Have Been Issued Restraining the Defendant

FROM Diverting the Waters of Such River.

V.

The Court Was Without Jurisdiction to Decree

AN Injunction Because It Appeared from the

Evidence that at the Time of the Commence-

ment OF THE Suit an Injunction to Save Com-

plainant's Property from Destruction Would
Have Been Ineffective and Futile.

VI.

From the Assumption that the Complainant Was
Not Entitled to an Injunction to Protect

from Destruction Its Buildings, Machinery

AND Salt Beds^ the Conclusion Inevitably
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Follows that It Was Not Entitled to Any In-

junction AT All.

VIL

The Injunction Was in Effect a Mandatory In-

junction. A Court of Equity Rarely Decrees

A Mandatory Injunction Requiring the Per-

formance of Constructive in Contradistinc-

tion TO Destructive Work and Will Never

Decree a Mandatory Injunction When the

Work Commanded to Be Done Requires in Its

Execution Such Skill, Judgment and Teclini-

CAL Ability as Was Required to Close the In-

takes Complained of.

VIII.

The Court Had No Jurisdiction to Decree an In-

junction in This Suit in the Absence of a De-

termination AT Law that the Acts of the De-

fendant Complained of Constituted a Nuis-

ance.

IX.

There Is No Allegation or Proof that the De-

fendant When Able to Control the Waters

OF the Colorado River at Any Time So Used

Them as to Permit Waste Water to Flow

Upon the Lands of the Complainant.

Therefore, Inasmuch as the Headgate Had

Been Constructed and the Intakes Closed
Prior to the Trial and Decree, Whatever May
Have Been the Power of the Court to Retain
Jurisdiction for the Purpose of Awarding
Judgment for Damages, It Had No Power to

Degree an Injunction and Thereby Restrain
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THE Defendant from Performing Acts Which
It Had Never Done or Threatened to do.

The sufficiency of the foregoing reasons will be con-

sidered seriatim.

I.

The Circuit Court for the Southern District of California

had no jurisdiction to decree an injunction in effect abating

a nuisance caused by the construction of intakes in the Re-

public of Mexico.

The allegation is:

"That defendant has constructed upon said Colo-

"rado river three intakes for the purpose of diverting the

"waters of said Colorado river into the canals above

"mentioned and by means of said intakes and canal has,

"for many months, been, and still is, diverting from said

"Colorado river a stream of water, etc." [Par. V, p.

63, transcript.]

It will be observed that the locus of said intakes is not

set forth in the bill. In its answer the defendant denies

the allegation as set forth in the bill, and alleges,

"That the water referred to in complainant's bill

"* * * was diverted from the Colorado river in Mex-

"ico by that certain corporation, organized under the

"laws of the Republic of Mexico," etc. [p. 105].

Intake No. i was constructed in December, 1902; in-

take No. 2 in June, 1904; and intake No. 3 was com-

pleted October 6th, 1904. The flooding of complainant's

land did not commence until after the construction of

intake No. 3.

Intake No. i was in California, and intakes Nos. 2
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and 3 were in the Republic of Mexico. [Testimony of

Duryea, p. 302; testimony of Sherman, p. 442.]

Duryea testifies that on the 15th of February, 1905,

450 second feet of water were running through intake

No. i; 896 through intake No. 2, and 1143 through in-

take No. 3 [p. 300]. He next visited the intakes in

June, but does not testify as to whether, at such time,

intake No. i had been closed or not.

The testimony of Sherman is to the same effect except

that he made a third visit to the intakes in October or

November, 1905, and that at such time No. i had been

closed. [P. 461.]

Rockwood testifies:

"T found that the river began to rise very rapidly on

"the 14th of March, and reached a height of 30.3 feet on

"the 20th of March, and a height of 27.35 ^^^^ on the

"17th of March." [P. 1245.]

He then testified as follows:

"Q. Did that March flood (referring to the flood with

"respect to which he had testified as above quoted) have

"any eft"ect on the upper and the second intakes?

"A. The dipper intake, No. i, had been closed at that

''time. It had no effect on intake No. 2 except tempo-

"rarily. It did not scour it off permanently. As soon as

"the water began to fall again it silted up." [P. 1247.]

This bill was filed in the Circtiit Court on the i6th day

of June, 1905.

It is thus conclusively established by the uncontra-

dicted testimony, that while an unsubstantial amount of

water was flowing through intake No. i on the 15th of

February, 1905, such intake had been closed prior to
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the 14th of March, 1905, more than two months before

the fiHng of the bill in the Circuit Court.

At the time, therefore, of the filing of the bill, no

water was being diverted from the Colorado river ex-

cept through two intakes, designated as intakes Nos. 2

and 3, both of which were in the Republic of Mexico.
Hence, at the time of the filing of such bill, admitting its

every allegation to be true, and every contention of coun-

sel for the appellee to be wtII founded, nevertheless, com-

plainant was not entitled to an injunction unless it should

be further ascertained that the Circuit Court of the

United States, for the Southern District of California,

had jurisdiction to compel the defendant to abate a nuis-

ance caused by an obstruction, and the necessary result

of an obstruction (paragraph 12 bill above quoted) cre-

ated and existing in the Republic of Mexico.

It is well settled that a court of chancery has no such

jurisdiction

:

In the case of

Northern Indiana R. Co. v. Michigan Cent. R.

Co., 56 U. S., 15 How., 14 L. Ed. 674,

it appeared that a railway company in Michi-

gan, incorporated under the laws of that state,

made an agreement with a railway company in,

and incorporated by the laws of, Indiana, where-

by the latter agreed that the former might build

and operate a road in Indiana under the charter of the

latter. Another railway company, also established by

the law of Indiana, claimed the exclusive right to con-

struct and operate a road in that part of Indiana, and

it brought a suit in the Circuit Court of the United
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States for the district of Michigan against the Michigan

road, in which injunction was sought to restrain that

company from constructing a road under the contract, in

violation of the exclusive right claimed by the plain-

tiff. In disposing of the case the court said:

"In this case we shall consider the question of juris-

'diction in regard to the district only. In all cases of

"contract, suit may be brought in the Circuit Court

'where the defendant may be found. If sued out of the

'district in which he lives, under the decisions he ma}^

'object, but this is a privilege which he may waive.

'\Mierever the jurisdiction of the person will enable the

'Circuit Court to give effect to its judgment or decree,

'jurisdiction may be exercised. But wherever the sub-

'ject matter in controversy is local, and lies beyond the

'limit of the district, no jurisdiction attaches to the Cir-

'cuit Court sitting within it. An action of ejectment

'cannot be maintained in the district of Michigan, for

'land in any other district. Nor can an action of tres-

'pass quare clausum fregit be prosecuted, where the

'act complained of zvas not done in the district. Both

'of these actions are local in their character, and must

'be prosecuted where the process of the court can reach

'the locals in quo." (56 U. S., at p. 242.)

It was insisted in that case that the court having jur-

isdiction of the persons could enforce its judgment by

acting upon them ; but, after indicating the class of cases

in which the court could thus enforce its judgment, the

court said:

"It will readily be admitted that no action at law could

"be sustained in the district of Michigan, on such
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"ground, for injuries done in Indiana. No action of

''ejectment or for trespass on real property could have

"a more decided local character than the appropriate

"remedy for the injuries complained of. And is this

"character changed by a bill in chancery? By such a

"procedure we acquire jurisdiction of the defendants;

"but, the subject-matter being local, it cannot be reached

"by a chancery jurisdiction exercised in the state of

"Michigan." (At p. 244.)

The case of

Mississippi & Missouri Railroad Company v.

Ward, 2 Black 485,

was an appeal from the District Court of the

United States for the district of Iowa. Ward
filed his bill in the District Court charging the

railroad company with having created a nuisance by

erecting a bridge across the Mississippi river at Rock

Island, and prayed that the nuisance might be abated. IL

appeared that the boundary line between the states ot

Iowa and Illinois was the center of the Mississippi river;

that one-half of the bridge was in Iowa and the other

half in Illinois. The District Court rendered a decree

in favor of the complainant and ordered that so much of

the bridge as was in Iowa should be abated.

It was never contended that the court had jurisdic

tion to abate the nuisance so far as the same existed in

Illinois. The U. S. Supreme Court reversed the decree

of the District Court, and stated (p. 493)

:

"The United States District Court holden in Iowa

"exercised the same jurisdiction that a state court of

"Iowa could have exercised and no more. It had no
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"power beyond the middle of the river. On that part of

"the bridge within Iowa, and its piers, the court below

"acted and ordered that the structure should be removed.

"-^ * * The bridge is 1570 feet long and the number

"of piers is six, three of them are on the Iowa side of

"the river, the draw pier is fourth * * * the Illinois

"draw passage is directly over the deepest channel of

"the river and directly over the usual track of steam-

"boats before the bridge was built. * * *

"An indictment could only have been prosecuted

"against the owner for keeping up the nuisance in Illi-

"nois in the courts of that state, because the nuisance

"was a trespass and crime against the law of Illinois,

"and the injuries to the complainant's boats giving him

"the privilege to sue and abate the obstruction was as

"local as the public right to indict. He asks nothing

"from the person of the defendant, but seeks to remove a

"local object because he has sustained special damage

"from that object.

"TJie District Court Jiad no pozucr over the local oh-

"ject inflicting the injury; nor any jurisdiction to inquire

"of the facts, zvhether damage had been sustained, or

"hoiv much. These facts are beyond the court's juris-

"diction and powers of inquiry, and outside of the case.

"The District Cotirt ordered three spans of the bridge

"and three of its piers to be removed, extending to mid-

"dle of the river; and what would be the consequence if

"we were to affirm that decree? It would, as a conse-

"quence, render the bridge useless throughout, but it

"would not materially remedy the nuisance complained

"of. The navigation would certainly not be improved
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"so far as the complainant is concerned by removing the

"Iowa end of the bridge. The cross currents alleged to

"exist would remain ; the large eddy at the lower end of

"the long pier, and the obstruction to the Iowa draw

"passage by the eddy, would still remain." (P. 494.)

The fact that the lands injured by the alleged act of

negligence, to-wit, the construction of intakes 2 and 3,

are situated in California, does not give to the courts

of California the required jurisdiction.

The principle is very learnedly discussed by the Su-

preme Court of Wisconsin in the case of

In re Eldred, 46 Wis. 530, reported in i N. W.,

P- 175-

In that case the court arrived at the conclusion that

where a dam was maintained in one county which cre-

ated a nuisance in another, an indictment for creating

and maintaining such nuisance should be tried in the

county where the dam was erected, that being the county

where the offense was committed; and that an indict-

ment in the county where the nuisance existed was im-

proper.

On the authority of this case, and of the decisions ol

the Supreme Court of the United States above cited, the

Supreme Court of Iowa rendered a decision upon facts

in all respects parallel to those at issue upon this appeal.

In the case of

Gilbert v. IMoline Water and Power Company,

19 la., p. 319,

it appeared that Gilbert was the owner of lands

in the state of Iowa; that the Moline Water

& Power Company had constructed a dam in the
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Mississippi river, b}- reason whereof such lands of Gil-

bert in Iowa were flooded and injured. Gilbert brought

suit in the Iowa court, and having obtained personal

jurisdiction over the power company, asked for an in-

junction restraining the company from maintaining such

dam. The dam was situated in the state of Illinois.

The Supreme Court of Iowa held that the courts of

Iowa had no jurisdiction to compel the defendant to re-

move the dam.

This case was approved by the same court in the case

uf Buck V. Ellenbolt, 84 la. 394, 51 N. W., p. 22.

See also to the same effect the case of

Texas & P. R. R. Co. v. Gay, 86 Tx., p. 371 ; 25

L. R. A., p. 57.

The principle would appear to be that a court of

equity can never compel a defendant to do anything

which is not capable of being physically done within the

territorial jurisdiction of the court.

A defendant in California may be compelled by the

courts of California to convey property in Great

Britain; for the act which he is required to per-

form, to-wit, the execution and delivery of the

conveyance, may be done in California, and the

court may hold the defendant in custody until he com-

plies with its order and executes the conveyance; but a

court of equity will not undertake to compel the defend-

ant to do something, the very doing of which requires

that he be released from custody and go outside of the

court's jurisdiction in order to perform such act.
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The principle as thus stated is set forth in the case

of

Munson v. Tryon, 6 Phila. 395,

as follows:

"It is argued, however, that even if there is jurisdic-

tion over the parties, there is none of the cause. I

am moved to enjoin against the commission of acts in

the nature of waste upon lands outside of the county

* * * my order or decree affects the defendants per-

sonally. It is only indirectly, and through the defend-

ants that it affects the lands. It has often been decided

that when a chancellor obtains jurisdiction over a party

he may make a decree that affects lands even in a for-

eign country. It is true, too, that to justify a court in

interfering and exercising a jurisdiction in cases relat-

ing to lands where the court cannot send its process, the

relief sought must be such as the court is capable of

administering in the case before it. For this reason it

was ruled by Judge King in the Court of Common Pleas

of Philadelphia that the court had no jurisdiction of a

bill complaining that defendant had set up and main-

tained a nuisance, affecting plaintiff's lands, in Mont-

gomery county. The reason assigned for this ruling

was, that no obedience of the defendant or act of his

could execute the necessary decree. The wrong done

was the creation of a nuisance. The only remedy was

abatement, and the Common Pleas could not send pro-

cess to abate the nuisance. * * "^ Jurisdiction is en-

tertained in equity over extra territorial torts when the

court has full power to execute its decree where the

appropriate decree operates on the future conduct of



-17-

"the defendant and not directly upon the property

"threatened to be injured. \Mien a nuisance has been set

"up and abatement decreed, in order to carry the decree

"into effect, a writ of assistance or other similar process

"may be necessary. Such a writ cannot be sent into a

"foreign jurisdiction, and therefore, in such a case, be-

"cause a court of equity cannot complete its work, it will

"not commence."

The distinction is well stated in the very carefully

considered case of

Poindexter v. Burwell, 82 Virginia 507, at p. 513.

There it was held that the doctrine is that if the per-

son to do the act decreed is within the jurisdiction of the

court, and the act may be done without the exercise of

any authority operating territorially within the foreign

jurisdiction, the court may act in personam, and oblige

the party to convey, or otherwise to comply with its de-

cree. But it is not competent to the court to decree

touching a foreign subject when the act to be done can

be accomplished and perfected only by an authority

operating territorially.

See also,

Pomeroy on Equity Jurisprudence, Sec. 13 18.

The force of this position is not affected by the fact

that the suit was commenced in the Superior Court of

California on the 8th day of March, 1905, six days be-

fore the 14th of March, when the March floods occurred,

prior to which floods intake No. i had been closed.

It is believed that the right of the complainant to an

mjunction will be determined as of the date when by
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filing its bill on the equity side of the court it elected to

rely upon its right to equitable relief rather than to

prosecute its action at law for damages.

But if it be held that its rights are to be determined as

of the date when it commenced its action in the Superior

Court even then it had no rights founded upon intake

No I.

It is true that there is no direct testimony as to

whether intake No. i was open or closed on said date.

It is obvious, however, from the entire record, that the

b3^-pass around the headgate on American soil, which

by-pass has been designated intake No. i , was in no sense

the cause of any injury to complainant. It had been open

since December, 1902, and had never caused any injury

to any property, and it had always been closed without

difficulty before the spring floods.

All the evidence shows that the trouble, if occasioned

by any act of the defendant, was occasioned by the con-

struction of the third intake. The third intake "gave the

water a higher and steeper course toward the valley."

[P. 2090.]

"In June, 1904, Rockwood stated to IMr. Heber that

"he believed they would have to take the chance and cut

"a third intake from the river to the canal * * ^'

"stating that as the fall of the canal was so much more

"rapid than the fall of the river he believed there would

"be no trouble in keeping the intake open." [Statement

of Meserve to secretary of state offered in evidence by

counsel for complainant, transcript, page 2154.]

All the records and photographs produced by plaintiff
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show that the alarming conditions were at or about in-

take No. 3.

Therefore, even if it had been affirmatively established

that intake No. i was open at the commencement of the

action in the Superior Court and had remained open,

nevertheless an injunction should not have been decreed

because there was no evidence that the diversion at this

point endangered complainant's property.

It is submitted, moreover, that the presumption raised

by Duryea's testimony to the effect that on the 15th of

February, 450 seconds of water were flowing through

intake No. i, is at least met by Rockwood's testimony

above quoted, which is uncontradicted, that intake No. 1

had been closed before the March flood. The March

flood, as has been stated, commenced on the 14th of

March. Rockwood commenced work immediately after

the February floods receded, and it would be unreason-

able to infer from the facts, that the closing of intake

No I had not been consummated prior to the 8th day of

March.

The complainant made no effort to establish that such

intake was open at the time of the commencement of

the action in the Superior Court.

The injunction should not be granted unless com-

plainant establishes the facts upon which it must depend

by clear and indisputable testimony. This is a well rec-

ognized principle of law, and is fortified by many de-

cisions cited in appellant's opening brief.

The burden was upon the complainant to prove that

its property was imperiled by reason of intake No. i

at the time of the commencement of the action. It can-
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not be claimed with any sincerity or candor that this fad

has been proven.

Furthermore, immediately after the February floods

receded, which, according to Duryea's testimony was

about February 15th, Rockwood instructed Sexsmith

to close the intakes.

Sexsmith testified with respect to intake No. i

:

"It was an easy thing to close it." [P. 916.]

Therefore there can be no presumption from the fact

that it was open on February 15th that it remained

open until the 8th of March. In the absence of any tes-

timony whatever on the subject, proof that it had been

open on the 15th of February might raise the presump-

tion that such condition continued, and thus shift the

burden; but such presumption, if any, is neutralized by

the proof that it had been closed prior to the 14th of

March, especially when such proof is considered in con-

nection with the uncontradicted testimony that it was

Rockwood's purpose and plan to close it, and that he

commenced to do so immediately after the February

floods receded.

Furthermore, there is no allegation or proof that the

California Development Company was at the time of

the commencement of the action maintaining said intake

No I. The proof that it had been closed within at most,

six days after the commencement of the suit, and re-

mained closed until October, 1905, as testified to by

Sherman, and has remained closed ever since, so far as

the record discloses, is conclusive that at the time of the

commencement of the suit the California Development

Company must at least have been engaged in a compe-
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tent effort to close it, and that therefore the interven-

tion of a court of equity was uncalled for, and would

have been improper.

If the foregoing reasoning with respect to intake No.

I should not be satisfactory to the court, then attention

is called to the quotation from the decision of the Su-

preme Court of the United States in the case of Mis-

souri & P. R. R. Co. V. Ward, supra, wherein that cotu't

reversed the decree of the Circuit Court, directing the

pulling down of such of the piers of the bridge as were

within the territorial jurisdiction of the court, basing

such reversal upon the ground that the pulling down of

such piers would not put an end to the nuisance com-

plained of, and while injurious to the defendant would

not materially benefit the complainant.

Conceding that at the time of the commencement of

the suit intake No. i, such as it was, was still open; even

then it would have been error for a court of equity under

the principle laid down by the Supreme Court of the

United States to direct the closing of that intake when

it v/as without jurisdiction to reach the substantial cause

of the nuisance, to-wit, the intake in the Republic of

Mexico.

Without respect to the evidence the bill was fatally

defective in that the locus of the intakes was not al-

leged. It was incumbent upon complainant to show to a

court of equity by the averments of its bill, both that

the court ought, and had the power, to grant its prayer.

The mere allegation that the defendant had in some un-

specified place, created a nuisance, is not sufficient to

invoke the equitable power of the court. In as much as
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a court of equity is without authority to abate a nuisance

beyond its jurisdiction, the complainant should have al-

leged that the place of the nuisance was within the juris-

diction of the court.

Encyclopoedia of PL and Pr., Vol. 22, p. 780;

McKenna v. Fisk, i How. 241

;

Bank v. Lane, 80 Maine 165.

"It is just as necessary and for the same reason to

"aver the fact requisite to show that the court has jur-

"isdiction of the plaintiff's suit as to allege sufficient to

"demonstrate that there is not adequate remedy at law

"and that there is redress in equity. The judgment of

"a city court in an action in which cause of action is not

"averred to have arisen within the city, is erroneous,

"because the case is not brought within its jurisdiction."

Maples V. Wightman, 4 Conn. 376

;

Griswold v. Mather, 5 Conn. 435

;

Winford v. Powell, 2 Lord Raymond 13 10.

Especially is this true of federal courts.

"The rule is inflexible and without exception, that the

"facts upon which the jurisdiction of the courts of the

"United States rests, must affirmatively appear in the

"record of all suits prosecuted before them; and the jur-

"isdictional facts must affirmatively appear at the com-

"mencement of a suit, by a statement of them m the

"declaration or bill of the party suing."

Bates on Federal Procedure, Sec. 125, p. 144,

"Hence when a plaintiff sues in a court of the United

"States, it is necessary that he should show in his plead-
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"ing that the suit he bring's is within the jurisdiction of

"the court and that he is entitled to sue there. And if

''he omits to do this and should by any oversight of the

"circuit court obtain a judgment in his favor, the judg-

ement would be reversed in the appellate court for want

"of jurisdiction in the court below."

Dredd Scott v. Sanford, 19 How. 393, at pp.

401-402.

See also,

Ex-Parfe Smith, 94 U. S. 455 at p. 456;

Bors V. Preston, 1 1 1 U. S. 252 at p. 255

;

Hanford v. Davies, 165 U. S. 273, at p. 279;

Metcalf V. Watertown, 128 U. S. 586, at pp.

588-9.

The jurisdictional question here raised cannot be

waived.

In the case of United States v. Crawford, 47 Fed. 561,

the court, at page 566, says

:

"The counsel for defendants filed no pleading setting

"up the want of jurisdiction because of the failure of sub-

eject matter, but in argument they suggest there is a

"failure of subject matter. This they may do, and the

"court may act on this suggestion and dismiss the case.

('^ * *" l^ jg ^|-^g court's duty sua sponte to so act.

See also,

Yellow Aster Co. v. Crane Co., 150 Fed. 580.
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11.

The Circuit Court had no jurisdiction to compel the de-

fendant to construct headgates in the Republic of Mexico;

for the reason that the defendant would not have been per-

mitted by the laws of the Republic of Mexico to construct

such headgates.

Counsel for appellee, at pages 66 and (yy of their

brief, quote from Mr. Meserve's statement to the secre-

tary of state,! as follows:

"By the terms of the concession from the IMexican

"government to the Alexican company it was provided

"that no intake connecting with the Colorado river

"should be constructed in Mexico until the plans of ail

"proposed structures were first approved by the proper

"engineering authorites of Mexico."

It appears that the Alexican government granted the

Mexican corporation, whose stock was o\vned by the de-

fendant, certain concessions, which gave such company

the right to divert v/ater in INTexico from the Colorado

river [p. 194] ; that the company, however, had no au-

thority to build headgates until the plans of the same

had been approved by the Mexican government.

Rockwood, the engineer of the defendant, testifies that

he had prepared plans for such headgates in the month

of November, 1904, and that such plans had been sent to

the City of Mexico for approval [pp. 1346-7] ; but that

they were not approved until December, 1905.

Schuyler testifies

:

"The material was ordered for these gates at once.

"and would have been put in—the gates would have

'"been put in in the fall of 1904, had permission been
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"granted or the privilege been obtained from the Mexi-

"can government." [Pp. 1311-12.]

"O. And as consulting engineer for the company,

''there is no reason that now suggests itself to your mind

"why that gate was not constructed within ten weeks

"from the time when the river bank was cut so as to al-

"low to flow into the canal?

"A. The only reason that I know is the fact that the

"Mexican government had not approved the plans for the

"gate.

"Q. Then, not knowing whether they were going to

"be permitted to put a gate in there at all, and knowing

"that high water would come at some time, they never-

"theless cut the canal ? Is that 3'our understanding of it ?

"A. I don't know about their knowledge as to what

"the government of Mexico might do in the matter of the

"approval of the plans, but they were friendly with the

"government and had received concessions from them

"and had every reason to expect that the approval of the

"plans would be immediate upon their filing." [Pp.

1316-1317.]

It is well settled that no court of equity in the exer-

cise of jurisdiction over the person of a defendant will

compel him by imprisonment or like coercion to convey

property, when by the laws of the country where the

property is, no right to such conveyance existed.

Texas & Pac. R. R. Co. v. Gay, 25 L. R. A., at

top p. 50.

This principle has been well established in numerous

cases and is based upon sound logic. The decree of a

court of equity in California compelling a conveyance of
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property in Mexico or New York cannot of itself affect

the title to such property.

Watkins v. Holman, i6 Peters, at p. 57.

The California court can only compel the execution

and delivery of the conveyance. The grantee may

make such use of such conveyance in Mexico or Nev/

York as will pass to him the title to the property con-

veyed. If, however, under the laws of Mexico or New

York, such conveyance would be invalid, and this should

be established as a fact to the satisfaction of the Cali-

fornia court, then the California court would not decree

such conveyance, because such decree would be useless

and futile.

Inasmuch, therefore, as under the evidence the

defendant at the time suit was commenced was not

authorized by the laws of Mexico to construct the head-

gates which the complainant has alleged zvere the only

means of stopping the destruction of its property [bill,

paragraph XII, p. 67], the court was without jurisdic-

tion to compel it to do so.

In other words, at the time of the commencement of

the suit, the defendant was not unconscientiously refus-

ing to construct the required headgate. It had no au-

thority at law to construct it. Grant that the cutting of

the intakes in June and October under such circum-

stances was even criminal negligence, as charged by

counsel for the appellee, nevertheless such act of crimi

nal negligence had been done, and the defendant, while

liable to the complainant in damages therefor, was, un-

der the laws of Mexico, powerless despite the best of in-

tentions, to construct such headgates, and save com-
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plainant's property from destruction. Such destruction

was complete in October, 1905, two months before the

Mexican government granted the permission applied

for.

Under such circumstances, at the time of the filing of

the bill, complainant was not entitled to equitable relief,

and had no remedy except its action at law for damages.

Even the general rule that equity will by acting in

personam, compel the specific performance of a contract,

is subject to the recognized exception, that where the

contract involves work or skill to be done on foreign

soil, according to foreign law, as would the construction

of the headgates in question, equity has no jurisdiction.

Port Royal R. R. Co. v. Hammond, 58 Ga. 503;

III.

The evidence does not establish that the defendant

was committing a continuing nuisance or trespass, and

therefore presents no case for an injunction. The remedy

of the plaintiff, if any, was for damages in an action on the

case.

There is but little, or no conflict as to any of the ma-

terial facts and occurrences subsequent to the diversion

of the waters of the Colorado river by the California

Development Company. What conflict there is consists

chiefly in the differing opinions of experts as to what the

Colorado river would have done under certain circum-

stances.

There is no allegation in the bill, nor was any evi-

dence adduced, to the effect that the California Develop-

ment Company at any time assumed the right to divert

waters of the Colorado river without regard to the ef-
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fect of such diversion upon the property of the com-

plainant. Nor does counsel charge that the California

Development Company ever assumed to claim, or to un-

dertake the exercise of, such a right.

The tendency of complainant's evidence and the

charge of counsel are that the California Development

Company, prompted by the desire to furnish large quan-

tities of water to the people in the valley quickly and

without expense, constructed these intakes recklessly

and without such prudence and skill as was required of

it by law.

The California Development Company cut an intake

60 feet wide for the purpose of diverting water.

It is not claimed that a 60-foot wide cut would con-

vey sufficient water to occasion waste enough to dam-

age complainant's property.

It is conceded that the California Development Com-

pany did not intend that such intake should be wid-

ened; that its purpose was not to widen and enlarge it;

that its intent was (in the event that a headgate could

not be constructed before the summer floods) to close up

this intake entirely, and that its reasonable expectation,

based upon past experience, was that it would be able

to fill it up with little difficulty before the floods.

As a matter of fact, however, the huge floods of the

Colorado river swept through this intake and enlarged

it.

The enlargement was the act of the Colorado river.

and not the act of the California Development Company

It is not contended here, and now, while pursuing thia

line of thought, that the construction of the 60-foot wide
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intake was not the proximate cause of the enlargementj

but it is merely insisted that, as a matter of fact, the

CaHfornia Development Company did not construct the

enlarged intake.

The flooding of complainant's land was due to the

enlarged intake. But for the fact of this enlargement,

such flooding and the destruction of the complainant's

property would not have taken place.

The enlargement did not exist in consequence of the

desire or will of the California Development Company;

it was in no sense maintained by the California Devel

opment Company. The California Development Com-

pany did not claim or contend that it had the right that

this enlarged intake should continue. On the contrary,

it existed against its wish and the California Develop-

ment Company, by the use of all its resources, was en-

deavoring, prior to and at the time of the filing of the

bill, to close it up. Wherefore, then, necessity or occa-

sion for the intervention of a court of equity?

Concede for the purpose of argument that such en-

largement and the consequent destruction of complahi-

ant's property was caused by the act of the California

Development Company, and this is all that counsel for

the complainant claim. There follows, as has been said,

liability on the part of the California Development Com-

pany in an action for damages, but no ground or ex-

cuse for action by a court of equity.

The basis of an injunction, whether prohibitory or

mandatory, is the intent of a party to keep on doing

something which injures another.

One erects a dam and claims the right to have the
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dam remain where constructed. The consequence of the

construction of such dam is the flooding of plaintiff's

property, and so long as such dam remains there, such

flooding will continue. The complainant asks the court

of equity to force the party who constructed and main-

tains the dam, to remove it.

It is the maintenance of the dam which gives the

court of equity jurisdiction. Each day and minute that

such dam remains and is maintained by the defendant, it

is a menace to the complainant's property, and each

flood by reason thereof, a nuisance; and in all cases

where a court of equity has ordered such dam to be re-

moved, the gravamen of the action has been the settle-

ment of the conflicting rights of the respective parties.

In all such cases the defendant has claimed that he had

the right that the dam should remain there, and even

though not performing physical acts of maintenance,

was by his attitude and contention with respect to it

morally keeping it there. The principle has been well

stated in the following language:

''The fundamental province of the injunction is to

"prevent a meditated wrong, and not to redress an in-

"jury."

Palmer v. Foley, 45 How. Pr. no at p. 118.

In this case the defendant was meditating nothing",

was maintaining nothing, and was asserting no right.

Grant that it had committed a wrong.

Suppose for purposes of illustration that a party had

negligently thrown a lighted cigar into combustible ma-

terial; that the same had taken fire, and that complain-

ant's property was either destroyed or in process of de-
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struction. The complainant, of course, would have his

action at law for damages. But will it be seriously ar-

gued that a court of equity would undertake to compel

the man who threw the cigar either to put out the fire

or to rebuild complainant's house?

If the allegation and proof in such case had been that

the defendant threatened to throw a lighted cigar into

such combustible material frequently and at will, then a

case for injunction might have been made out, and the

decree would have been grounded not on the throwing

of the cigar which had been thrown or on the fact of the

fire which was raging, but upon the allegation and proof

that the defendant, unless restrained, would throw more

cigars and cause additional fires.

If in this case the complainant had alleged and proven

that the defendant intended or threatened to construct

other and further intakes of a dangerous character, then

it would have been proper for a court of equity to re-

strain the defendant from constructing any further in-

takes unless the same were protected by suitable head-

gates.

But there is no such allegation or proof or charge by

complamant's counsel.

No CONTINUING ACTS OF TRESPASS WKRl; PROVEN AND

NO THREATS TO CONTINUE ANY ACTS OF TRESPASS WERK

EITHER ALLEGED OR PROVEN.

Three acts, to wit, the construction of the three in-

takes, not acts of trespass, but acts, which, under certain

conditions might cause injury to complainant's property

were alleged, and, if you please, proven.
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Coimsel for appellee, in his brief, at page 78, quotes

from Hawgood's testimony:

" 'But if 1 had succeeded in doing it before, I would

" 'have attempted to do it again. If I had been success-

" 'ful I would be tempted to take chances on it.'
"

And then counsel adds

:

"Will anyone claim that yielding to temptation to

"take chances in a work of this nature is good engineer-

"ing? When an engineer takes chances in a business

"of this nature he throws discretion and judgment to the

"winds. It is true Rockwood said he took the chance

"because he had done it successfully once. But that is

"not sufficient reason why he should have shown such

"hardihood a second time."

The cut of Intake No. 3 prior to the filing of the bill

had been demonstrated to the satisfaction of Rockwood

and everybody else not only to have been unsuccessful,

but to have imperiled both complainants, and defend-

ant's entire property and system.

As has been argued, Intake No. i had been closed suc-

cessfully prior to the filing of the bill, and Intake No.

2, had been filled with silt by the March floods, and was

of no serious import.

The conditions therefore which confronted the par-

ties at the time of the filing of the bill were, that as the

result of one, and possibly two, or even three acts of

the defendant,—the consequence of which acts the de-

fendant was at such time earnestly laboring to avert,

—

the property of the complainant was being destroyed.

This was no ground for the interposition of a court of

equity. A single allegation that the defendant, despite
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this sad experience, would have again "taken its

chances" and constructed other intakes, fortified by

evidence sustaining such allegation, might have

afforded counsel for appellee ground to argue that

the facts of this case were such as to give a court of

equity jurisdiction; but the absence of such allegation

and evidence, not to speak of the overwhelming nega-

tion of it to be adduced from the entire trend of the

testimony and acts of all the parties, precludes any sug-

gestion that the complainant had any remedy except its

action at law for damages.

IV.

The defendant was not. diverting or threatening to di-

vert water from the Colorado river at the time of the

commencement of the suit, and therefore no injunction

should have been issued restraining the defendant from di-

verting the waters of such river.

This point has been virtually covered by the argument

just preceding.

The allegation in the bill that the defendant had con-

structed upon the Colorado river three intakes for the

purpose of diverting the waters of the Colorado river

into its canal, while sufficient in connection with the evi-

dence as viewed by the district judge, to establish a

basis for a money judgment, is of itself msufficient as

a foundation for injunctive relief. And complainant's

right to an injunction must depend upon its ability to

prove the allegation of the bill that the defendant, at the

time of the commencement of the suit, zvas diverting

water from the Colorado river in such fashion as to

work irreparable injury to the complainant.
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In its answer, defendant denies the allegation that the

defendant at such time was diverting- waters from the

Colorado river.

There is no evidence that at such time defendant,

or an3^body else, was diverting- any waters whatever

from the Colorado river.

The defendant had prior to October, 1904, done one,

or perhaps three acts, which, if complainant's conten-

tion upon the merits be allowed, were the proximate

cause of the flowing- of the Colorado river on to com-

plainant's lands.

The defendant committed no act of diversion of

water after the 6th of October, 1904, and, as a matter

of fact, prior to the commencement of the suit, had

been engaged, at great expense in desperate efforts not

only to control, but to totally check its diversion.

A court of equity, according to the old rule, operates

by action upon the conscience of the individual. What

unconscientious act was the California Development

Company doing at the time of the commencement of

the suit?

Granted that prior thereto it had been a sinner. Its

acts were surely those of repentance, and its contrition

and resolution to amend cannot be questioned. The con-

ditions called for penance, but it was too late for pre-

vention.

Complainant's remedy was an action at law.

In order to distinguish the connection of the

California Development Company with the con-

tinuance of the flooding of complainant's lands

from such acts of maintenance as are necessary to
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establish the allegation in the bill that the de-

fendant "zvas diverting" waters, let us, for purposes

of illustration, assume that in February, 1905, the Cali-

fornia Development Company had conveyed its proper-

ties and canals to a third party, and that such third

party upon such conveyance in February, 1905, did

each and every thing which the evidence shows that

the California Development Company did subsequent

to such date.

Complainant's remedy against the California Devel-

opment Company for damages for the injury occasioned

by the acts of the California Development Company

prior to the conveyance, would have remained, and com-

plainant would have had no action for such damages

against the grantee; but complainant's right to an in-

junction being based as it necessarily must be based, up-

on allegations of what the defendant was doing at the

time of the commencement of the suit, to wit, the 8th

of March, 1905, would have been precisely the same

against such grantee as against the California Develop-

ment Company, and if not entitled to an injunction

against said grantee, complainant could not be entitled

to an injunction against the California Development

Company.

If A construct a dam by reason whereof B's prem-

ises are flooded, and A then conveys his property and

the dam to C, and the conditions are such that B is

entitled to have the nuisance abated, he could maintain

his suit against C to have the obstruction removed.

If A owns property and B erects a building under
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such circumstances as wrongfully to interfere with A's

air and light, and then conveys the building to C with

notice, A would have the same right to have the build-

ing removed against C as he would have had against B.

If the nuisance be of that continuing character which

is essential in order that a court of equity may by injunc-

tion abate it, then all those who succeed to the ownership

of the obstruction which creates the nuisance are, in

the absence of laches, subject to the operation of even

a mandatory injunction.

It certainly will not be asserted that this complainant

would have been entitled to any injunctive relief on the

8th of March, 1905, or at any time, ao-ainst such sup-

posed grantee. Such grantee's defense would have been

simple and conclusive. The evidence contained in this

record would have been established beyond peradven-

ture, his denial that he was diverting water, and the bill

would have been dismissed.

The distinction then between the acts of the Cali-

fornia Development Company subsequent to February,

1 90s, and the acts of the man who maintained the dam

which his predecessor in interest constructed, rests en-

tirely in this : the California Development Company was

v/hen this suit was commenced in no sense maintaining

the intake, while in the other case the grantee was main-

taining the dam.

If in the suit against the grantee of him who had con-

structed the dam it had been proven that such grantee

had never claimed the right to have the dam there, and

had himself made many efiforts to pull it down, and still

wanted it pulled down, such proof would have been a
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defense to the action, because the same distinction would

then exist, and the evidence of maintenance, that is to

say, of continuing- acts of trespass, would be lacking.

V.

The court was without jurisdiction to decree an in-

junction because it appeared from the evidence that at the

time of the commencement of the suit an injunction to save

complainant's property from destruction would have been

ineffective and futile.

Let it be conceded for the purpose of argument, that

if at the commencement of the suit, the complainant was

entitled to relief by injunction, the court had the right

upon the trial, to award it any relief to which it was

found to be entitled, even though by reason of occur-

rences after the commencement of the suit, the com-

plainant's right to an injunction should have ceased

before the trial and decree; and, let it be further con-

ceded that if the complainant were entitled at the time

of the commencement of the suit to the equitable relief

asked for, the court had jurisdiction to award it a money

judgment for damages. Nevertheless, we believe it to

be settled law that in order to entitle the complainant

to any relief in this suit, it is not sufficient that the bill

alleged facts sufficient to entitle it to an injunction, but it

was necessary for it to establish upon the trial that at

the time of the commencement of the suit it was entitled

to equitable relief.

In support of this we will re-quote from the decision

of the United States Supreme Court a quotation set

forth in appellant's opening brief, as follows

:

"The rule is that where a cause of action cognizable



-38-

"at law is entertained in equity, on the ground of some

"equitable relief sought by the bill which it turns out can-

"not for defect of proof or other reason be granted, the

"court is without jurisdiction to proceed further and

"should dismiss the bill and remit the cause to a court

"of law."

Dowell V. Mitchell, 105 U. S. 430.

See also cases cited in appellant's opening brief, page

158-

The fact that the bill contains allegations showing the

complainant to be entitled to equitable relief, is not suf-

ficient. While sufficient, of course, upon demurrer, the

bill will be dismissed upon trial, if such allegations show-

ing equitable jurisdiction are not established by the evi-

dence.

Again we quote from an opinion quoted in appellant's

opening brief:

"A moment's reflection will satisfy everyone that

"nothing could be more mischievous than the adoption of

"the principle contended for by the complainant. In such

"case it would only be necessary for the defendant in an

"action at law to make some pretense of claim against

"the plaintiff in such action of fraud, mistake, accident

"or right to an account, in order to change the forum

"of litigation, and to compel the determination of ques-

"tions purely legal in a court of equity."

Collier v. Collier, 33 Atl. 193, at p. 194.

It is alleged in the bill that the complainant is engaged

in the mining and manufacture of salt; that it owns cer-

tain sections of land upon which are an extensive salt

crust, and certain buildings and machinery used for the
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mining and manufacture thereof. That owing to the

diversion of the waters of the Colorado river by the

defendant, the salt, buildings and machinery have been

to some extent injured, but have been protected by dykes

erected by complainant. That if the diversion of waters

is stopped, the waters then encroaching upon such dykes

will, by reason of climatic conditions, evaporate and dis-

appear. That the amount of water in the Salton lake is

constantly increasing, and "if such increase be not

checked, will in a short time overflow said dyke." [Para-

graph 8, p. 65.]

In conclusion complainant alleges that defendant will

"unless restrained * * * continue to divert from the

Colorado river large quantities of water * -i' * and there-

by destroy the property and business of complainant,

and occasion complainant great and irreparable in-

jury."

It appears by the articles of incorporation of the com-

plainant [p. 2077] "that the purposes for which it is

formed are for mining, manufacturing, buying and sell-

ing salt and other minerals, and also purchasing and

selling real estate."

The object of the suit is by injunction to protect from

injury and destruction the buildings, machinery and salt

beds necessary for the carrying on of the purposes of

complainant's organization.

It is asserted on behalf of defendant that the evidence

showed that the suit was commenced too late to save

such property from destruction.

The evidence on this point is summarized in appel-

lee's brief at pages 94 and 95. Upon the evidence so
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summarized, counsel for appellee comment, at page 95,

as follows:

"It appears from this testimon}^, which, as we have

"said, is not contradicted, that by the 26th of March,

"1905,—up to which date there had been no exceedingly

"high water in the Colorado; at any rate, if high water

"had prevailed it did not last for a protracted period—

•

"the property of complainant was practically destroyed.

"The record Mall be searched in vain for any explanation

"of the cause of this great damage and injury to com-

"plainant other than the reckless method pursued by de-

"fendant in the conc'act of its operations."

Drury, witness for complainant, also testified that the

complainant abandoned all effort to save its property

on March loth, 1905. That on that date "the whole

thing was swamped." [Tr., p. 602.]

The March floods, which, as above stated, commenced

on the I4tli of March, and during which the river at-

tained a height of over thirty feet, rendered it physically

impossible for the California Development Company or

anyone, to close the intake prior to the 26th of March,

the day fixed by counsel in their brief as the date when

the property of the complainant was practically de-

stroyed.

The defendant was, as a matter of fact, engaged in

an effort to close the intake prior to such March floods,

and immediately after the February floods; and an in-

junction could not have compelled it to do more than

it was doing. Even if it should be argued that the

defendant prior to such March floods was not proceed-

ing to close the intake with proper dispatch and skill,
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nevertheless, it remains true that no injunction issued on

the 8th of March (assuming that the Superior Court

had issued one ex parte upon the filing of the com-

plaint in that court) could have, as a matter of fact

availed, so that in pursuance of it other and more suc-

cessful and expeditious plans for the closing of the in-

take could have been devised and put into execution

prior to the flood commencing on the 14th of March,

which, according to the undisputed testimony, would

have undone all that might have been done prior there-

to.

It is therefore an indisputably established fact, vir-

tually conceded by appellee's brief, that at the time the

suit was commenced even in the Superior Court of Cali-

fornia, the destruction of complainant's property de-

scril;!ed in the bill, was inevitable.

The fact that it had not been totally destroyed on the

8th of March is immaterial, if on that date the condi-

tions were such that its destruction was in the course

of nature inevitable, despite any reasonable efforts of

human agency to save it.

One may be enjoined under certain circumstances

from burning material upon his own premises in such

manner as to occasion the conflagration to spread and

destroy the improvements upon the adjacent property

of another, and if one threatens to burn material upon

his own premises in such way, the owner of the adja-

cent property may, upon proof of such threats, enjoin

him from so doing. But, if the first party has before

suit brought, actually started the fire upon his own

property, and as a result of it the conflagration has as-
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sumed such proportions that it must inevitably extend

to and consume the improvements upon the adjacent

owner's property, a court of equity would not, at the

instance of such owner of the adjacent property, issue

an injunction of any kind, even though at the time of

the request for the injunction the fire had not actually

reached the property of such adjacent owner.

The point suggested is, that though the building,

machinery and salt beds were not on the 8th of March

totally destroyed, and were not in fact destroyed until

the 26th of March, still, on the 8th of March the Colo-

rado river was so far beyond control that no human

agency could have arrested its floods in time to save

complainant's property from annihilation.

Therefore, it is submitted as a proposition of fact es-

tablished by the evidence, that the destruction of com-

plainant's property had been virtually effected prior to

the commencement of the suit and that no injunction

could then lie for the purpose of saving such property,

because any such injunction would have been as futile

as King Canute's command to the tides of the ocean.

At the time the action was commenced, and prior

thereto, the California Development Company found

itself engaged in a life and death conflict with the Colo-

rado river. It may be that the California Development

Company by its recklessness in October, 1904, had, so

to speak, breathed life into a Frankenstein, and brought

this engine for destruction into existence; but the fact,

nevertheless, was that this mighty force, however cre-

ated, was at such time militant and overwhelming, and
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the defendant was impotent to arrest it in its course of

destruction.

Rockwood testified, referring to the conditions in the

spring and summer of 1905:

"The more money we would have spent, the more

"m.oney would have been thrown away. I do not believe

"that the expenditure of any amount of money at that

"time could possibly have done any good." [P. 1260.]

The President of the United States, in his message to

Congress upon the subject, which was put in evidence

by counsel for complainant, summarizes the conditions

as follows:

"There appears to be only one agency equal to the

"task of controlling the river ; namely, the Southern Pa-

"cific Company, with its transportation facilities, its

"equipment * * the need of railroad facilities and equip-

"ment and the international complications are such that

"the officers of the United States, even v/ith unlimited

"funds could not carry on the work with the celerity re-

"quired. It is only the fact that the officers of the South-

"ern Pacific Company acting also as officers of the Cali-

"fornia Development Company, have been able to apply

"all its resoiu'ces for transportation, motive power and

"the operation of the road that has made it possible to

"control the situation to the extent which they have al-

"ready done." [Tr., p. 2095.]

In its effort to close the intake the California Devel-

opment Company having without avail, exhausted its

own resources, turned over (as appears by the contract

with the Southern Pacific Company in evidence, p. . .
.

)

the entire control of its organization and its properties
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to this great railroad system. It evinced by such con-

tract its wiUingness to surrender its all; and withal the

forces of the Colorado river remained unchained until

January, 1907.

How futile then would have been a decree of the

court compelling acts for the purpose of saving this

doomed property. Such futility was, as a matter of

fact, demonstrated before the trial by the total de-

struction of complainant's property in spite of the tem-

porary injunction which was issued shortly after the

filing of the bill.

(The temporary injunction is not printed, but it is

referred to in the testimony, and, as a matter of fact, a

copy of it has been certified and made a part of the rec-

ord recently, and since the printing of the transcript.)

The principle contended for is stated by the Supreme

Court of California as follows:

'Tf the destruction of the ditch be inevitable, as Clark

"seems to think, irrespective of future work, we are un-

"able to perceive how, by preventing the work, the ditch

"can be saved from destruction. If the destruction must

"come 'any way', we are unable to perceive how even a

"court of equity can prevent it. Assuming then, that an

"injunction would have been allowed, if it had been ap-

"plied for at the time the work of defendants first threat-

"ened injury to the ditch, we think it clear that the plain-

"tififs have delayed their application until it is too late.

"So far as we can judge, an injunction would be ruinous

"to the defendants, and of no benefit to the plaintififs."

Clark V. Willett, 35 Cal., p. 534, at p. 548.
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VI.

From the assumption that the complainant was not en-

titled to an injunction to protect from destruction its build-

ings, machinery and salt beds, the conclusion inevitably

follows that it was not entitled to any injunction at all.

It is true as suggested by Judge Wellborn in his con-

clusions, that in addition to these buildings, machinery

and salt beds, complainant owned its barren freehold;

and it is admitted that under certain circumstances the

owner of a barren freehold, without respect to its value,

is entitled to injunctive relief. But it is confidently as-

serted that, in this suit, and upon the facts of this rec-

ord, complainant was not entitled to injunctive relief for

any such purpose.

While complainant does allege in his bill ownership

of the soil, the entire theory of the bill is the appre-

hended destruction of the buildings, machinery and saH

beds; and it is submitted that the complainant is bound

in this action by such theory, and that therefore if the

court should view favorably the contention of the de-

fendant in the preceding point, the bill should be dis-

missed.

The purposes of the organization of the complainant

are stated in its articles of incorporation as above quot-

ed. The machinery and salt beds having been destroyed,

the barren freehold could not longer be of use for the

purpose of mining, manufacturing, buying and selling

salt and other minerals.

It is true that complainant also had power by its

charter to buy and sell real estate, although such fact

is not set forth in the bill.
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The entire evidence establishes the fact that the real

estate in question had no value other than its salt beds,

which, as has been argued, were at the time of the com-

mencement of the action, doomed to inevitable destruc-

tion. Therefore, they had no value for purposes of sale.

It follows that the complainant could not under its

charter, use them for any purpose whatever.

All the earlier authorities, and many modern ones,

hold that the allegation of ownership of property is not

of itself sufficient to give a complainant equitable relief;

that he must in addition set forth some facts tending to

show that his remedy at law is not adequate, or that his

damage is irreparable.

Admit, however, that the weight of modern authority

is against this proposition, and that most jurisdictions,

influenced chiefly by the disposition of the states, by

statute, to disregard the distinctions between legal and

equitable procedure, have held that a permanent injury

to the freehold is per se a nuisance, and entitles its owner

to injunctive relief. Still, it is asserted wnth confidence

that no case can be found in the books where a court of

equity has been induced to exercise this extraordinary

power at the instance of a party who is in no way dam-

aged by the alleged nuisance, unless the party commit-

ting the nuisance is doing so and threatening to continue

to do so deliberately, wantonly or maliciously, unless, in

fact, the nuisance is what some courts term a "prag-

matic nuisance".

Especially is this true if the injunction sought is

a mandatory injunction. The proposition that the in-

junction prayed for was in effect a mandatory injunc-
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tion, and that the complainant was not, under the evi-

dence, at the time entitled to a mandatory injunction,

will be discussed presently, but in this connection, and

proceeding upon the assumption as stated at the head-

ing of this paragraph, that the complainant came to

court too late to save its buildings, machinery and salt

beds from destruction, the court is respectfully asked to

strip from the bill all of its allegations with respect to

buildings, machinery and salt beds,—as must be done

if such assumption is well founded—and to consider

whether any chancellor before whom the conditions as

set forth in the evidence were faithfully presented, would

decree the injunction here prayed for, at the instance of

a complainant, whose pra^^er was this

:

"I own some worthless land on the desert,

of no use for any purpose or character what-

ever: and the California Development Company, not

maliciously or wantonly, but imprudently and taking

its chances, but inspired by the desire to serve quickly

the needs—not the comfort, but the needs—of thousands

of people, cut intakes into the Colorado river and as a

result thereof, the channel of such river has been turned

and the waters are flowing upon my worthless lands;

but they are mine and while I am not using them and

cannot use them, and they are not being damaged by

this innudation, still they are mine and I demand that

this court of equity do say to the California Develop-

ment Company 'it is unconscientious that this condition

be continued; and it is decreed that you, under penalty

of imprisonment and punishment, expend hundreds of

thousands or millions of dollars and close that intake."
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Would any chancellor, ancient or modern, give such

prayer consideration? Still, such is complainant's posi-

tion in this suit, if it be a fact, as admitted by counsel

for appellee in their brief, that at the time of the com-

mencement of the suit complainant's machinery, build-

ings and salt beds were, as has been stated, doomed to

inevitable destruction.

The principle that an injunction, and especially a man-

datory injunction will not be granted when the damage

to the party sought to be enjoined is heavy and the dam-

age to the plaintiff relatively unimportant except in

cases of pragmatic trespass, has been recognized by all

courts.

McCarthy v. Bunker Hill & Sullivan Co., 147

Fed. 981

;

High on Injunctions, Sec. 2, note;

In Murdock's Case, 2 Bland's Chancery, 461 ; 20

Am. Dec. 381.

In the case of Morris & Essex v. Prudden, 20 N. J.

Eq., page 530, the court says, at page 540:

"The retention of the injunction will be of little bene-

"fit to complainant while it will work serious annoyance

"to defendants. An injunction ought not to be granted

"where the benefit secured by it to one party is but of lit-

"tle importance, while it will operate oppressively and to

"the great annoyance and injury of the other party, un-

"less the wrong complained of is so wantom and unpro-

"voked in its character as properly to deprive the wrong-

"doer of the benefit of any consideration as to its injuri-

"ous consequences."
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In the case of Isenberg- v. East India Company, 33

L. J. Equity, page 392, Lord Chancellor Westbury

states the same principle, as follows

:

"To what end then am I to exercise a jurisdic-

**tion, which, in such a case as this, would simply be mis-

"chievous to the defendants, without being attended with

"corresponding benefit to the plaintifif, unless, indeed, I

"could approve of the plaintiff's taking advantage of the

"mischief and loss that the defendants would have to

"sustain in order to aggravate and exaggerate his claim

"for pecuniary compensation."

The principle that a court of equity will always in-

tervene to prevent a nuisance which goes to the sub-

stance of a freehold, is not universal in its application,

and will always be modified to suit the particular facts

and^ conditions before the court for determination.

This has been cautiously and justly set forth by the

Supreme Court of California in the following lan-

guage:

"Whether ditch properties in the mineral regions of

"this state, although conceded to be real estate, used as

"it is for purposes of trade and commerce, is to be re-

"garded by courts of equity with the same measure of

"favor which is bestowed by them upon land which is

"held and cherished by the owner for iTSELF, and not

"merely put to use for an ulterior object, admits at least

"of serious doubt. Such ditches are more or less tem-

"porary. They are not valuable as land. Their value

"depends entirely upon the demand for water, and when

"the demand has ceased they become worthless. The

"qualities upon which the common law grounds its pe-
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"culiar fondness for land, and the reasons why courts

"of equity will interfere to protect it, would therefore

"seem to be measureably wanting. (See the case of

"Humphries v. Brogden, 12 Queen's Bench, Ad. & Ellis,

"739; and Gibson v. Puchta, 33 Cal. 316.)"

Clark V. Willett, 35 Cal. at p. 549.

VII.

The injunction was in effect a mandatory injunction.

A court of equity rarely decrees a mandatory injunction re-

quiring the performance of constructive in contradistinction

to destructive work, and will never decree a mandatory in-

junction when the work commanded to be done requires in

its execution such skill, judgment and technical ability as

was required to close the intakes complained of.

Tlie remedy by injunction is wholly preventive, pro-

hibitory or protective. And this is true whether the

form of injunction be prohibitive or mandatory. A
court of equity will not interpose for the sole purpose

of redressing a wrong. It has been said that the chan-

cellors borrowed the writ from the old Roman "inter-

dict".

The Supreme Court of Illinois, following the notion

contained in the word "interdict" says:

"It comes between the complainant and the injury he

"fears or seeks to avoid. If the injury be already done

"the writ can have no operation for it cannot be applied

"correctively so as to remove it."

WangeHn v. Goe, 50 111. 459, at p. 469.

The same court again says:

"Resort cannot be had to the writ of injunction, di-
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"rectly or indirectly, to obtain affirmative relief, but its

"office and use are to afford preventive relief as to

"wrongs and injuries threatened and which the party

"fears."

Baxter v. Board of Trade, 83 111. 146.

The result desired must always be the prevention of

a wrong. Sometimes a mere prohibition will not serve

to accomplish such desired result; and the fact that

technical prohibition will not suffice to stand between

the complainant and his injury forces a court of equity,

in order to accomplish the desired end, to issue what is

termed, a "mandatory injunction". The purpose, how-

e\er, is always to prevent a wrong, and never to redress

an injury.

The familiar case calling for the exercise of a man-

datory injunction is the building of a dam, the effect

of which is to flood or injure complainant's property.

In such a case it was said by the court:

"It is not to correct a wrong of the past, in the sense

"of redress for the injury already sustained, but to pre-

"vent further injury. The injury consists in the over-

"flov/ of the lands of the plaintiff. It was not alone the

"building of the dam that caused the injury, but its

"maintenance or continuance, which is a part of the act

"complained of ; and its maintenance can only be stopped

"so as to prevent its injury by its removal. The removal

"of the dam, wrongfully constructed, is necessary for

"and incidentally involved in the preventive redress

"vv'hich the law authorizes."

Troe V. Larson, 84 la., 649; 35 Am. St. Rep. 336;

51 N. W. 179.
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Pomeroy commenting upon this decision says

:

"On this ground the use of mandatory injunctions is

"resorted to whenever necessary to give the full relief

"to which the plaintiff is entitled. In such cases it is gen-

"erally destructive acts requiring no supervision that are

"required, as the removal of an object that is, or causes

"a nuisance."

5 Pomeroy Eq. Jur.. i Pomeroy Eq. Rem., Sec.

533, P- 913-

As observed by Pomeroy in the same section, it is

true that occasionally constructive acts are required,

but always in cases of continuing nuisances, and as has

been heretofore argued, the injunctive relief is based

upon a meditated maintenance of the wrongful act.

An examination of all of the authorities by Pomeroy

in support of the principles laid down in such section,

and a diligent examination of all the authorities upon

the subject by counsel, has failed to disclose a single

case in which a mandatory injunction was issued unless

the party against whom it ran was by express or im-

plied affirmative conduct maintaining the condition

which superinduced the injury which the court sought

to prevent.

There is a line of authorities in which mandatory in-

junctions have been issued to public service corpora-

tions, to compel the performance of statutory regula-

tions or of duty to the public, in which the basis of the

writ was akin to the basis of the writ of mandamus,

which^ however, have no application to conditions as

presented upon this appeal; and in many of such cases

the courts of equity have refused to intervene, and have
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intimated that the proper remedy was the legal remedy

of mandamus.

The distinction between ordering- by mandatory in-

junction constructive work as contradistinguished from

destructive work is clearly defined in the case of

Doran v. Carrol, 1 1 Irish Chancery, page 379.

The subject matter of that case was a wall which the

defendant had destroyed. The complainant sought by

mandatory injunction, to compel him to rebuild it. It

would seem that these facts are very similar in principle

to the facts in this case. The chancellor said:

*Tt ^the destruction of the wall) has been accom-

"plished and it is now entirely a matter for the consid-

"eration of a court at law. The wall is prostrate and

''there is an end of it. It is clearly not a case in which

"a mandatory injunction to rebuild the wall could be

"granted."

Perhaps the controlling reason why courts of equity

are reluctant to order constructive work by mandatory

injunction is, that a chancellor will not undertake to com-

pel the doing of an affirmative act unless the work to be

done is definitely described and easily ascertained and

so capable of being readily performed as to render

possible the execution of the decree by the marshal if

the defendant refused, or from lack of money or any

cause was unable to perform.

Back of this consideration is the fundamental prin-

ciple that a court of equity will not decree the perform-

ance of a vain and idle act. It will at times compel the

performance of some ordinary act, such as the construc-

tion of a switch, or the building of a bridge over a
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ditch or stream, acts, whose performance under pre-

vailing mechanical conditions is as simple as acts of

destruction. But no court of equity would undertake

to compel the construction, v/e will say, of a suspension

bridge over the Hudson river, or a tunnel beneath it

A temporary injunction was issued in May and the

California Development Company was then under order

to close these intakes.

Rockwood testified that he did all that engineering

skill and prudence and abundant labor and material

could do, to close the intake, and failed.

Dur3''ea, on the other hand, testified that Rockwood's

methods were incompetent, and that his (Dur3Ta's)

plan for closing the intake was the sound and skillful

one. He did not divulge to Randolph nor to the court

what his plan was. He said: "In a contract like that

(closing the intake) the principal stock in trade is the

method."

When the first efforts had proved a failure. Rock-

wood devised a new method. It was to construct a

wooden gate of sufficient dimensions to carry the entire

flow of the river at low water; to make the floor of the

gate lower than the bottom of the intake; the entire

river, seeking the lowest point, would flow through the

gate and leave the intake dry; then the intake could be

rapidly closed, the gate shut, and the waters would flow

past the intake and find their way to the Gulf.

Edlinger, the engineer for the Southern Pacific

thought that Rockwood's plan would fail. Schuyler

thought that Rockwood's plan would succeed; Edlinger

had his plan, which consisted of a diagonal dam from
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a point above the intake to an island opposite it, which

would divert the river through the channel on the other

side of the island, away from the intake and thence to

the Gulf.

Was Randolph in contempt when he adopted Rock-

wood's plan? Was it contempt to refuse to accept Dur-

5'ea's proposition? Should the California Development

Company in order to escape contumacy have

ordered a board of examiners to ascertain

whether Duryea, Rockwood or Schuyler or Edlin-

ger or Randolph was the most skilled engineer? Was
the defendant complying with the order when, with

feverish haste, constructing Rockwood's gate, and was

it in contempt when its officers stood upon the banks

of the river and saw what was left of the Rockwood gate

floating toward the Salton Sink?

Duryea appeared to criticize Rockwood and Edlinger

for spending some of their nights at Yuma, and testi-

fied:

"I think there should have been very complete juris-

diction (supervision?) by all of the higher officials; they

should have kept in constant touch with the work and

should have been on the work a large part of the time.

It was a serious question." [P. 330]

This testimony of Duryea's, of itself, suffices that the

bill should be dismissed.

Courts of all jurisdictions have united in the doctrine

that courts of equity zvill decree the performance of no

work zvhich requires continuous superi'ision.

Precisely the same principle guides a court of equity
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in such cases as guides it in suits for specific perform-

ance.

"The injunction prayed for in this case would, if

"granted, accomphsh all that a decree for specific per-

"formance could effect, and therefore all the principles

"which apply to the case of a bill for specific performance

"apply with equal force to the case of a bill for perpetual

"injunction, when that injunction accomplishes all the

"objects which could be accomplished by a successful

"prosecution of a formal bill for specific execution."

Whalen v. B. & O. R. R., 69 Atl., p. 391, at p.

394-

"It is contended that the agreement is of such a char-

"acter that a court of equity will not attempt to

"decree its specific performance. "^ * * It is urged

"that the contract is one in which the skill, expe-

"rience and cultivated judgment of the parties must be

"exercised in order to confer upon either of them the

"substantial benefit of its performance. "^^ * * When

"the act to be performed depends upon the skill, expe-

"rience, and cultivated judgment of the person who has

"obligated himself for its performance, courts of equity

"will not undertake to coerce a literal and perfunctory

"performance which would be but a vain and idle act.

"It is one thing, however, to stop a party from doing

"that which he cannot rightfully do, and another to un-

"dertake to compel him to do an act involving the ex-

"ercise of faculties and judgment which are peculiar anjl

"personal to himself; and the argument from inconven-

"ience which may properly be invoked when the court is

"asked to decree a specific performance would, if it
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"should be controlling when the court is asked to re-

-strain the doing of an unlawful act, apply to all cases

"in which the corrective power by injunction is exer-

"cised."

Chicago & A. Ry. Co. v. N. Y., L. E. & W. R.

Co., 24 Fed., at p. 521.

"Another serious objection to a decree for specific per-

"formance is found in the peculiar character of the con-

"tract itself, and in the duties which it requires of the

"owners of the quarries * * * they involve skill, personal

"labor and cultivated judgment."

Marble Co. v. Ripley, 10 Wall, 339, at p. 358.

See to the same effect

:

Bradfield v. Dewell, 48 Mich. 9; 11 N. W. 760;

Certainly the defendant's obligation by reason of the

acts complained of could not have been stronger than if

it had entered into a solemn contract to close the intakes.

Let us suppose that Randolph on behalf of the Cali-

fornia Development Company had accepted Duryea's

offer. It appears at page 368. He was to turn ninety

per cent of the water back into the old bed of the river

and to keep it there for ten days for $135,000, and the

free use of all materials that were upon the ground or

in transit, and the free use of the plant which was on

the ground or in transit. He refused to disclose the

nature of his plan.

Had such a contract been made, and Duryea failed,

would it be argued that a suit for specific performance

to compel him to perform his contract, could have been

maintained? Certainly no authority can be adduced in
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support of such contention, and if not, then how may a

court of equity issue a mandatory injunction against

the CaHfornia Development Company?

VIII.

The court had no jurisdiction to decree an injunction in

this suit in the absence of a determination at law that the

acts of the defendant complained of constituted a nuisance.

Pomeroy suggests that a problem of procedure may

be presented to the equity courts when an injunction is

sought by a plaintiff in whose favor tlie fact that a

nuisance exists has never been determined.

"In such case", he asks, "should the court of equity

pass on the questions of law or fact raised? Or should

it refuse its extraordinary relief until the plaintiff has

procured a judgment of a court of law in his favor ?

I Pomeroy's Eq. Rem., Sec. 519.

After discussion of this problem at some length he

concludes that the rule that the question on which the

legal rights depend, should be first tried at law "still

persists in most jurisdictions in vvhich it has not been

abrogated by statute."

Idem, Sec. 522.

It will be borne in mind that the acts of the Califor-

nia Development Company were not per se a nuisance.

Intake Nio. i had been opened in December, 1902, and it

had done no injury to anybody, either actually or the-

oretically. Intake No. 2 did no injury. Complainant

admits that intake No. 3, under ordinary conditions,

would have done no injury, and constituted no nuisance.
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Defendant contends that Intake No. 3 never did work

a nuisance; that there was no nuisance; that the prop-

erty of complainant was inundated by reason of the acts

of God.

It is an admitted fact that prior to the message sent

by the President to Congress in January, 1907, Intake

No. 3 had been entirely closed, and has remained closed

ever since, by means of a dam of solid and impregnable

rock; but that after all three intakes had been thus

closed the floods swept over, not only the banks of the

river, but the levees which had been constructed, and

cut another intake through which the floods continued

to pour into the canals of the defendant and upon the

lands of the complainant. It was then a question of

fact whether the defendant had committed any act which

caused or even contributed to the injury of complain-

ant's property. The flooding existed at the time of the

commencement of the suit. Complainant claimed that

it was a nuisance created by defendant. This the de-

fendant denied.

It is the accepted law, that under such conditions,

when what is claimed to be a nuisance already exists,

and the claim that the act complained of constitutes a

nuisance is controverted, a court of equity cannot act

until such disputed claim is determined by a court of

law.

"When the alleged nuisance is prospective and threat-

"ened, a court of equity may interfere to prevent its be-

"ing brought into existence. When what is claimed to

"be a nuisance already exists, the general rule is that

"the fact that it is a nuisance must be established by a
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"suit at common law before a court of equity will in-

"terfere to abate. Varney v. Pope, 60 Me. 192. This

"has always been the doctrine in this state. (Cases

"cited.)

"It is true that this general rule is subject to excep-

"tions. In cases of pressing or imperious necessity, or

"where the right is in danger of being injured or de-

"stroyed, or there is no adequate remedy at law, equity

"will interfere."

Tracy v. LaBlanc, 36 Atl, p. 399, at p. 400.

"And a court will always act with reluctance in abat-

"ing a nuisance and seldom, if ever, until it is regularly

"found to be such by a jury."

Dunning v. City of Aurora, 40 111. 481, at p.

486.

"But where the thing is not itself noxious, but only

"something which may according to circumstances prove

"so, then the court will refuse to interfere until the mat-

"ter has been tried at law. * * *"

Kennedy v. Etiwan, 17 S. C. 411.

The idea contended for is suggested by the Sujpreme

Court of the United States in the case of Northern In-

diana Railroad Co. against Michigan Central Railroad

Company, supra, in the following language:

"In the course of such an investigation it may be

"necessary to protect an issue to try the title of the par-

"ties or to assess the damage complained of in the bill."

(p- 244.)

To the same effect see

:

Wangelin v. Goe, 50 III. 459;
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Roath V. Driscoll, 20 Conn. 533, at p. 539;

Harrelson v. K. C. Co., 52 S. W. 368;

Ervvin v. Dixion, 50 U. S. 10;

Wood V. McGrath, 24 Atl. 682;

Burnham v. Kempton, 44- N. H. 78, at pp. 95

and 97;

Brooks V. Norcross, 4 Fed. Cases, 294, No. 1957.

IX.

There is no allegation or proof that the defendant

when able to control the waters of the Colorado river, at

any time so used them as to permit waste water to flow

upon the lands of the complainant. Therefore, inasmuch

as the headgate had been constructed and the intakes

closed prior to the trial and decree, whatever may have

been the pow^er of the court to retain jurisdiction for the

purpcse of awarding judgment for damages, it had no

power to decree an injunction and thereby restrain the

defendant from performing acts which it had never done or

threatened to do.

The learned district judge sets forth in his conclusions

the grounds for the injunction which was decreed, in

the following language

:

"If, when the suit was brought, there were grounds

*'for injunction, such grounds have not been removed by

"the destruction of complainant's works and by the dos-

sing of defendant's intakes. Complainant is entitled to

"have its freehold protected, without regard to the

"amount of the damage threatened, otherwise the over-

"flow sought to be abated might, by prescription, ripen

"into a servitude upon the land. Furthermore, the pres-

"ent safeguards against overflows may be but temporary,
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"while the complainant's remedial rights, if it has any,

"include permanent relief." (P. 129.)

The first sentence of the above quotation, is founded

upon the assumption that the defendant had threatened

or intended to construct further intakes of dangerous

character. There being no allegation or proof upon

which to base such assumption it follows that the clos-

ing of the intakes by the defendant before the decree did

remove the grounds for the injunction if any existed at

the time of the commencement of the suit.

The statement that "the present safeguards against

overflows may be but temporary," has no foundation in

the evidence. It was conclusively established that the

intakes which caused the trouble were definitely closed.

Complainant's right to an injunction does not neces-

sarily follow from its right "to have its freehold pro-

tected." Complainant's right to have its freehold pro-

tected was probably co-existent with its title to the same,

but its right to an injunction against the defendant can

only exist as a result of acts by defendant invading or

threatening to invade such right.

The acts alleged are that defendant c instructed in-

takes without making "provision for control or regula-

tion of the amount of water diverted by it into said in-

takes." The complainant offered evidence tending to

prove this allegation but offered no evidence whatever

as to any other improper or unlawful act of defendant;

and so far as we can see, counsel has made no other

charge against defendant than such acts.

All of these intakes had prior to the decree, been

closed and a new intake had been constructed and in its
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construction, provision was made for the control and

regulation of the water diverted by it.

The court, therefore, had no right to assume that the

defendant having power to regulate and control the in-

takes for the water diverted by it, will wantonly, or

otherwise, so control them as to suffer waste water to

flood complainant's property.

If, as a matter of fact, since the construction of the

present intakes, defendant has suffered or caused waste

water to flow into the Salton sea, the complainant in

order to protect its freehold, must bring a suit for an

injunction based upon such acts by the defendant. Or

if such acts were committed prior to the decree the com-

plainant should have filed a supplemental bill stating

such facts and have offered evidence to establish them.

Upon the present record it was error for the court to

find, without accusation, that the defendant meditated

wrong-doing and to issue its injunction accordingly.

It seems unreasonable to assume that unpreventable

flood water, flowing through the intakes on defendant's

naked land, could ripen into an easement in favor of the

defendant, when the allegation of the defendant in its

answer and the evidence of all parties, were that the

defendant had nothing actively to do with such unpre-

ventable flooding.
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X.

The Imperial water companies and the Mexican cor-

poration were necessary parties to the suit.

In reenforcement of the authorities cited in appel-

lant's opening brief, and in reply to the argument of ap-

pellee in opposition to the above proposition, we submit

the following quotation from the case of the Northern

Indiana Railway company against the Michigan Rail-

road company, supra:

"This question is, therefore, vitally interesting to the

"New Albany company; and by the bill we are called to

"decide that question, although that company is not

"made a party to the suit. It is impossible to grant the

"relief prayed, without deeply afifecting the New Al-

"bany company. If their charter shotild be held good,

"as claimed by that company, an injunction against the

"defendants would materially injure the New Albany

"company. * * *

"The Act of 1839 provides, that 'where in any suit

" "^at law or in equity commenced in any court of the

" 'United States, there shall be several defendants, any

" 'one or more of whom shall not be inhabitants of, or

" 'found within the district, jurisdiction may be enter-

" 'tained, but the judgment or decree shall not conclude

" 'or preclude other parties. And the nonjoinder of par-

" 'ties who are not inhabitants, or found within the dis-

" 'trict, shall constitute no matter of abatement, or other

" 'objection to said suit.'

"The provision of this Act is positive, and in ordi-

"nary cases no difficulty could arise in giving effect to
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"it ; but in a case like the present, where a court cannot

"but see that the interest of the New Albany company

"must be vitally affected, if the relief prayed for by the

"complainant be given, the court must refuse to exercise

"jurisdiction in the case, or become the instrument of

"injustice. In such an alternative we are bound to say,

"that this case is not within the statute. On both the

"grounds above stated we think that the circuit court

"has no jurisdiction."

It was inconsistent with the theory of organization of

the Imperial Water companies that their stock should be

held permanently or for any length of time, by the Cali-

fornia Development company and their policies or ac-

tions directed by it.

The farmers who were to become the ultimate own-

ers of the stock of the Imperial Water companies de-

pended for existence upon the ability of the defendant

to furnish the water companies with water, by diverting

the same from the Colorado river, and their interest, to

borrow the language of the court above quoted, "must

"be vitally affected if the relief prayed by the complain-

"ant be given."

See also

State V. Goodnight, ii S. W. 119.

An injunction commanding the California Develop-

ment company to construct headgates upon Mexican soil

was in effect a command to the Mexican corporation,

which alone had the necessary authority from the Mexi-

can government.

Where a foreign corporation representing the power

of a foreign government for diversion of water of a



river on foreign soil by intakes built therein, is a neces-

sary party to any suit requiring a modification of such

intakes by other acts of construction on foreign soil and

cannor be made a party by any service of process, the

jurisdiction of equity is lost and the bill must be dis-

missed.

Ribon V. Railroad Companies, i6 Wall. 446;

Barney v. Baltimore, 6 Wall. 280

;

Thayer v. Life Assurance Company, 112 U. S.

717;

Shields v. Barrow, 17 Howard 130.

XI.

The court erred in deciding that the jurisdiction of the

Circuit Court, sitting as a court of equity to restrain the

wrongful diversions of water, draws to it the cognizance of

the damages, if any, which had resulted from such diver-

sions.

This point has been elaborately discussed in appel-

lant's opening brief and but little can be added to what

has been there said.

The precise question seems to have been decided by

the Supreme Court of Rhode Island in a case which does

not appear to have been cited upon such brief and the

attention of the court is here invited to it. It was a

suit for an injunction to restrain the obstruction of a

flow of water and the complainant asked for damages

occasioned by the past obstruction. The court sustained

a demurrer, saying:

"The complainant has his action on the case at com-

"mon law for such injuries and the jury trial is the more
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"appropriate proceeding for the recovery of damages.

"There is no analogy between this case and the infringe-

"ment of a patent where equity holds the user of anoth-

"er's invention as a trustee, accountable for profits

"earned. Here the damages are unliquidated and can-

"not be made the subject of an accounting."

Miner v. Nichols, 52 Atlantic 893.

See also

Stevenson v. Morgan, 64 N. J. Eq. 219.

It would seem that the right of the complainant, in a

suit for an injunction, to recover a money judgment by

way of damages for acts done prior to the injunction

rests upon the principle that a court of equity will not

permit the defendant to profit by his own wrong; and

the court will award the complainant as damages, the

value of such benefits as may have accrued to defendant

by reason of such wrongful acts. The theory is that the

defendant having secured such benefits by such wrong-

ful acts, holds them as a trustee per fraudem for the

complainant. Where the damages are unliquidated, in

other words yhere the complainant has been damaged,

but where the defendant has not profited by the wrong-

ful acts, the elements of such trusteeship do not exist

and a court of equity does not draw to it the cognizance

of such damages.

In conclusion, appellant submits that without regard

to matters of technical procedure, it is obvious upon the

whole record, that this was not a proper case for injunc-

tive relief.
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At the time this suit was brought and certainly long

prior to the time when complainant by filing its bill in

the Circuit Court, elected to proceed in equity, complain-

ant must have realized that its property was, or surely

would be destroyed and that it had in fact, if not in

theory, a complete remedy at law. Why then, did com-

plainant elect to prosecute its suit for damages in this

indirect fashion? It must have appreciated that its

property was lost beyond peradventure and that no

number of injunctions could as a matter of fact, protect

it from destruction. It cared nothing then and it cares

nothing now for its barren freehold. It is of no conse-

quence to it whether the evaporation of Salton sea be

retarded six months or a year.

Why then did complainant deliberately and after de-

fendant's demurrer interposed, insist upon the equity

side of the court as its forum? Why did eminent coun-

sel, with a clear field ahead for an action at law, "take

chances"? It would seem that complainant must have

been animated by some undisclosed purpose. It may

be that it feared a jury trial and undertook by indirec-

tion to deprive defendant of its right to one.

Or still other reasons may exist.

At the earlier stages of this litigation, the financial

condition of the defendant was necessarily precarious.

It was confronted by a condition of facts almost without

parallel.

As stated by the president in his message to congress

:

''After the mischief became apparent, strenuous ef-
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mforts were made by the California Development com-

''pan}^ to close the intake, but these were without sue-

"cess." (P. 2091.)

"The people in their desperation were reported as

"having tried to sell bonds secured by their property, in

"order to give to the California Development company

"one million dollars to assist in repairing the break."

(Pp. 2092-3.)

"Again, the owners of the property in Imperial Val-

"ley, both farmers and townspeople, together with the

"Southern Pacific company and the California Develop-

"ment company have combined to call upon the govern-

"ment for a contribution to assist the California De-

"velopment company to the extent of erecting permanent

"works to insure protection for the future." (P. 2093.)

The defendant has been compelled to expend, and

therefore to borrow, millions of dollars in order to save

the people of this valley from ruin. The Southern Pa-

cific company which stood in the breach and furnished

the defendant the means wherewith to meet the situa-

tion and close the intake, has no recourse for the mil-

lions thus expended except those of a general creditor

of the defendant, and has no hopes of being reimbursed

in any of these enormous expenditures except through

the operations of the defendant's plans of irrigation.

The injunction granted by the decree in this action,

if construed according to the contention of appellee, will

in effect, close the headgates at the Colorado river, and

put a total end to irrigation, except by permission of

complainant.

Such an injunction, as complainant must know, is of
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no practical value to it. It has value only as a weapon

whereby complainant can coerce the Southern Pacific

company and the settlers in the valley, all innocent and

fellow sufferers, to pay or settle this enormous judg-

ment. If perchance, this is the motive which inspires

the complainant so actively to seek equitable relief, its

course is even more inequitable than the alleged criminal

negligence of the luckless Rockwood.

No reason exists or has existed why defendant should

be deprived of its constitutional right to a trial by jury.

The decree should be reversed and the bill dismissed.

Tucson, Arizona, October i, 1908.

Respectfully submitted,

Eugene S. Ives,

Of Counsel for Appellant.
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The first proposition discussed in "Closing Brief of

Appellant" is "the Circuit Court for the Southern

** District of California had no jurisdiction to decree

" an injunction in effect abating a nuisance caused by

" the construction of intakes in the Republic of

" Mexico."

The allegations of the bill of complaint dealing with

waste waters are:

"That waste water in very large quantities is

still running into said lake and increasing the size
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thereof, and the danger that all of the property of
the complaiuaut will be covered by water and its

property and business destroyed." (Par. IX, p. 66,

This is admitted by the answer, p. 108.)

"That all of the flooding and overflowing of the
lands of complainant as hereinbefore set forth is

caused by, and is the result of the diversion by
defendant from the Colorado Eiver of the streams
of water as hereinbefore set forth in excess of the

amount required for any useful purpose whatever;
and a continuance of such overflow and flood will

result from the continued diversion by defendant
of the waters of the Colorado Eiver which naturally
flow in another direction." (Par. XI, p. 67.)

"That defendant will, unless restrained by this

court, continue to divert from the Colorado Eiver
large quantities of water which would naturally

flow in another direction, so that the same will

flood and overflow all of the lands of complainant,

and thereby destroj^ the property and business of

complainant, and occasion complainant great and
irreparable injury. That plaintiff has no adequate
remedy at law." (Par. XII, p. 67.)

This would seem to be amply sufficient, especially

in conjunction with a prayer for general relief, to war-

rant the decree.

Appellant lays great stress upon the allegation of

the bill that, unless the defendant be required to con-

struct head works for controlling and regulating the

amount of water flowing into its canal, the overflow

complained of will continue, and (appellant) contends

that this is really the injury of which we complain.

The injury charged in the bill of complaint resulted

from the discharge of waste waters which flowed upon



complainant's land. It was of no concern to complain-

ant how much water was diverted, as long as the quan-

tity diverted was so used as that none of it should flow

upon its land. The allegation upon which counsel lays

so much stress might be omitted from the bill entirely,

and there would still remain sufficient upon which to

base the decree which was entered below. Indeed, it

will be observed that the decree does not require de-

fendant to construct any headgates, but enjoins it from

discharging waste waters, and requires it to regulate

the flow of the water which it does divert.

In

Allen V. Woodruff, 96 111. 11, 18,

the court said:

'*It often happens, as in the case before us, that

in framing a bill in chancery the pleader, after

having correctly stated the actual facts of the case,

which is all the law requires, proceeds to make
some additional allegations with respect to what
the pleader supposes to be the legal effects of those

facts, which may be entirely erroneous, yet the

complainant in the case is not to be concluded or

prejudiced by such unnecessary statement. His

rights must depend upon the actual facts stated,

and not upon the erroneous conclusions of the

pleader with respect to them."

If the point now made by counsel had been urged

in the court below, and it had been deemed to have any

weight, it could have been cured by an amendment.

While it is true there was a demurrer to the bill of

complaint, neither upon the argument of the demurrer



nor upon the trial of the case was any suggestion of

this kind made. There is no hint of anything of this

nature in any assignment of error.

When the decree was entered the only headgate or

intake which defendant had was the one at the head

of its canal in the State of California. Before the

entry of the decree the two intakes in Mexico had been

permanently closed, but nevertheless waste water was

being discharged into Salton Sea.

Furthermore, at the time of the commencement of

the suit, and for a long time thereafter, the diversion

through the California intake was very large, amount-

ing on the date of the filing of the complaint to 1110

second feet, and increasing thereafter until, on the 21st

of March, the diversion through that intake was 2590

second feet. These figures are from the report of the

United States Geological Sui-vey for the year 1905,

page 23 (offered in evidence by defendant).

This evidence shows conclusively that Intake No. 1

was open during the month of March, and this is amply

borne out by other testimony in the record. Rockwood

said (page 1201) that he caused the two upper intakes

to be closed in December, 1904, by means of sack-

brush dams, but within two or three days there was a

rise in the river which broke both of the dams. There

is no hint of any dam having been constructed at In-

take No. 1 after that time. He also said (page 1228)

that those dams were simply put above the water sur-



face as it theu existed with the intention of raising and

strengthening them later; and further said (same page)

:

"You must remember too that these dams were
put in simply for the purpose of proving whether
or not my theory was correct, that by stopping

the water from coming in at the two upper intakes,

it would increase the flow at the lower. Conse-

quently, my only object was to prevent the flow of

water for the time being, in order that I might
prove my theory to be correct or false."

There is no claim that any dam was constructed at

the head of Intake No. 1 after the temporary dam was

washed out in December, 1904, and, indeed, if any such

claim were made, it would be flatly contradicted by the

record of measurements to which we have called at-

tention.

The case of

Gushing v. Pires, 124 Cal. 663,

was one for an injunction to restrain the defendant

from destroying a culvert constructed to carry off sur-

face waters. Upon appeal it was claimed the complaint

did not state a cause of action. The court said

:

"On an inspection of the record we cannot say
that this argument is altogether without founda-

tion. But we find that no such argument as this

and no objection of this nature was at any time

presented to the court in which the case was tried.

There was no demurrer to the complaint, and no
motion based upon a variance between the plead-

ings and proof, and to such evidence as might have
been objected to on the ground that it was not per-

tinent to the case made by the pleadings no such

objection was made. Had counsel made the ob-



jection he here urges and presented his argument
in siijDiDort thereof at the trial with the same force

and clearness as in his brief in this court, it would
have resulted, probably, in an amendment of the

complaint. He did not do this, but ]3roceeded with
the trial as if all the matters to which the evidence

was directed were properly in issue. The findings

and judgment were clearly supported by the evi-

dence, and the case was decided correctly on the

merits.*********
"It is true that the objection that the complaint

does not state a cause of action may be success-

fully made for the first time on appeal, but the

appellate court will not be over zealous to find

a defect in a complaint that the appellant himself

failed to discover until the case had been decided

against him on its merits. We think the defects

in the complaint, as well as the variance complained
of, are of a nature to be waived b}^ failure to call

them to the attention of the trial court by proper
objections, and that defendant should not be heard
to urge those objections for the first time after

judgment. '

'

In

Holman v. Boston L. S S. Co., 45 Pac. (Colo.)

519, 521,

it was said:

"But the issue upon the defective character of

the machinery, as the cause of the fire, which was
injected into the case by the evidence, was accepted

by both sides, without question, as the main issue

for trial. Their tacit agreement as to the ques-

tions involved controlled the course of the trial,

and the proceedings subsequent to the trial. It was
acted upon throughout by the trial judge, and the

arguments of the respective counsel in this court



are based upon the same theory of the case which
they mutually adopted below. We are therefore

compelled to disregard the pleadings, and decide

the case as the parties have seen fit to present it to

us."

The Supreme Court of the United States has forcibly

expressed itself in the same connection. The case of

Wasatch M. Co. v. Crescent M. Co., 148 U. S.

292, 37 L. Ed. 454,

was one for the reformation of a deed. The appellant

contended that the complaint stated a case for reforma-

tion for fraud, while the findings showed one for mis-

take, and that there was, therefore, a variance. It

was also contended that the complaint did not set out

the true contract as shown by the evidence. The court

held that the objections came too late, saying:

''The Supreme Court of the territory rightfully

held that the defendant should have raised the

question in the trial court, where ample power
exists to correct and amend the pleadings, and,

not having done so, but having gone to trial on
the merits, the defendant was precluded from as-

signing error, for matters so waived.

"The doctrine on this subject is well expressed

in the case of Tyng v. Commercial Warehouse Co.,

58 N. Y. 313: 'No question appears to have been

made during the trial in respect to the production

of evidence founded on any notion of variance or

insufficiency of allegation on the part of the plain-

tiif. Had any such objection been made it might

have been obviated by amendment in some form or

upon some terms under the ample powers of amend-
ment conferred by the code of procedure. It

would, therefore, be highly unjust, as well as un-
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supported by authority, to shut out from consid-

eration the case, as proved, by reason of defects

in the statements of the complainant. Indeed, it

is difficult to conceive of a case in which, after a

trial and decision of the controversy, as appearing

on the proofs, when no question has been made
during the trial in respect to their relevancy under
the pleadings, it would be the duty of a court, or

within its rightful authority, to deprive the party

of his recovery on the ground of incompleteness

or imperfection of the pleadings.'

"No injustice is done the appellant by thus dis-

posing of this objection, because the facts conclu-

sively show that the written contract between the

parties was not annulled or a new one substituted,

but that it was substantially executed—the defend-

ant simply accepting other conditions than those

stipulated in its favor and delivering a deed as

averred in the complaint."

To this first point several cases are cited by

appellant, but the only one upon which we

desire to comment is that of Gilbert v. Moline

Water Poiver S M. Co., 19 Iowa 319. That

was an action to enjoin the maintenance of a dam on

the Illinois side of the Mississippi Eiver, the result of

which was to flood the land of the plaintiff in Iowa.

The court held that it had no jurisdiction to award the

relief. The only case relied upon by the Iowa court is

Mississippi S Missouri B. R. Co. v. Ward, 67 U. S. 485,

the true doctrine of which we think the Iowa court mis-

conceived and wrongly applied. The Iowa case differs

radically from this, however, in that no part of the

defendant's works were in the State of Iowa; whereas

the greater portion of the canal system of the de-
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fendant, and the portion from which defendant was

actually discharging water on to complainant's lands,

was in the State of California.

In all the cases upholding the right of action for

injuries to land in one jurisdiction, resulting from acts

in another jurisdiction, Bulwer's case, 7 Coke Rep. la.

77 Eng. Rep. 411, is cited. In that case B brought an

action on the case in the County of N for maliciously

causing him to be outlawed in London upon process

sued out of a court at Westminster and causing him to

be imprisoned in N upon a writ issued at Westminster.

It was held that in all cases where the action is founded

on two things done in several counties, and both are

material or traversable, and one without the other does

not maintain the action, the plaintiff may bring his

action in which county he will. In the course of the

opinion, the chancellor cites all the previous cases to

the point and, among other things, says

:

"If a man doth not repair a wall in Essex, which
he ought to repair, whereby my land in Middlesex
is drowned, I may bring my action in Essex, for

there is the default, as it is adjudged in 7 H. 4, 8;

or I may bring in Middlesex, for there I have the

damage, as it is proved by 11 R. 2. Action sur le

Case 36."

High on Injunctions, 2nd Ed., section 803, says

:

"It is also to be observed that the remedy by
injunction being primarily in personam, a nuisance
consisting of an injury to water rights may be
enjoined in the state which has jurisdiction of the

person committing the injury regardless of the

locus of the nuisance itself."
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In

Foot V. Edicards, 9 Fed. Cases No. 4908,

the defendant diverted water in Connecticut from a

stream which had its rise in Connecticut, and thence

flowed into Massachusetts. The diversion by the de-

fendant caused the flow to cease past plaintiff's mill

which was situate upon the same stream in Massachu-

setts. The court reviews the authorities and comes to

the conclusion that an action could be brought in either

state, and summarizes the holding of "Woodbury, Judge,

in

Stillman v. White Rock Mfg. Co., Fed. Cases No.

13,446,

as follows:

''If a mill situate in one state is injured by the
diversion, in another state, of the stream upon
which it is situate, and a suit for such diversion
should be brought before the federal court in the

state where the mill is situate, such suit would be
properly brought, and such court would have juris-

diction of the case."

The court, however, in the latter case held that an

action was properly brought in Rhode Island, the

jurisdiction in which the diversion of water occurred

and which injured the mills in Connecticut. It was

contended by the defendants that the action should

have been brought in the jurisdiction in which the

injury occurred.
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In

Great Falls Mfg. Co. v. Worster, 23 N. H.; 3 Fos-

ter 462,

the plaintiffs owned a dam extending across the bound-

ary river into the State of Maine. The defendant was

a citizen of New Hampshire. Defendant destroyed a

part of the dam and threatened to remove the whole of

it, the injury being in the State of Maine, resulting in

injury to plaintiff in New Hampshire. The court re-

views the earlier authorities with regard to extra terri-

torial jurisdiction of equity and holds that it has

jurisdiction in this case, saying:

*'It would be a great defect in the administration

of the law, if the mere fact, that the property was
out of the state could deprive the court of the power
to act. As much injustice may be perpetrated in

a given case, against the citizens of this state, by
going out of the jurisdiction and committing a

wrong, as by staying here and doing it. The injus-

tice does not lose its quality by being committed
elsewhere than in New Hampshire, and as the

legislature has conferred upon the court the power
to issue injunctions whenever it is necessary to

prevent injustice, it is the duty of the court to

exercise that power upon the presentation of a

proper case, and when it can be done consistently

with the acknowledged practice in courts of equity.

As the principle which is sought to be applied

here, has been recognized for nearly two hundred
years, we have no hesitation in holding, that the

court has jurisdiction to issue the injunction prayed
for."
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It was held in

Rundle v. Delatvare & R. Canal, 21 Fed. Cases

12,139,

which was an action for diversion of water,—although

the decision is not directly in point upon other grounds,

—that although the earlier cases, which the court

reviews, apply to counties, the same reasoning would

apply to different states.

To the same point, Justice Holmes, in

Manville v. Worcester, 138 Mass. 89,

says

:

''As between two states, both of which recognize

the right, if the rule is to vary at all, it should

be on the side of a greater liberality to prevent

a failure of justice such as would be likely to

happen in the present case if this action were not

maintained, '

'

which was an action for tort for diverting the waters

of a natural stream in Massachusetts and preventing

them from flowing past the plaintiif's mill in Rhode

Island. Justice Holmes in this case also shows that

there is no distinction between the diversion of flowing

water to which land is entitled and the discharging of

water upon land, saying:

"hut we cannot assent to the distinction betiveen

discharging and ivithdrawing ivater. The conse-

quence in one case is positive, in the other negative,

hut in each it is consequence of an act done outside

the jurisdiction where the harm occurs and the

consequence is as direct in the latter case as in the

former."
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Both of these last mentioned rules are adverted to in

Willey V. Decker, 100 Am. St. 939, at page 970.

The case there was an action to restrain the defendants

from diverting water in Montana of which there had

been a prior appropriation in Montana by the plaintiff

for use upon lands in Wyoming. The action was com-

menced in Wyoming. Objection was made to the

jurisdiction upon the ground that the cause of the

injury arose outside the state. The court reviews the

eases on the subject and says, at page 971:

"On principle and authority, therefore, we think

there can be no doubt of the jurisdiction of the

District Court to render a decree restraining the

defendant Demmons from diverting the waters of

the stream in Montana to such an extent as to de-

prive those plaintiffs whose lands are situated in

this state to the water to which they are found to

be entitled by priority of appropriation. As to

them, the whole of the injury occurs in this state."

In the case of

Deseret Irr. Co. v. Mclntyre, 16 Utah 398, 52 Pac.

628,

the plaintiff's dams and ditches, as well as its lands to

be irrigated therefrom, were situated in Millard county,

where the action was brought. The dams and ditches

of the defendants were located in Sanpete count}^ The

court observes that neither the facts relating to the

diversion alone, nor those relating to the injury alone,

are sufficient to constitute a cause of action; that some

of the material facts arose in Sanpete county and some

in Millard county, and the cause of action may be said to
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have arisen in each county. And the court say: "There-

" fore, the plaintiff's had the right to elect in which

'* they would bring their action".

The rule in California is the same. In

Loiver Kings River W. D. Co. v. Kings R. £ F. R.

Co., 60 Cal. 408,

the plaintiff diverted water in Fresno county by

means of a ditch for use in Tulare county. The de-

fendant at the head of the ditch in Fresno county

diverted some of the water belonging to the plaintiff.

An action was brought for damages and an injunction

against the further diversion in Tulare county. A
motion for change of venue was made upon the ground

that the action should have been brought in Fresno

county, the place where the diversion occurred. The

lower court denied the motion and an appeal from the

order was taken. The court in affirming the order said:

**The acts complained of are preventing water
from flowing in plaintiff's ditch; the ditch is located

in both counties; therefore the subject of the ac-

tion is in both counties, and the action might have
been brought in either. It is true that the specific

act complained of, viz. : the diverting of the water,

occurred in Fresno county, at the head of defend-

ant's ditch, and not at all upon plaintiif's ditch;

but the consequences of that act operated upon the

whole of plaintiff's ditch, and was injurious as well

to that part of it in Tulare county as to that in

Fresno county. In no sense can the injury be said

to be confined to that part of the ditch in Fresno

county. The ditch is an entirety, and the right to

have water flow in it is co-extensive with plaintiif's

right to the ditch itself. Such is the case as now
presented to us."
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That case was affirmed in

Last Chance W. D. Co. v. Emigrant D. Co., 129

Cal. 277.

In this latter case the plaintiff was the proprietor of a

water ditch situate partly in Fresno county and partly

in Kings county, through and by means of which it

takes and supplies to its stockholders water which it has

appropriated from the Kings River. The diversion by

the plaintiff occurred in Fresno county, as also did that

of the defendants. An action was brought in Kings

county to enjoin the defendant. A motion was made

for change of venue upon the ground that the action

should have been commenced in Fresno county, the

place of the diversion. The motion was denied and

the defendant appealed. The court in affirming the

order, Justice Harrison writing the opinion, said:

"The case falls directly within the principles

declared in Loiver Kings, etc.. Ditch Co. v. Kings
River, etc.. Canal Co., 60 Cal. 408, in which it was
held that plaintiff's right to have water flow in the

ditch is coextensive with its right to the ditch, and
that, although the act of diverting the water was
committed in Fresno county, it was an injury to

that portion of its ditch which was in Tulare county,

and that the 'action was properly brought in the

latter county. In Drinkhouse v. Spring Valley

Water Works, 80 Cal, 308, it was held that a suit

for an injunction to restrain the defendant from
building a dam which, when completed, would per-

manently flood the plaintiff's land was a suit for

an injury to real property, and under section 392

of the Code of Civil Procedure the county in which
was situated the property that would be injured

was the proper place for its trial, even though the

action did not seek for damages."
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In

Anderson v. Bassman, 140 Fed. 14,

the plaintiffs were riparian owners of lands on a stream

in California. The defendants were appropriators of

the water for irrigation purposes from the same stream

in Nevada. The appropriators of water in Nevada

sought an injunction against the riparian owners in

California to enjoin them from the use of \}ciQ water

in excess of their rightful quantity. The action was

brought in the Circuit Court of California.

*'It is objected by the defendants that the relief

sought by the bill, in determining the rights of the

complainants to a specific quantity of the waters
of the West Fork of the Carson River, is beyond
the jurisdiction of this court, in that it is asking

the court to pass upon titles to real property in

another state. This question was considered by
Judge Knowles in the United States Circuit Court
for the District of Montana in the case of Howell
V. Johnson, 89 Fed. 556, and later in the case of

Morris v. Bean (C. C), 123 Fed. 618. In each of

those cases the complainant was a citizen of Wyom-
ing, and the defendants citizens of Montana. The
complainant owned land in Wyoming, and for

the purpose of irrigating the same appropriated

certain waters of a creek which had its source in

Montana, flowed for some distance within its

boundaries, and then entered the State of Wyom-
ing. The complainant's point of diversion and
ditch conveying the waters were within the State

of Wyoming. Defendants settled along the banks

of the creek in Montana, above the land of the

complainant, and subsequently to the appropria-

tion by complainant diverted the waters of said

creek to their own lands, preventing its flow to

the lands of the complainant. In the suit brought

by complainant in the United States Circuit Court
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to enjoin the defendants from so diverting the

waters of said creek the question of the jurisdic-

tion of the federal court was raised by the de-

fendants. The court held that one who has ac-

quired a right to the water of a stream flowing

through the public lands by prior appropriation, in

accordance with the laws of the state, is protected

in such right by sections 2339 and 2340 of the

Eevised Statutes (page 1437, U. S. Comp. St. 1901),

as against subsequent appropriators, though the

latter tvithdraiv the ivater within the limits of a

different state."

The case of

Miller S Lux v. Rickey, 127 Fed. 573,

arose out of a suit for an injunction brought by the

users of water in Nevada against citizens of California.

The plaintiffs appropriated the water in California for

use on their lands in Nevada. The defendants diverted

the water belonging to the plaintiffs in California. The

defendant interposed a plea to the jurisdiction of the

court contending that the nuisance taking place in

California the Circuit Court of California should have

cognizance of the matter only. Judge Hawley, sitting

in the Circuit Court for Nevada, after reviewing the

authorities, held that the Nevada court had jurisdiction.

The case was then appealed to the Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, where Judge Wolverton

delivered the opinion of the court, concurred in by

Judges Gilbert and Ross. The court again reviews the

authorities and affirms the decision of Judge Hawley,

saying

:

**If such be the law where the res is without the
jurisdiction of the court, by how much stronger
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will be its application where the jurisdiction ex-

tends over the res as well as the person. So that

the court having jurisdiction of the res—that is,

of the thing in controversy, which is the realty in

the present instance—has undoubted authority and
jurisdiction, having also jurisdiction of the person

to protect the thing against the encroachments of

the person, whether those encroachments come
from within the state or without." (152 Fed. 11,

17.)

The second point made by counsel is "the Circuit

" Court had no jurisdiction to compel the defendant to

" construct headgates in the Republic of Mexico; for

" the reason that the defendant would not have been

'' permitted by the laws of the Republic of Mexico to

" construct such headgates" (Brief, p. 24).

Counsel loses sight of the double aspect of the case.

But, taking his view as to the facts, is his conclusion of

law therefrom justified?

Counsel cites in support of his contention Texas

& Pac. R. R. Co. V. Gaij, 25 L. R. A. 52 (Brief, p. 25),

which case, only goes to the point that a court of

equity cannot put a receiver in control of land outside

the jurisdiction.

He also cites Port Royal R. R. Co. v. Hammond, 58

Ga. 523 (Brief, p. 27), which case holds that specific

performance of a contract to be performed outside the

jurisdiction and which involves supervision by the court

will not be decreed.
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Such a case arose in Indian Territory, involving

the sale of oil wells, the contract for which also pro-

vided that the wells were to be worked. The Court of

Appeals of Indian Territory held:

"We are of the opinion that a court of equity in

the Indian Territory should not undertake to

operate an oil lease in the territory of Oklahoma,
where the agreement is wholly indefinite as to the

manner of working and the extent of the opera-

tions to be carried on."

This is believed to be the extent to which like opinions

go, and that where the thing to be done and the manner

of performance are definite equity will interfere. This is

WiUiite V. Skelton, 82 S. W. 932.

The case was, however, appealed to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit, 149

Fed. 67. It was there contended that the judgment of

the lower court should be sustained upon the same

ground—that a court of equity will not decree specific

performance where the contract requires constructive

work and supervision by the court. Judge Sanborn,

however, said:

"(3) Because the court was without power to

operate the mine on the leasehold property which
was in the territory of Oklahoma and beyond its

jurisdiction, and because, if it had held the power,
such operation would have been impracticable. But
the court had jurisdiction of the persons of the

defendants, and thereby had plenary power to com-
pel them to act in relation to the leasehold without

its jurisdiction which they owned and to which
their contract related."
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It will be granted, no doubt, that the maintenance of

water upon the land would ultimately create a servi-

tude. Appellant's contention is, in effect, that it could

not construct controlling gates at the Mexican intakes

without the consent of the government of Mexico—that

it could not act until, the Mexican Government acted.

This would seem the equivalent of saying that the

Republic of Mexico by its inaction could authorize the

defendant company to create and maintain a servitude

upon lands within the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court

of the United States.

To this point, it was said by Justice Holmes in

Manville Co. v. City of JVorcester, 138 Mass. 89,

that

''Of course, the laws of Rhode Island cannot
subject Massachusetts land to a servitude, and,

apart from any constitutional considerations, if

there are any, which we do not mean to intimate,

Massachusetts might prohibit the creation of such
servitudes. * * * So far as their crea-

tion is concerned the law of Massachusetts governs,

whether the mode of creation be by deed or pre-

scription, or whether the right be one which is re-

garded as naturally arising out of the relation be-

tween the two estates; being created, the law of

Rhode Island, by permission of that of Massa-
chusetts, lays hold of them and attaches them in

such way as it sees fit to land there, Massachusetts
being secured against anything contrary to its

views of policy by the common traditions of the

two states and by the power over its own territory

which it holds in reserve."

A complete answer to this second point, however, is

that it was not necessary that defendant should con-
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struct lieadgates in order to prevent the diversion of

water through the Mexican intakes. The fact is that

it did not construct a headgate at either of those intakes.

It constructed permanent dams there. In other words,

it placed there the sort of obstructipn which Rockwood

testified he instructed his men to build in March, April

and Ma}^, 1905. There is no showing that the consent

of the Republic of Mexico was necessary in order to

place these dams, nor is there any showing that its con-

sent to the building of dams was ever obtained or asked.

The seventh objection of counsel is

:

"The injunction was in effect a mandatory in-

junction. A court of equity rarely decrees a man-
datory injunction requiring the performance of

constructive in contradistinction to destructive

work, and will never decree a mandatory injunc-

tion when the work commanded to be done requires

in its execution such skill, judgment and technical

ability as was required to close the intakes com-
plained of." (Brief, p. 50.)

To support this, counsel quotes at page 51 of his

brief

:

"It is not to correct a wrong of the past, in

the sense of redress for the injury already sus-

tained, but to prevent further injury. The injury

consists in the overflow of the lands of the plain-

tiff. It was not alone the building of the dam that

caused the injury, but its maintenance or continu-

ance, which is a part of the act complained of; and
its maintenance can only be stopped so as to pre-

vent its injury by its removal. The removal of the
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dam, wrongfull}^ constructed, is necessary for and
incidentally involved in the preventive redress

which the law authorizes."

Troe V. Larson, 35 Am. St. 336; 84 Iowa 649.

The remainder of the quotation is

:

"The removal of the dam, wrongfully con-

structed, is necessary for and incidentally involved

in the preventive redress which the law authorizes,

and no technical application of a rule as to a mere
method of procedure should be allowed to defeat

so plain a rule of justice.

"It is said that the cases in which mandatory
injunctions have issued are those of continuing

trespasses or nuisances in which the defendant

owned the land on which the nuisance was kept, or

was active in continuing a trespass or nuisance on
the land of the complainant ; and it is sought to dis-

tinguish this case, because these defendants have

not, since the building of the dam, done any act

or asserted any right to maintain the dam. The
dam came into being, and continues to be, because

of their act of construction. The injury or tres-

pass results from the wrongful act of construe-,

tion, and the act continues or is coexistent with

the trespass. While the dam continues as the

result of their act of construction, they may be

said in legal contemplation to be every day main-

taining it. We are cited to no authority announc-

ing a contrary rule, and it certainly accords with

reason."

That was an action to compel the defendants to remove

a dam erected by them across the mouth of Silver Lake,

whereby the lands of plaintiffs adjacent thereto were

overflowed. The decree of the district court restrained

the defendants from maintaining the dam, and ordered

that they should remove the same within sixty days.
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The appellants contended that the court should not have

so ordered because "it was a past and completed act

" and not ground for preventive or mandatory injunc-

" tion". The judgment of the lower court granting

the injunction was sustained.

In

Gardner v. Stroever, 89 Cal. 26,

the Supreme Court of California holds to the same

effect. There the defendant erected a building in the

public road cutting off access to the slaughter house of

the plaintiff.

"It is further urged that the injunction ought
not to have been granted, because it appeared that

the obstruction sought to be enjoined actually ex-

isted at and before the time of filing the complaint
(citing Gardner v. Stroever, 81 Cal. 148).

"This position cannot, in our opinion, be sus-

tained. An obstruction to the free use of property,

so as to interfere with its comfortable enjoyment,

is a nuisance, and the statute says it may be en-

joined or abated. Such an obstruction must neces-

sarily have an actual existence before it can be a

nuisance. The judgment here might have been
in direct terms that the obstruction be removed
and the nuisance abated; but the mandatory in-

junction granted was evidently intended to have,

and did have, the same effect. It was therefore

an authorized and appropriate remedy."

It was early contended that after the wrong was com-

mitted, equity would not command the defendant to do

anything but would simply command him to refrain

and a decree was framed by Lord Chancellor Eldon to

obviate the difficulty.
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See

Lane v. Neivdigate, 10 Ves. Jr. 192, 32 Eng. Eep.

818.

There

''The bill prayed, that the defendant may' be

decreed so to use and manage the waters of the

canals as not to injure the plaintiff in the occupa-

tion of his manufactory; and, in particular, that

he may be restrained from using the locks, and

thereby drawing off the waters, which would other-

wise run to and supply the manufactory^; and that

he may be decreed to restore the cut for carrying

the waste waters from the Arhury Canal to Kenil-

worth Pool, and to restore Kenilivortli Stopgate,

and the banks of the canal to their former height;

and also to repair such stopgates, bridges, canals,

and towing-paths, as were made previously to

granting the lease; and that he may be decreed to

make compensation for the injury sustained by

their having been suffered to go out of repair;

and that he may be decreed to remove the locks,

which have been made since the lease, and to make
compensation for the injury sustained by the said

locks having been made so near the manufactory;

thereby injuring the machinery; and, that he may
be decreed to pay the plaintiff the expense he has

been put up to by working the steam engine, to

supply the want of water.

''The Lord Chancellor^ upon the motion for the

injunction, expressed a difficulty, whether it is ac-

cording to the practice of the court to decree or

order repairs to be done. (See 1 Ves. Jun. 235.)

"Nov. 2d, 13th, Mr. Romilly, in support of the

injunction, said, the repairs to be done in this

case are in effect nothing more than was done in

Robinson v. Lord Byron (1 Bro. C. C. 588) : viz.,

raising the dam-li-eads, so that the water shall

not escape ; as it will otherwise.
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''The Lord Chancellor (Eldon). So, as to re-

storing the stopgate, the same difficulty occurs. The
question is, whether the court can specifically order

that to be restored. I think I can direct it in

terms, that will have that effect. The injunction,

I shall order, will create the necessity of restor-

ing the stopgate; and attention will be had to the

manner in which he is to use these locks; and he
will find it difficult, I apprehend, to avoid com-
pletely repairing these works."

The chancellor then i^roceeded to frame a decree suffi-

cient to meet the necessities of the case.

In

Goodrich v. Georgia R. S B. Co., 41 S. E. 659

(Ga.),

the plaintiff owned land through which ran two streams.

These were dammed by defendant for the purpose

of creating a water supply for its railroad. The de-

fendant was diverting the water from a reservoir thus

formed by means of ditches. It was

"contended that the order granting the injunction,

when applied to the facts of the present case, would
have no other effect than to compel the defendant
to perform an act, and that the writ of injunc-

tion cannot be used for this purpose under the law
of this state."

The code of the state provided:

"An injunction can only restrain; it cannot com-
pel a party to perform an act. It may restrain

until performance."
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Tlie court held, however:

"If the main purpose of the petition is to compel
the performance of an act, then, under our Code,

injunction cannot be used as a remedy to accom-
plish this purpose. Under our Code injunction can

be used only to restrain. It does not necessarily

follow, however, because injunction can be used

only for this purpose, that it cannot be used when
the eifect of yielding obedience thereto would inci-

dentally require the performance of some act, if

the main purpose of the injunction is to restrain the

doing of some wrongful act. It seems to us that

the true meaning of the section above quoted is that

the court cannot issue a purely mandatory order,

but that the court can grant an injunction, the

essential nature of which is to restrain, although

in yielding obedience to the restraint the defendant

may be incidentally required to perform some act."

Judge Saw^^er, held to the same effect in

Cole Silver Mining Co. v. Virginia & Gold Hill

Water Co., 1 Sawyer 470; 6 Fed. Case No.

2989.

Plaintiff, in excavating a tunnel in a mountain to its

mining claim, struck a subterranean flow of water,

which it appropriated. Defendants ran a tunnel into

the mountain directly below that of plaintiff and thus

intercepted plaintiff's flow of water. Judge Sawj^er

said

:

'*It is shown, and this does not seem to be seri-

ously controverted, that the water can be restored

by building a water-tight wall or bulkhead across

the tunnel at a point indicated. But it is urged,

that the injury has been committed, and that, this

being so, the court will not, on motion for a pre-

liminary injunction, issue a mandatory writ, affirm-
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atively commanding the performance of an act-

such as to fill up a tunnel, rebuild a wall that has
been demolished, and the like; and so the author-
ities seem to be.

"But, while this seems to be an established rule,

it, also, appears to be well established that the
result sought may be accomplished by an order
merely restrictive in form. For example, if the
water of a stream be raised by means of a dam,
so as to wrongfully flood a party's land above, or
obstruct with back-water, a mill situated higher up
the stream, while the court will not direct the de-

fendant in terms to remove the dam, it will re-

quire him to refrain from overflowing the land, or
obstructing the mill, even though it be necessary to

demolish the dam in order to obey the injunction.

So if a party, by means of a dam, or canal, should
wrongfully divert the water of a stream from the
mill of his neighbor, clearly entitled to it, the court
would restrain the continuance of the diversion,
even though an obedience to the injunction should
render it necessary to remove the dam, or fill up
the canal. 2 Eden, Inj., by Y\^aterman, 388; 3
Daniell, Ch. Pr. 1767, and notes, last edition. Eobin-
son V. Lord Byron, 1 Brown, Ch. 588 ; Lane v. New-
digate, 10 Ves. 192; Rankin v. Huskisson, 4 Sim.
(6 Eng. Ch.) 13; Earl of Mexborough v. Bower,
7 Beav. (29 Eng. Ch.) 127; Murdock's Case, 2
Bland, 470, 471; Washington University v. Green,
1 Md. Ch. 502-504; North of England C. & H. J.

R. Co. V. Clarence R. Co., 1 Colly. (28 Eng. Ch.)
521; Spencer v. London B. R. Co., 8 Sim. (8 Eng.
Ch.) 193.

"Under these authorities, by whatever name
judges may see fit to call the injunction, the de-
fendants may be restrained from continuing to cut
off and divert the water in question, even though
it should he necessary for them to fill up, or build
a water-tight barrier across the tunnel to accom-
plish the end sought."
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The eighth objection is:

"The court had no jurisdiction to decree an in-

junction in this suit in the absence of a deter-

mination at law that the acts of the defendant

complained of constituted a nuisance."

To this extracts from Pomeroy's Equity Remedies

are cited. In section 521 of that work it is shown that,

when plaintiff's title is clear or is proven and when the

facts of the nuisance are undisputed or the proof shows

there is a nuisance, there need be no prior determina-

tion at law. Section 522 discusses the point where there

is some doubt either as to the title or the fact of the

nuisance. That section reads:

"The class of cases not yet discussed is that in

which on application for a permanent injunction,

the plaintiff's right, or the fact that a nuisance

exists, is doubtful on the evidence before the court,

and the parties do not consent to have the con-

troversy settled by the court of equity. In this

situation the general doctrine is that 'either party

is entitled to insist that the questions on which the

legal rights depend should be tried at law.' Satis-

factory grounds to support this rule as a matter

of reason are not to be found in the cases. Doubt-

less the explanation of it is largely the fact that in

early days the courts of equity were reluctant to

undertake the decision of purely legal rights, or

questions of fact which ordinarily were tried by a

jury. It was *a rule of expediency and policy,

rather than an essential condition and basis of the

equitable jurisdiction.' As such, the grounds on
which it arose have largely, if not quite, disap-

peared with the decay of all hostility of the courts

of law against the equity courts and the general

merging of both law and equity fiinctions in the

same courts. The rule, however, still persists in
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most jurisdictions in which it has not been abro-

gated by statute. It has never gone so far, how-

ever, as to require the plaintiff's bill to be dis-

missed because the legal questions had not been

determined; the court may retain the bill and pro-

cure their ascertainment by directing an issue, or

an action, or a case stated, at law; basing its final

decree upon the results thus reached. In leaving

the subject it should be noted that when the bill is

to enjoin a threatened, as distinguished from an

existing, nuisance, from the nature of the case the

requirement of a previous trial at law cannot be

applied. 'No such question in this case can be

tried at law, no nuisance exists—the object of the

bill is to enjoin the defendant from creating one.'

From the foregoing discussion it would appear

that the following is an accurate summary of the

general rules of equity with respect to the require-

ment of a previous establishment of the plaintiff's

right at law. The requirement does not apply at

all to applications for temporary injunctions; nor

to bills for permanent injunctions on account of

irreparable injury, when the defendant admits the

plaintiff's right, or when the right is clear in

favor of one of the parties, though disputed, or

when both parties consent to a trial of the merits

by the equity court; nor to bills for permanent in-

junctions against threatened, as distinguished from

existing, nuisances; it does apply to all other bills

for permanent injunctions, but there is a tendency

to do away with the requirement by statute or

judicial innovation."

In the note, Pomeroy says:

"In England, the rule is abolished by statute.

The reform procedure has accomplished the same

result in New York as California. Lux v. Haggin,

69 Cal. 255, 284."
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In

Lux V. Hoggin, 69 Cal. 284,

it is said:

*' Under our codes the riparian proprietor is not

required to establish his right at law by recovering

a judgment in damages before applying for an

injunction. The decisions (in cases of alleged

nuisances) based on the failure of the complainant

to have had his right established at law have no

appositeness here. Here the plaintiff must indeed

clearly make out his right in equity, and show that

money damages will not give him adequate compen-

sation. If he fail to do this, relief in equity will

be denied. But if he proves his case, relief will be

granted, although he has not demanded damages
at law. In the case at bar the plaintiffs do not

admit that damages would constitute compensation,

and asii for an injunction until they shall recover

such compensation in an action for damages. The
decisions which bear on that class of cases, and
which require of the plaintiff to show that he has

promptly sought redress at law, have little appli-

cability.
'

'

The rule laid down by the American and English

Encyclopedia of Law, Vol. 1, page 66, is:

"Formerly this power was exercised only after

the right of the plaintiff and the fact of the nuis-

ance had been first established in a court of law.

But at present, where the plaintiff's right is clear

and the existence of a nuisance is manifest, a court

of equity will interfere to give relief, and it is

only when the plaintiff" 's right, or the question of

nuisance, is doubtful that a previous settlement at

law is necessary."
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EQUITY WILL PROTECT THE FREEHOLD AND THE RIGHTS OF

PROPERTY THEREIN, EVEN THOUGH THE BUILDINGS AND

THE SALT DEPOSIT ARE, BY REASON OF APPELLANT'S

ACTS, DESTROYED.

It is perhaps unfortunate that the freehold and right

to beneficial enjoyment of its property still exist in the

appellee sufficient to sustain an injunction against a

continuance of the tortious acts of appellant, and

thereby cause annoyance as stated in counsel's brief

(page 101), but such is the fact and the law.

It is true that the land is at present covered by

water, that the buildings and machinery are destroyed

or removed. But the fact is that when, by reason of

the natural forces of seepage and evaporation, provided

the injunction obtained is effective and those forces

are unhampered by acts of appellant, the water is

removed, the land will again be of value to appellee.

It can be readily ascertained, simply by reading the

bill of complaint, that the object of the suit was to

restrain the continued flow of water upon the land,

and facts were adduced to show that, if such were the

case, the water would dispose of itself and leave a val-

uable property. It is said the damages allowed covered

the value of the land. There is no foundation for this

assertion. We recovered judgment for damages for

the destruction of improvements which were located

on part of our land and for destruction of salt deposit

on another portion. We neither asked nor were we

awarded anything for damage to the freehold.



• 32

No matter how small the damage or what the re-

sultant injury may be, the owner of land is entitled

to have his freehold protected from the acts of an-

other which amount to nuisance, trespass or waste.

The action of appellant, against the continuance of

which the injunction is directed, has not been merely

to interfere with the enjoyment of the property by

appellee, but it has resulted in absolutely depriving

appellee of the freehold. In other words, such action,

if continued, will operate to entirely deprive appellee

of the property and to prevent its use for any purpose

whatsoever.

It was not until Lord Thurlow's time that trespasses

of the nature here complained of were enjoined in equity

to any extent, but Lord Eldon in Hanson v. Gardiner,

7 Ves. 306, 32 Eng. Eep. Eeprint 125, and Thomas v.

Oakley, 18 Ves. 183, 34 Eng. Rep. Eeprint 287, crystal-

ized the law. In this latter case the distinction between

waste and mere trespass, as recognized by Lords Thur-

low and Hardwick, and which counsel for appellant

attempts again to revive, was done away with and

injunctions were granted both for waste and trespass.

This distinction was again referred to by Chancellor

Kent in Jerome v. Ross, 7 Johns Ch. 315, 11 Am. Dec.

484, and Livingston v. Livingston, 6 Johns Ch. 497, 10

Am. Dec. 353. In these cases it was attempted to limit

the relief to those cases of an aggravated or extraor-

dinary nature in which the acts were essentially destruc-
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tive. The authorities now uniformly follow the doctrine

of Thomas v. Oakley.

Such is the law in California. In

Learned v. Castle, 78 Cal. 461,

which was also a case of overfloicing of land in which

an injunction was asked, McFarland, J., speaking for

the court, said:

"But the amount of damage estimated in money,
ivas immaterial. That finding was only to damage
done in 1878, when there was water on the land

from other sources. The findings show that the

waters diverted by the canal flow upon plaintiff's

land, which would not 'flow' there if allowed to

take their natural course; and that the embank-
ments erected by defendants 'cause' such artificial

flowing. And to thus wrongfully cause water to

flow upon another's land which would not flow

there naturally is to create a nuisance per se. It

is an injury to the right and it cannot be continued

because otl^i* persons (whether jurors or not)

might have a low estimate of the damage which it

causes. And especially is this so when the contin-

uance of the wrongful act might ripen into a right

in the nature of an easement or servitude. (Rich-

ards v. Dower, 64 Cal. 64, and cases there cited;

Tooth V. Clifton, 22 Ohio St. 247; 10 Am. Rep. 732;

Casebeer v. Mowry, 55 Pa. St. 419; 93 Am. Dec.

766; Wood on Nuisances, 2nd Ed., p. 639). The
right to an injunction, therefore, in such case does

not depend upon the extent of the damage measured
by a money standard; the maxim de minimus,

etc., does not apply. The main object of the action

is to declare a nuisance, and to prevent the continu-

ance by mandatory injunction."
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The mere fact of the trespass makes the "injury

'' irreparable in its nature".

Vestal V. Young, 147 Cal. 715;

Richards v. Dower, 64 Cal. 64;

Moore v. Massini, 32 Cal. 590.

The double aspect of the case is not to be lost sight

of. By what has been said, it is not meant to imply that

the damage has not been substantial. On the contrary,

the once valuable land is now, in its present condition,

absolutely worthless and will so continue until the

appellant is compelled, by virtue of an injunction,

to desist from pouring water upon the property. And,

on the other hand, it does not follow that it

always will be worthless. Indeed, the court must

assume the land has value. It should not he forgotten

that ive neither ashed nor ive^e ive aivarded any

compensation for injury to our f$t ##<?# The potential

value of the land is still present, the value which will

spring into being the moment the water is allowed, by

natural process, to disappear. The case is thus infinitely

stronger and appeals more powerfully to a court of

equity than any mere case of waste or trespass. Here

we have an absolute deprivation of a potentially valu-

able property, a deprivation absolute in its nature and

yet not a destruction in any sense of the term,—

a

deprivation which, if reasonable precautions, as pro-

vided by the injunction, were taken, would soon end,

and by no further act of appellant than simply ceasing

to do wrong.
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Against this it is argued that, because the property is

destroyed, which it is not, no injunction may be had.

And to make the inconsistency more confounding it is

contended that no damages may be had for injuries

received because asked for in connection with an in-

junction.

Upon the argument, counsel for appellant referred

very vehemently to a statement on page 95 of the

brief of appellee to the effect that on the 26th of

March the property of complainant was practically

destroyed. It is perfectly apparent from a reference

to the testimony upon which the statement was based

(and which is found at length on pages 94 and 95 of

the brief) that the thought intended to be conveyed

was that some of the property of complainant was

practically destroyed by the 26tli of March. It would

be absurd to say that it appeared from the testimony

referred to that all the property of complainant was

practically destroyed by that date.

It is rather a peculiar contention that, because the

salt deposit on a portion of the land and the improve-

ments on another portion were destroyed, the land

itself is entirely destroyed. It could not be contended

that, because a crop of grain is entirely destroyed,

damages for the full value thereof would act as a con-

demnation of the land.

Further, there is no evidence that the land, even that

containing the salt, will not be of value. The presump-

tion is it will. Other land in the same district is,

—
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else why sliould appellant construct a costly irrigation

system? There is only counsel's surmise that the land

owes all value to the salt crust. Why could not some

grain or vegetable be produced? There is no evidence

to show it could not, and the presumption would be

rather that it could, for it may be ventured that there

is no species of soil upon which something of commercial

value cannot be grown. At least, it would seem, in the

absence of any evidence to the contrary, complainant

should have the benefit of an opportunity.

In this same connection counsel invokes the doctrin-^

of comparative injuries. Contending, first, that as the

property of appellee has been entirely destroyed, equity

will not interfere when the damage ensuing to third

persons from the granting of an injunction is greater

in proportion than the relief to complainant; second,

that, in any event, the injury resulting to the settlers

in Imperial Valley from the injunction would justify

its refusal if complainant were otherwise entitled to it.

Counsel for appellant rather slights the law in this

regard. No distinction is drawn between interlocutory

and permanent injunctions, and only two cases are

cited. The law is too plain for argument and the neces-

sity of citation, to show that in cases of preliminary

injunction the court may exercise a very sound discre-

tion in granting or withholding them where the balance

of convenience is such that the complainant could only

be slightly benefited, while the defendant might suffer

substantial injury. But, on the contrary, in cases of
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perpetual injunction, wliere the right of the complainant

is established, the court has a very slight discretion,

and none at all where the act of defendant results in

depriving complainant of its freehold. The chancellor

does not act as of grace in such case.

''But that grace sometimes becomes a matter of

right to the suitor in his court, and, when it is

clear that the law cannot give protection and re-

lief—to which the complainant in equity is admit-

tedly entitled—the chancellor can no more with-

hold his grace than the law can deny protection

and relief, if able to give them. This is too often

overlooked when it is said that in equity a decree

is of grace, and not of right, as a judgment at law.
* * * Certainly no chancellor in any Eng-
lish speaking country will at this day admit that

he dispenses favors or refuses rightful demands,
or deny that, when a suitor has brought his cause

clearly within the rules of equity jurisprudence,

the relief he asks is demandable ex debito justitiae,

and needs not to be implored ex gratia. And as to

the principle invoked, that a chancellor will refuse

to enjoin when greater injury will result from
granting than from refusing an injunction, it is

enough to observe that it has no application where
the act complained of is in itself, as well as in its

incidents, tortious. * * * There can
be no balancing of conveniences when such balanc-

ing involves the preservation of an established

right, though possessed by a peasant only to a cot-

tage as his home, and which will be extinguished

if relief is not granted against one who would de-

stroy it in artificially using his own land."

Sullivan v. Jones S Laughlin Steel Co., 66 L. E.

A. (Pa.) 712;

Also

Corning v. Troy Iron and Nail Factory, 40 N. Y.

Rep. 191, 205.
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It is sometimes held that where, if an in-

junction be issued, it will cause irreparable damage to

the public generally, the court may refuse to grant it,

especially in the case of a preliminary injunction. This

is not in contradiction to the principle laid down supra

that complainant is entitled to have his freehold pro-

tected, without regard to what his damage may be, but

it rests in a sound discretion of the trial court. The

case of McCarthy v. Bunker Hill ct' Sutherland Mining

& Coal Co., 147 Fed. 191, cited by counsel in support of

his contention is not at all in line with the present case.

The damage in that case was comparatively slight and

only deprived the complainant of an incidental enjoy-

ment of his property.

Respectfully submitted,

Page, McCutchef & Knight,

Of Counsel for Appellee.
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We will not ask the court to review its conclusions

that the destruction of the property of appellee was

caused by the negligence of appellant, that there was

no failure of parties defendant, and, that the court, if it

at any time had equitable jurisdiction, had power to

retain jurisdiction and award damages.
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We will, however, ask that further consideration be

given to the following proposition deemed by us to be

sound in law.

Under the allegation in the complaint that

"'unless the defendant be required to construct

head gates for the controlling and regulating of

amount of water flowing into its canals the said

water will continue to flow and destroy and ruin

the propertyand business of complainant" and the

evidence that such destruction of complainant^s

property could only have been prevented by clos-

ING THE INTAKES IN MeXICO THE COURT HAD NO JURIS-

DICTION TO GRANT EQUITABLE RELIEF.

Our reasons for asking the court to review its deci-

sion upon the issues involved in this proposition are:

First. While a court may restrain a defendant over

whose person it has jurisdiction from doing an act in a.

foreign jurisdiction, it can never by mandatory injunc-

tion compel him to do a positive act in a foreign juris-

diction.

Second. While a court of equity, having jurisdiction

over the person of a defendant, may adjudicate as to the

respective rights of the complainant and defendant to

water appurtenant to complainant's lands within the

jurisdiction of the court, and may restrain the defendant

from asserting rights to such water inconsistent with

the rights of the complainant, it cannot by mandatory

decree compel the defendant to do any positive act of

either construction or destruction upon property be-

yond the jurisdiction of the court, even if such act be
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essential to complainant's enjoyment of his right to the

water so adjudicated.

Third. A court of equity is without power to compel

a defendant to do anything which is not capable of being

physically done within the territorial jurisdiction of the

court.

Fourth. Without respect to the question of extra

territorial jurisdiction, the facts in this case were not

such as to call for equitable relief.

At the time of the commencement of the action, the

properties of the complainant were almost if not totally

destroyed by the consequential results of defendant's

negligence.

The defendant at such time was not asserting any

right to repeat the wrongful act which caused the dam-

age, was not threatening to repeat it and was endeavor-

ing to close the intake and in fact to do all which the

complainant by injunction sought to compel it to do.

This is the undisputed proof.

Therefore there was no necessity or ground for the

intervention of a court of equity.

STATEMENT.

In the very important case of Miller & Lux v. Rickey,

127 Federal, page 573, Judge Hawley, apprehensive

lest the purport of his decision be misconceived and

guarding against any possible misunderstanding or mis-

application of the principle underlying it, at the very

threshold of his opinion stated:

"In the disposition of the question it will be the aim

of the court to confine itself to the real points directly
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involved by the particular facts of this case as drawn

from the pleadings, and to the grounds upon which the

decision will be based. It will, of course, be conceded

at the outset that this court has no jurisdiction over

lands and real estate situate without this district. It

cannot abate nuisances outside of the district. It cannoc

reach property in rem wholly situate in other states. It

cannot, by any decree which it may make in this suit

directly reach the dams, reservoirs or ditches belonging

to the defendant located entirely within the state of Cali-

fornia. What is the nature and character of this suit,

as shown by the bill of complaint and plea of the de-

fendant?"

Let us therefore give careful consideration to the na-

ture and character of this suit as shown by the bill and

the evidence, assuming the facts to be in all respects as

alleged and claimed by complainant.

The defendant claimed no rights in any way incon-

sistent with complainant's undisturbed enjoyment and

possession of its property. The complainant did not

claim and does not claim that the proper diversion of the

waters of the Colorado river by the defendant and the

irrigation of the lands in Imperial Valley were unlaw-

ful acts or in any respect tended to injure complainant

or its properties.

Complainant's charge is that the defendant unneces-

sarily, and in order to save expense, cut intakes into

the banks of the Colorado river in such negligent fashion

that the property of complainant was endangered—not

injured but endangered. It is not claimed that

the necessary effect of the cutting of such intakes
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was injury to complainant's property, as is the case

where the construction of a dam is found necessar-

ily to cause the flooding of another's property. (In such

case the construction of the dam is a nuisance per se as

was held in Leonard v. Castle, 78 Cal. p. 454, cited

in the opinion.) The intakes were carelessly cut and

with the expectation and reasonable expectation that

before harm could result from them they could and

would be closed. They were 60 feet wide and it is not

claimed that a 60 foot wide cut would convey sufficient

water to damage complainant's property. Huge floods

of the Colorado river swept through this intake and en-

larged it.

It is not suggested that the defendant either intended

or desired this enlargement. While responsible for it

as having been caused by the negligent way in which

the 60 foot intake was cut, such enlargement as a matter

of fact occurred in spite of the purpose and effort of de-

fendant to check it and to close the intake.

At the time of the commencement of suit, the prop-

erty of complainant was inundated and the total de-

struction of its buildings and machinery was either

actually consummated or inevitable.

The defendant had in the meantime been making

active eft'orts to close the break, which efforts at the

ver}^ time of the commencement of the suit were being

continued and renewed.

Supplement the above synopsis of the facts with the

additional ones that the break to be closed was in Mexico

and that its closing involved engineering plans and work

of great skill, a vast expenditure and a doubtful result
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and we have the facts substantially as they existed when

complainant sought the intervention of a court of equity.

Of this condition of facts, this court, in its opinion,

said:

"This was a continuing nuisance and trespass exist-

ing at the time of the commencement of the action, and

without respect to the lands or the freehold estate con-

tinuing down to the entry of the decree for which an in •

junction was the only plain, adequate and complete

remedy."

This conclusion of the court was essential to the

affirmance of the judgment, and with it, we respectfully

take issue. The acts complained of are in no sense a

trespass.

Hicks V. Drew, 117 Cal. 305.

The defendant was neither expressly nor impliedly,

doing any act tending to maintain or continue this nui-

sance. The act had been committed, the injury natur-

ally followed from such act and was continuing despite

the will and the effort of defendant to abate it. AVhile

the nuisance was continuing it is not true that the de-

fendant was continuing it. The defendant had learned

its lesson. There was no allegation or proof tending to

show that the defendant having learned its lesson would

ever undertake to repeat the offense. It had carelessly

and negligently taken its chances that extraordinary

floods would not come down the river. It had taken

these chances safely on several occasions before. This,

of course, did not relieve it from the consequences of its

negligence, but it is not even suggested that defendant
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was threatening or intending to take any further

chances or to perform any other negligent act. It was

doing its best to repair the resuhs of its past negligence.

It was meditating no wrong. When able to regulate and

control the waters flowing through its headgates and

canals, it had never so regulated them as to permit any

overflow upon the lands of the complainant. It is not so

alleged or claimed. The negligence of the defendant

consisted entirely of one certain negligent act, from

which all of the injury followed. For the consequences

of such act it was responsible, of course, in an action at

law for damages, but at the time of the commencement

of this suit, neither its conduct nor its intentions or ex-

pressions of intention were such as to warrant an appeal

by the complainant to the chancellor to force an uncon-

scientious defendant to do equity.

Before examining into the law and by way of prefa-

tory illustration, suppose that some careless person to

serve a purpose of his own, had removed part of a river

embankment or levee. The water working naturall}'-,

finds its way through and enlarges such hole in the

embankment, and eventually destroys it and inundates

complamant's property. The person tries in vain to

arrest the progress of destruction which his negligence

had brought about. Of course such person is respon-

sible in damages; but will it be, can it be seriously ar-

gued that such facts will justify the intervention of

a court of equity? That a court of equity will com-

pel him to rebuild the embankment or as in our case
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to sally forth into a neighboring republic and under

the penalty of contempt, there undertake a colossal work

such as the evidence shows to have been the closing of

this break in the Colorado river?

If one had carelessly failed to extinguish the fire

which he had built to cook his breakfast in North Da-

kota and an ensuing conflagration raging in such state

had assumed such dimensions that it threatened to cross

the line and consume properties in South Dakota, will it

be contended that a court of equity at, the instance of a

resident in South Dakota whose property was thus

threatened, assuming that the progress of the fire could

be arrested by energy and skill and large expenditure,

would, if the party who had started the fire could be

served with summons within its jurisdiction, compel him

by mandatory injunction to return to North Dakota and

undertake the arrest of the flames ?

With these preliminary suggestions let us now con-

sider the legal issues involved in the proposition above

stated upon which this petition is based.

ARGUMENT.

It will be conceded for the purposes of this petition

that an action for damages to property within the juris-

diction of a court occasioned by a nuisance maintained in

another jurisdiction may be brought at the election of

the plaintifif in either jurisdiction.

We respectfully submit, however, that no authority

has been found unless it be perhaps the case of Miller

and Lux v. Rickey, which confers upon plaintifif such

an election in a court of equity, where he seeks not
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damages, but by injunctive process to ''abate the

nuisance, and that the sound rule is that a court of equity

is without power to compel a defendant to do anything

which is not capable of being physically done within the

territorial jurisdiction of the court.

In combating this principle, this court in its opinion

asks:

"Why may not a court restrain a party over whom it

has jurisdiction from injuring property within its juris-

diction? How does it affect the question of jurisdiction

or venue to say that the party on whom the court must

act may find it necessary to do things outside the juris-

diction of the court in order to comply with the order of

the court? May this not often happen and would it not

happen oftener if it were determined that such an ex-

ctise was sufficient to defeat the jurisdiction of the

court?"

These three questions may be answered separately.

The first. "Why may not a court restrain a party

over whom it has jurisdiction from injurying property

within its jurisdiction," might be answered in the affirm-

ative, provided always that the restraining decree is a

prohibition and is not an order requiring the defendant

to do some positive act upon property beyond the juris-

diction.

The second may be answered by the following lan-

guage in the opinion of the Supreme Court in the North-

ern Indiana R. R. case:

"Wherever the jurisdiction of the person will enable

the Circuit Court to give effect to its judgment or decree,

jurisdiction may be exercised. But wherever the subject
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matter in controversy is local and lies beyond the limit

of the district, no jurisdiction attaches to the Circuit

Court sitting within it."

The "subject matter in controversy" here is not the

lands of complainant in California. There is no conten-

tion or issue with respect to them. The matter in con-

troversy was the intakes, whether the defendant should

be compelled to close them, whether they were negli-

gently cut and whether they were the proximate cause

of the inundation.

The answer to the third inquiry is that where the liti-

gation involves rights of the plaintiff to property within

the jurisdiction of the court, which rights the defendant

invades by his acts in another jurisdiction, the court will

assume jurisdiction to adjudicate the rights of the plain-

tiff as to his property situated within the jurisdiction of

the court, as was the case in Miller & Lux v. Rickey; but

it will not undertake to go further and by injunction

compel the defendant to perform any act upon the soil

in another jurisdiction, even though the performance of

such act be essential to the plaintiff's enjoyment of his

property.

To repeat such inquiry, "How does it aft'ect the ques-

tion of jurisdiction of venue to say that the party on

whom the court must act may find it necessary to do

things outside the jurisdiction of the court in order to

comply with the order of the court."

The further answer is that the court is without power.

The defendant in order to obey must be permitted to

escape ; the court cannot hold him and compel obedience.

When he escapes he may decline to obey and the court
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will be without redress or power to compel his further

obedience.

The principle is thus stated in the case of Munson v.

Tryon, 6 Phila. 395

:

"Jurisdiction is entertained in equity over extra terri-

torial torts when the court has full power to execute its

decree where the appropriate decree operates on the fu-

ture conduct of the defendant and not directly upon the

property threatened to be injured. When a nuisance has

been set up and abatement decreed, in order to carry the

decree into effect, a writ of assistance or other similar

process may be necessary. Such a writ cannot be sent

into a foreign jurisdiction, and therefore, in such a case,

because a court of equity cannot complete its work, it

will not commence."

The limitations, therefore, of a court of equity having

jurisdiction over the person are fundamental, and it

will not, because it cannot enforce an act which is in-

capable of being physically performed within its terri-

torial jurisdiction.

In its opinion in this case the court cites many au-

thorities to the effect that an action for damages may be

brought in the district where the property damaged is

situated, even though the nuisance causing the damage

is maintained in another juri.' diction. But, saving

always the case of Miller and Lux v. Rickey to which

particular reference will presently be made, it cites no

case where a court of equity assumed jurisdiction in

derogation of the principle as thus laid down.

The cases of Massie v. Watts and Phelps v. McDon-
ald, as well as the Lord Baltimore case cited in the opin-
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ion do not appear to us to militate against this principle.

They were all cases affecting, it is true, property in

another jurisdiction, but where the act decreed to be

done, to-wit: the execution of a conveyance, could be

done within the jurisdiction of the court.

If a court of equity in California has jurisdiction over

the person of a party who has real estate in the city of

London which it is his duty to convey to the party in

California, the court will compel defendant to execute

such conveyance, even though the effect of such decree

is to settle title to property in London.

The reason why the court assumes such jurisdiction

is that as a matter of fact it has the power to compel

the defendant to execute the conveyance. The act of

conveyance is capable of being physically done within

the territorial jurisdiction of the court and a court of

equity will punish and imprison the defendant until he

executes the conveyance in such form and manner as to

effect a valid transfer of the property in London. Such

decree would not of itself, operate as a conveyance in

London. A deed in pursuance of it, or in other words,

the active obedience of the defendant to the decree, is

essential to its efficacy. If the law of England were that

no conveyances of property in London would be valid

unless the grantor in person stood upon the property

and made the grant, and the fact that such was the law

should be established to the satisfaction of the California

court, then the California court would not make any

such futile decree.

Texas & Pac. R. R. Co. v. Gay, 25 L. R. A. at

top page 50.
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Miller & Lnx v. Rickey.

The fundamental distinction between this important

case and our case is that the subject matter of the con-

troversy between Miller & Lux and Rickey was the

ownership of certain waters in the Walker river ; while

in the case at bar no c[uestion of conflicting rights is

involved. The appellant has at no time claimed the

right to divert water, if the eftect of so doing would

work injury to the land of the complainant. Its defense

upon the merits was not that it had the right to divert

the water, but that as a matter of fact the conceded

negligent act of diversion was in the first place not its

act, but the act of a Mexican corporation, and in the

second place was not the proximate cause of the injury

to complainant.

In the one case the action is in efl:'ect an action to

quiet title, while in our case it is an action to abate a

nuisance.

This was a suit brought to enjoin defendants from the

alleged wrongful diversion of waters flowing down the

stream of both forks of the Walker river, having their

source in California and flowing down into and through

the state of Nevada where the lands of the complainant

were situated.

After alleging its rights and privileges in the premises

and the alleged wrongful acts of the defendants, the

complainant averred "That all of the said acts, doings

and claims of the said defendants are contrary to equity

and good conscience."

The prayer was that the "defendants be forever en-

joined and restrained from diverting any water from
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the said river above the points where the said complain-

ant so diverts the same in such a manner or to such an

extent as to deprive complainant of any of the waters

aforesaid."

The plea of the defendant was that the only waters

of the Walker river which he had diverted was under a

claim of right to divert by reason of his ownership of

certain lands within the state of California.

The defendants' alleged acts of diversion were in the

state of California, and the suit was brought in the Cir-

cuit Court for the district of Nevada.

It appears, therefore, that the plaintiff in such suit

claiming to own water appurtenant to land in Nevada,

sought to quiet his title to such land and water by a

decree of the court having jurisdiction in Nevada.

The defendant Rickey claimed title to the water as

appurtenant to his lands in California, and in pursuance

of such claim constructed a dam in California and di-

verted the water.

Judge Hawley rendered judgment over ruling defend-

ant's demurrer to the jurisdiction of the court, 127

Federal.

The defendant, Rickey, thereupon 'answered, and the

issues so joined have not as yet been tried.

In the meantime Rickey organized a corporation, the

Rickey Land & Cattle Company, and conveyed to that

corporation the water rights and the lands in California

to which they were appurtenant, the ownership to which

he had set up as a defense in his answer to the suit

brought by Miller & Lux in Nevada.

Thereafter the Rickey Land & Cattle Company com-
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menced two certain suits in the Superior Court of Mono

county, Calif., wherein it alleged its ownership of such

lands in California and its right to certain waters of the

Walker river, and that the defendants in that suit, in-

cluding Miller & Lux, the complainant in the Nevada

suit were claiming the right to divert the water of the

river, and alleged that the defendant. Miller and Lux,

had no such right.

The prayer of the complaint in that case was that

the title of the Rickey Land & Cattle Company to the

waters of the river should be quieted as against Miller

& Lux and the other defendants.

Miller & Lux thereafter contended in the Nevada suit

that the issues in the Mono county suits brought by the

Rickey Land & Cattle Company were the same as the

issues in such Nevada suit originally brought by Miller

& Lux, and asked for an injunction restraining the

Rickey Land & Cattle Company from prosecuting such

suits brought in Mono countv.

After a hearing the injunction asked for was granted

by Judge Hawley, 146 Federal. From the order grant-

ing the same the Rickey Land & Cattle Company ap-

pealed to the Circuit Court of Appeals which court

affirmed the said order, 152 Federal. Thereafter the

petition of the Rickey Land & Cattle Company to the

United States Supreme Court for a writ of certiorari

was made and granted, and the appeal is now pending

in such court, and as we are advised, will be reached for

argument in the month of November.

It will be observed that at no time has it been held

that the Nevada court had power to grant an injunction
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restraining defendant from diverting waters in Califor-

nia. The decision of Judge Hawley both in overruHng

the demurrer and in restraining the prosecution of the

suits brought in Mono county were in effect that the

Nevada court had jurisdiction to quiet title to complain-

ant's land and water in Nevada, albeit that the effect

of such decision was to adjudicate that defendant had

no right to the same waters appurtenant to his lands in

California.

It is possible that it might be inferred from the lan-

guage employed by Judge Hawley quoted in the opin-

ion of this court that the Nevada court having power to

quiet title to complainant's land in Nevada, would also

have power to prohibit the defendant from doing any

act in Nevada or elsewhere, which would be an invasion

of complainant's title thus quieted. The decision, how-

ever, overruling the demurrer does not necessarily carry

any such import, for the demurrer was properly over-

ruled if the complainant was entitled merely to have his

title quieted.

In his opinion ordering the injunction he says at page

583:

''Under the facts of this case the question arises

whether or not this court has power and authority to

issue the injunction against the Rickey Land & Cattle

Co. that is prayed for (meaning the injunction to re-

strain the California suits); in other words, has this

court any jurisdiction in the premises?"

And later at page 588:

"The suits in this court will quiet and settle the title
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or rights of the respective parties to the flowing waters

of the Walker river."

Certainly the decision of Judge Hawley cannot be

construed to mean that the Nevada court had the power

to compel the defendant to do any positive act beyond the

territorial limits of Nevada.

As has been suggested before, there is an obvious dis-

tinction in this matter of jurisdiction between the power

to issue a restraining order and to decree a mandatory

injunction requiring the defendant to do some positive

act beyond the jurisdiction of the court. Judge Hawley

says, 127 Federal, at p. 576.

"The direct purpose of all judicial acts is relief to a

litigant which cannot be given by judgment or decree

alone, but must be given if at all through the enforce-

ment of the one or the other by appropriate process, and

it has often been said that the highest test of the juris

diction of a court in a given case is found in the answer

to an inquiry whether it has lawful power thus to en-

force its decree."

iVnd as has been heretofore pointed out at the very

outset of his opinion he wrote:

"It will, of course, be conceded at the outset that this

court has no jurisdiction over lands and real estate sit-

uated without this district. It cannot abate nuisances

outside of the district. It cannot reach property in rem

wholly situated in other states. It cannot by any decree

which it may make in this suit directly reach the dams,

reservoirs or ditches belonging to the defendant located

entirely within the state of California."
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These two excerpts from Judge Hawley's opinion

indicate that while he may have come to the conclusion

that a court of equity had the power to issue a restrain-

ing order against any person over whom it had jurisdic-

tion, it had no power to compel such person to do any

act, the physical performance of which was incapable

of being done within the jurisdiction of the court.

This Honorable Court in its opinion reported in the

152nd Federal, bases its affirmance and the jurisdiction

of the court entirely as has been said upon its conclu

sion that the action was in effect one to quiet title to

property in the state of Nevada.

Even as Judge Hawley at the commencement of his

opinion asked: "What is the nature and character of

this suit?" so did this court at the outset of its opinion

declare: "It is important that we first ascertain the

nature of the subject matter of the cause."

It next elaborately discusses the nature of property in

water, and concludes, "Could there be a plainer case of

an attempt to quiet title to the appropriation itself?

* * * It (the water) is appurtenant to the realty in

connection with which the use is applied. It savors of

and is a part of the realty itself. The suit, therefore,

in its purpose and effect, is one to quiet title to realty."

It reviews all of the authorities to the effect that where

the action was for damages, it might be brought either

in the jurisdiction where the nuisance was maintained

or where the lands which were injured were situated,

and concludes with what we deemed a positive declara-

tion of the principle as contended for by us

:

"In the case of nuisance, however, where it is sought
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to abate the nuisance by injunctive process, it is requisite

that the suit be instituted in the jurisdiction where the

nuisance is maintained, because it is said the remedy is

quasi in rem, and must act upon the thing itself which

is causing the damage. This was held in the case of

Stillman v. White Rock Manufacturing Co., Fed. Cas.

No. 13,446 (23 Fed. Cas. 83)." 152 Federal at p. 16.

This principle would seem, also, to be the same as that

announced by the Supreme Court of Iowa, in the case of

Gilbert v. Moline Water, Power & M. Co., 19 Iowa 319.

In its opinion in this case, this court does not refer to

its own opinion in the Rickey case, nor to the above

quoted portions of Judge Hawley's opinions, but says:

"Judge Hawley in an elaborate opinion considered the

question of jurisdiction as presented by these objections

and reviewed the authorities upon the subject, meeting

and answering the objections raised and urged by the

defendants in this case that the court could not send its

process to execute its decree into foreign territory. The

court says on page 580:

" 'That this court has jurisdiction over the person of

the defendant is unquestioned. It can reach him by in-

junction, and punish him for contempt if he violates it.

This doctrine had its foundation in the equity courts of

England and at an early day.'
"

Immediately preceding the part of Judge Hawley's

opinion thus quoted. Judge Hawley wrote

:

"The jurisdiction of courts of equity over the classes

of cases affecting property without its local jurisdiction

exists only when the relief sought is such that it may be
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g-iven by the acts of the person over whom the court ex-

ercises jurisdiction."

Our conclusion would be that if the court had any

jurisdiction in the case of Miller & Lux v. Rickey, its

powers were limited to granting- a decree quieting the

title of complainant to the waters appurtenant to its lands

in Nevada ; that the court would have no power to issue

an injunction restraining- defendant from maintaining

a dam m California, and certainly zvould have no power

to issue a decree coiupcUing him to pidl down a dam in

California; that the court had no power to abate a

nuisance maintained in California, but did have the

power to determine the respective claims of the parties

to ownership of the water—to decide vvhether the same

was rightfully appurtenant to the lands in Nevada even

though an adjudication to such effect would as a corol-

lary establish that it was not rightfully appurtenant to

the lands in California.

It zvas the convicting claims to property in the water

zvhich gave the court jurisdiction, and its jurisdiction to

render anv decree whatever was dependent entirelM upon

the defendant's assertion of a right to the zvater zuhich

zvas inconsistent zvith plaintiff's alleged title to it."

The cases of Deseret Irr. Co. v. Mclntyre, i6 Utah

398, and Willey v. Decker (Vv^yo.), y^^ Pacific 210, cited

by Judge Hawley, both involved conflicting claims to the

ownership of water, and the court based its assumption

of jurisdiction upon the fact that such suits were in

effect suits to quiet title to realty within the court's

jurisdiction.

If the defendant had interposed an answer admitting
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the fact of the diversion, and denying that he made such

diversion under claim of title, and disclaiming any right

to the water, the court would have been without jurisdic-

tion to enter a decree against him, even though it found

as a fact that defendant was tortiously diverting water

to w^hich complainant was entitled. The defendant,

Rickey, however, did allege ownership. Accordingly the

court assumed jurisdiction to quiet plaintiff's title, but

not to issue an injunction which would be effective upon

the lands in California.

If after a decree quieting plaintiff's title, defendant

should persist in diverting the water in California, the

remedy of the complainant would be to go to California

and apply for an injunction to the court having juris-

diction over the place of diversion. In such suit the

decree of the Nevada court quieting complainant's

title, would be a bar against any assertion by de-

fendant of any right to divert the water, and, therefore,

upon proof of the fact of the diversion, either a prohib-

itory or a mandatory injunction as a matter of course

would issue from the California court.

Assuming despite the forceful argument of counsel

for Rickey that the Nevada court in that case had juris-

diction to quiet the title of Miller & Lux as against

Rickey, we believe that the character of jurisdiction and

the nature of the decree, while in effect the same as an

injunction restraining Rickey from diverting waters in

California, would, in form, be necessarily analogous to

a decree in an action to compel a conveyance of property

in another jurisdiction. In other words, the court in

Nevada would decree that Miller & Lux were entitled
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to the water, and in order to give complete efficacy to its

decree could instruct Rickey to execute to Miller & Lux

a conveyance or quit claim to the water whose owner-

ship Rickey was asserting in California. This convey-

ance Miller & Lux could use in California and thus ac-

quire the entire benefit of the decree of the Nevada

court. We urge, however, that in order to gain such

entire benefit of the decree of the Nevada court, it is

essential that Miller & Lux should have something fur-

ther than the mere decree of the Nevada court. They

must go into California either with the decree as the

basis for the issuance of an injunction by the California

coLirts, or with a conveyance of Rickey's right; for the

decree of the Nevada court cannot be made to extend

to the res in California.

In its last analysis a court of equity can onW act upon

the person and within its own limits compel such person

to comply with its order, and unless such compliance

within the jurisdiction of the court can give the com-

plainant the remedy he seeks the court of equity is

necessarily powerless.

Conclusion.

If the United States Supreme Court should reverse

the judgment in the Rickey case, it is believed that such

reversal would necessarily involve the enunciation of a

principle of law which would be- inconsistent with the

legality of the decree in this case.

The reluctance of the United- States Supreme Court

to grant a petition of certiorari is well known. It would

seem therefore that the denial of this petition by this



-25-

court would work a manifest injustice to this appellant

if perchance the United States Supreme Court in its

opinion in the Rickey case should establish the principle

as now contended for by appellant.

It is furthermore believed that the perpetual injunc-

tion now affirmed may in the course of the vast irriga-

tion enterprise conducted by the appellant give rise even

to international questions with respect to the diversion

of the waters of the Colorado river in Mexico. Appel-

lant, therefore, most respectfully urges that this Hon-

orable Court either grant the petition for a rehearing

and let the further argument aw^ait the enlightenment

which the decision of the United States Supreme Court

in the Rickey case must necessarily give, or else grant

this petition and thereupon certify to the United States

Supreme Court the question of the power of the Circuit

Court by mandatory injunction to compel the closing of

a break of the Colorado river in the Republic of Mexico,

and the further question of the jurisdiction of a court of

equity to decree a mandatory injunction under the facts

disclosed by the record in this case.

Respectfully submitted,

Euge:ne: S. Ives,

Counsel for Appellant.

I hereby certify that in my opinion the foregoing

petition is well founded irjaw and that it is not inter-

posed for delay. ^/E Vf

Counsel for Appellant and Petitioner.
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The New Liverpool Salt Com-
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APPELLANT'S SIPPLEMENTAL BRIEE.

Inasmuch as counsel for appellee in submitting his

case, did not confine himself to filing a list of authorities

as suggested upon the argument, appellant craves the in-

dulgence of the court to file these few pages of reply.

I.

Counsel for appellee answering the contention of ap-

pellant that the allegations in the bill are interpreted and

controlled by paragraph XII thereof, says:
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"Appellant lays great stress upon the allegation of the

bill that unless the defendant be required to construct

headgates for controlling and regulating the amount of

water flowing into its canal, the overflow complained of

will continue. * * * The allegation upon which coun-

sel lays so much stress might be omitted from the bill

entirely, and there would still remain sufficient upon

which to base the decree which was entered below. * * *

[Pp. 2 and 3.]

Counsel apparently misapprehends the purport of ap-

pellant's point.

Appellant's position is, that the allegations in such

paragraph, affirmatively preclude complainant from ob-

taining any relief from a court of equity.

The situation according to appellant is this

:

Complainant comes to the chancellor and alleges that

the defendant has done various acts, as a result whereof,

the property of complainant is threatened with destruc-

tion, and then says

:

" 'Unless it (defendant) be required to construct head
gates for the controlling and regulating of the amount
of water flowing into its said canal, the said water will

continue to flow * * * and destroy and ruin' my
property and business."

In other words, complainant after stating to the chan-

cellor its grievances and its apprehensions, adds:

"Unless you require defendant to do certain things,

you can be of no benefit to me."

The court of equity will investigate the acts com-

plained of, and if under the limitations of its jurisdiction,
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it has no authority to direct what complainant says must

be directed in order to afford it the rehef prayed, it must

perforce reply to complainant

:

"We find ourselves without power to do the acts which

you declare to be essential to the saving of your property

from destruction. We therefore can do nothing for you,

and you must seek relief from another source,"

Counsel claims that this point raised by appellant, was

not raised in the lower court and was not assigned as

error.

Present counsel has no knowledge of what was said

upon the argument before the district judge, but certainly

it cannot be assumed upon the record that such point was

not made in argument.

The suggestion of counsel that had the point been

raised, complainant could have met it by amendment,

does not relieve the situation. The difficulty of complain-

ant consists not in the form of pleading but in the exist-

ence of a fact alleged and sworn to by complainant and

unquestionably true, which fact puts it beyond the power

of a court of equity to give it the relief sought. Had
complainant amended by withdrawing the allegation of

this most material fact, defendant could have set it up

as a defense to the jurisdiction of the court.

II.

Counsel says, at page 4

:

"At the time of the commencement of the suit, and for

a long time thereafter, the diversion through the Cali-

fornia intake was very large, amounting on the date of



the filing of the complaint, to mo second feet, and in-

creasing thereafter until, on the 2ist of March, the di-

version through that intake was 2590 second feet. These

figures are from the report of the United States Geo-

logical Survey for the year 1905, page 23 (offered in

evidence by defendant)."

The same point was suggested by counsel upon the ar-

gument. At that time counsel for appellee produced a

volume (not, according to our recollection, one of the

volumes of the official record), from which he read cer-

tain figures, indicating that on the 21st of March, the

flow not through intake No. i, but through the canal

supplied by the headgate, around which intake No. i

was cut, was some 2500 second feet, and counsel alluded

at the time to the fact that the present counsel for appel-

lant, not having taken part in the trial, had probably

overlooked this important piece of evidence.

Counsel for appellee does not cite the number of the

exhibit or the page of the record at which the report of

the United States Geological Survey for the year 1905

may be found. A cursory examination of the record has

failed to disclose to us any such report. But if the report

should be a part of the record, and our recollection of it

as stated upon the argument should be correct, it in no

way tends to prove that intake No. i was open on the

2 1st of March, 1905. The government measurements

according to such report, as we recall it, was taken

about one mile below the headgate, and Intake No. i ; it

did not indicate that any of the waters so measured

flowed through the headgate, or the by-pass around it
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the 20th of March, the river was at the extreme height

of 30.3. and it appears in other portions of the record

that at such height the waters of the river overflow its

banks and find their way into the canals without regard

to headgates or intakes. This overflow accounts fully

for the volume of water in the canal so measured.

It will be remembered that intake No. i is a by-pass,

cut around the original headgate constructed by the ap-

pellant. It is not claimed that this headgate was negli-

gently constructed. The negligence charged at this point

of diversion is confined to the opening of the unprotected

by-pass and not to the construction of the headgate,

which has withstood all floods and is still standing. The

evidence quoted at page 9 of appellant's brief filed Octo-

ber 3 shows that this by-pass was closed prior to the

March flood. Moreover, the fact that a mile below this

head gate 2500 feet of water were flowing through the

canal, does not tend to prove that this by-pass or intake

No. I was still open, for, it is possible that the headgate

itself had been opened, and in fact it is probable that ap-

pellant would have opened it in order to divert such

water as could pass through such headgate, with a view

to relieve the strain upon Intake No. 3, from which the

serious danger was apprehended.

III.

Furthermore it is of but little consequence whether

intake No. i was or was not open at the time the suit was

commenced. The allegation in paragraph XII is that,

unless the head gates (plural) be constructed, complain-

ant's property must be destroyed. The closing of intake
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No. I by the court would not have afforded complainant

any relief unless intakes Nos. 2 and 3 were also closed.

Therefore a decree of the court directing the closing

of intake No. i, even assuming that it was open at the

time of the commencement of the suit, would have been

futile, and consequently the complainant would not have

been entitled to such decree.

This principle is conclusively established in the case

of Ward v. Mississippi &c. Co,. 2 Black 485, where the

Supreme Court held that the Circuit Court erred in com-

pelling the railroad company to pull down a portion of

the piers of the bridge, because the pulling down of such

portion would not give complainant the relief sought.

IV.

Most of the cases cited by counsel for appellee raise

questions of venue and not of jurisdiction.

Miller & Lux v. Rickey Land & Cattle Co. sustains

appellant's position, that the court has no jurisdiction.

District Judge Hawley says in his opinion reported in

127 Federal, at page 575:

"It will, of course, be conceded at the outset that this

court has no jurisdiction over lands and real estate situ-

ated without this district. It cannot abate nuisances

outside of the district. It cannot reach property in rem

wholly situated in other states. It cannot by any decree

which it may make in this suit directly reach the dams,

reservoirs or ditches belonging to the defendant, located

entirely within the state of California."



The Circuit Court of Appeals affirming the decree of

the district judge, reviews the authority bearing upon

the legal principle that as to certain causes arising partly

in one jurisdiction, and partly in another, the right of

action will be entertained in either jurisdiction, and com-

ing directly to the point at issue upon this appeal, says

:

''In case of nuisance, however, where it is sought to

abate the nuisance by injunctive process, it is requisite

that the suit be instituted in the jurisdiction where the

nuisance is maintained, because it is said the remedy is

quasi in rem, and must act upon the thing itself which is

causing the damage. This was held in the case of Still-

man V. White Rock Manufacturing Co., Fed. Cas. No.

13,446 {2^ Fed. Cas. 83.)"

Rickey Land & Cattle Co. v. Miller & Lux, 152

Fed. II, at p. 16.

The principle thus stated is precisely the same as that

enunciated by the Supreme Court of Iowa, in the case of

Gilbert v. Moline Water Power & M. Co., 19 la. 319,

cited in appellant's brief filed October 3d, and criticised

as unsound by counsel for appellee both in his oral argu-

ment, and at page 8 of his last brief.

The decree should be reversed and the bill dismissed.

Dated Tucson, Arizona, December 10, 1908.

Eugene S. Ives,

Of Counsel for Appellant.
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Wong Hong Ping 55

Wong Sai Fong 63

Wong See Ying 54

Wong See Ying 70

Wong Woo 59

Testimony on Board S. S. "Manchuria," Dated

October 16, 1907 54

Testimony Before Inspector Montgomery,

Dated October 23, 1907 55

Testimony Before Inspector Montgomery,

Dated November 12, 1907 70

Traverse to Answer and Return of H. H. North,

Commissioner of Immigration, to Writ of

Habeas Corpus 101

Writ of Habeas Corpus 11

Writ of Habeas Corpus, Petition of Wong Hong
(Wong Hong Ping) on Behalf of Wong
See Ying for a 7



UNITED STATES OP AMERICA.

Circuit District of the United States^ Northern Dis-

trict of California.

Clerk's Office.

No. .

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING, on Habeas

Coi-pus.

Praecipe.

To the Clerk of Said Court:

Sir: Please Issue:

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Coi'pus.

Order Writ Issue.

Writ of Habeas Corpus.

Answer and Return.

Stipulation as to xinswer and Return.

Stipulation as to Parties.

Transcript of Testimony Taken at Hearing.

Mem. of Opinion.

Order Writ Discharged and Wong See Ying Re-

manded to the Custody from Whence Taken.

Petition for Appeal.

Assigmnent of Errors.

Order Allowing Appeal to Circuit Court of xippeals.

Order Appeal Allowed.

Copy of Traverse ajad Return.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 20, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,
Clerk. By John Fouga, Deputy Clerk.
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Citation on Appeal (Copy).

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA—ss.

Tlie President of the United States to Hart H. North,

Commissioner of Immigration, The Pacific Mail

Steamship Company (a Corporation), and to

The United States of America, Greeting:

You are hereby cited and acbnonished to be and ap-

pear at a United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, to be holden at the City of San

Francisco, in the State of California, within thirty

days from the date hereof, pursuant to an order al-

lowing an appeal of record in the Clerk's Office of

the United States District Court for the Noi-them

District of California, wherein Wong See Ying is

appellant, and you appellees, to show cause, if any

there be, why the decree rendered against the said

appellant, as in the said order allowing appeal men-

tioned, should not be corrected and why speedy

justice should not be done to the parties in that be-

half.

Witness, the Honorable JOHN J. DeHAVEN,
United States District Judge for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, this 30th day of March, A. D.

1908.

JOHN J. DeHAVEN,
United States District Judge.
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Service of the within citation by copy admitted

this 30th day of March, 1908.

ROBT. T. DEVLIN,
U. S. Attorney.

Attorney for Hart H. North, Commissioner of Im-

migration.

CHAS. J. HEGOERTY,
Attorney for Pacific ^lail Steamship Com-

pany, a Corporation.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 30th, 1908. Jas. P.

Brown, Clerk. By John Fouga, Deputy Clerk U. S.

District Court.

In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California.

No. .

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas Cor-

pus.

Petition of Wong Hong Ping (Wong Hong) .

Wong Hong Ping, being duly sworn, states that he

is the petitioner in the above-entitled matter.

That Wong See Ying is unlawfully and illegally

imprisoned, detained, confined, and restrained of his

liberty, and that the illegality and unlawfulness of

said imprisonment, detention, confinement and re-

straint consist in this, to wit:

That said Wong See Ying is unlawfully impris-

6ned, detained, confined and restrained of his liberty

by the Pacific Mail Steamship Company and H. H.



4 Wong See Ying vs.

North, Commissioner of Immigration at the Port of

San Francisco.

That said H. H. North clamis that said Wong See

Ying is not entitled to enter the United States on the

ground that said Wong See Ying is not a native of

the United States,

That tlie proofs and evidence, documentary and

otherwise, submitted by said Wong See Ying and

others on his behalf establish conclusively that said

Wong See Ying was born in San Francisco, Cali-

fornia, (28) years ago, in a building on the corner of

Commercial and Dupont Streets, and that said Wong
See Ying departed for the Empire of China with his

mother about the year 1880.

That said H. H. North arb/^«rily and unreasonably

declined to believe the proofs and evidence, doc-

umentary and otherwise, submitted by said Wong
See Ying, and by others in his behalf, in support of

his claim that he was born in the United States, and

entitled to entei' the United States at the port of

San Francisco.

That the proofs and evidence, documentary and

otherwise, submitted by said Wong See Ying and

others in his behalf, in support of his claim that he

was born in the United States and entitled to enter

the United States, port of San Francisco, were com-

petent, relevant, material and truthful, and estab-

lished conclusively that said Wong See Ying was

bom in the United States.

That said Wong See Ying was by virtue of the de-

cision of the said H. H. North, Conmiissioner of Im-
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migration as aforesaid, and of the Department of

Commerce and Labor on appeal denying his claim

that he was born in the United States, denied his

just and substantial right under the constitution and

the laws of the United States, and that he did not

have a fair and impartial hearing.

That said Wong See Ying, duly prosecuted and ap-

pealed from the decision of said Commissioner of Im-

migration to the Department of Commerce and

Labor, and that said decision was affirmed by said

Depai^:ment of Commerce and Labor.

That the evidence taken and investigation made

by said CkDmniissioner of Immigration at San Fran-

cisco was of a secret character, and that said Wong
See Ying was not pemiitted to be present, either per-

sonally or by an attorney, at the taking of said evi-

dence (save his own), or at any of said investigations

or hearings held by said Commissioner of Lmnigra-

tion in secret as aforesaid.

That at none of the said secret hearings was said

Wong See Ying permitted to be confronted with wit-

nesses against him, if any, and was not apprised or

pei-mitted to be informed of the evidence, or the

purport thereof, taken and submitted with reference

to his said application to be permitted to land in the

United States on the ground that he was born in the

United States.

WONG HONG,
Character in Chinese.

JOHN C. CATLIN,
Attorney for Petitioner.

Dated San Francisco, Jan. 21st, 1908.
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State of California,

City and County of San Francisco,—ss.

Wong Hong, being duly sworn, states that he is

the petitioner in the above-entitled proceedings, and

that he knows Wong See Ying, and makes the peti-

tion on behalf of said Wong See Ying; that he knows

the contents of said petition, and believes the same

to be true as to all matters stated on his information

and belief, and as to those matters he believes it to

be true.

That he resides and does business at 1538 Geary

Street, San Francisco.

WONG HONG PING,

Character in Chinese.

WONG BEW,
1538 Geary.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 28th day

of January, 1908.

JAS. P. BROWN,
Clerk U. S. Dist. Co.

Order.

Let the writ of Habeas Corpus issuec^ pui^uant to

the prayer of above petitioner.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jany. 28, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By John Fouga, Deputy Clerk.



The United States of America.

In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas Cor-

pus.

Petition of Wong Hong (Wong Hong Ping) on Be-

half of Wong See Ying for a Writ of Habeas

Corpus.

Wong Hong, being duly sworn, states that he is

the petitioner in the above-entitled matter.

That Wong See Ying is unlawfull,^ and illegall.y

imprisoned, detained, confined and restrained of his

liberty, and that the illegality, unlawfulness of said

imprisonment, detention, confinement and restraint

consists in this, to wit:

That said Wong See Ying is unlawfully impris-

oned, detained, confined and restrained of his liberty

by the Pacific Mail Steamship Companj^ and by H.

H. North, Commissioner of Immigration at the Port

of San Francisco.

That said H. H. North claims that said Wong See

Ying is not entitled to enter the United States on

the ground that said Wong See Ying is not a native

of the United States.

That proofs and evidence, documentary and other-

wise, submitted by said Wong See Ying and others

on his behalf establish conclusively that said Wong
See Ying was born in San Francisco, California,

("28^ years ago, in a building on the cor. of Com-

mercial and Dupont Streets; that said Wong See
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Ying departed for the Empire of China and with his

mother about the year 1880.

That said H. H. North arbitrarily and unreason-

ably declined to believe proofs and evidence, docu-

mentary or otherwise, submitted by said Wong See

Ying and others in his behalf, in support of his

claim that he was born in the United States and

entitled to enter the United States at the poii; of

San Francisco.

That the proofs and evidence, documentary and

otherwise, submitted by said Wong See Ying and

by others in his behalf in support of his claim that

he was born in the United States, and entitled to

enter the United States, port of San Francisco, were

competent, relevant, material, and truthful, and es-

tablished conclusively that said Wong See Ying was

born in the United States.

That said Wong See Ying was by virtue of the

decision of the said H. H. North, Commissioner of

Immigration as aforesaid and of the Department of

Commerce and Labor on appeal denying his claim

that he was born in the United States, denied his

just and substantial right under the constitution, and

under the laws of the United States, and that he did

not have a fair and impartial hearing.

That said Wong See Ying duly prosecuted and

appealed from the decision of said Commissioner of

Immigration to the Department of Conmierce and

Labor, and that said decision w^as affirmed by said

Department of Commerce and Labor.

That the evidence taken and investigation made

by said Conunissioner of Immigration at San Fran-
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Cisco was of a secret character, and that said Wong
See Ying was not permitted to be present, either

personally or by an attorney, at the taking of said

evidence (save his own) or at any of said investiga-

tion or hearing held by said Commissioner of Im-

migration in secret as aforesaid.

That none of said secret hearing was said Wong

See Ying permitted to be confronted with witness

against him, if any, and was not apprised or per-

mitted to be informed of the evidence, or the pur-

port thereof, taken and submitted with reference to

said application to be permitted to land in the United

States on the ground that he was born in the United

States.

That your petitioner prays that a writ of habeas

corpus may be granted directed to the said Pacific

Mail Steamship Company and the general manager

of said Steamship Company, and to H. H. North,

Commissioner of Immigration, commanding them

to have the body of said passenger before your

Honor, at a time and place therein to be specified,

to do and receive what shall then and there be con-

sidered by your Honor concerning him, together

with the time and cause of his detention, and the

said writ, and that he may be restored to his liberty.

Dated, San Francisco.

WONG HONG PING,

Character in Chinese.

JOHN C. CATLIN,

Atty. for Petitioner,

Wong Hong, being duly sworn, states that he is

the petitioner in the above-entitled proceedings, and
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that he knows Wong See Ying, and makes this peti-

tion on behalf of said Wong See Ying; that he knows

the contents of said petition, and believes the same

to be true as to all matters stated of his knowledge,

except as to the matters stated on his information

and belief, and, as to those matters, he believes them

to be true. That he resides and does business at

1538 Geary St., San Francisco, Cal.

WONG HONG PING,

Character in Chinese.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day

of January, 1908.

[Seal] JOHN FOUGA,
Deputy Clerk U. S. District Court, Northern District

of California.

WONG BEW, Interpreter,

1538 Geary St.

ORDER.
Let th^ writ of habeas corpus issue pursuant to

the prayer of the above petitioner.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jany. 21st, 1908. Jas. P.

Brown, Clerk. By John Fouga, Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, Northern

District of California.

No. 13,751.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas Cor-

pus.
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Order to Show Cause Why a Writ of Habeas Corpus

Should not Issue.

Ordered that the Pacific Mail Steamship Com-

pany and H. H. North, Commissioner of Immigra-

tion at the port of San Francisco, show cause before

this Court on Tuesday, January 28, 1908, at 10 o 'clock

A. M., why a writ of habeas corpus should not issue

in accordance with the prayer of the petition herein.

Further ordered that a copy of the petition herein

and of this order be served upon said respondents,

and upon the United States Attorney for the North-

ern District of California, on or before January 24,

1908.

Dated January 21, 1908.

JOHN J. DeHAVEN,
Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed January 21st, 1908. Jas. P.

Brown, Clerk. By J. S. Manley, Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, Northern

District of California.

No. 13,751.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas Cor-

pus.

Writ of Habeas Corpus.

The President of the United States of America, to

the Pacific Mail Steamship Co., and the Gen-

eral Manager of said Steamship Company, and
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to H. H. North, Commissioner of Iimnigration,

or whoever may have the custody or control of

said Wong See Ying, Greeting:

You are hereby commanded that you have the body

of the above-named person by you imprisoned and

detained, as it is said, together with the time and

cause of such imprisonment and detention, by what-

soever name the said person shall be called or charged

before the Honorable John J. DeHaven, Judge of

the District Court of the United States, for the

Northern District of California, at the courtroom of

said Court in the City and County of San Francisco,

California, on the 20th day of February, A. D. 1908,

at 10 o 'clock A. M., to do and receive what shall then

and there be considered in the premises.

And have you then and there this writ.

Witness, the Honorable JOHN J. DeHAVEN,
Judge of the said District Court, and the seal there-

of, at San Francisco, in said District, on the 15th day

of February, A. D. 1908.

[Seal] JAS. P. BROWN,
Clerk of Said District Court.

By Francis Krull,

Deputy Clerk.

UNITED STATES MARSHAL'S RETURN.
I hereby return that I received the within writ

on the 15th day of Februar}^ 1908, and personally

served the same on the 17th day of February, 1908,

on the Pacific Mail Steamship Company, a foreign

corporation, by handing to and leaving with A. J.

Frey, who is the person designated by said defend-
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ant, Pacific Mail Steamship Company, a foreign cor-

poration, under the Statutes of California, as the

person upon whom all legal process is to be served

in the matters affecting the Pacific Mail Steamship

Company, a foreign corporation, in the State of Cali-

fornia, a certified copy thereof, in the within en-

titled cause in the City and County of San Francisco,

in said Northern District of California.

C. T. ELLIOTT,

United States Marshal.

By M. J. Fitzgerald,

Office Deputy.

San Francisco, Feb. 18, 1908.

[Endorsed] : Filed February 18th, 1908. Jas. P.

Brown, Clerk. By John Fouga, Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California.

No. 13,751.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas
Corpus.

Answer and Return of H. H. North, Commissioner of

Immigration, to the Writ of Habeas Corpus

Herein.

Comes now H, H. North and respectfully makes

this answer and return to the writ of habeas corpus

issued in the above-entitled matter on February, 1908,

and as reasons why the Chinese, Wong See Ying,

should not be released upon the hearing of the said

writ:
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I.

That tli€ petition for writ of habeas corpus herein

fails to state any fact or facts from which it can be

detemiined that the applicant for said writ, to wit,

the said Wong See Ying, is in fact unlawfully de-

tained or imprisoned, or restrained of his liberty.

II.

Respondent fui-ther shows that the said Wong See

Ying is an alien Chinese person, and a native of

the Empire of China; that he has no right to enter

or land within the United States.

That said Wong See Ying arrived in the port and

harbor of San Francisco on the steamship **Man-
churia" on October 12th, 1907, and at said time came

to said port as a passenger upon said vessel dii*ectly

from the Empire of China ; that on his said arrival

in said port he made application to this respondent

for permission to land and enter the United States

of iimerica as hereinafter showTi.

That for more tha^ four years last past this re-

spondent has been, and now is, a duly appointed,

qualified and acting Conmiissioner of Inmiigration

at the Port of San Francisco. That as such officer

he has had, and now has, charge of the execution of

all of the laws of the United States, relating to the

landing in, or exclusion from, the United States of

all Chinese pei^sons.

That said Wong See King so made application to

be permitted to land in the United States, as herein*

before alleged to this respondent as such officer.

That upon the arrival of the said steamship "Man-
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churia," as hereinbefore alleged, to wit, on October

16tli, 1907, at the poii; of San Francisco, said vessel

was boarded by an officer of the Immigi^ation Service

of the United States at said port, to wit, by one P. F.

Montgomery, which said officer was acting under this

respondent. That at said time said P. F. Montgom-

ery was duly appointed, qualified and acting Immi-

grant Inspector at this port.

That on said date, to wit, on the said October 16th,

1907, and upon said vessel, while at this port, and

before the said Wong See Ying had been peimitted

to land within the said United States, he, the said

Wong See Ying, duly applied to said Inspector to

be permitted to land in, and to enter the United

United States, and he, the said Wong See Ying, was

then and iheYeiipon said P. F. Montgomery, inspec-

tor as aforesaid, personally examined in order to as-

certain what evidence, if any, the said Wong See

Ying might be able to produce in his support of his

right to land in and to enter the United States.

That then and thei^e, to wit, on said October 16th,

1907, said Wong See Ying named all of the witnesses

who might give any evidence in support of his right

to land in or enter the United States.

III.

That thereafter, to wit, on October 23d, October

24th, 1907, November 13th, 1907, and November 15th,

1907, hearings were had under the supervision, direc-

Uop-y ajjd.ixi accordance with the practice of this re-

spondent as su(ih Commissioner of Immigration at

said port of San Francisco. That said hearings were
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conducted by the said inspector, P. F. Montgomery,

and at said hearing all of the witnesses who had there-

tofore been specified and named as witnesses who

might give evidence in support of said Wong See

Ying's right to land in or enter the United States

were duly examined, and that such witnesses did de-

close to the said inspector at said hearings all of the

facts within their knowledge relative to the right of

the said Wong See Ying to land in or enter the United

States.

That the examination of the said witnesses was

made by the said inspector, P. F. Montgomery, and

that the same was full and complete.

That said witnesses at said hearings related all the

facts within their knowledge, as such witnesses, and

each of said witnesses, after being duly and regularly

questioned at length and after having made answer

to the questions propounded at said hearings, was

asked to state anything furtlier with reference to

the nativity of or the right of the said Wong See

Ying to land in or enter the United States that had

been stated in response to the questions propounded

at said hearings.

That each of the said witnesses stated at said

hearings that the answers by them were all the infor-

mation which they could give with reference to the

nativity of said Wong See Ying or with reference

to his right to laud in or enter the United States.

That, in addition to examining the %vitnesses des-

ignated by the applicant, the applicant himself was

examined at said hearings and permitted to testify
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with reference to his right to land in and enter the

United States.

That the examination of the said Wong See Ying

was full and complete, and that at said examination

said Wong See Ying was permitted to testify at

length with reference to his nativity and mth refer-

ence to his right to land in and enter the United

States, and was in no manner prevented from giving

all the facts within his knowledge with reference to

said matters.

IV.

That the said hearings were not secret. That the

same were held strictly in accord with rules and reg-

ulations 5 and 6, duly promulgated by the Secretary

of Commerce and Labor of the United States and in

force as regulations governing the admission of Chi-

nese into the United States.

That, as provided in rule 6 last hereinbefore re-

ferred to, the examinations of the said witnesses oc-

cun^ed separate and apart from the public and in the

presence of Government officials, and without the ap-

plicant himself being present.

That said applicant made no request to be present

at the examination of the said witnesses offered in

behalf of the said applicant, and made no request to

be I'epresented by counsel at said examinations. That

had such request been made, the said applicant would

have been permitted to be present in person and by

counsel at such examination of the said witnesses.

That said applicant was not represented by counsel

at his own examination, and that said applicant was
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examined separate and apart from the public. That,

had the said applicant made request to be represented

by counsel at his own examination, such request

would have been complied with and the said appli-

cant would have been permitted to have counsel rep-

resent him at said hearings and at his own examina-

tion.

That, in accordance with rule 6, all witnesses pre-

senting themselves on behalf of the said applicant

were full}^ heard, and all were regularly sworn by

said immigrant inspector to testify the truth prior

to the taking of the testimony.

V.

That, upon the conclusion of the said hearings, to

wit, on the 27th day of November, 1907, said Wong
See Ying, applicant as aforesaid, was duly and regu-

larly adjudged to be inadmissible, and that it was
duly and regularly determined by this respondent

that he, the said Wong See Ying, had no right to

land in or enter the United States, and that he was
an alien Chinese person and a native of the Empire
of China.

VI.

That upon its being deteimined that said applicant

had no right to land in or enter the United States,

he was, in accordance with the said rule 6, advised

of his right to appeal to the Secretary of Conunerce

and Labor of the United States, and the said appli-

cant was so advised by a notice written in the Chi-

nese language, and thereafter perfected an appeal

as permitted by said i*ule 6.

That in the matter of taking said appeal, said ap-
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plicant was regularly represented by counsel. That

prior to the taking of the said appeal said applicant

was at all times advised by counsel familiar with the

rules and regulations herein referred to governing

the admission of Chinese into the United States, but

neither the said applicant nor his counsel suggested

any witnesses other than those examined as herein-

before mentioned, or any evidence ot;her than that

hereinbefore mentioned that could be offered or that

should be received in support of the right of the said

applicant to land in or enter the United States.

VII.

That upon its being determined by this respondent

that a Chinese applicant shall not be permitted to

land in or enter the United States under the rules

and regulations hereinbefore referred to in accord-

dance with rules 12 and 13 of the said rules and reg-

ulations, further opportunity is afforded, and has at

all times been alforded to an applicant so adjudged

to be inadmissible to offer further evidence in sup-

port of his alleged right to land within the United

States.

That after it had been determined by this respond-

ent, as hereinbefore alleged, that the said Wong See

Ying was inadmissible and had no right to land in or

enter the United States, and after his counsel had

been notified of such determination on the part of

this respondent, and after the said counsel for the

said applicant had been notified of the right of the

applicant to appeal, as hereinbefore alleged, said

counsel was permitted to examine and make copies
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of the evidence upon which said excluding decision

was based, in accordance with said rule 6.

That neither said applicant nor his counsel, as per-

mitted under rules 12 or 13, as hereinbefore men-

tioned, after being so permitted to examine and make

copies of the evidence upon which the said excluding

decision was based; and after being notified of the

said excluding decision, offered no additional evi-

dence of any kind, although having full opportunity

so to do in support of the alleged right of the said

applicant to be landed in the United States.

VIII.

That the counsel for the said applicant, upon be-

ing notified of the right of the applicant to appeal

to said Secretary of Connnerce and Labor of the

United States from said excluding decision, took and

perfected an appeal, in behalf of the said applicant,

but without offering any additional evidence in ac-

cordance with rules 12 and 13 of the rules and regu-

lations hereinbefore referred to.

That upon the taking of the said appeal by the

said applicant to the said Secretary of Conmaerce

and Labor, the complete record of the said case, ac-

companied by all of the evidence, affidavits, state-

ments and briefs submitted in the matter of the hear-

ing of the said application, and accompanied by the

views of this respondent in making the said exclud-

ing decisions as aforesaid, was, as required by tlie

said rules and regulations, forwarded to the Secre-

tary of Commerce and Labor at Washington, D. C.
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That thereupon, and after the said appeal was duly

and regularly perfected in accordance with the said

rules and regulations, the said Secretarj^ of Com-

merce and Labor duly and regularly determined on

the 17th day of January, 1908, that the said Chinese

applicant, to wit, the said Wong See Ying, was inad-

missible, was an alien Chinese person and a native of

the Empire of China, and had no right to land in or

enter the United States ; that his said appeal should

be dismissed, and that he should be returned to the

country from whence he came, at the expense of the

transportation agency owning the vessel on which he

had been brought to this country. That all the evi

dence herein mentioned was fully considered on said

appeal.

That all of the hearing had for the purpose of de-

termining the right of the said Chinese applicant to

land in or enter the United States were full, fair and

regular, and that the said applicant at all the times

had full and fair opportunity to be heard and to offer

evidence in support of his right to land in or enter the

United States.

That the detention of the said Wong See Ying by

this respondent and by the other respondent herein,

to wit, the Pacific Mail Steamship Company, is for

the purpose of deporting the said Wong See Ying

to the country from whence he came, to wit, the

Empire of China, in pursuance to the said order of

deportation and in pursuance of the requirements of

the law and of the said rules and regulations herein-

before referred to, required that any Chinese person
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refused admission into the United States, must be

returned to the country from whence he came at the

expenses of the transportation agency owning the

vessel or conveyance bringing such Chinese person.

IX.

is That all acts and things done by this respondent in

conducting said hearings, or in detaining the said

Wong See Ying, Avere done and performed by this

respondent acting as such Commissioner of Immi-

gration, or done and performed by officers acting un-

der the direction of this respondent as such Com-

missioner of Immigration at said port of San Fran-

cisco, and under and in pursuance of the laws of the

United States relating to the exclusion of Chinese

persons, and under the said rules and regulations

promulgated and existing hereinbefore referred to.

That rules 5 and 6, 9, 12, and 13 of the said rules

and regulations are as follows

:

Rule 5. Immediately upon the arrival of Chinese

persons at any i)ort mentioned in rule 4 it shall be

the dut}^ of the officer in charge of the administration

of the Chinese exclusion laws to have said Chinese

persons examined promptly, as by law provided,

touching their right to admission; and to permit to

land those proving such right.

Provided, That nothing contained in these

regulations shall be construed to authorize the board-

ing of vessel of foreign navies arriving at ports of the

United States for the purpose of enforcing the pro-

vision of the Chinese exclusion laws.
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Rule 6. The examination prescribed in rule 5

shall separate and apart from the public, in the

presence of Government officials and such witness or

witnesses only as the examining officer shall desig-

nate: Provided however, That all witnesses pre-

senting themselves on behalf of any Chinese appli-

cant be fully heard. If upon the conclusion of the

hearing the Chinese applicant is adjudged to be

inadmissible, he shall be advised of his right to

appeal by a notice written or printed in the

Chinese language, and his counsel shall be per-

mitted, after notice of appeal has been duly

filed, to examine and make copies of the evidence

upon which the excluding decision is based. If there

is a consular officer of China at port where the exam-

ination is held, he shall also be notified in writing

that the said Chinese applicant has been refused a

landing, and shall be permitted to examine the rec-

ord.

Rule 9. Every Chinese person refused admission

to the United States, being actually or constructively

on the vessel or other conveyance by which he was

brought to the port of entry, must be returned to the

country from whence he came, at the expense of the

transportation agency owning such vessel or convey-

ance.

'Rule 12. Every Chinese person refused admission

under the provisions of the exclusion laws of the

decision of the officer in charge at the port of entry

may take an appeal to the Secretary of Commerce

and Labor bv giving written notice thereof to the
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officer in charge within two days, exclusive of Sun-

days and legal holidays, after such decision is rend-

ered.

Rule 13. Notice of appeal provided for in rule 12

shall act as a stay upon the disposal of the Chinese

person whose case is thereby aifected until a final

decision is rendered by the Secretary of Commerce

and Labor; and within five days after the excluding

decision is rendered, unless further delay is required

to investigate and report upon new evidence, the

complete record of the case, together with such briefs

and affidavits and statements as are to be considered

in connection therewith, shall be forwarded to the

Secretary of Commerce and Labor by the officer in

charge at the port of arrival, accompanied by his

views thereon in writing. If, on appeal, evidence in

addition to that brought out at the hearings is sub-

mitted, it shall be made the subject of prompt inves-

tigation by the officer in charge and be accompanied

by his report.

United States of America,

State and Northern District of California,

City and County of San Francisco,—ss.

H. H. North, being first duly sworn, deposes and
says, that he is the respondent in the foregoing an-

swer and return. That he has read the same and
knows the contents thereof, and that the matters

therein set forth are true to the best of his knowledge,

information and belief.

H. H. NORTH.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day of

February, 1908.

[Seal] HARRY L. HORN,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 20, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States in and for

the Northern District of California.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas

Corpus.

Stipulation that the United States of America shall

be Deemed a Party; that Answer and Return of

H. H. North shall be Deemed Answer and Re-

turn of United States, etc.

It is hereby stipulated that the United States of

America may appear in, and shall be deemed a party

to, the above-entitled proceedings. That H. H. North,

the respondent in the above-entitled proceedings, is

an official of the United States, to wit, a Commission-

er of Immigration, as set forth in the answer and

return of the said H, H. North made and filed herein.

' -That the answer and return of said H. H. North

made and filed herein, shall be deemed the answer and

return of the said United States, and shall be taken

as setting forth the reasons why the United States
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claims to be entitled to have the said Wong See Ying

detained and held in custody.

Dated February, 18th, 1908.

JOHN CATLIN,

STIDGER & STIDGER,
Attys. for Petitioner.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb 20, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy Clerk.

No. 13,751.

In the District Court of the United States, in and for

the Northern District of California.

In the Matter of AVONG SEE YING on Habeas

Corpus.

Stipulation that Answer and Return of H. H. North

shall be Deemed Part of Answer and Return of

Pacific Mail S. S. Co., etc.

It is hereby stipulated that the answer and return

to the writ of habeas corpus issued herein, made and

filed by H. H. North, Commissioner of Immigration,

shall be taken and deemed to be a part of the answer

and return of the respondent, Pacific Mail Steamship

Company. And it is admitted that the Pacific Mail

Steamship Company detains and intends to detain

the petitioner Wong See Ying only for the pur-

pose of carrying out out the lawful orders of the im-

migration officials of the United States directing the

deportation of the said Wong See Ying, made in the

matter of the alleged hearing of the application of

the said Wong See Ying to land in the United States,
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which said alleged hearing is set out in the answer and

return of the said H. H. North.

Dated February, 18th, 1908.

JOHN C. CATLIN,
STIDGER & STIDGER,
Attorneys for Petitioner.

Attorney for Respondent H. H. North.

Attorney for the Pacific Mail Steamship ComiDany.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 20, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States in and for

the Northern District of California.

Hon. J. J. DE HAVEN, Judge.

No. 13,751.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING, for Writ of

Habeas Corpus.

Hearing.

Thursday, February 20th, 1908.

J. C. CATLIN, Esq., and O. P. STIDGER,
Esq., for Petitioner.

GEORGE CLARK, Esq., Asst. U. S. Attorney,

for the United States.

(This matter now came on for hearing before the

Court, and the following proceedings were had.)

(Mr. Catlin stated tlie case for the petitioner.)



28 Wong See Ying vs.

Testimony.

H. H. NORTH, called for the petitioner, sworn.

Mr. CATLIN.—Q. Mr. North, state your name

and your official position?

A. H. H. North ; United States Commissioner of

Immigration.

Q. Do you remember the case of an applicant for

admission to the United States named Wong See

Ying? A. Yes, sir, I recollect the case.

Q. Did you personally have anything to do with

that application ? A. I did.

Q. Did you hear the witnesses?

A. I did not.

Q. What was your connection with the case ?

A. Do you mean by that my personal connection ?

Q. Yes.

A. I reviewed the record in the case and entered

a denial, and subsequently forwarded the appeal to

the Department at Washington.

Q. You perused the record?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was made before Deputy Inspector Mont-

gomery ?

A. Made by Inspector Montgomery, yes. He is

not a deputy ; he is a Chinese Inspector.

Q. Mr. North, do you know the term used in the

Immigration Bureau **Raw native cases"?

A. I think I invented that term, yes.

Q. Will you state what a raw native case is ?

A. A raw native, according to the term that is used

in our service, applies to a Chinaman who arrives at

this port from China, and claims to have been here
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prior to the 1st of June, 1882, and to have returned to

China with his parents prior to that date. It is to

distinguish that class of cases from those cases which

have been visaed out of this port by officers of this

service, claiming the right to return as natives.

Q. Was the case of Wong See Ying what you call

a raw native case f

A. My recollection is that it was ; the record will

show.

Q. What is the custom of the Immigration Com-

missioner or Bureau in regard to the raw native cases,

allowing them to land or their refusal ?

A. I do not know there is any hard-and-fast inile.

Ever}^ case stands on its own merits. There have

been such cases landed, and many have been denied.

Q. Have any of those cases been landed in the

last year? A. Yes, sir.

Q. There have been some? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have there been over one or two landed in the

last year?

Mr. CLARK.—I submit that is irrelevant.

The COURT.—The objection is sustained.

Mr. CATLIN.—I will state that the purpose of

the question is, it is understood, or I so understand it,

that a raw native case will not be landed unless there

are a multitude of witnesses and some of them white

;

that a raw native will not be lauded on Chinese tes-

ti&ony alone. I believe the law does laot contemplate

such a thing.

The COURT.—The witness has stated there is no
hard-and-fast rule ; that each case depends on its own
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merits ; in some instances they have been landed, and

many refused. Introduce your evidence showing

what took place, and what did not take place.

Mr. CATLIN.— I except to the ruling.

Q. Do you remember, Mr. North, how many wit-

nesses were called in the Wong See Ying case ?

A. I can refresh my memory from the record.

Q. I have no objection to your doing that.

A. (After examination.) In addition to his ovm

testimony, there were three Chinese examined be-

fore the case was denied by me. The record does not

show there were any examined afterward.

Q. Can you remember for what particular rea-

son you disbelieved the testimony of those three wit-

nesses ?

A. I caimot remember it without reviewing the

case; no.

Q. Would you believe Chinese witnesses under

any circumstances? A. Certainly.

Q. Would you land a case where there was noth-

ing but Chinese witnesses ?

A. I have landed thousands of such.

Q. Within the last two years ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. These raw native cases *?

A. I could not say as to that.

Q. Have you got your summing up of this case

in your pocket?

A. No, sir, it is in this record.

Q. Win you refresh your memory from that?
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Mr. CLARK.—Look at pages 34 and 35 of the

record and your opinion will be found there.

A. My conclusions are found in the written re-

view by me on pages 34 and 35. As to just what led

to the conclusion, that I probably could hardly tell

without reading the entire record. I state
'

' The evi-

dence is wholly unconvincing, and that I am neither

arbitrary nor unfair in rejecting it entirely." The

record goes on to show that the applicant claims to

have departed with his mother in 1880, and that his

father or alleged father, a Chinese laborer, is re-

ported to have left this city for China, something

over a year prior to the date of the decision on No-

vember 27th last. The evidence on his behalf is

given by three Chinese persons. I suppose the rec-

ord speaks for itself as to what they testified to.

Without reading all the testimony again, I cannot

state at this time what it was.

Mr. CATLIN.—Q. Do you remember that the

testimony of the three witnesses for the applicant

was practically the same—that is, the testimony of

one not contradicting the other?

A. I do not remember that. I have looked over

so many other cases since then that it is impossible

to keep the facts fresh in my mind.

Q. Do you remember this, Mr. North: The ap-

plicant testified that his father was a maker of new

clothes on sewing-machines in "San Francisco, and

the witnesses in San Francisco testified that the

father of the boy was not a maker of new clothes
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but was a laundryman, who laundried new clotlies.

Do you remember that?

A. No, sir, I do not remember that.

Mr. CATLIN.—I wish to introduce in evidence

the whole of this record and have it marked Exhibit

The WITNESS.~If it is possible to put in a cer-

tified copy of that, I should like to have it done. I

was directed by the Department at Washington to

return that. It is part of the records at Washing-

ton.

Mr. CLARK.—We will have a copy made.

Mr. CATLIN.—I will make no point on that.

The COURT.—This particular paper they do not

want to leave on the files of the Court as it must be

returned to Washington.

Mr. CATLIN.—It is satisfactory to me in any way
it is given to your Honor. I do not care whether it

is this or a copy.

Mr. CLARK.—Do you intend to have a copy of

that made to put in evidence ? If j^ou desire to have

a copy made and put it in we have no objection.

Mr. CATLIN.—I do desire to have a copy made.

The COURT.—A certified copy of the record.

Mr. CATLIN.—Yes.
Q. Mr. North, I am going to read from a letter

from you, dated November 27th, 1907, ''Office of the

Commissioner, San Fi'ancisco, California. Cloiiiese

Icspector in Charge.

"As to this case, the applicant is what we call a

' raw native, ' that is, he claims to be 28 years of age

;
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to have been born in the notorious Spanish Build-

ing, this city, in 1879, and at the age of one year,

or in 1880, to have departed for China with his

mother, where he has since resided. This departure

of course, is before the beginning of our records.

He picks out for a father a Chinese laborer who left

this port for home about a year since; he offers in

his own behalf the testimony of 3 Chinese witnesses.

It is of the ordinary character in applications of

this sort. By going over our files, hundreds, and

probably even thousands of records may be found

wherein the testimony would not vary in any ma-

terial particular, and thousands of like raw natives

have claimed the Spanish Building as a birthplace."

Do you remember that ? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. CATLIN.—That portion of the record, if your

Honor please, containing the testimony of the three

witnesses before the Bureau, is mainly what I want

to put in evidence before the Court. I do not see

any reason or purpose in putting all this record in

evidence. I want the testimony of those three wit-

nesses put in evidence so that your Honor may see

it, and may see that that testimony does not justify

any such finding by the Commissioner, or any other

finding than that it was true and uncontradicted,

absolutely, and it is disbelieved, by the language of

the Commissioner simply because the man was a raw

native.

The COURT.—Let me understand. You offer in

evidence the testimony taken before the Conmiis-

sioner here.
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Mr. CATLIN.—The testimony taken before the

Commissioner here.

The COURT.—The testimony of those three wit-

nesses.

Mr. CATLIN.—Yes.
The COURT.—And liis judgment upon that.

Mr. CATLIN.—That is all I desire.

The COURT.—The only question is, who shall

make the copy of the paper. You can read it into

the record right here.

Mr. CATLIN.—I will make it.

Mr. CLARK.—That is agreeable, but I suggest

that instead of olfering the testimony of the wit-

nesses, you offer all the testimon^y taken—the testi-

mony of the applicant.

Mr. CATLIN.—Very well.

The COURT.—I want to know something about

this record, when it is to be made up.

Mr. CATLIN.—We will make it up at once.

The COURT.—Read the whole thing and let the

Reporter take it down.

Mr. CATLIN.—It is rather long.

The COURT.—But it has to be returned to Wash-

ington. If your client was able to pay for a certi-

fied copy, I would require him to make it. I pre-

sume he is not able to do that.

Mr. CATLIN.—We will consent that Mr. Bennett

cop.y all this testimony into the record hei*e.

The COURT.—Then it will be considered as in

no"w.
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(The testimony referred to will be found in this

record at page 24 to 35 ; 37 to 44 ; and 49 to 53.)

Mr. CATLIN.—Q. Mr. North, the absolute right

of entry or denial, the granting the application, is

in your hands, other than the appeal that afterwards

could be taken from your judgment. I wish to ask

you, after having read that language from your com-

munication, if you gave the testimony of Chinese

witnesses in a raw native case—I am speaking of no

other cases but in a raw native case—if you gave

the testimony of the Chinese witnesses fair and sound

consideration ?

A. Are you speaking of that case, or generally?

Q. I am speaking of generally, and this case in

particular.

The COURT.—Q. As to this case, that is what

you are to answer. A. I certainly did.

Mr. CATLIN.—I think that your Honor in ex-

amining this testimony will see that that discrep-

ancy that I spoke of a moment ago is the only con-

tradiction.

The COURT.—Very well. Are you through with

the witness'?

Mr. CATLIN.—Yes.

Cross-examination.

Mr. CLARK.—Q. The testimony in the case was

taken before Mr. Montgomery, the inspector, and re-

duced to writing? A. That is correct.

Q. By the official stenographer of your office ?

A. By an official stenographer.
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Q. And then reviewed by you?

A. And then reviewed by me.

Q. That is the usual proceeding in the office?

A. That is the usual proceeding.

Q. You have spoken of something in the record.

After the review you arrived at the opinion referred

to in this case case, which has been mentioned by

Mr. Catlin, on pages 34 and 35? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. CLARK.—We desire to have the opinion of

Mr. North on pages 34 and 35 go into the record.

(The opinion of Mr. North, referred to, will be

found in this record at page 60.)

Q. Did you read all the evidence, Mr. North?

A. I undoubtedly did. That is niy custom, and

I undoubtedly did it in that case.

Q. You also had before you, at that time, the

recommendation of the inspector who had particu-

lar charge of the case, that is, Mr. Montgomery?

A. That is correct.

Q. And you reviewed that also?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. CLARK.—We desire that that go in in con-

nection with Mr. North's opinion.. It is incorpor-

ated in the record and is the report of the inspector,

made to Mr. North.

(The recommendation of the inspector will be

found at pages 45 to 48; 54 to 59.)

The WITNESS.—Also the recommendation of the

inspector in charge.

Mr. CLARK.—Q. After you arrived at the opin-

ion mentioned on pages 34 and 35 of the record, was
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any notice of the result of that opinion j]jiven to the

applicant or to his attorney?

A. Given to the applicant and probably his at-

torney.

Q. Who was his attorney ? A. Mr. Stidger.

Q. The gentleman sitting here?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That notice was given by you, the giving of

the same being required under your rules and regu-

lations ?

A. Of the Department Rules and Regulations.

Q. After that notice was given, was there any

opportunity afforded for the applicant to put in fur-

ther proof prior to the time his papers were for-

warded to Washington?

A. Certainly. Any additional testimonj^ they de-

sire to produce, the witnesses would be examined and

the testimony incorporated in the record.

Q. Do you know if they availed themselves of that

opportunity ?

A. My recollection is that they offered no addi-

tional evidence.

Q. You subsequently forwarded your opinion and

the entire record to Washington?

A. Yes, sir, that is correct.

Q. To whom?

A. To the Commissioner General of Immigration.

Q. That contained all the evidence acted on by

you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And a complete record of the case ?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. What action did the Secretary of Commerce

and Labor take on the matter finally?

A. The Secretary dismissed the appeal and or-

dered the applicant deported to China.

Q. The dismissal of the appeal is simply a con-

firmation of the view that you took in the matter ?

A. A confirmation of my findings.

Q. A denial of the application?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the customary method in which your

action is affirmed by the Department at Washing-

ton? A. That is correct.

Q. You are holding the Chinese in this case for

deportation under your order, and the final order of

the Secretary of Commerce and Labor in this mat-

ter, and have turned him over to the steamship com-

pany for deportation? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You hold him under no other authority than

that, Mr. North? A. No other authority.

Redirect Examination.

Mr. CATLIN.—Q. The only circiunstances un-

der which you allow counsel to be present at all on

any of these hearings is under an amendatory nile

of the Department of Commerce and Labor that has

not been plead in this case?

A. Under a letter of instructions dated the 31st

of May last, which permits the presence of counsel

and interpreter.

Mr. CATLIN.—That rule is in our traverse, if

your Honor please. That rule allows counsel to be
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present at the examination of the witness but not of

the applicant. It does not allow him to open his

mouth. He can simply be present and see what goes

on.

The COURT.—Call your next witness.

Mr. CATLIN.—I have four or five Chinese wit-

nesses, three of whom were witnesses before the Bu-

reau, and one or two who were not present before

the Bureau, by whom I would like to prove that

Wong See Ying is a citizen of the United States.

The COURT.—I will hear that proof after it has

been determined whether he had a fair trial.

Mr. CATLIN.—In the opinion of the Supreme

Court of the United States, handed down in the Chin

Yow case, it was held, as I read the case, that when

a citizen, or one who desires to prove his citizenship

of the United States, appears in a United States

Court, that the fiat of the Commissioner must neces-

sarily fall. From the reasoning in that case, I un-

derstand that if I bring witnesses before a United

States Court to prove that citizenship in a hearing

of this kind, I should be given a right to do it. I

desire to offer five witnesses and will take the ruling

of the Court on it so that I can except. I will call

their names : Wong Hing Ping ; Wong Woo ; Wong
Sai Fung; three merchants; Wong Bew, another

merchant ; Wong Ock ; Wong Sun Jack, a merchant

of Yreka, and superintendent of a mine, and Wong

Jack, a laborer in Oakland. I desire to offer those

witnesses to prove that the applicant in this case is

a citizen of the United States.
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Mr. CLARK.—To which offer we object as incom-

j)etent, irrelevant and immaterial. The sole issue

before the Court is whether the applicant in this case

had a fair hearing. That is the ground set forth in

the petition.

Mr. CATLIN.—A fair hearing in good faith.

The COURT.—I think the Court must first deter-

mine whether or not this petitioner has had his hear-

ing such as the law contemplates before the Com-

missioner of Immigration. If he has had such a

hearing, as a matter of course, this Court cannot go

any further.

Mr. CLARK.—That is the express effect of the

ruling referred to by counsel.

The COURT.—For the present, until we dispose

of that branch of the case, I will not hear this testi-

mony that you offer. That may be competent here-

after, if the Court determines that the petitioner has

not had a fair hearing.

Mr. CATLIN.—Then I will except. I want to

make that offer of the five witnesses, so that I can

have the exception in the record in due form.

The COURT.—I simply decline to hear the testi-

mony at present. If I reach the conclusion that the

petitioner has not had the hearing before the Com-

missioner that the law contemplates, then, of course,

that testimon}^ will be relevant and proper.

Mr. CATLIN.—May I file with the Court in the

next two days a memorandum of authorities as to
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whether he had a fair hearing or not, as is contem-

plated by the law ?

The COURT.—If you are not prepared to argue

your case now, I have no objection.

Mr. CATLIN.—I understood that your Honor was

going to determine this point first.

The COURT.—That is the very point I shall de-

termine first. I might sit here for three weeks ex-

amining witnesses as to the citizenship of this peti-

tioner, and after I got through with it determine it

was not relevant ; that the petitioner had a fair hear-

ing before the petitioner. Is that all the testimony

you have now %

Mr. CATLIN.—That is all the testimony I offer

now.

The COURT.—What is the testimony on the other

side.

Mr. CLARK.—I will call Mr. Montgomery.

P. F. MONTGOMERY, called for the United

States, sworn.

Mr. CLARK.—Q. What was your official posi-

tion in the year 1907?

A. United States Chinese Inspector and Acting

Immigration Inspector.

Q. At the port and harbor of San Francisco ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Under what official —Mr. North, Commis-

sioner of Immigration? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Do .you remember a certain time of the arrival

of a Chinese applicant in this port called Wong See

Ying? A. Yes, sir.

Q. He was a Chinese person, was he?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did you first encounter or have any

dealing with the Chinese with reference to his right

to land in the United States ?

A. According to regular custom, aboard of the

ship—the ship that he came in on.

Q. At that time, what did 3^ou do ?

A. I took a preliminary statement from him.

Q. Prom the Chinese ?

A. Prom him directly through an interpreter.

Q. You had an official interpreter there?

A. Yes, sir; we always do.

Q. What occurred at that time was subsequently

transcribed by the official interpreter?

A. Stenographer.

Q. And has already been introduced in evidence.

It is part of the evidence at page 5 of the record ?

x\. Yes, sir.

Q. The object and purpose of that was what, that

inquiry that you made of the Chinese at the time ?

A. Ascertaining who his attorne.y was, and ascer-

taining who his witnesses were, for the purpose of

having them heard.

Q. With reference to his right to land in the

United States?
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A. With reference to his right to land in the

United States.

Q. Where did you make this inquiry—aboard of

the vessel?

A. Aboard of the vessel as soon as it got in.

Q. OnOctober 16th, 1907?

A. Whatever date is on that paper.

Q. The date is shown on the transcript of the tes-

timony?

A. It is always shown.

Q. Thereafter was a hearing had for the purpose

of determining whether the Chinese had a right to

enter the United States ?

A. That Chinaman, yes.

Q. Where was that hearing had ?

A. In our office, room 78 U. S. Appraisers' Build-

ing.

Q. Do you know whether the witnesses which

were there examined were the witnesses mentioned

by the Chinese applicant?

A. To the best of my recollection, they were.

Q. That is your usual custom ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not depart from it in any respect at

this thne ? A. No, sir.

Q. Were the witnesses sworn at that hearing?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The applicant sworn? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You propounded the questions through an

official interpreter? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And had an official stenographer there ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The testimony was subsequently transcribed?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And is the testimony mentioned in this rec-

ord? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You yourself then rendered an opinion after

an examination of these 'witness to Mr. North, did

you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the opinion which is set out in this rec-

ord to which reference has already been made?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you at that time examine all the witnesses

that were offered by this applicant? Did you deny

him any right to produce witnesses at the time ?

A. No, sir.

Q. You examined all the witnesses who were of-

fered and the applicant himself ? A.I did.

Q. I will ask you whether you reviewed all the

testimony offered on behalf of the applicant before

you made your recommendation to the Commis-

sioner of Immigration in this case.

A. I did ; that was necessary.

Q. That is the duty imposed upon you ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In conducting the hearings ?

A. My report would not be an intelligent report

if it did not.

Q. That hearing was conducted under the direc-

tion of Mr. North, as Commissioner of Immigration

at the port and harbor of San Francisco ?
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A. It was. An official examination.

Q. Who was present ?

A. The examining inspector ; the official crew, the

official stenographer and interpreter; three Govern-

ment officers. The Chinese witness was present, and

in that case there were no other parties present.

Cross-examination.

Mr. CATLIN.—Q. Was the applicant present at

the time of the examination of his witnesses %

A. No, sir.

Q. Were the witnesses present at the time of the

examination of the applicant ? A. No, sir.

Q. Was the applicant notified that he had a right

to be present at the time of the examination of his

witnesses'? A. To my knowledge, no.

Q. He was not?

A. To the best of my knowledge and belief.

Q. Were the witnesses notified that they had a

right to be present at the examination of the appli-

cant ? A. They were not.

Redirect Examination.

Mr. CLARK.—Q. Do you know whether the ap-

plicant had appeared through an attorney prior to

the time of the hearing ? Take a look at this record.

You prepared it yourself.

Mr. CATLIN.—We will admit that the applicant

had an attorney.

Mr. CLARK.—Q. Had he appeared by an attor-

ney before you prior to the time of this hearing?

A. Oa page 2 of the record is our regular form,
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which is filled out by an attorney, which is called an

appearance notice. We accepted that as the official

appearance of the attorney on behalf of the applicant

in this case. It is a matter of record that it was ac-

cepted by me as the official appearance of Mr. O. P.

Stidger.

Q. And signed?

A. Signed by Mr. Stidger in his writing, which

I recognize.

Q. Do you know whether Mr. Stidger knew of

the fact that the hearing was to proceed in this mat-

ter?

Mr. CxiTLIN.—I object to that question.

The COUET.—I overrule the objection.

Mr. CLAEK.—Q. Do you know whether Mr.

Stidger knew of the fact that the hearing was to pro-

ceed in this matter, the hearing with reference to the

right of the Chinese to land in the United States ?

A. I do not see that there can be any question as

to that.

Q. What is the practice in regard to the appear-

ance of the attorney, and what notice is given him

with reference to the hearing, after he appears ?

A. The applicant arrives, and he evidently noti-

fies the attorney himself through some of his friends,

because the attorney api^ears on the scene as soon as

he arrives. He is notified officially of the arrival

through the bookkeeper. He takes the recoM from

our book and the nmnber, and he fills out this notice

for the purpose of handling his end of the case.
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Q. Do you know whether Mr. Stidger in this case

offered to produce any witnesses on behalf of the

Chinese other than those that you saw, and the evi-

dence that you took ? A. No, sir.

The COURT.—Q. Let me understand. Immedi-

ately after the appearance of the attorney in the case

you proceeded, without giving him any notice what-

ever, to try the case? A. Oh, no.

Q. Do you know whether this attorney here who

appeared for the petitioner was present at the exam-

ination, or whether he knew anything about it?

A. I do know in this case that he did know about

the appearance, and knew who the witnesses were

going to be, and arranged wtih me who those people

were, and the day they were going to be there, which

is the method in all of the cases I have handled since

I have been in this port, 13 years. It is generally

necessary to confer mth the attorney.

Q. Then he had notice of the hearing?

A. He had.

Q. That point is covered in wiiting in this case.

Mr. CLARK.—Q. Let me ask you a question:

The Department itself attends to the subpoenaing of

the witnesses who are named on behalf of the appli-

cant—the calling of the witnesses ?

A. The examining inspector fills out a blank form

of subpoena from information given him by the ap-

plicant direct. The name is given, and it is our cus-

tom to have the applicant write the name of his

father or mothex*—whichever it is—in Chinese itself.
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the Cliinese characters for one word varying, so that

it puts the exact name on the subpoena so that that

party will appear.

Q. Do you have those served by a Chinese inter-

preter 1

A. Those are served by a Chinese interpreter, a

Chinaman himself familiar with the Chinese people,

who explains to them in the.ir own language.

Q. That was done in this case ?

A. Yes, sir; the subpoena should be a matter of

record.

Mr. CATLIN.—I am willing to admit that those

subpoenas were regularly issued, and that an attor-

ney appeared as far as he could appear under the

supplemental rule of May 31st, 1907, and that he had

a right to be present at the examination of the wit-

nesses.

The WITNESS.—Your Honor asked me whether

the attorney was notified. On page 18 of the record

is the memorandum of the attorney in the case, which

reads ''In Re 192 Manchuria, a native. In answer

to your request to furnish the witnesses who signed

the affidavits in said cause, April 19th, 1907, as the

witnesses who signed the affidavits dated October

23d, 1907, have appeared and testified. Upon inves-

tigation, I find that the witnesses who signed the affi-

davits of April, 1907, are the same persons who

signed the affidavit of October 23d, 1907; in one in-

stance the witness gives another name under which

be is kuowii." There was some question as to
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whether it was the same witness who had appeared

;

that covers that point.

The COURT.—Q. Who signed that?

A. Mr. O. P. Stidger, the attorne,y of record in

the case.

H. H. NORTPI, recalled for the United States.

Mr. CLAR-K.—Q. Some mention was made of a

rule that prevailed at the time of this hearing with

reference to the right of an attorney to appear at the

time of the examination on behalf of the ax^plicant.

What was that regulation %

A. You have, I think, there a copy of the letter.

It is a letter addressed to me.

Q. 1 guess it is in that record.

A. It is a letter addressed to me by the Secretary

of the Department of Commerce and Labor, under

date, I think, of May 31st, last, which accorded the

applicant the right of being represented at the hear-

ing of all witnesses, and the applicant himself, ac-

cording to my rule as well ; by counsel and by inter-

preter ; not, however, to take part in the examination

of the witnesses, but for the purpose of seeing that a

due and proper hearing was accorded to the appli-

cant and his witnesses.

Q. This is a copy of that particular regulation,

Mr. North, which was in vogue in your particular

department at that time (handing) ?

A. Yes, sir, it is a department letter. This is a

carbon copy. The numbers are indistinct, I think

15053-2-0 of May 31st, 1907,' addressed to Ooiiitnis-
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sioner of Immigration, San Francisco, California,

signed F. P. Sargent, Commisioner General, ap-

proved Lawrence O. Murray, Assistant Secretary, he

being the Assistant Secretary of the Department of

Commerce and Labor.

Mr. CLAEK.—Mr. North is willing to have a com-

plete copy of the record made in the case, if your

Honor please. The record explains a great many
of the circumstances, and we desire to offer the entire

record, the original of which Mr. North has.

Mr. CATLIN.—We have no objection to that.

Mr. CLARK.—We ask that it be marked "Re-
spondent's Exhibit 1." (The record will be found

from page 24 to 64, inclusive.)

Cross-examination.

Mr. CATLIN.—Q. When an attorney appears

before the Immigration Commissioner, you adhere

to the ruling laid down in the letter of the 31st of

May, 1907?

A. If he appears and makes a request, by the

terms of that letter, I am governed by my construc-

tion of that letter.

Q. This is a strict rule, you understand. You
keep the rule strictly. You do not allow an attoniey

any privileges that that rule does not allow?

A. I endeavor to keep attorneys within the vari-

ous rules and regulations prescribed by the depart-

ment, that being undoubtedlj^ intended as a modifica-

tion of the last pi*inted rules.
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Q. Au attorney is not allowed to object to a ques-

tion ?

A. That letter speaks for itself, according to my
recollection of the letter and interpretation of it.

The intention of the letter is to assure the applicant

and his witnesses of a fair hearing, of a fair interpre-

tation; to assure them that no evidence which they

wish to offer will be suppressed in any way, or modi-

fied or changed by the interpreter.

Q. I have read the rule and I know what it re-

quires. I say under this rule or under jowv custom

and procedure, the rule of your court there is that an

attorney cannot even speak in that examination in

relation to the matter before 3'ou at the time ?

A. The attorne}' cannot ask the question, if that

is what you mean. He cannot seek to draw out from

the witnesses any evidence. He has a right to object

that evidence is being suppressed, or that the exam-

ination is not being properly conducted. There

would be no other purpose for it.

Q. Is it not the purpose of this rule that an at-

torney can go before the Immigration Commissioner

mth an interpreter only for the purpose of seeing

that the questions and answers are correctly inter-

preted from Chinese into English, and English into

Chinese, and for no other purpose ?

A. No, sir, I do not so consider it.

The COURT.—I suppose the rule speaks for it-

self.
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Mr. CATLIN.—I have read the rule a great many

times, and I cannot determine Avhat the attorney

would be allowed under it.

The COURT.—I have no doubt he would be al-

lowed to suggest the bringing in of other witnesses,

but not to take part; not to interfere with or object

to questions, or insist that other questions be asked.

That is the purpose of it. He is to see that the wit-

nesses are fully examined. If the.y are not, I have

not any doubt but what he would have the right to

request the Inspector to proceed further, and if he

did not, he could take his objection to it and make it

a part of the record.

Mr. CATLIN.—I do not think Mr. North will an-

swer in that wa}^

Mr. CLARK.—He has already answered.

The COURT.—I have never read it, but I assume

that that is it.

Mr. CATLIN.—I do not think Mr. North will con-

finn your Honor's idea.

The COURT.—One purpose, I suppose, is to con-

fine the evidence to what the witnesses testif.y to with-

out any suggestions from the attorney.

Mr. CATLIN.—Q. Can an attorney make a sug-

gestion to you as to what questions you shall ask ?

A. Certainly. I have always encouraged attor-

neys coming to me, or going to Mr. Mehan, the Chi-

nese Inspector in Charge, as to any suggestions they

have got to offer in regard to the case.

Mr. CLARK.—That is all.

Testimony closed.
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Record of Chinese Bureau.

Affidavit of Wong Hong and Wong Woo.

Photograph of Wong See Ying.

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco, Cal.—ss.

The undersigned, being sworn, say each for him-

self, and not one for the other, that his name and ad-

dress is as undersigned, and he identifies the photo-

graph attached hereunto as a true likeness of Wong
See Ying, a native-born citizen of the United States,

he having been born in the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California, twenty-eight (28)

years ago, at a building situate on the corner of Com-

mercial and Dupont Streets, San Francisco, Cal.

That the said Wong See Ying departed for China

about 1880 Avith his mother, where he has since con-

tinued to reside. That the father of said ai^plicant

departed for China about one year ago. That jowr

affiant has visited the said native in China and iden-

tifies him as stated aforesaid.

That your affiant causes this affidavit to be pre-

pared in order to facilitate the identification, travels

and return to the United States of the said Wong

See Ying.

Name, ' Address.

Wong Hong 1588 Geary St.

Wong Woo do
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Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 19th day

of April, 1907.

[Seal] CHARLES D. O'CONNOR,
Notary Public.

Letter Dated October 15, 1907, from 0. P. Stidger to

Charles Mehan.

San Francisco, Cal., Oct. 15, 1907.

Mr. Charles Mehan, Inspector in Change, Chinese

Division, Immigration Service, San Francisco,

Cal.

Sir : I have been employed to represent Wong See

Ying, No. 192 ex S. S. 190 , who has ap-

plied for admission at this port as a .

Respectfully,

O. P. STIDGER,
Attorney for Applicant.

Address.

Phone.

Testimony on Board S. S. Manchuria, Dated October

16, 1907.

On Board S. S. "Manchuria,"

San Francisco, Cal., Oct. 16, 1907.

#192—WONG SEE YING.
Class: Native.

Inspector: P. F. MONTGOMERY.
Interpreter: CHIN JACK.

Ex. S. S. "Manchuria," Oct. 12-07.

Stenographer: H. W. C.

Q. What is your name?

A. Wong See Ying.
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Q. Who is your attorney, representative or go-

between in this case?

A. My cousin, Wong Ping, of Foo Fung, 742

Washington Street, San Francisco, has charge of

my case.

Q. Give me the name and address of any wit-

nesses you may have.

A, Wong Hong and Wong Woo—both at 1588

Geary Street, San Francisco.

Sworn.

(Signed by applicant in Chinese.)

(Signed) CHIN JACK, Int.

(Signed) P. F. MONTGOMERY, Inspr.

10-19-07.

Testimony Before Inspector Montgomery, Dated

October 23, 1907.

Chinese Division, Immigration Service,

San Francisco, Oct. 23, 1907.

192_WONG SEE YING.

Class: Native.

Inspector: MONTGOMERY.
Interpreter: YONG KAY.
Steno: R. T. FERGUSON.
Ex. S. S. "Manchuria," Oct. 12.

Witness: WONG HONG PING, Sworn.

Q. What is your name and age?

A. Wong Hong Ping or Wong Yow Chune; 43.

Q. Where were you born'?
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A. Leung Dung village, Sun Ning district, China.

Q. When did you first come to the U. S.?

A. K. S. 3.

Q. What is your occupation *?

A. Merchant of Kwong Yick Wo Co., 1538 Geary

St., S. F.

(Recognizes photograph of applicant as that of

Wong See Ying.)

Q. Where was he born?

A. Corner Dupont and Commercial Sts., San

Francisco, in K. S. 5-5-15 (July 4, 1879).

Q. Where were you living when he was bom?

A. Battery St., San Francisco.

Q. Did you know the applicant's family and did

you visit them? '\

A. Yes; his father and I came to the United

States together the first time.

Q. Did 5^ou visit the applicant's parents at the

time the applicant was born?

A. Yes, I went to the family every evening.

Q. How old was the applicant at the time you

first saw him?

A. Three days. I saw him at his birth place in

his mother's arms.

Q. What was his father's name?

A. Wong Gen Sai or Wong Soon.

Q. What was his father's business here?

A. Working in a laundry for washing new

clothes, 600 block Battery St.

Q. How long did he work there?
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A. 4 or 5 years.

Q. Where is the father now? \

A. He went to China last year, 5th month on the

"Siberia" (June July, 1906). He was 61 years old

then.

Q. What was he doing at the time he went away ?

A. He did nothing after the fire.

Q. Was he sent back by the Chinese Government

as a refugee? A. He paid his own way.

Q. What did he do at the time of the fire?

A. I was in China. I don't know.

Q. What was the applicant's mother's name?

A. Chin Shee—bound feet—54 or 55 years old.

Q. Where is the mother?

A. She went to China K. S. 6-9 on the "Peking"

(Oct. Nov. 1880).

Q. Who went with her?

A. I was a boy 15 years old—I don't know.

Q. Did this woman have more than one child

born to her while she was in this country?

A. No.

Q. Did her husband go to China with her?

A. No.

Q. Did the applicant go to China with her?

A. Yes.

Q. You say the applicant and his mother de-

parted on this trip and the father did not go?

A. Yes.

Q. Has the a]3plicant ever returned to this coun-

try until this trip?
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A. No, this is Ms first trip.

Q. What has he been doing in China?

A. Going to school. After he quit school he went

to the Sing Chung market and worked in a grocery

store.

Q. Why is he coming to the U. S. at the age of

28 years if he is established in business in China ?

A. He wanted to come back because he was bom
here and wanted to go in business here.

(2—192, Wong See Ying. Nat. "Manchuria," Oct.

12-07. Wit. Wong Hong Ping.) •

Q. What is the exact relationship between your-

self and this applicant?

A, He is the son of my uncle—^my father's

brother.

Q. What is your father's name?

A. Wong Sai Hawk.

Q. Your father and the applicant's father are

brothers? A. Yes.

Q. What is your paternal grandfather's name?

A. Wong Han Git.

Q. Then Wong Han Git is the applicant's grand-

father? A. Yes, on his father's side.

Q. What is your paternal grandmother's name?

A. Hom Shee.

Q. What is your mother's name?

A. Pong Shee.

Q. Have you any brothers or sisters?

A. No. My parents died when I was young.

Q. Have you seen the api^licant in China?



The United States of America. 59

(Testimony of Wong Hong Ping.)

A. I saw liim K. S. 25 in Leung Dung village

and also in K. S. 32. He was living with Ms mother.

His father went home last year and they are there

now. I also live in that village.

Q. Do you recall the location of the applicant's

house? A. 5th alley, 2d house.

Q. How large is that village?

A. Over 50 houses.

Q. What is the nearest market?

A. Wah On, 2 li away.

Q. Are you registered? •

(Produces certificate #11311, Wong Pang, labor-

er, Brooklyn, N. Y., Apr. 16, 1894. Photo of wit-

ness.)

Q. Have you anything further to state?

A. No.

Q. Have you understood the interpreter?

A. Yes.

(Signed in Chinese.)

(Signed) P. F. MONTGOMERY.
YONO KAY.

10-24-07.

Chinese Division, Innnigration Service,

San Francisco, Oct. 23, 1907.

192_WONG SEE YING.

Class: Native.

Inspector: MONTGOMERY.
Interpreter: YONG KAY.

Steno.: R. T. FERGUSON.
Ex. S. S. "Manchuria," Oct. 12.
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Witness: WONG WOO, Sworn.

Q. What is your name?

A. Wong Woo or Wong Sai Kip.

Q. How old are you? A. 50.

Q. Where were you bom?

A. China, Wing Sing village, Sun Ning district.

Q. When did you first come to the U. S.?

A. T. G. 11.

Q. What is your occupation?

A. Doing nothing now. I live at Kwoon On Wah
Co., 369 8th St., Oakland. Before the fire I was a

member of Dung Chung Wing Co., 33 Waverly PI.

Q. Are you registered?

A. Yes, as a laborer.

Q. For whom have you come to testify?

A. Wong See Ying.

Q. When did you see him last?

A. I went to China K. S. 15-6 on the '

' China '

' and

returned K. S. 17-7 on the "Gaelic." I saw him

then in Leung Dung village. I took money home

from the father. I went again K. S. 25-10 on the

"Nippon Maru" and returned K. S. 27-5 on the

"China." /

Q. Would you recognize the applicant if you saw

him now? A. Yes.

Q. (Recognizes photo of applicant as Wong See

Ying.)

Q. Where was he born?

A. Corner Dupont and Commercial Sts., San

Francisco.

Q. When was he born? A. I don't know.
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Q. Where were you living at the time he was

bornf A. 835 Dupont St.

Q. Did you know applicant's family and did you

visit them at that time ?

A. I knew the father but I did not visit the

faanily.

Q. How old was the applicant the first time you

saw him?

A. At the time he started from here to go to

China I first saw him and he was one or two .years

old.

Q. You never saw him until he departed for

China at the age of one or two years % A. No.

Q. How did you happen to see him then'?

A. He was going down to the wharf with his

mother for a trip to China. I went down to see

them off.

Q. You went down to the steamer to see the ap-

plicant off? A. Yes.

Q. How^ long had you known his father prior to

this time? A. About two years.

Q. You had never seen the applicant before?

A. No.

Q. Are you any relation to the applicant?

A. No relation. I got acquainted with his father

because I was a merchant and he ran a laundry and

he came to iwj store for goods.

Q. Did you make a special trip down to the "dock

to see the applicant off? A. Yes.

Q. -Did the applicant have aay shaving feast held

in this city?
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A. I did not know anything about it. If I had

known of it I would have seen him then.

Q. Did you ever go down to the dock to see any

other people oif at this time'?

A. Yes; Wong Sai Gow, who is now in Hong-

kong.

Q. Is there anybody in the U. S. now whom you

went down to the dock to see go away ?

A. Yes; Wong Sai Fong, who is now in Kwoon
On Wah Co.

Q. When did you go down to the dock to see him

off? A. Last year, 10th month.

Q. Is it your custom to go down to the dock

whenever any of yoiiv friends leave this country for

China? A. Whenever I have tune I go.

(2—192, Wong See Ying. Nat. "Manchuria," Oct.

12-07. Wit. Wong Woo.)

Q. What is the applicant's mother's name'?

A. Chin Shee—bound feet. She is in China.

Q. When did she go?

A. K. S. 6-9 on the "Peking."

Q. Is this the time the applicant went with her?

A. Yes.

Q. Did this woman have any other children born

to her in this country besides this applicant?

A. No.

Q. What is the applicant's father's name?

A. Wong Gen Sai.

Q. Where is he now?

A. He went to China K. S. 32-5 on the "Siberia"

at the age of 60. <
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Q. What was lie doing at that time"?

A. He was doing nothing then. Before the fire

he was a laundryman in a laundry for washing new

clothes, 415 Commercial.

Q. Was this man always a laundryman in this

country? A. Yes; ever since I knew him.

Q. Did he have any brothers?

A. An older brother. I don't know his name.

Q. Do you know the man who just testified here?

A. Yes.

Q. Is he any relation to the applicant?

A. He is Wong Gen Sai's nephew.

Q. Have you anything further to state?

A. No.

Q. Have you understood the interpreter?

A. Yes.

(Signed in Chinese.)

(Signed) P. F. MONTGOMERY.
YONG KAY.

10-34-07.

Chinese Division, Immigration Service,

San Francisco, Cal., Oct. 24, '07.

192—WONG SEE YING.

Class: Native.

Inspector: MONTGOMERY.
Interpreter: CHIN JACK.
Steno.: R. T. FERGUSON.
Es. S. S. "Manchuria,^' Oct. 12.
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Witness: WONG SAI FONG, Sworn.

Q. What is your name?

A. Wong Sai Fong; age, 50.

Q. Where were you born?

A. Leung Dung village, Sun Ning district, China.

Q. When did you first come to the U. S.?

A. K. S. 4.

Q. What is j^our occupation?

A. Merchant of Kavoou On Wah Co., 369 8th St.,

Oakland.

Q. For whom have you (;ome to testify?

A. Wong See Ying.

Q. When was the last time 3'ou saw him?

A. K. S. 33—1st or 2d month, in China, Leung

Dung village, Sun Ning dist.

Q. Where was he born?

A. Corner Dupont and Commercial, third floor.

Q. How old is he now?

A. 29 Chinese, born K. S. 5-5.

(Identifies photograph of applicant.)

Q. Where were you living at the time of his

bii-th?

A. Quong Hong Foon, 835 Dupont St., San Fran-

cisco.

Q. Did you visit the applicant's family at all?

A. Yes.

Q. How old was the applicant when you first saw

him?

A. One or two mouths. I saw him in my store

in his father's arms.

Q. Did you ever see him in his own home ?
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(Testimony of Wong Sai Fong.)

A. Sometimes when I delivered goods at the

home.

Q. What was his father's name?

A. Wong Gen Sai or Wong Soon.

Q. What did the father do? I

A. Wah Sing laundry, 415 Conmiercial St., for

ironing new clothes.

Q. Where is he now?

A. He went to China K. S. 32-5 on the
'

' Siberia.
'

'

I went down to the mail dock to see him off.

Q. What is the applicant's mother's name?

A. Chin Shee—bound feet—over 50 years old.

Q. Where is the mother?

A. She went to China K. 6. I went to China K.

S. 6-7 and I met her in China about two months after.

Q. Did you ever hear what ship she went on?

A. No.

Q. Did this woman have more than one child

bom to her in the U. S. ?

A. No; the applicant is an only son.

Q. Did the applicant have a shaving feast in this

city?

A. Yes. I did not attend it, because I had no

time.

Q. How did you know there was a shaving feast

if you did not attend?

A. I was invited. It was held in the father's

room.

Q. When did the applicant go to China?
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(Testimoii}^ of Wong Sai Fong.)

A. I think KS. 6, witli Ms mother. I saw him in

China in the 10th month.

Q. Has the applicant ever returned to the U. S.?

A. Never until now.

Q. What has he been doing in China'?

A. He was employed in Guey Lung Co., Sin

Chung market place, Sun Ning district, Chinese

grocery.

Q. Is he married? A. No.

Q. Why did the applicant wait until he was 28

years old before coming to this country"?

A. His mother refused to let him come to this

country, and his father ordered him to come back.

Q. And they did not settle this family dispute as

to whether the applicant should return to the U. S.

until this year*? A. No.

Q. What is he coming to this country for?

A. To work.

Q. Are you any relation to the applicant?

A. Clansman only.

Q. How far is your home from the applicant's

house in China?

(2_Wong See Ying. Nat. "Manchuria." Oct.

12—07. Wit. Wong Sai Fong.)

A. Two or three blocks .

Q. Did you visit the applicant at his house?

A. Yes.

Q. A¥ho does he live with?

A. His father and mother.

Q. How many houses in your village?

A. Forty or fifty.
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(Testimony of Wong Sai Fong.)

Q. Has that village any subdivisions?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the name of your subdivision'?

A. Bot Gwar.

Q. How many houses in that?

A. A little over 20.

Q. What is the name of the applicant's sub-

division? A. Fung Yee.

Q. How many houses in that? A. 40 or 50.

Q. These two subdivisions together are known by

what name ? A. Leung Dung.

Q. How many houses in the two villagers to-

gether—yours and the applicant 's ?

A. Over 70.

Q. Did the applicant's father have any brothers?

A. One older brother; Wong Sai Hawk. He is

dead.

Q. Did Wong Sai Hawk have any children?

A. One boy, Wong Hong Ping. He is in San

Francisco.

Q. Where was he born? A. China.

Q. (What is his mother's name?

A. Tom Shee, to the best of my knowledge. I am
not sure.

Q. In what house and alley did the applicant live

in China? A. 2d house, 5th alley.

Q. What is the nearest market?

A. Wall On, 2 li away.

Q. Have you anything further to state?

A. No.
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Q. Have you understood the interpreter?

A. Yes.

(Signed in Chinese)

(Signed) P. F. MONTGOMERY.
CHIN JACK.

10—24—07

Memorandum for Mr. Mehan, Dated October 25,

1907, from P. F. Montgomery.

IMMIGRATION SERVICE.

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER.

San Francisco, CaL, Oct. 25, 1907.

MEMORANDUM FOR MR. MEHAN (Stidger &

Stidger, Attys.)

In re Wong See Ying, native, No. 192, ex. S/S

''Manchuria, Oct. 12, 1907, 1 have to state as follows:

In compliance with your instructions I have to

state that I cannot proceed further with the above

case until the photograph of witnesses Wong Hong
and Wong Si Fon are furnished this office.

Respectfully,

P. F. MONTGOMERY,
Chinese Inspector.

M/

Affidavit of Wong Hong and Wong Si Fon.

Photograph of Wong Hong Sing.

Attached Oct. 28/07.

P. F. Montgomery, Chinese Inspector.

State of California.

The undersigned, being sworn, say, each for him-

self, and not one for the other, that his name anu
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address is as undersigned ; that he identifies the pho-

tograpli attached hereunto as a true likeness of him-

self ; that he identifies the applicant, Wong See Ying,

an applicant, No. 192 S. S. ''Manchuria," as a na-

tive-born citizen of the United States, he having

been born in the City and County of San Francisco,

State of California, and having departed therefrom

many years ago; that your affiant has seen the said

native in China and identifies him as aforesaid.

Names

:

Address

:

Wong Hong 1538 Geary St., S. F.

Wong Si Fon 369 — 8th St., Oakland.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23 day of

October, 1907.

[Seal] CHARLES D. O'CONNOR,
Notary Public.

Affidavit of Wong Hong and Wong Si Fon.

Photograph of Wong Si Fon.

Attached Oct. 28/07.

P. F. Montgomery, Inspector.

State of California.

The undersigned, being sworn, say, each for him-

self, and not one for the other, that his name and ad-

dress is as undersigned ; that he identifies the photo-

graph attached hereunto as a true likeness of him-

self ; that he identifies the applicant, Wong See Ying,

an applicant No. 192 S. S. "Manchuria," as a native-

born citizen of the United States, he having been born

in the City and County of San Francisco, State of

California, and having departed therefrom many
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years ago ; that 3^our affiant has seen the said native

in China, and identifies him as aforesaid.

Names

:

Address

:

Wong Hong 1538 Geary St., S. F.

Wong Si Fon 369 — 8th St., Oakland.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23 day of

October, 1907.

[Seal] CHARLES D. O'CONNOR,
Notary Public.

Testimony Before Inspector Montgomery, Dated

November 12, 1907.

Chinese Division, Immigration Service,

San Francisco, November 12, 1907.

^193_WONG SEE YING.

Class : Native.

Inspector: P. F. MONTGOMERY.
Interpreter: YONG KAY.
Stenographer: ANNA OSSWALD.
Ex S. S. "Manchuria," Oct. 12, 1907.

APPLICANT.
Q. What is your name?

A. Wong See Ying.

Q. How old are you ? A. 28.

Q. When were you born? A. K. S. 5-5-15.

Q. Where ?

A. Spanish Building, San Francisco. My mother

didn't tell me the name of the street. She only said

near Commercial street.

Q. Don't you know the location of the place in

which you were born?
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(Testimony of Wong See Ying.)

A. My mother told me it was in the Spanish

Building.

Q. How long did you live at that number after

you were born %

A. Until I went to China when I was 2 years old.

Q. What is your father's name?

A. Wong Han Si.

Q. What other name did he have ?

A. Wong Soon is his birth name.

Q. What is his business in this country?

A. Tailor, making new clothes with the sewing-

machine,

Q. Where was the tailoring establishment locat-

ed? A. He didn't tell me.

Q. Where is your father now?

A. He went to China the 6th month of last year

(July or August, 1906).

Q. How old was your father when he went away ?

A. 61. He is 62 now.

Q. Where was he living at the time he went away ?

A. I don't know. My father didn't tell me.

Q. Do you know what boat he went on ?

A. I don't know; he didn't tell me.

Q. What was your mother's name ?

A. Chin Shee.

Q. What kind of feet did she have ?

A. Bound feet.

Q. How old is she now ? A. 55.

Q. Where is she ? A. In China.

Q. When did she go to China ?
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(Testimony of Wong See Ying.)

A. She went to Cliina with me when I was 2 years

old.

Q. What year, month and day was it?

A. K. S. 6-9-17, on the ''Peking" (October 20,

1880.)

Q. How do you know it was the "Peking"?

A. My mother told me.

Q. Do you have any brothers or sisters ?

A. No.

Q. What have you been doing in China ?

A. I was porter in the Guey Sin store at Sun

Chong Pow.

Q. Were you engaged up to the time you started

for this country?

A. Yes, I started soon after resigning from work.

Q. Are you married ? A. No.

("Manchuria," Oct. 12, 1907. Applicant.—2—)

Q. Why have you waited until you were 28 years

old to come back to the United States if you were

born in this coinitry ?

A. Several 3^ears ago I wrote to my father about

coming back to this country, and he told me not to

come so soon, and therefore I waited until this date.

Q. Why did he tell you not to come so soon ; what

reason did he assign ?

A. He didn't give any reason, though he stated

that there was no hurry about my coming.

Q. Can you write a letter? A. Yes.

Q. Did you write the letter to your father your-

self, asking if you could come to this country ?
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(Testimony of Wong See Ying.)

A. Yes, wrote it myself.

(Applicant is shown Chinese writing and read

same.)

Q. Is there anybody in this country at the pres-

ent time who knows that you were born here ?

A. I don't know. I remember that there is one

Wong Sai Fong by name, several years ago, when

he returned to China, and my father sent some money

by him to our family, but I don't know where he is

now.

Q. Do you remember testifying before me on the

steamer? A. I could not remember.

Q. Is that your signature'? (Showing signature

of applicant on statement made on October 16, 1907.)

A. Yes, that is my signature.

Q. You did testify before me on the steamer 1

A. I was afraid to lift up my head and look at

you, and if I did perhaps I could recognize you.

Q. Why were you afraid to lift your head up %

A. I was examined but a few words when I went

in and bowed my head, and I didn't lift my head.

Q. Why were you afraid?

A. I made a mistake by saying I was afraid.

Q. Then you were not afraid and nobody has

frightened you?

A. No, I was not afraid. I made a mistake.

Q. Do you remember me now?

A. Yes, I can recognize you now.

Q. I asked who your witnesses were, and you

gave me the names of three people. What were the

names of the three people?
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(Testimony of Wong See Ying.)

A. Wong Ping, Wong Hong, Wong Woo.

Q. Has Wong Sai Fong appeared at this office

and testified in this case? A. I don't know.

Q. How do you happen to mention Wong Sai

Fong now if you did not mention him on the steamer ?

A. Because I was not asked.

Q. Did you know about Wong Sai Fong at the

time I asked you ? A. Yes.

Q. You were asked (reading from original state-

ment of applicant October 16, on board "Manchu-

ria"), "Give me the name and address of any wit-

ness you may have," and you replied, "Wong Hong

and Wong Woo—^both 1588 Geary St., San Fran-

cisco." Do you know a Chinese person by the name

of Wong Hong Ping?

A. Yes, he is a clansman of mine.

Q. What is his exact relation to you ?

A. His father and my father are brothers.

Q. What is his father's name?

A. Wong Si Hawk.

Q. What is your paternal grandfather's name ?

A. Wong Han Git.

(192, "Manchuria," Oct. 12, 1907. Applicant—3—)

Q. What is your paternal grandmother's name?

A. Hom Shee.

Q. What is the name of Wong Hon Ping's moth-

er? A. Pong Shee.

Q. Has Wong Hong Ping got any brothers or

sisters ? A. No.

Q. Are his i^arents living?
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(Testimony of Wong See Ying.)

A. Thej^ died long ago. I have never seen them.

Q. Have you seen Wong Hong Ping in China ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where does he live ? A. In our village.

Q. What is the name of the village ?

A. Fung Yee village. The same village has sev-

eral names, new village Sin Tun and Sun Chuey vil-

lage.

Q. Are you positive now that that village has no

other name ? A. I am positive.

Q. Did you ever hear of the Leung Dung village ?

A. No.

Q. Never heard of that village ? A. No.

Q. How do you account for the fact that Wong
Hong Ping says you live in that village with your

mother ?

A. That is a general name of that place.

Q. Did you ever hear this name before ?

A. That name has always been known to me.

Q. Why didn't you give it, then, when I asked

you ? A.I did state it.

Q. Does that name refer to the particular village

in which you live or to the locality ?

A. The locality.

Q. How large is the village in which you live ?

A. 40 or 50 houses.

Q. What house and what alley do you live in ?

A. 5th alle.y, 2d house.

Q. Is there a market-place in that village?

A. Wah On Market 3 or 4 lis from there.
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(Testimony of Wong See Ying.)

Q. When was the last time you saw Wong Hong

Ping?

A. The first part of the 12th month, last year, in

our house.

Q. Did you see him before that?

A. Yes, at the time when he came home from

abroad. I could not remember when it was, it has

been so long.

Q. About when was it f

A. I didn 't keep his trip to China in my mind.

Q. Whose photograph is that?

A. Wong Hong Ping.

(Correctly identifies photograph.)

Q. Who is that? (Showing photograph of Wong
Sai Fong.) A. Wong Sai Fong.

Q. Have you ever seen Wong Woo ?

A. I saw him about K. S. 15 or 16.

Q. Where did you see him ?

A. In our house when he returned to China and

delivered some money to our family from my father.

Q. What village was that?

A. Fung Lee village. Wing Sing is Wong Woo's

village.

Q. Why are you coming to the United States

now?

A. Because my father came home to China last

year and he asked me to come.

(193 Manchuria, Oct. 12, 1907. Applicant.—3—)

Q. What are .you going to do ? What did he ask

vou to come for?
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(Testimony of Wong See Ying.)

A. Learning mercantile business.

Q. With whom?
A. I don't know yet until I land and see Hong

Ping about it.

Q. Does your father intend to return to the

United States ?

A. I don 't know about that. He is over 60 years

old now.

Sworn.

(Applicant signed in Chinese characters.)

(Signed) YONG KAY,
Interpreter.

(Signed) MONTGOMERY,
Inspector.

Transcribed November 12, 1907.

Report Dated November 13, 1907, from P. Frank

Montgomery, Chinese Inspector to Inspector

in Charge.

DEPARTMENT OP COMMERCE AND LABOR,
IMMIGRATION SERVICE.

Office of Chinese Inspector,

San Prancisco, Cal., November 13, 1907.

Inspector in Charge, Chinese Division, Immigration

Service, San Prancisco, California.

Sir: In re Wong See Ying, Native, 192, Ex-S.S.

''Manchuria," October 12, 1907, I have to report as

follows

:

The statement of the applicant and two Chinese

witnesses has been, taken. The testimony is briefly

as follows:
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Applicant states (pages 12, 13, 14 and 15 of the

record) that his name is Wong See Ying ; that he is

28 3^ears of age; that he was born K.S. 5-5-15 (July

4, 1879) in the Spanish Building; that he does not

know what street it is on : that he heard it was near

Commercial Street; that he went to China when he

was 2 j'-ears old; that his father's name is Wong
Han Si, alias Wong Soon; that his father was a

tailor "making new clothes on a sewing-machine";

that he does not know where the tailoring establish-

ment was located; that his father went to China in

July or August of last year at the age of 61; that

he does not know what boat he went on; that his

mother's name is Chin Shee ; that she has bound feet

;

that she is 55 years of age ; that his mother went to

China October 20, 1880, on the "Peking"; that he has

no brothers and sisters; that he has been working

in a store at Sung Chong Fow; that he is not mar-

ried; that he can assign no particular reason for

his not coming to this country until he was 28 years

old ; that he knows Wong Sai Fong, who saw him in

China; that Wong Ping, Wong Hong and Wong
Woo also know him; that Wong Hong Ping is a

clansman of his and that their fathers are brothers.

Note : The balance of statement is cross-examination

on the foregoing.

Witness Wong Hong Ping states that he is 43

years of age; a native of China; first came to the

United Slates in K.S.3; that he is a merchant, and

that he recognizes photograph of applicant; that he

knows that applicant was born in this country, be-

cause he visited applicant's family every evening:
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that he first saw the applicant when he was three days

old; that the applicant's father's name is Wong Gan

Si, alias Wong Soon; that said alleged father was

(192 Manchuria, Oct. 12, 1907—2—)

employed in a new clothing laundry in the 600 block

on Battery Street ; that he worked there four or five

years; that alleged father went to China last year

at the age of 61 in June or July on the "Siberia";

that applicant's mother's name is Chin Shee; that

she has bound feet ; that she is 54 years of age ; that

she went to China in K.S. 6-9 (October or November,

1880) on the "Peking"; that applicant had no broth-

ers and sisters born in this country; that applicant

went to China with his mother; that applicant went

to school in China and afterwards worked in a groc-

ery store; that he is applicant's cousin; that his

father and applicant's father are brothers; that he is

(witness) registered and produces certificate No.

11311.

Witness Wong Woo states that he is 50 years of

age ; a native of China ; first came to the United States

T. G. 11; that he has no emplo}Tnent at the present

time; that he has been a laborer; that he recognizes

the photograph of the applicant; that he last saw

the applicant in China in K. S. 27 ; that applicant was

born at the corner of Dupont and Commercial

Streets, San Francisco ; that he does not know when

applicant was born; that the applicant was 2 years

old when he first saw him, at which time he departed

for China with his mother; that witness went down

to the wharf to. see them o:ff ; that the applicant had

no brothers oj: sisters boru in this country; that ap-
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plicant 's mother was named Chin Shee ; that she had

bound feet ; that she went to China in K. S. 6—9 on

the '* Peking"; that applicant's father went to China

on the "Siberia" in the 5th month of last year; that

applicant's father had an older brother, and that this

older brother is the father of witness Wong Hong
Ping.

This is a "raw" native case. Applicant went to

China, according to his claim, at the age of two years

in 1880, and consequently know^s nothing about this

country. There are no records for the year 1880, as

will be seen by page 17 of the record. The departure

of the father (alleged) for China on the "Siberia"

in July of last jesn' is not verified by our records.

A similar name appears on the record, but in the

absence of any photograph of the party departing

or any means of identification of such person, it is

difficult, and in fact impossible, to give such evidence

any w^eight. The testimony contains several contra-

dictions, one of the principal of which is the refer-

ence to the occupation of the applicant's father in

this country. The father, according to the witnesses,

was employed

(192, "Manchuria," Oct. 12, 1907—3—)
as a laundryman in a new clothes laundry, and the ap-

plicant evidently got mixed up on his story for he

stated (see page 12 of the record) that he w^as a

tailor, making new^ clothes with a sewina-machine.

In view of the foregoing, and without going any

further into this case, I recommend that the appli-

cant be denied, on. the gTound that he has produced

no evidence except his oxvn statement that he was
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born in this country. As he is 28 j^ears of age and

was engaged at manual labor in his own country un-

til he decided to come here, this is an additional fact

in his disfavor.

Respectfully,

P. FRANK MONTGOMERY,
Chinese Inspector.

AMO.

Additional Statement of Wong Sai Fon.

Chinese Division, Immigration Servvice,

San Francisco, Nov. 15, 1907.

192—WONG SEE YING.

Class: Native.

Inspector: MONTGOMERY.
Interpreter: J. H. GUBBINS.
Steno.: R. T. FERGUSON.
Ex. S. S. "Manchuria, Oct. 12, 1907.

Additional Statement of WONG SAI FONG—
sworn.

Q. What is .your namef

A. Wong Sai Fong.

(Witness presents certificate of residence #90,939,

issued to Wong King; person other than laborer;

residence, 203 Ferguson alley, Los Angeles, Cal. ; oc-

cupation, grocer ; age, 37 ; issued Apr. 3, 1894, at Los

Angeles,' signed O. M. Welborn, per Cl,yde, First Dis-

trict, California. The photograph thereon is a like-

ness of the witness.)

Q. How many times have you been to China"?

A. Four times: first trip K. S. 6-8—1 don't re-

member the steamer—returning K. S. 7-3 on the
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"Peking," under the name Wong King; occupation

at that time, porter in the store of Quong Hong Fung

Co., 835 Dupont St., San Francisco.

Q. How old were you in K. S. 6?

A. I don't remember. I am 50 now.

Q. When was your second trip?

A. K. S. 15-10 on the "Arabic," returning K. S.

16-9 on either the "Gaelic" or the "Doric," under

the name Wong King, merchant of Doo Woon Lee

Co., Los Angeles, Ferguson alley. The numbers

have changed since. It was then known as "Nigger

Alley"—^the name has been changed; next trip: K.

S. 22-10—1 think on the "Doric"—returning K. S.

23-6 on the "Gaelic," under the name A¥ong King,

as a merchant of Yuen Wo Co., 203 Ferguson alley

;

next trip K. S. 32-10-6 on the "Korea," returning

K. S. 33-6 latter part of the month on the "Mongo-

lia," under the name Wong Sai Fong, merchant of

Kwoon On AVo Co., 369 8th St., Oakland.

(Signed in Chinese.)

(Signed) P. F. MONTGOMERY.
J. H. GUBBINS.

11-16-07.

Memorandum Relative to Wong Woo.

Chinese Division, Liimigration Service,

San Francisco, Nov. 15, 1907.

192—WONG SEE YING.
Class: Native.

Inspector: MONTGOMERY.
Steno. : R. T. FERGUSON.
Ei. S. S. "Manchuria," Oct 12, '07.
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Memorandum.

WONG WOO—Certificate of Residence.

This witness failed to appear, but sent to this office,

through the attorney in the case, his certificate of

residence

:

No. 38456, issued to Wong Woo ; laborer ; occupa-

tion, cook; residence, 203 Ferguson alle}^, Los An-

geles. Date of issue. Mar. 1, 1894, at Los Angeles.

Signed, O. M. Wellborn, joer N. M. Quirolo, first dis-

trict of California. Photograph thereon is a like-

ness of the person who testified at this office Oct. 23,

under the name of Wong Woo.

(Signed) P. F. MONTGOMERY.
11-16-07.

Additional Statement of Wong Hong Ping.

Chinese Division, Innnigration Service,

San Francisco, Nov. 15, 1907.

192—WONG SEE YING.
Class: Native.

Inspector: MONTGOMERY.
Inteii3reter: J. H. GUBBINS.
Steno.: R. T. FERGUSON.
Ex. S. S. ''Manchuria," Oct. 12, 1907.

Additional Statement of WONG HONG PING—
sworn.

Q. What is your name'?

A. Wong Hong Ping,

•Q. Have you certificate of registration*?

A. Yes.

(Produces certificate No. 11311, issued to Wong
Pang; laborer; residence, 211 S. 5tli St., Brooklyn,
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(Testimony of Wong Hong Ping.)

N. Y.; occupation, launclryman; date of issue, Apr.

16, 1894, at Brooklyn, N. Y. Signed, Ernst Nathan,

first district of New York. The photograph thereon

is a likeness of the witness.)

Q. How many times have you been to China?

A. Two times; first trip K. S. 30-7 on an ''Em-

press" steamer from Vancouver, via Eichford, Vt.

Q. What was your occupation at that time'?

A. Laundrjouan, in Boston.

Q. When did you return ?

A. K. S. 31-5 or 6 month via Vancouver on an

"Empress" steamer, under the name Wong Ping.

Q. Where did you enter the U. S.?

A. Richford.

Q. Did you not state to me October 23, that you

saw the applicant in China in K. S. 25?

A. No.

Q. When did you go to China the next time?

A. K. S. 32-2-27 on the "Korea," returning K. S.

33-1-24 on the "Mongolia" as a laborer of Boston,

under the name Wong Ping.

(Changes.) I wish to change m.y statement about

my first trip ; I went to China the first time K. S. 27-7

on an "Empress" steamer via Vancouver and re-

turned K. S. 26-6 on an "Empress" steamer via Van-

couver, the port of entr}^ into this country being Rich-

ford, under the name Wong Ping, laborer, of Boston.

I did not make any trip in K. S. 30. My first state-

ment is not right and I did not remember correctly.
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Q. Are you positive that these are the only trips

you have made to China—K. S. 25 and K. S. 32?

A. Yes.

(Signed in Chinese.)

(Signed) P. F. MONTGOMERY.
J. H. GUBBINS.

11-16-06.

Supplemental Report of P. Frank Montgomery,

Chinese Inspector, to Inspector in Charge,

Dated November 21, 1907.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND LABOR,
IMMIGRATION SERVICE.

Office of the Commissioner,

San Francisco, Cal., November 21, 1907.

Inspector in Charge, Chinese Division, San Fran-

cisco, Cal.

Sir: In re Wong See Ying, native, #192, ex. S. S.

"Manchuria," October 12, 1907, and supplemental

to my report of November 13, I have to state as fol-

lows :

This case was returned to me with verbal instruc-

tions to verify the trips of witnesses to China, which

bore on the case, to obtain the numbers of the cer-

tificates of residence and to obtain the photographs

of the several witnesses. With regard to the fore-

going I have to state: The first trip of the witness,

Wong King, alias Wong Sai Fon, cannot be veri-

fied because the records do not cover the date for

this trip, to wit, 1880-81 (see p. 25 of the record).

The second trip of witness, Wong King, is verified

by the records (p. 25 of the record). The third trip
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of witness, Wong King, is verified by the records

(see p. 26 of the record). The fourth trip of this

mtness was made under the name Wong Sai Fon,

and is verified by the records (see p. 26 of the rec-

ord). With regard to the trips of witness, Wong

Woo, the records verify his first trip and his second

trip (see p. 27 of the record). With regard to the

trips of the witness, Wong Hong Ping, the records

verify the second trip of this witness (see p. 27 and

28 of the record).

(2 Wong See Ying. 192 Nat. Nov. 21-07.)

The first trip of this witness was made from Van-

couver via Eichford, Vt., and cannot be verified by

the records at this office. This trip was made, ac-

cording to the witness, in August or September, 1899,

on an "Empress" steamer. The return from said

trip was made via Vancouver in June or July, 1900.

The certificate of residence of the several witnesses

in the case are referred to in detail on pages 19, 20

and 21 of the record, as I have examined same and

entered a transcript of the face of each in the record.

With regard to the photogra]3hs of the several wit-

nesses: The photograph of witness, Wong Sai Fon,

has been obtained and attached to the affidavit of

Wong Sai Fon on page 10 of the record. The pho-

tograph of witness, Wong Hong Ping, has been ob-

tained and attached to the affidavit of Wong Hong

Ping on page 11 of the record. A pencil memoran-

dum attached to page 1 of the record and marked '

' 1

A," shows that the attorne}^ in the case was requested

on the 15th instant to produce a photograph of wit-

ness, Wong Woo. This has not been done and I am
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turning in the case in compliance with my instruc-

tions with the memorandum referred to covering this

point.

Respectfully,

P. FRANK MONTGOMERY,
Chinese Inspector.

RTF.

Letter Dated November 26, 1907, from Charles

Mehan, Chinese Inspector in Charge, to Com-

missioner of Immigration.

DEPARTMENT OF CO^UVIERCE AND LABOR,
IMMIGRATION SERVICE.

Office of the Commissioner,

San Francisco, Cal., Nov. 26, 1907.

Coimiiissioner of Immigration, San Francisco, Cal.

Sir: Herewith I hand you with my recommenda-

tion of denial the record in the case of AVong See

Ying, an alleged native, No. 192 ex. S. S. "Man-
churia," October 12, 1907.

Respectfully,

CHARLES MEHAN,
Chinese Inspector in Charge.

J. E. G. ^
CT.

Enc.
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Supplemental Report of Chinese Inspector in

Charge, Dated November 26, 1907.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND LABOR,
IMMIGRATION SERVICE.

Office of the Commissioner,

San Francisco, CaL, November 26, 1907.

Inspector in Charge, Chinese Division, Immigration

Service, San Francisco, California.

Sir: In re Wong See Wing, Native, No. 192 ex.

S. S. ''Manchuria," October 12, 1907, and supple-

mental to my report of the 13th instant, I have to

state as follows:

I beg to acknowledge receipt of your verbal cor-

rection of my report of the 13th instant with regard

to my not having adverted to the testimony of but

two witnesses, whereas I should have stated the fact

in the case that three witnesses had been taken. The

witnesses to whom I referred were Wong Hong Ping

and Wong Woo. Their statements, together with

that of the applicant, were alluded to and briefed in

the usual form. I omitted, through a clerical error,

owing, no doubt, to the volume of work I was hand-

ling at the time, to refer to the testimony of witness,

Wong Sai Fong, who testified at this office on Octo-

ber the 24th, and whose testimony appears upon

pages 8 and 9 of the record. In ni}^ report of the

21st instant, however, I carefull}- went over the testi-

mony of this witness, as will be seen by a reference

to pages 29a and 29b, the particular point of this wit-

ness ' testimony being whether or not he had seen the



The United States of America. 89

applicant in China at certain times stated by him-

self.

(192. '^Manchuria," Oct. 12, 1907.)

2.

A brief resume of the testimony of Wong Sal Fong

is as follows:

Witness Wong Sai Fong states (pages 8 and 9 of

the record), that he is 50 years of age, a native of

China, and that he first came to the United States

in K. S. 4; that he is a merchant of Oakland at the

present time and that he appears to testify for the

applicant, Wong See Wing, whom he last saw in

China K. S. 33, 1st or 2d month (Febmary, March

of April, current year), and whose photograph he

identifies; that he knew the family of the applicant

and visited them; that he saw the applicant first at

the age of 1 or 2 months in his (witness') store in

applicant's father's arms; that he also saw him upon

the occasion of delivering goods at the home of ap-

plicant's father; that applicant's father was named
Wong Gen Sai alias Wong Soon; that applicant's

father was engaged at 415 Commercial Street as an

ironer of new clothes in the Wah Sing laundry, that

said alleged father went to China K. S. 32-5 on the

"Siberia" (June-July, 1906), and he knows this fact

for he went to the dock to see him depart; that ap-

plicant's alleged mother was known as Chin Shee;

that she was a bound-footed woman and is now over

50 years of age ; that she departed for China in K.

S. 6 (1880) ; that he saw her in China in the 10th

month of that year (November-December, 1880)

;

that the applicant was the only child born to this
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woman in this country; that he did not attend the

shaving feast of the applicant because he did not

have time to do so; that applicant was employed in

China in the firm of Guey Lung & Co., Sin Chung

market place, Sun Ning District; that applicant is

not married ; that applicant is 29 years of age accord-

ing to Chinese reckoning, having been born in the

e5th month of K. S. 5 (June-July, 1879) ; that appli-

cant was refused permission to come to this country

by his mother, but that his father overruled his

mother and insisted on his coming ; that applicant is

coming to this country for the purpose of securing

work; that he is a clansman and no nearer relation

to the applicant ; that he lives in the same village in

China as the applicant, or more particularly, in the

Bot Gwar subdivision of the Leung Dung Adllage,

Sun Mng District; that the applicant's father had

an older brother named Wong Sai Hawk, who is now

dead ; that said Wong Sai Hawk has one son named

Wong Hong Ping, who is at the present time in San

Francisco; that said Wong Hong Ping's mother's

name was Tom Shee to the best of witness' knowl-

edge
;
that the applicant lived in the 2d house in the

5th alley of the Leung Dung village in China; that

the market-place in this village is known as the Wag
On, which is 2 lis away.

Regretting that even the pressure of work should

have caused an oversight of this character, I here-
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with transmit the above, as it will, I believe, leave

the record complete.

Respectfully,

P. FRANK MONTGOMERY,
Chinese Inspector.

AMO.

Letter, Dated November 27, 1907, from H. H. North

to Chinese Inspector in Charge.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND LABOR,
IMMIGRATION SERVICE.

5265-C.

Office of the Coimiiissioner,

San Francisco, CaL, Nov. 27, 1907.

Chinese Inspector in Charge, San Francisco.

Sir: Herewith please find record in re Wong See

Ying, an alleged native, No. 192, ex. S. S. "Man-

churia,
'

' Oct. 12, 1907, bearing your recommendation

of denial of the 26th instant, on which date it w^as

necessary to send the record back in order that Insp.

Montgomery should properly be informed of his du-

ties, he having omitted entirely from his report the

testimony of one of the witnesses.

In his corrected report on pages 31 and 32 of the

record, he attempts to justify this carelessness on the

ground of pressure of ovenvork, etc. I wish you to

give him to understand that in doing his work he will

be required at all times to do it properly and that the

excuses he offers will not be accepted.

It is also noted that the case had to be sent back for

re-examination as he failed to inquire of two of the

witnesses the numbers of their certificates of resi-
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dence, which he had omitted to procure in the original

examination; this is also carelessness which will not

be excused in the future.

As to this case, the applicant is what we call a "raw

native," that is, he claims to be 28 years of age; to

have been born in the notorious Spanish Building,

this city, in 1879, and at the age of one year, or in

1880, to have departed for China with his mother,

where he has since resided. This departure, of

course, is before the beginning of our records. He
picks out for a father a Chinese laborer who left this

port for home about a 3^ear since ; he offers in his own

behalf the testimony of 3 Chinese witnesses. It is

of the ordinar,y character in applications of this sort.

By going over our files, hundreds, and probably even

thousands, of records may be found wherein the tes-

timony would not vary in any material particular,

and thousands of like raw natives have claimed the

Spanish Building as a birth place.

The evidence is wholly unconvincing, and I believe

that I am neither arbitrary nor unfair in rejecting it

entirely. Personally, I feel that the evidence does

not prove in any respect that this applicant was ever

here before, much less that he is a native.

Under the circumstances, there is nothing for me

to do but to order a denial of the application, which

is consequently hereby done. You will of course ac-

quaint him with his right to appeal, etc.

Respectfully,

H. H. NORTH,
Commissioner.

ML.
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Dismissal of Appeal of Wong See Ying, Before

Bureau of Immigration.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND LABOR,
BUREAU OF IMMIGRATION.

Washington, January ITtli, 1908.

#14,610/353-0.

Immigration Service, San Francisco, Cal.

Appeal Wong See Ying dismissed.

MURRAY.
Attest: (Signed) LAWRENCE O. MURRAY,

Assistant Secretary.

4 Inclosures #6157:

Affidavit Wong Hong and Wong Woo.

2 '' '' "and Wong Si Fon.

Picture Wong Woo.

Memorandum for Acting Secretary (Department of

Commerce and Labor) .

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND LABOR.
No. 14,610-C 1353. Dec. 28, 1907.

In re WONG SEE YING—Alleged Native.

Memo, for the Acting Secretary

:

It is claimed that the appellant was born in San

Francisco, K. S. 5-5 (July 4, 1879) ; was taken to

China by his mother K. S. 6-9, where he has since

residied ; and that his father remained here until last

year.

As records of departures were not kept in 1880, the

departure of mother and son cannot be verified or dis-
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proved. It is the practice in a great majority of

cases of this character to account for the mother in

this way. There is a record of the departure of a man
who is claimed as the father. It is the opinion of the

Bureau that this man has been selected for the occa-

sion, and that he is not the father of appellant, this

conclusion being reached after reading the testimony

of appellant. He states that his information about

his birth was given him by his mother, although his

father only returned to China a year ago and would

unquestionabl}^ be better qualified to tell him about

San Francisco. Furthermore, he knows absolutely

nothing about his father's life in this country except

that he was a "tailor, making new clothes w^ith the

sewing-machine," while the witnesses testify that he

was a laundryman in a new clothes laundry. It is

not reasonable to suppose that if the father had re-

turned to his home from a foreign country that he

would not have told his familj^ of his life.

The applicant is coming to his cousin who hails

from the same village in China from which he only

returned a few months ago. It is more than likely

that the case was concocted at that time. This wit-

ness, AVong Hong Ping, although only 13 years older

than apiDellant, clauns to have been living in San

Francisco for two years prior to the alleged birth ; to

have seen the baby when it was only 3 days old in its

mother's arms, etc. It is hardly probable that a boy

10 or 11 years old would have come to this country

without his family, and in support of this pre-

smnption the records of this office show that at the

time of registration this man swore that he first ar-
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rived in July, 1880, or only about three months prior

to the time it is claimed that appellant was taken to

China. As there was no reason at that time to mis-

state facts and his memory 13 years ago must have

been as reliable as to-day, the necessary conclusion

is that the man is falsely testifying.

The testimon}^ of the witness Wong Woo is about

on a par with that of the first witness. For instance,

he testifies that he knew the father but never visited

him and did not know the mother and never saw the

baby until they were on the way to the wharf, and not-

withstanding this he states that he went to the wha?f

to see them off. It is most unlikely that a merchant

would leave his store to go to see the wife and baby

of a laundryman who were strangers to him, off.

In the opinion of the Bureau this case is undoubt-

edly fraudulent, in view of which it is recommended

that the appeal be dismissed.

F. P. SARGENT,
Commissioner General.

Jan.l6. '08.

Del. d.

L. O. M.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 3, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, Northern,

District of California.

No. 13,751.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas

Corpus.
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Opinion of District Court.

DeHAVEN, District Judge.—I am not able to find

from the evidence that H. H. Noi-th, the Conmiission-

er of Immigration at the port of San Francisco, failed

to give to the said Wong See Ying when he applied

to be permitted to land at San Francisco, upon com-

ing into that port from the Empire of China, such a

hearing, as he was entitled to under the law, as de-

clared in U. S. vs. Ju Toy, 198, U. S. 253, and the

more recent case of Chin Yow vs. the United States

;

or that in denying the right of said Wong See Ying

to land at the port of San Francisco, said H. H. North

acted arbitraril}^ or unreasonably^

The only fact which has the tendency to sustain the

allegations of the petition upon this point is that the

Immigration Commissioner did not accept, as true,

the sworn statements of witnesses in behalf of Wong-

See Yin 's right to land. But under the ruling in the

case of Chin Yow vs. the United States above cited,

this is not sufficient upon which to base a finding that

the applicant was denied a fair hearing by the Com-

missioner of Immigration.

For these reasons, the writ will be discharged and

the said Wong See Ying remanded to the custody

whence he was taken.

So ordered.

[Endorsed] : Filed Febry. 28, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy Clerk.
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In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING, on Habeas

Corpus.

Petition on Appeal.

To the Honorable JOHN J. DeHAVEN, Judge of the

.District Court of the United States, in and for

the Northern District of California.

Wong See Ying, feeling himself aggrieved by the

order and judgment of this Court, made and enter-

ed on this 28th day of Feburary, A. D. 1908, remand

ing Wong See Ying to the custody from whence he

came, does hereby appeal to the Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from said order, judg-

ment and decree, and from each and every part there-

of ; and that he prays that this petition for his said

appeal may be allowed, and that a transcript of the

record, proceedings and papers upon which said

judgment and order was made and entered, dul}^ au-

thenticated, may be sent to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. And peti-

tioner further prays that the custody of said Wong
See Ying be not disturbed or changed during the

pendency of this appeal unless by order of this Court

or of the Appellate Court.

Dated the 3d day of March, A. D. 1908.

JOHN C. CATLIN,
Attorney for Petitioner.

STIDGER & STIDGEK,
Of Counsel.
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[Endorsed] : Filed in open Court March 7, 1908.

Jas. P. Brown, Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy

Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California.

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas

Corpus.

Assignment of Errors.

Now comes Wong See Ying and files the following

assignment of errors upon which he will rely on his

appeal this day taken from the order and judgment

made and entered by this Court on February 28th,

1908, remanding Wong See Ying to the custody

from which he came

I.

That the said District Court erred in this, to wit,

that it appears from the papers and pleadings, evi-

dence, proofs and files herein, that the said Wong
See Ying was ordered returned to China by the Com-

missioner of Immigration for the Northern District

of California without the hearing contemplated by

law; that said District Court of the United States

wrongfully refused to hear and consider the applica-

tion of said Wong See Ying, and his right to be and

remain in the United States of America because a

native-born citizen thereof; that the said Commis-

sioner of Immigration aforesaid acted without juris-

diction, and the District Court of the United States

erred in refusing to entertain jurisdiction of said

matter, and to hear and consider, determine and de-
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cree the right of said Wong See Ying to enter, be,

and remain in the United States as a citizen of there-

of ; and that the said order, judgment and decree re-

manding said Wong See Ying to the custody from

whence he was taken did deprive said Wong See

Ying of his personal liberty without due process

of law.

II.

That the said District Court erred in refusing to

hear or consider the offer on behalf of said Wong
See Ying, made at the hearing before said District

Court to establish the right of the said Wong See

Ying to be and remain in the United States, as a

citizen thereof, of the testimony of seven witnesses,

to the effect that said Wong See Ying was born in

the United States, and was a citizen thereof, and in

rejecting said ojfer of said Wong See Ying to make
said proof at said hearing, the said Wong See Ying
was deprived of his personal liberty and of his right

to land in the United States without due process of

law.

III.

That the District Court erred in holding that said

Conmiissioner of Immigration for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, and the Department of Com-
merce and Labor, did allow and give the said Wong
See Ying a fair hearing in good faith as to his right

to enter, be and remain in the United States as a

citizen thereof.

JOHN C. CATLIN,
Attorney for Petitioner.

STIDGER & STIDGER,
Of Counsel.
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[Endorsed] : Filed in open court Mcli. 7, 1908.

Jas. P. Brown, Clerk. By Francis KruU, Deputy

Clerk.

In tlie District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California.

No. .

In the Matter of WONG SEE YING on Habeas

Corpus.

Order Allowing Appeal, etc.

Wong See Ying, having presented to .this Court

in open session, on this 7th day of March, A. D.

1908, his petition on appeal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

from the judgment, order, and decree made and en-

tered by this Court on the 28th day of Februar}%

A. D. 1908, remanding AVong See Ying to the cus-

tody from whence he came, and having presented

to the Court at the same time an assignment of er-

rors, and having by his counsel moved the Court for

an order allowing said appeal and staying proceed-

ings during the pendency of said appeal

—

It is hereby ordered that the said appeal be and

the same is hereby allowed; and further, that a cer-

tified transcript of all the record and all proceed-

ings be prepared and transmitted by the Clerk of

this Court to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, in the time prescribed

by law. - L

And it is further ordered that the custody of the

said Wong See Ying be not disturbed or changed

unless by order of this Court or the Appellate Court.
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Done in open court this 7tb day of March, A. D.

1908.

JOHN J. DeHAVEN,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 7, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Northern District of California.

No. 13,751.

In the Matter of WOONG SEE YING, on Habeas

Corpus.

Traverse to Answer and Eeturn of H. H. North,

Commissioner of Immigration, to Writ of

Habeas Corpus.

Now comes the petitioner in the ahove-entitled mat-

ter and traverses the answer and return of H. H.

North, Commissioner of Dnmigration, to order to

show cause issued herein.

I.

Traversing the first paragraph, denies that the pe-

tition for writ of habeas corpus herein fails to state

any fact or facts from which it can be determined

that the apjDlicant for said writ, to wit, the said Wong
See King (Ying).

II.

Traversing the second paragraph denies that said

Wong See King (Ying) is an alien Chinese person,

and a native of the Empire of China, and that he has

no right to enter or land in the United States ; but,

on the contrar}^ avers that said Wong See King
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(Yiiig) was born in San Francisco, California, in

1879, and thereafter departed with his mother for

the '

' Empire '

' of China, and has never renonnced or

abjured his citizenship and allegiance to the United

States, and now returns to and claims the right to

enter the United States as a citizen thereof. Fur-

ther traversing that part of the 2d paragraph alleg-

ing "That then and there, to wit, m said October

16th, 1907, said Wong See King (Ying) named all

of the witnesses who might give any evidence in sup-

port of his right to land in or to enter the United

States," said petitioner is informed and believes,

and therefore avers, that said Wong See King

(Ying) did not name all of the witnesses w^ho might

give evidence in support of his right to land in or to

enter the United States.

III.

Traversing the third paragraph, alleging that the

witnesses "did disclose to the said inspector at said

hearings all of the facts within their knowledge rela-

tive to the right of the said Wong See King (Ying)

to land in or to enter the United States, and denies

the examination of the said witnesses was made by

the said inspector, P. F. Montgomery, and that the

same was full and complete.

And that the said witnesses at said hearings re-

lated all of the facts within their knowledge as such

witnesses, and each of said witnesses, after being

duly and regularly questioned at length and after

having made answer to the questions propounded at

said hearings, was asked to state anything further

with reference to the nativity of or the right of the
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said Wong See King (Ying) to land in or to enter

the United States than had been stated in response

to the questions propounded at said hearings.

And that each of said witnesses stated at such hear-

ings that the answers by them given were all the in-

formation which they could give with reference to

the nativity of the said Wong See King (Ying), or

with reference to his right to land in or enter the

United States.

And that in addition to examining the witnesses

designated by the applicant, the applicant himself

was examined at said hearings and permitted to tes-

tify with reference to his right to land in or to enter

the United States.

And that the examination of the said Wong See

King (Ying) was full and complete, and that at said

examination said Wong See King (Ying) was per-

mitted to testify at length with reference to his na-

tivity and with reference to his right to land in and

to enter the United States, and was in no manner

prevented from giving all the facts within his knowl-

edge with reference to said matters.

IV. /

Traversing the fourth paragraph, and particularly

that portion which states that said applicant made
no request to be present, this petitioner, on his in-

formation and belief, states that said applicant was

not informed of his right to be present, or to have

an attorney present, at the examination of himself

or of his witnesses, but, on the contrary, this peti-

tioner, on his information and belief, denies that said

applicant was permitted an opportunity to be present
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at the examination of his witnesses, or that his attor-

nej would be permitted, if present, to conserve the

legal right of said applicant, as under the provisions

of said rule referred to such attorneys is permitted

to be present through sufferance, and is not permitted

to assist in any manner or form by word or in writ-

ing the legal rights of such applicant ; nor is he per-

mitted to take any copy of any record made at the

time of such hearing, or to except to any part of

the same. Nor is he permitted to take part in any

examination of the applicant or his witnesses, but

that said examination was held secretly and without

the presence of the said applicant or of his attor-

ney.

Further traversing the fourth paragraph, this pe-

titioner avers that said hearings were not held in ac-

cordance with a rule of the Department of Commerce

and Labor, promulgated on May 31, 1907, modifjdng

rules ^'5 and 6," referred to in said fourth para-

graph, referred to in said answer, which rule is as

follows

:

DEPAETMENT OF COMMERCE AND LABOR,
BUREAU OF IMMIGRATION AND NAT-
URALIZATION.

15 G & 3 2-6.

Washington, May 31, 1907.

Conomissioner of Immigration, San Francisco, Cal.

Sir : It is hereby directed that hereafter in all cases

of Chinese persons applying for admission at United

States ports the privilege shall be accorded such per-

sons of having present, when the}^ and their witnesses

are examined, counsel and an independent interpre-
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ter of the Chinese language employed by such coun-

sel and vouched for by him.

Counsel and the interpreter employed by him will

not be permitted to take part in the examination of

the Chinese applicant, further than to observe the

proceedings as conducted by the Immigration offi-

cials and to take exception to an}^ question or answer

which, in their opinion, is not correctl}^ and fairly

rendered from English into Chinese or from Chinese

into Englich, as the case may be. • If an}^ controversy

arises between the Government interpreter and the

enterpreter employed by counsel as to the correct

rendition of a word or phrase, which controversy it

is not possible to immediately settle to the satisfac-

tion of all concerned by changing the form of ques-

tion involved or othermse, the matter shall be sub-

mitted to the decision of an umpire in the person of

a qualified interpreter, either in the Government em-

ploy or not, but in any event acceptable to the officer

in charge at the port of entry, to whom the subject of

controversy shall be plainty and fairly stated in such

a hypothetical manner as to prevent, if possible, his

comprehending what solution would be acceptable to

either of the parties, respectivelj^, and his decision

upon the disputed point shall be final. Interpreters

appearing with counsel will be sworn to interpret

correctly in performing the service described.

Attorneys practicing at ports of entry will be ad-

vised of this departure from the custom heretofore

obtaining and of the limitations which are jolaced

upon the privilege. They will also be notified that,

before any person will be admitted to act as an inter-
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preter for counsel, the name, address and occupation

of such person must be furnished the officer in charge

at the port, in order that the standing of the proposed

interpreter in the community and his general reputa-

tion for honesty and capacity may be made the sub-

ject of investigation; approval of such person's ad-

mission to act as interpreter to be granted or refused

as the result of such investigation may justify.

Every reasonable precaution shall be exercised by

immigration offir-ials to prevent any abuse of this

privilege, and if any interpreter employed by coun-

sel is detected in an effort to assist an applicant for

admission by any undue or unauthorized means,

counsel employing the interpreter will be immedi-

ately notified that the interpreter's services are no

longer acceptable, and that he will not be permitted

to again appear, but must be superceded by some

man of unquestioned honesty; and, on the other

hand, if it should transpire that the Government in-

terpreter has been guilty in any case of a deliberately

erroneous interpretation or translation, such fact,

together with a sufficiently detailed statement to in-

dicate the seriousness of the particular offence, shall

be reported to the Department for such action as it

may deem appropriate.

There is no intention that the methods of examina-

tion heretofore followed under the plain provisions

of the statutes shall be departed from, or that the ex-

amination of Chinese applicants shall be made to

partake of the character of the court proceeding, or

be limited by the rules of evidence that apply to the

examination of witnesses in cases heard in court. The
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intention is that each and every applicant, through

his regularl}^ authorized and employed counsel and

counsel's independent interpreter, may be accorded

the utmost assurance that the statements made by

him and the witnesses that he produces are conveyed

to the minds of the Government officials charged

primarily with the decision of his case, and eventu-

ally to the Department itself if an appeal becomes

necessary, in the exact form and bearing the exact

meaning intended by the Chinese idioms employed in

giving expression to the testimonj^

From the plan contemplated by the preceding in-

structions has been in operation for a period of sixty

days you should report to the Bureau what, in your

judgment, has been accomplished thereby, and in

what respects, if any, the plan should be modified

and your reasons for such belief.

Approved.

Resj)ectfully,

(Sgd.) P. P. SARGENT,
Commissioner General.

FNL.
(Sgd.) LAWRENCE O. MURRAY,
Assistant Secretary.

APP/WP.
V.

Traversing the fifth paragraph, this petitioner, on

his information and belief, denies that said applicant

was duly and regularl}^ adjudged admissible, and

that it was duly and regularly determined by the re-

spondent, H. H. North, that the said petitioner had

no right to land in or enter the United States, and
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that he was an alien Chinese person, and a native of

the Empire of China, but on his information and be-

lief said petitioner avers that said determination and

order of said H. H. North was arbitrary and un-

reasonable, and was not a due and regular determina-

tion of the right of the said applicant to land in said

United States, as a citizen thereof, and in this con-

nection said petitioner on his information and belief

avers, that said H. H. North, arbitrarily and un-

reasonably declined to consider or believe the proofs

and evidence, documentarj^ and otherwise, submitted

by said Wong See King (Ying) in support of his

claim that he was born in the United States, and a

citizen thereof.

VI.

Traversing that portion of the sixth i3aragraph

which states 'Hhat prior to taking of the said appeal,

said applicant was at all times advised by counsel

familiar with the rules and regulations herein re-

ferred to, governing the admission of Chinese into the

United States, but neither the said applicant, nor his

counsel suggested any witnesses other than those ex-

amined as hereinbefore mentioned, or any evidence

other then than hereinbefore mentioned that could be

offered or that should be received in support of the

right of the said applicant to land in or enter the

United States." This petitioner states that the ap-

plicant was not permitted to see or consult or advise

with an attorney at any time by the said H. H. North

and his subordinate officials, nor was said apiDlicant

allowed under the amendatory Rule of May 31, 1907,

set in paragraph fourth thereof, to be present when
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his witnesses were examined, or to be present at any

stage of tlie proceedings preliminary to the taking of

an appeal from the determination of said H. H.

North, adjudging that said applicant was not en-

titled to enter the United States as a citizen thereof.

VII.

Traversing that portion of the eighth paragraph

which states that all of the hearings had for the pur-

pose of deteraiining the right of the said Chinese

applicant to land in or to enter the United States

were full, fair and regular, and that said applicant

had at all times full and fair opportunity to be

heard, to offer evidence in support, of his right to

land in or to enter the United States. " This petition-

er on his information and belief denies that all of the

hearings had for the purpose of determining the

right of the said Chinese applicant to land in or to

enter the United States were full, fair or regular, or

full, fair of regular', and that said applicant had full

and fair, or full or fair opportunity to be heard and

to offer evidence in support of his right to land in or

enter the United States, and in this behalf petitioner

avers that said hearings v/ere not full or fair or reg-

ular, and were not held in good faith, and that said

applicant did not at all times have full and fair or full

or fair opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence

in support of his right to land in or enter the United

States, and further avers, on his infoimation and be-

lief, that said applicant was not given the benefit of

the amendatory rule of May 31, 1907, and that H. H.

North, arbitrarily and unreasonably, declined to con-

sider or to believe the proofs and evidence submitted
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by said Wong See King (Ying) and others in his be-

half, in support of his claim that he was born in the

United States, and entitled to return thereto as a

citizen thereof, and further avers that all and every

part of the proceedings the matter of the application

of the said Wong See King (Ying) were not held in

good faith by said H. H. North and his subordinates.

VIII.

Traversing that part of the Ninth paragraph

which alleges that all acts and things done or per-

formed by this respondent in conducting said hear-

ings, or in detaining the said Wong See King (Ying),

were done and performed by this respondent acting

as such Commissioner of Immigration, or done and

performed by officers acting under the direction of

this respondent as such Commissioner of Immigra-

tion at said port of San Francisco, and under and in

pursuance of the laws of the United States relating

to the exclusion of the Chinese persons and under the

said rules and regulations promulgated and existing

hereinbefore referred to, this petitioner denies each

and every i3art thereof, and avers that at no time

was said applicant given the benefit of the amenda-

tory Rule of May 31, 1907, therein.

Wherefore, petitioner prays that said Wong See

King (Ying), a citizen of the United States, be dis-

charged from the custody of the respondents herein,

and be forthwith restored to his libei'ty.
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United States of America,

State and Northern District of California,

City and County of San Francisco,—ss.

, being duly sworn, dejjoses and says:

That he is the petitioner in the above-entitled matter

;

that he had heard read the within traverse, to the re^

spondent's return to the writ of habeas corpus, and

know^s the contents thereof ; that the same is true of

his own knowledge except those matters therein

stated on information and belief, and as to those

matters he believes it to be true.

The original traverse herein not appearing on the

files of the court, it is hereby stipulated that this

copy may be filed and considered as the traverse to

the answer and return herein filed by the United

States of America.

Dated Mch. 10, 1908.

GEORGE CLARK,
Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mch. 9, 1908. Jas. P. Brown,

Clerk. By Francis Krull, Deputy Clerk.

Clerk's Certificate to Transcript of Record.

I, Jas. P. Brown, Clerk of the District Court of

the United States, for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, do hereby certify that the foregoing and here-

unto annexed one hundred and nine (109) pages,

numbered from 1 to 109, inclusive, contain a full,

true and correct transcript of the record in said Dis-
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trict Court in the matter of Wong See Ying On
Habeas Corpus, No. 13751.

I further certify that the cost of said record,

amounting to $53.90, has been paid by appellant.

Witness, -mj hand and the seal of the said District

Court at San Francisr-o, this 2d day of April, A. D.

1908.

[Seal] JAS. P. BROWN,
Clerk.

[Endorsed] : No. 1585. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Wong See

Ying, Appellant, vs. The United States of America,

Appellee. Transcript of Eecord. Upon Appeal

from the United States District Court for the North-

ern District of California.

Filed April 2, 1908.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk.
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IN THE

Winittt) States Circuit Court of ^Ippeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

WONG SEE YING,
Appellant,

VS.

No.
THE UNITED STATES OF

"

AMERICA,
Respondent.

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO MOVE THE
COURT, EX PARTE, FOR AN ORDER AD-
MITTING THE APPELLANT TO BAIL.

To Robert T. Devlin, Esq., United States District At-

torney for the Northern District of California:

Please take notice that on Tuesday, the 4th day of

May, 1908, at 10:30 a. m., at the courtroom of the

above-entitled Court, in the Postoffice Building, in the

City and County of San Francisco, State of California,

counsel for the appellant will move the Court, ex parte,

to admit the appellant to reasonable bail.

JOHN C. CATLIN,
Attorney for Appellant.

STIDGER & STIDGER,
Of Counsel.



CONDENSED STATEMENT ON APPLICATION

FOR BAIL.

Wong See Ying, a Chinese person, upon arriving at

the port of San Francisco applied for admission to the

United States, alleging that he was a native-born citi-

zen thereof. His application was denied by the Com-

missioner of Immigration, -s^iich denial was affirmed

upon appeal to the Secretary of Commerce and Labor.

He then applied to the United States District Court

for the Northern District of California for a writ of

habeas corpus. His application was granted and the

writ duly issued, but upon the return thereof, after a

hearing, the same was discharged and the applicant j
remanded to the custody from whence he was taken.

From this order he appealed to this Honorable Court,

and the clerk thereof set a day certain, to wit: the 4th

day of June, 1908, for the same to be heard. In the

meantime the said Wong See Ying remains confined

and restrained of his liberty in the detention sheds at

the Pacific Mail Dock, and will in all probability re-

main there for a long time, unless an order admitting

him to bail is made.

ARGUMENT.

Bail, in cases of this character, is entirely within the

discretion of this Court.

We are led to believe that the general tendency of

the courts, for some years, has been to refuse bail to



Chinese persons applying for relief against real or fan-

cied unfairness of the administrative officers of the

government. However that may be, we are certain

that the settled policy of counsel for the government

has been to strenuously oppose the release of such per-

sons from actual restraint upon any consideration what-

ever. We believe that the reason for such strict policy

has in a great measure disappeared since Chinese per-

sons alleging citizenship have been accorded a stand-

ing in court.

The strict rule, that the decision of the Commissioner

of Immigration and of the Secretary of Commerce and

Labor in cases of this character is final, has been so

modified by the Supreme Court of the United States

that in certain cases, upon proper petition, a judicial

review may be had.

Chin Yow vs. The United States, 208 U. S.,

p. 8.

It is broadly held in that case that a Chinese person

who alleges that he is a citizen and that he was denied

a fair hearing by the administrative officers of the Gov-

ernment stands on a different plane from other Chinese

immigrants, and will be given a day in court.

The case at bar is such a case.

Wong See Ying does not come to this Court chal-

lenging the law or its justice. He does not come to

mark the way for others to follow, for Chin Yow, sick

and weary after his long and bitter battle, has already



blazed that trail. He does come, however, with ac-

cusing finger pointing to broken laws and violated

rules.

His is not a test case; it stands on its individual

merits. Other cases along similar lines may follow,

but we do not apprehend that there will be many, as

the decision in the Chin Yow case will have a tendency

to make the administrative officers more careful in the

future. In view of the standing given Wong See Ying

by the rules set in that case, we submit that it would

be no more than substantial justice to admit him to bail.

OTHER REASONS.

Wong See Ying is a young man, active and healthy,

to whom the life of inaction in that cheerless prison,

the much criticised and condemned detention sheds, is

especially irksome. He is poor and this proceeding

has been expensive, but, were he free, his blood cousin

Wong Hong Ping, a merchant of San Francisco, who

petitioned for the writ in this case, would care for him

and give him the opportunity to earn and partially de-

fray the heavy expenses incurred in this case. Thus in

case the final determination of this Court is favorable

to him, he will not land in the United States a pauper,

weakened by months of imprisonment, or, in the event

that the decision is unfavorable, he could return to

China with a little money.



His detention pending the determination of this case

can be productive of no good, but may result in many

evils, ill-health occasioned by confinement not being

the least to be feared. He has been accused of no crime,

and although now in an unfortunate condition, may be,

and probably is, as good and worthy a young man as

the average young white man in happier circumstances.

We submit that this motion is made in fairness and

candor, with no end but to aid the fair and proper ad-

ministration of justice, and we earnestly urge that it

should be granted and Wong See Ying admitted to rea-

sonable bail.

JOHN C. CATLIN,
Attorney for Appellant.

STIDGER & STIDGER,
Of Counsel.
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FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

WONG SEE YING,
Appellant,

vs.

No. 1585.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellee.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This is an appeal from an order of the District Court

of the United States, in and for the Northern District

of California, discharging a writ of habeas corpus and

remanding this appellant to the custody of the Com-

missioner of Immigration at the port of San Francisco,

who is holding him in restraint with the intention of

sending him out of the country, against his will and

without his consent.

The appellant is a Chinese person, who, upon arriv-

ing at the port of San Francisco, applied to the immi-

gration authorities of the United States for admission

thereto, alleging as a reason that he was a native-born

citizen and entitled to enter as a matter of right. He



was given the customary examination before the Chi-

nese Bureau in charge of Hon. Hart H. North, Com-

missioner of Immigration at the port of San Fran-

cisco. This examination or hearing formally com-

plied with the rules of the Department of Commerce

and Labor and was briefly as follows: This appellant

was given the opportunity of naming his witnesses and

did so as far as he was able; he was also represented by

counsel as far as the rules of the department allow

such representation, and as far as self-respecting coun-

sel may take advantage of such rules (Tr. of Rec, pp.

104, 105, 106, 107). His examination was separate and

apart from that of his witnesses and their examination

was separate and apart from him before an Inspector

of Immigration, who reported an abstract of the testi-

mony taken and his views and conclusions drawn there-

from to the Inspector of Immigration in charge, with

a recommendation that the application be denied, who

in turn reported it to the Commissioner with a like

recommendation.

The Commissioner, although he denied the applica-

tion, was dissatisfied with the report and sharply

reprimanded the Inspector who conducted the exami-

nation (Tr. of Rec, pp. 91-92). We expect to con-

vince the Court that, though soundly administered, the

reprimand did not even touch upon the gravest errors

of the report and recommendation.

Upon the final denial of his application by the Com-
missioner the appellant appealed to the Secretary of



Commerce and Labor, who dismissed the appeal upon

the recommendation of the Commissioner-General of

Immigration, who summed the case up.

While in this case we admit that the proceedings

were formally in accordance with the rules of the De-

partment, we believe that a fair hearing in good faith

such as the law contemplates was denied the applicant.

Chin Yow vs. U. S., 208 U. S., p. 8.

We believe that the law was grossly violated in letter

and spirit in almost every step and that the evidence of

such violation is apparent in every word and line of

the record.

With this opinion strongly settled appellant peti-

tioned the District Court for the writ of habeas corpus,

alleging in substance that he was a citizen of the

United States and had been denied a fair hearing in

good faith (Tr. of Rec, pp. 7, 8 and 9), which allega-

tions were made stronger in his traverse to the return

(Tr. of Rec, p. 108, end of paragraph VI, and p. no,

end of paragraph VII).

We rest on the assumption that the petition for the

writ and the two portions of the traverse to the return

bring us directly and squarely within the rule laid

down in Chin Yow vs. U. S., supra.

Here we believe an explanation is due. We would

have pleaded the matter more directly in the petition

had the text of Chin Yow vs. U. S. been before us, but

at the time the petition was filed we had telegraphic



news only that the Supreme Court had rendered Its

opinion in that case. The many errors of omission

(and some of commission) in the traverse are due to

the fact that a hastily prepared copy, the only available

one, was used in place of the original that was mislaid

and disappeared almost as soon as it was filed (see Tr.

of Rec, p. Ill, stipulation signed George Clark).

The writ of habeas corpus was duly issued and a

return and a traverse to the return were filed.

Upon the hearing of the matter two witnesses were

sworn and testified, and the whole of the record of the

proceedings and appeal before the immigration au-

thorities was introduced and admitted in evidence. We
also offered seven witnesses whom we named for the

purpose of proving that this appellant was a native-

born citizen of the United States. An objection was

made to this offer and was sustained by the Court,

whereupon an exception was noted (Tr. of Rec, pp.

39 and 40). This ruling of the Court we assigned as

error (Tr. of Rec, pp. 98 and 99). The Government

introduced two witnesses and the matter was submitted.

In a written opinion wherein the reasons for so doing

were fully set forth, the Court discharged the writ of

habeas corpus and remanded Wong See Ying, this ap-

pellant, to the custody from whence he was taken and

it was so ordered (Tr. of Rec, p. 96). From this

order we appealed to this Honorable Court and as-

signed certain errors, which are in the assignment of

errors fully set forth (Tr. of Rec, pp. 98-99).
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appellant's theory of the case.

That portion of the immigration service of the

United States that deals exclusively with Chinese per-

sons has accomplished a stupendous task. The horde

of Chinese who a quarter of a century ago bid fair

to outnumber the whites in the State of California has

practically disappeared, and but a few thousand of

them now remain and those few are scattered through-

out the whole country. With this great labor we have

no fault to find but congratulate them on a duty well

and fairly done. In the many thousand cases upon

which they have passed, in the vast majority substan-

tial justice has been meted out. Their never-ceasing

diligence against an encroaching race of alien immi-

grants whose civilization was hostile to ours has

brought about a solution of a problem of the most

serious character, but has led to an enforcement of the

laws and of the rules of the Department of Commerce

and Labor with an unfairness that can not be tolerated

when used against a person who claims to be a citizen

of the United States.

Chin Yow vs. U. S., 208 U. S., p. 8.

It is due to the overzealous efforts of these immigra-

tion officers that Wong See Ying, the appellant in the

case at bar, is in the unhappy situation that he now

finds himself. In this case the methods of these offi-

cials have worked a great and grievous injustice to a

citizen of the United States.



The first question to be presented to this Court for

its consideration should be: What is the fairness and

good faith that is guaranteed by the law to applicants

for admission to this country in cases like the one now

under consideration? The Supreme Court, by its

opinion in the Chin Yow case cited above, has settled

forever any doubts as to the applicant's right to such a

hearing.

The term is usually used in other branches of the

law, especially in the law of contracts and is so gener-

ally understood that it requires little or no explanation

or argument. "Good" and "faith" are two of the best

words in the language, and to collect together the

various shades of meaning given to them would require

the editing of a thesaurus. It is somewhat difficult to

apply the principles of the law of contracts to a case

like the one under consideration. Hundreds of cases

might be cited which defined the term, but nearly all of

them relate to and savor of contracts.

The following definition, which has found its way

into the statute law of some of the States and into the

decisions of the courts of others, seems to fit this case and

we submit that the term needs no better or wiser defini-

tion, and that the Supreme Court, in its opinion in the

Chin Yow case, meant good faith of this order.

"Good faith consists in an honest intention to ab-

stain from taking any unconscious advantage of an-

other, even through the forms and technicalities of

law, together with an absence of all information or



belief which would render the transaction uncon-

scientious."

Black^s Law Diet., p. 543 ;

Bouvier's Law Diet. (Rawles' Revis. Vol. i),

p. 887;

Rev. Stats. Okl., 1903, Sec. 2787;

Rev. Codes N. D., 1899, Sec. 51 14;

Civ. Code, S. D., 1903, Sec. 2448;

Cone vs. Ivinson, 4 Wyo., p. 203

;

Renoudet Co. vs. Shadel, 52 La. Ann., 2094;

28 South., pp. 292-294;

Friedrich vs. Fergen, 91 N. W., pp. 328-330;

Gress vs. Evans, 46 N. W., pp. 1132-1134.

Applying the above definition, it is not presumptious

to expect that the administrative officers should have

given the applicant a fair start, by laying aside all

prejudice against a class among which he is unfortu-

nate enough to be numbered; a class unlawfully and

arbitrarily discriminated against in the matter of the

degree of credence to be given to their testimony, which

classification is neither authorized by law nor consistent

with ordinary justice. Neither is it presumptious to

assume that this fairness and good faith should remain

with him through every step of the proceedings, in-

cluding his appeal and until the final determination of

his case, everything in the record in his favor inuring

to his benefit, and nothing being used against him that

is not in the record.
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While we can not believe that it was ever intended

by the law that a set of rules so manifestly unjust should

ever apply to a citizen, we are prevented from urging

that phase of this case by the opinion of the Supreme

Court in

U. S. vs. Ju Toy, 198 U. S., p. 253,

although we are convinced that before actual justice

will ever be accorded to a citizen of the Chinese race

law or laws will have to be framed enlarging the privi-

leges and immunities of citizens generally. We are

forced to this conclusion by reading the dissenting

opinion of Mr. Justice Brewer in the Ju Toy case,

above cited, and by realizing that when authorities so

eminent differ so widely there will be dissatisfaction

until the legislative arm of the government takes some

action that will settle the question. One class of native-

born citizens, however small it may be, holding cer-

tain truths to be self-evident, can never feel secure

while they are subjected to a set of rules that sometimes

entail the most humiliating treatment, together with

long periods of imprisonment, when all other citizens,

whether native-born or otherwise, are free and un-

hampered by them. But as these rules do exist and

are recognized by the courts to be in full force, this

appellant is confronted, not by a theory, but by a con-

dition with which he must deal. Therefore, we urge

upon this Honorable Court that it consider this case

as though the citieznship of the appellant had been



proved. It is not his fault that he comes here with

that question unsettled. The proof was offered in the

District Court but was refused. We also urge, that

however strict and seemingly harsh the rules of the

Department of Commerce and Labor may be, their

spirit, like the spirit of all law, must be eventual and

exact justice and that they must be followed, not only

in form, but with the same fairness and good faith that

would be exercised by a regularly constituted court,

presided over by a learned and a just judge.

THE LAW OF THE CASE.

Stripping the question before the Court of all irrele-

vant and unnecessary argument and going directly to

the heart of this case, we assert and submit that there is

but one case in point.

Chin Yo<w vs. U. S., 208 U. S., p. 8, supra.

As we challenge neither the statute, nor the rules dic-

tated by the Department of Commerce and Labor to

facilitate its enforcement, and as we do not urge that

this appellant is not subject to the jurisdiction of the

officers of that department, if the same is fairly exer-

cised not even the case of

U. S. vs. Ju Toy, 198 U. S., 253, supra,

applies because in that case those rules were directly

challenged on a petition which alleged only that the
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applicant was a citizen of the United States. The

question of good faith or fairness was not an element in

that case at all, while in the case at bar, where we claim

simply and directly that the law and rules have been

openly violated, and that the record bristles with evi-

dences of such violation, it is the crux.

In connection with a portion of this case affecting

one alleged error of the District Court, which error is

the second assigned in the assignment of errors (Tr. of

Rec, p. 99), we submit that a large part of the opinion

in the Chin Yow case, supra, is obiter dictum. That

case squarely holds that upon a petition by a person

who alleges that he is a citizen of the United States and

has not had the hearing before the administrative offi-

cers that the law contemplates he should have, a writ

of habeas corpus should issue and a judicial review al-

lowed upon the questions presented.

Upon that portion of the Chin Yow decision we rest

our main case.

Upon the hearing on the return to the writ of habeas

corpus in the District Court, the appellant offered

seven witnesses to prove that he was a citizen of the

United States. This ofifer was objected to by counsel

for the Government, the objection was sustained by the

Court and an exception taken and noted for appellant

(Tr. of Rec, pp. 39, 40, 41). Appellant assigned the

refusal of the Court to hear the testimony of these seven

witnesses as error (Tr. of Rec, p. 99).
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While this refusal is apparently justified by some

portions of the Chin Yow case we claim, and it is not

without hesitancy that we do so, that those portions of

that decision which seem, by way of caution, to limit

the nisi prius court as to how it shall proceed in a mat-

ter before it, is obiter dictum. As such it should not

have been considered by the nisi prius court, and should

not be considered by this Court, and especially is this

so in the case at bar, where a following of that ruling,

converts the most simple of all inquiries, that of a re-

turn upon a writ of habeas corpus, into a most compli-

cated and ponderous proceeding.

Chin Yow, in the District Court upon a certain peti-

tion, had been denied a writ of habeas corpus, and the

only thing before the Supreme Court, when the case

came to it upon an appeal from that order, was whether

or not the writ under the circumstances should issue.

Manifestly, on that appeal, there could have been noth-

ing else for the Court to consider.

Thus, the Supreme Court in that case determines a

question of law that was not before it and that had not

been presented or argued by counsel and set as a

precedent, to be followed by nisi prius courts in habeas

corpus proceedings, a rule that not only works a hard-

ship upon an applicant for habeas corpus, but also

works a hardship upon the Court in that it imposes

upon it a multitude of proceedings where one proceed-

ing would suffice. Under that rule it must first be de-

termined whether the hearing before the immigration
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officers had been fair and in good faith or not. That,

as the Court will see from the record presented in this

case, is a question that can not readily be determined

without the record being taken under advisement.

Then, if the Court determined that the hearing had

been fair, it would be necessary to hold another session

of court to inquire into the citizenship of the appli-

cant, but if the Court reached the contrary conclusion

and discharged the writ of habeas corpus, and, as in

this case, the applicant should appeal, only half of his

case could be taken to the appellate court. Thus, two

appeals would be required in the same case. It is pos-

sible and even probable that such a case might twice

come before the Supreme Court on certiorari, in which

event many years would elapse before its final deter-

mination. Such a condition is unjust in the extreme,

and one that may be readily and simply avoided.

Unless this Court is convinced by the testimony of his

witnesses that appellant is in fact a citizen of the

United States, after it has first been convinced and de-

termines that his hearing before the bureau was unfair

and not given in good faith, are we not confronted not

only by a possible but by an actual situation like the

one above depicted?

It will be readily understood that few citizens would

care to contemplate, much less to undertake so arduous a

labor, and practically no native who had departed from

this country in his youth, as did this appellant, unless

he belonged to the privileged classes, could maintain

the great cost of such a double appeal.
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Bail has not as yet been allowed in this case and

may never be.

Then truly may it be said that this citizen is in a

sorry plight. Expatriation or years of imprisonment

stare him in the face. Even were he allowed his lib-

erty on security, he may be compelled to fight a long

and bitter battle extending over years at a cost almost,

if not quite, impossible for a poor man to meet.

It seems certain that the Supreme Court of the

United States never intended by a mere obiter dictum

to place a person seeking justice in such a hopeless

position.

The law of obiter dictum has been clearly defined

and rigidly adhered to by the courts of the United

States. The Supreme Court has always held without

qualification that dicta should not control in a subse-

quent suit, and that observations unnecessary to a de-

cision ought not to outweigh important considerations

leading to different conclusions.

United States vs. Moore, 3 Cranch., p. 172;

Cohens vs. Virginia, 6 Wheaton, 399-402;

Ex parte Christy, 3 How., 322;

Wisconsin R. R. vs. Price, 133 U. S., 509;

Jenners vs. Peck, 7 How., p. 612;

Cross vs. Burke, 146 U. S., 87;

In re Woodruff, 96 Fed., pp. 317-322;

Alferitz vs. Borgwardt, 126 Cal., pp. 201-209;

Hans vs. Louisiana, 134 U. S., 20.



In Hans vs. Louisiana, supra, Mr. Justice Bradley,

in commenting on some of the language of Chief Jus-

tice Marshall, in Cohens vs. Virginia {supra)
.,
says:

"It must be conceded that the last observation of

the Chief Justice does not favor the argument of

plaintiff, but the observation was unnecessary to the

decision, and in that sense extra judicial, and though

made by one v^ho seldom used words without due

reflection ought not to outweigh the important con-

siderations referred to which lead to a different con-

clusion."

A case more directly in point than Hans vs.

Louisiana, supra, could not be found nor one better

suited to illustrate how far learned judges may go in

uttering obiter dictum. In Cohens vs. Virginia, supra,

where the Court was much pressed with some portions

of its opinion in Marbury vs. Madison, Mr. Chief

Justice Marshall does not hesitate to lay down the rule,

although dealing with his own opinion. He says:

"It is a maxim not to be disregarded that general

expressions in every opinion are to be taken in con-

nection with the case in which those expressions are

used. If they go beyond the case they may be re-

spected, but ought not to control the judgment in a

subsequent suit, when the very point is presented.

The reason of this maxim is obvious. The question

before the Court is investigated with care and con-

sidered in its full extent. Other principles which

may serve to illustrate it are considered in their re-
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lation to the case decided, but their possible bearing

on all other cases is seldom completely investigated."

Cohens vs. Virginia, supra, is cited by and the above

language quoted in

Carroll vs. Carroll's Lessees, i6 Howard, pp.

275-287.

Before closing this portion of the case for appellant,

we quote the remarkable language of the late Mr. Jus-

tice Temple of the Supreme Court of California, used

in Alferitz vs. Borgwardt, supra:

"Laws are not made by judicial decisions. The
Court simply determines the rights of the parties

to the action in that particluar controversy. It is

no part of its purpose even to declare the law. It

simply applies to the controversy the law as it exists

when the alleged rights or liabilities accrued. The
decision has never been thought to have the force

and effect of law except in that special controversy.

In other suits, it is authority more or less persuasive

according to the reasonableness of the rule. Courts

have never thought themselves bound by it as they

are by a valid statute. And if it is manifestly

wrong the community does not act upon it. A law-

yer who would have advised a client to rely upon
the Berson case in making a loan would show his

incapacity.

"No doubt an appellate court assumes a very

grave responsibility when it reverses a former de-

cision which has become a rule of property, or the



law of contracts, and, whenever this is done, it must

be understood that the Court has not only consid-

ered the objections to the former decision, but the

evils which may follow from its reversal."

We also suggest that Mr. Justice Brewer's concur-

rence in the result is not a concurrence in those por-

tions of the Chin Yow decision that do not effect the

exact point in issue in that case.

If our position on this particular portion of the case

at bar is correct, we desire to earnestly impress upon

the Court that it would be no more than justice for it

to consider the testimony of the witnesses taken at their

examination before the bureau, and if convinced by it

that this appellant is in fact a citizen of the United

States, to view the rest of the case in the light that a

citizen, and not a fraud is suppliant before it. We also

urge that in the event of this Court's reaching the con-

clusion that a fair hearing in good faith had been de-

nied by the immigration officers, and is convinced that

a citizen has been wronged thereby, it order this pris-

oner discharged from custody forthwith.

Leaving the position taken above, we submit to the

Court that the testimony of the seven witnesses offered

by appellant to prove that he was a citizen of the

United States was relevant in any event, as a circum-

stance of his case to be considered with the other testi-

mony on the issue of the unfairness of the hearing be-

fore the bureau. It cannot be denied that it would

have been of inestimable value in that regard, for had
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the District Court been convinced of its truth, the ele-

ment of fraud on the part of the applicant, would have

been eliminated. That being so, the other part of his

case would have been proved with much more ease by

reason of the fact that the Court would much more

readily receive the proof.

ARGUMENT ON THE LACK OF GOOD FAITH AND THE UN-

FAIRNESS OF THE HEARING BEFORE THE OFFICERS OF

THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND LABOR.

We approach this point, which is covered by the first

and third errors in the Assignment of Errors (Trans,

of Rec, pp. 98-99), with confidence, believing that this

Honorable Court will not refuse to bring out of the

chaos into which it has been plunged by prejudiced and

irresponsible subordinate officers, the administration of

the laws regulating Chinese immigration and exclusion.

A most casual scrutiny of the record of the proceed-

ings before the Chinese Bureau will show that the case

of Wong See Ying was lost before it was presented.

His was one of those cases arbitrarily classified as "raw

native" cases, a classification not authorized by law, and

one that practically settles the cases of certain Chinese

persons applying for admission to these United States

before they have been seen or heard. A "raw native"

may in fact be a citizen and he may have a multitude

of witnesses to prove his citizenship, but if by force of

circumstances over which he has no control he should

be so unfortunate as to come within the scope of the
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"raw native" class, as arbitrarily invented by the Com-

missioner of Immigration, his witnesses count for

naught and his citizenship must be lost under a cloak

of prejudice that smothers justice and denies a man the

right to set foot upon the soil of his native country. He

is a "raw native" and as such his standing is settled,

whether he be a citizen or not.

A "raw native," according to the Commissioner of

Immigration, is one who claims to have been born in

this country, leaving it at an early age, but seeking to

return for the first time. (Testimony of Comr. North,

Tr. of Rec, pp. 28-29-30; also letter of Chinese In-

spector, Tr. of Rec, p. 80, and Judgt. of Comr. North,

Tr. of Rec, p. 92.)

Let us examine into and learn, if we may, what is

meant by a "raw" native case.

The Commissioner of Immigration at the Port of

San Francisco originated that term. It is slang and as

such should have no place in the official vocabulary of

a man who occupies so high a position in the govern-

ment of this republic, and upon whose judgment other

men are imprisoned for long periods of time or exiled

forever from their native land. The gentleman is not

to be congratulated upon his selection of the term nor

on the spirit that prompted him to bring into a solemn

proceeding, the jargon of the street.

But, be that as it may, he invented or originated

it and it has taken its place in the vernacular of the

Chinese Bureau. It appears twice in the record, once
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in the report and recommendation of the Chinese In-

spector who examined this particular case (Tr. of Rec,

p. 80), and once in the letter of the Commissioner of

Immigration which was the final judgment against the

applicant (Tr. of Rec, p. 92). In both instances it is

quoted as slang and therefore we consider it in its

meaning in contemporary slang and not in its legitimate

sense.

The Commissioner gives his definition of the term

and displays some pride in his originality (Tr. of Rec,

p. 28). By reading his testimony on that page and

the following page it will be seen that that kind of

cases are not popular with the Immigration officers of

the United States. In the contemporary slang of the

day the word "raw" is significant, and its meanings,

though varied, are well defined.

In its legitimate sense it means:

"i. Not altered from its original state; not

roasted, boiled or cooked; not subdued by heat; as

raw meat.

"2. Not covered with the skin; bare, as flesh;

as a raw spot.

"3. Unseasoned; inexperienced; unripe in skill;

as raw recruits of the army or navy.

"4. Bleak; chilly; cold, or rather cold and

damp; as a raw day; a raw, cold climate.

"5. Not spun or twisted; unmanufactured; as

raw silk or cotton ; raw material of any kind.

"6. In ceramics, unbaked."
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In its slang sense it means:

"7. Unjustifiable; cheeky; impertinent; as a

raw act. (Slang.)"

Webster's Universal Dictionary, 1905-6.

The above definitions (i to 7, inclusive) are taken

in haec verba from the authority above cited, but we

claim that in slang "raw" has a great many other mean-

ings the lexicographers have not set down. For

instance, it means risque; as a raw story is one that may

not be told in refined company. It's meaning also

denotes fraud; as one may make a "raw" business

proposition. It means more than mere fraud; it means

palpable and apparent fraud, as a "raw" deal, or a race

that was "raw." It is sometimes ironically used, as one

may speak of a "raw" Irishman or a "raw" Missourian.

If it was used in the last sense in this case, then

indeed "is the laugh" on Wong See Ying. Not that

he laughs, for the merriment under the circumstances

is probably confined to those droll spirits of the Chinese

Bureau.

The slang meaning of the word "raw" always bears

with it opprobrium—it is never used in gentleness or

kindness—and as the Commissioner was the originator

of the term as applied in cases of this character; and

as its accepted meaning in good English can not be

tortured into sense in its application here, and as he and

his subordinates quote the word as slang, he must stand

by its slang meaning.
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The meaning of language familiar to all classes may

not be wrested from its established import and the pop-

ular or received import of words furnishes the general

rule for its interpretation.

Maillard vs. Lawrence, i6 How., 251-261
;

Greenleaf vs. Goodrich, loi U. S., 284.

Does the Commissioner mean that this "raw native"

was not altered from his original state, or that he was

not roasted, boiled or cooked, or not subdued by heat?

Does he mean that he was not covered by skin, or was

bare, or unseasoned, or unripe in skill, or bleak or

chilly or cold, or not spun or twisted, or that he was

unmanufactured or unbaked?

Obviously he means none of these things.

If he had meant the word to be used in any of its

accepted meanings, he would not have quoted it. That

he intended it to be understood in its slang sense is

apparent from his own language.

"As to this case, the applicant is what we call a

'raw native,' that is, he claims to be 28 years of age;

to have been born in the notorious Spanish Build-

ing, this City, in 1879, and at the age of one year,

or in 1880, to have departed for China with his

mother, where he has since resided. This depar-

ture, of course, is before the beginning of our

records. He picks out for a father a Chinese

laborer who left this port for home about a year

since; he ofifers in his own behalf the testimony of

three Chinese witnesses. It is of the ordinary char-
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acter in applications of this sort. By going over our

files, hundreds, and probably even thousands, of

records may be found wherein the testimony would

not vary in any material particular, and thousands

of like raw natives have claimed the Spanish Build-

ing as a birth place.

"The evidence is wholly unconvincing, and I

believe that I am neither arbitrary nor unfair in

rejecting it entirely. Personally, I feel that the

evidence does not prove in any respect that this ap-

plicant was ever here before, much less that he is

a native." (Tr. of Rec, p. 92.)

Having determined the meaning of the word raw

—

both as to its legitimate English value and as to its

significance in contemporary slang—let us see what the

word slang means.

"Slang. (Origin obscure; prob. allied to sling

in such phrases as to sling epithets, sling reproaches,

etc., and in same sense to Norw. sleng, a slinging

device, from slengia, to sling.

"i. Colloquial words or phrases having hardly

the stamp of general approval, and often regarded

as inelegant incorrect, or even vulgar. Slang may
consist either of unmeaning jargon, to which re-

stricted specific meanings have been given, or of

expressions apparently legitimate, but used in an

arbitrary, capricious or grotesquely metaphorical

sense.

"2. Originally thieves' jargon; the cant expres-

sion used by vagabonds, beggars and theives.
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"Slang V. i. and v. /.; slanged, pt.; pp.; slanging,

ppr.

I. V. i. To use slang; to make use of vulgar or

abusive language.

II. V. t. To address in vulgar, abusive language;

to abuse with slang."

Webster's Universal Dictionary, 1905-6.

Is it not evident that Wong See Ying, the appellant,

was "slanged" {supra, Slang v. /. and v. t.) by the

officers of the United States whose duty to him and to

mankind, and to their country, was to treat him fairly?

Thus we see that he went into his examination a "raw

native" or an unjustifiable, cheeky, impertinent

"native." In other words he was an applicant for ad-

mission to the United States whose claims were un-

justifiable, cheeky or impertinent. This arbitrary and

unlawful presumption of guilt followed him through

every step of the proceedings from his first interview

with the Inspector of Immigration, on board the

steamer, to the final letter of the Commissioner-General

of Immigration at Washington, which shows the con-

firmed prejudice usual in cases of this kind without the

bad taste of using slang. The presumption of innocence

to which murderers, gas-pipe thugs and ravishers are

entitled was not only denied this young man, but it was

replaced by a presumption of fraud and guilt so dark

that it could not be pierced by the light of truth.
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We now proceed to discuss with as much brevity as

the importance of the matter will permit, the other

phases of this case.

A point now regarded by us as being of the gravest

importance, was at first overlooked, and indeed it might

easily be passed over without being noticed unless

attention were directed to it. It is to the long ex-

perience of the members of this Court, on the bench

and at the bar, that we now appeal. We quote from

the examination of Wong See Ying, the applicant, by

the Inspector of Immigration (Tr. of Rec, p. 73).

Beside the Inspector and the applicant there were

present an interpreter and a stenographer (Tr. of Rec,

p. 70).

"Q. Do you remember testifying before me on

the steamer?

"A. I could not remember.

"Q. Is that your signature? (Showing signature

of applicant on statement made on October i6th,

1907.)

''A. Yes, that is nly signature.

"Q. You did testify before me on the steamer?

"A. I was afraid to lift up my head and look at

you, and if I did perhaps I could recognize you.

"Q. Why were you afraid to lift your head up?

"A. I was examined but a few words when I

went in and bowed my head, and I didn't lift my
head,

"Q. Why were you afraid?

"A. I made a mistake by saying I was afraid.
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"Q. Then nobody has frightened you?

"A. No, I was not afraid. I made a mistake."

Is it not evident from this remarkable dialogue that

some part of the testimony has been omitted from the

record, or that the witness was under duress and intimi-

dated, or influenced by fear of physical violence. By

no other theory can this unaccounted breakdown of

the witness be explained.

He first states, calmly, that he was afraid of the in-

spector; then he reiterates the statement twice in detail,

when suddenly without apparent reason he retracts it.

This breakdown bears all the marks of panic. Exactly

what occurred we do not know, so we can make no

specific charge—but it is apparent to us that either

duress was used with this witness or that some of his

testimony was suppressed.

In our experience we have never observed such an

occurrence in a court room. We have seen witnesses

change their front, but only when brought face to face

with conflicting statements or when worn out and ex-

posed by pitiless cross-examination. We will submit

this matter to the Court without further argument, but

with the suggestion that if the applicant, while a wit-

ness in his own behalf, was intimidated, or if a portion

of his testimony was suppressed, and not reported to the

superior officers of the Department of Commerce and

Labor, then fairness and good faith were entirely lack-

ing in his case and had no part in its hearing or

determination.
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The Inspector before whom appellant's case was

heard wrote three letters—the first of which must be

regarded as an integral part of the judgment in this

case, while the other two may be regarded as supple-

mentary to and explanatory of the first. (Tr. of Rec,

pp. 77-78-79-80-81; Tr. of Rec, pp. 85-86-87; Tr. of

Rec, pp. 88-89-90-91.)

It is with the first of these letters that we have to

deal. It is altogether a most novel letter and as it must

be thoroughly understood before a just solution of this

case can be reached, we will deal with it shortly. The

writer begins his letter by stating that the applicant

and two witnesses testified. As a matter of fact there

were three witnesses. He digests the testimony of these

witnesses, but forgets the personality of one of them

entirely. We make no point on that, however, as we

believe that in this "raw native" case, where everything

and everybody were presumed to be frauds, the number

of witnesses or the value of their testimony could make

no difference in what the preconceived judgment

would be.

The letter makes one misstatement of fact, brands the

applicant as a "raw native," makes a great deal of a

slight discrepancy in the testimony and closes with its

recommendation of denial.

As to the misstatement of fact, the letter says "that

he" (the applicant) "can assign no particular reason

for his not coming to this country until he was 28

years old." This misstatement was probably due to



27

the bad memory of the Inspector, for on page 72 in the

Transcript of Record, in answer to the Inspector's

own question, he says that his reason for not coming

sooner was that his father did not want him to. Even

with our western customs that seems a very good and

sufficient reason, but according to the Chinese custom

it is better still, for there a boy is not of legal age until

he has married.

The discrepancy in the testimony, had it not been

given particular stress by the officers, we would not

notice. The young man said that his father was a

tailor making new clothes. Obviously this was hear-

say. The witnesses say the father was a launderer of

new clothes. There can be no question but that the

witnesses were right and the young man was wrong.

The Inspector takes this view, for he says that the

young man "was mixed." We think also that he was

"mixed," and we state that no court or jury would con-

sider and no trained lawyer would urge this discrep-

ancy as discrediting the testimony,of a witness unless

there were other reasons as well. The letter closes

with a recommendation that the applicant be denied

admission and contains some remarkable language,

which we quote:

"As he is 28 years of age and was engaged in

manual labor in his own country until he decided

to come here, this is an addition fact in his dis-

favor."
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Since when, pray, has the law of the United States

discriminated between citizens "engaged in manual

labor" and capitalists or any other class of citizens?

This applicant applied for admission as a citizen,

and not as one of a privileged class of aliens, and we

can not see why the fact that he was a laborer should

be an "additional" or any fact in his disfavor. Its use as

such was a direct violation of the law and was prob-

ably thrown into the case to lend some degree of

plausibility to a judgment conceived and rendered in

prejudice. It only shows that the bureau officials feel

that they can not be reached by the judicial arm of the

government, and its use by them, without reprimand

from their superiors, ought to be sufficient ground for

the reversal of this case.

The other two letters of the Inspector above re-

ferred to have no particular bearing on the case in this

Court. One is in relation to certain records in the

Chinese Bureau, and the other considers the testimony

of the witness who had been forgotten.

The letter of the Commissioner, which clinches the

judgment against appellant, shows very slight consid-

eration of the case. He says that it is a "raw native"

case, which seems to be enough for the purpose. The

reprimand to the Inspector only touches upon his hav-

ing forgotten one witness. It is remarkable that the

reprimand does not extend to the fact that in a case

where it was not an issue, the fact that the applicant
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was a laborer was used against him (Tr. of Rec, pp.

91-92; see also extract quoted herein, supra).

This case ends with the letter of the Commissioner-

General of Immigration—a record of dogma, dictum,

prejudice and misstatement. The first misstatement is

small enough in itself, but is nevertheless a misstate-

ment and shows that the Commissioner-General did

not go into the testimony very deeply.

He says that applicant is coming to his cousin.

There is nothing of the kind in the record, and as a

matter of fact it is not so. The second misstatement

of fact is somewhat graver, for on it some of the dogma

of the opinion is grounded. He says, in speaking of

this cousin, Wong Hong Ping: "It is hardly possible

" that a boy 10 or 1 1 years old would have come to this

" country without his family," etc.

The testimony shows that the boy was an orphan and

that he came to this country with his uncle, the father

of this appellant (Tr. of Rec, p. 56 and p. 57).

The statement that the records of his office show

that Wong Hong Ping swore that he first arrived in

this country in July, 1880, or only about three months

prior to the time appellant was taken to China, de-

serves some attention. The Commissioner-General,

in using evidence so damaging to a claimant to citizen-

ship, should have set forth the record in full—that it

might be seen by all. As it is not in the record in this

case and was used for the first time upon the appeal,

we do not feel that it should receive attention by us.
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The explanation of this apparent hiatus, however, is

simple. The Chinese calendar and the Gregorian calen-

dar are so different that Chinese never accurately in-

terchange a date from their system of recording time

into ours. It is the same when we attempt to fix a

date in the calendar of Kwang Sue, although, in our

own calendar, it is familiar to us. Had the witness

been confronted with this record, who can doubt but

that he could have explained it in a satisfactory man-

ner? His testimony throughout its whole extent car-

ries with it the conviction that the truth is being told.

Neither the Inspector nor the Commissioner regarded

this discrepancy in time as of enough consequence to

mention in their letters; but had they done so it could

have been scrutinized, challenged or explained by the

attorneys for the applicant at the time, even had it been

necessary to have a further hearing.

"Where a witness is inexperienced * * *

inaccuracy in stating distance and computation of

time do not justify discrediting his testimony,

otherwise reliable."

The Carroll, 8 Wal., p. 304.

This is our case.

We feel that we have demonstrated that a fair hear-

ing in good faith has been arbitrarily denied this ap-

pellant by the officers of the government. We think

that the record teems with evidence of it. A man who
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applied for admission as a citizen was unlawfully

classified, was slanged, was bullied and treated with

contempt. A part of his testimony was suppressed, the

fact that he was a laborer was used against him with-

out warrant or authority of law. The testimony of his

witnesses was misunderstood, garbled, misstated and

stretched beyond its meaning in an effort to make it

fail in its purpose, and he was prejudged and pre-

sumed to be a fraud through every step of his proceed-

ings.

We might have argued at greater length and gone

more deeply into detail, but we think that enough has

been said. The testimony of the appellant and his

witnesses before the bureau proved him, beyond the

question of a doubt, to be what he claims to be, a citi-

zen of the United States. V/e would have sworn

more witnesses on that point in the District Court had

we been permitted, but their testimony would have

been but cumulative. What more could it be in a

case already proved? We urge that if this Court find

for us on the first point, that it consider the whole of

the testimony as it appears in the record, and do the

justice that the recalcitrant administrative officers have

failed and refused to do.

It is respectfully submitted that for various reasons

urged in this brief, the judgment and order of the Dis-

trict Court discharging the writ of habeas corpus and

remanding the appellant to the custody from whence



-12

he was taken be reversed, and that this Honorable

Court make its order discharging him from custody

and restraint forthwith.

Respectfully submitted.

JOHN C. CATLIN,
Attorney for Appellant.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS.

Wong See Ying, a Chinese person, the appellant,

came to this country as a passenger on October 12th,

1907, aboard the steamship Manchuria. He came

directly from the Empire of China.

On October 16th, 1907, on the arrival of the vessel,

a United States Immigration Inspector, P. F. Mont-

gomery, acting under H. H. North, United States

Commissioner of Immigration, a respondent in the

proceedings to obtain the discharge of Wong See

Ying on habeas corpus, went aboard the steamship

Manchuria and interviewed the appellant Wong See

Ying (see Records of Hearings, Tr. pages 54 and

55). He asked the applicant who the witnesses were



that might give testimony relative to his right to

land in the United States. The applicant named

Wong Hong and Wong Woo. (Tr. page 55.)

On October 23rd, 1907, these v^dtnesses were ex-

amined. (Tr. pages 55, 59 and 60.) On October 24th,

1907 (Tr. 63), the taking of the testimony was re-

sumed. Two affidavits were executed on October

23rd, 1907, and were received in evidence (Tr. pages

68 and 69). On November 12th, 1907, the applicant

himself was examined. (Tr. page 70.)

This testimony to which we have been referring

the Court is contained in the record of the proceed-

ings which occurred in the office of the Commissioner

of Immigration at San Francisco in the matter of

the application of the appellant here for permission

to land in the United States. This record was first

offered by the appellant on the hearing upon the

return to the writ (Tr. page 32). It was then of-

fered by the appellee. (Tr. 50.) The offer of the

record was again distinctly made by comisel. (Tr.

pages 33 and 34.) No intimation was made that it

was in any way incorrect.

At the very outset of his testimony in the District

Court H. H. North testified on being called for peti-

tioner that although this case had been designated a

"raw native" case, every case stood on its own
merits. (Tr. middle page 29 and bottom of page

29.) On page 30, Tr. middle of the page, he testi-

fied that there were three Chinese examined before

the case was denied by him ; that he had landed thou-



sands of cases in which the witnesses were merely

Chinese; that his opinion in this case and his con-

clusions were to be found in the record of the hear-

ing of the application to land. That record was re-

ceived in evidence and a part of it we have already

referred to. Near the middle of page 35, the wit-

ness stated that he '

' certainly did give the testimony

" offered a fair and sound consideration".

On cross-examination beginning near the bottom

of page 35, Tr., he testified that the testimony on the

hearing of the application was taken before Mr.

Montgomery, the inspector; that it was reduced to

writing, and reviewed by him, the commissioner. He
stated (Tr. p. 36) that he had read all the evidence;

that he had also reviewed the opinion arrived at by

Mr. Montgomery, the inspector, and considered his

recommendations.

He further testified (Tr. bottom of page 36 and

page 37) that he had given to the attorney for the

applicant, Mr. O. P. Stidger, notice of the decision

denying the applicant permission to land, and that

opportunity had been afforded the applicant to fur-

nish any additional testimony that he might desire

to furnish before the record in the case was for-

warded to Washington; that the applicant had not

availed himself of this privilege; that the entire

record had been forw^arded to the Commissioner

General of Immigration (Tr. bottom of page 37),

and that the Commissioner General of Immigration

and the Secretarv of the Interior had affirmed his



opinion by dismissing the appeal taken by the ap-

plicant.

There were called in behalf of the respondents in

the hearing in the District Court, Inspector P. F.

Montgomery, the inspector who conducted the ex-

amination of the applicant, and his witnesses, and

H. H. North, one of the respondents.

The United States had been made a party by stip-

ulation. (Tr. p. 25.)

Mr. Montgomery testified (Tr. page 41 and page

42) that he had first taken a preliminary statement

of the applicant aboard the vessel; that thereafter

in the offices of the United States Commissioner of

Immigration in the Appraisers Building at San

Francisco (Tr. page 43) a hearing had been had for

the purpose of taking the testimony of the witnesses

for the applicant ; that the witnesses had been sworn

;

that they had been examined through an official in-

terpreter (Tr. page 43) ; that the testimony had been

reduced to writing (Tr. page 44) ; that he himself

had rendered an opinion to his superior officer, H. H.

North. (Tr. 44.) That he had examined all of the

witnesses offered in behalf of the applicant. (Tr.

page 44.)

On cross examination (Tr. page 45) he testified

thai the Avitnesses were examined separately, as well

as the applicant him.self, and that the applicant was

not notified; that he had a right to be present while

his mtnesses were being examined.



It was expressly admitted (Tr. page 45) on the

redirect examination of this witness that the appli-

cant had an attorney; he had appeared by an attor-

ney, Mr. O. P. Stidger. This attorney helped to

make the arrangements for the production of the

witnesses (Tr. page 47), and had had notice of the

hearing. The witness explained further on his re-

direct examination (Tr. page 48) that he had com-

municated in writing with the attorney with refer-

ence to the witnesses, and that the attorney had ex-

plained that all witnesses had been examined. (Tr.

pages 4S and 49.)

H. H. North on being called for the respondents

testified that under instructions from the Depart-

ment of Commerce and Labor, it was his practice,

upon request, to allow an applicant and his counsel

to be present when the witnesses were being exam-

ined. (Tr. pages 50, 51 and 52.) Because the ap-

plicant and his attorney did not avail themselves of

this privilege when they had the right so to do, can-

not affect this case. On page 48, Tr., near the middle

of the page, it was expressly admitted by the attor-

ney for the petitioner that an attorney had appeared

for the applicant in so far as he could appear under

the supplemental rule of May 31st, 1907. This sup-

plem.ental rule is found on page 4 of the Traverse.

(Tr. pages 104-107.)

This letter is particularly referred to and fully

explained by the witness, H. H. North, in his testi-

mony. (Tr. page 49.)
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The applicant in tliis case was afforded every op-

I)ortunity to present his testimony. The examina-

tion was conducted as required by the rules and reg-

ulations. These rules and regulations are set forth

in paragraph 9 of the return. (Tr. pages 22-24 in-

clusive.) In addition the applicant would have been

accorded such privileges as were allowed under the

letter of May 31st, 1907, modifying regulations 5 and

6 had such privileges been requested by the applicant

or his counsel. Such privileges w^ere not denied the

applicant.

The Chinese Inspector who took the testimony de-

nied the application. (Tr. pages 77 and 85.) The

Chinese Inspector in charge denied the application.

(Tr. page 87.) The Commissioner of Immigration

denied the application. (Tr. pages 91 and 92.) He
stated "The evidence is wholly unconvincing, and I

" believe that I am neither arbitrary nor unfair in

" rejecting it entirely. Personally, I feel that the

" evidence does not prove in any respect that the

" apx^licant was ever here before, much less that he

" is a native.
'

'

The opinion was affiniied by the action of the

Commissioner General of ImmiaTation. after a care-

ful review of the testimony. (Tr. pages 93, 94 and

95.) The Secretary of the Interior concurred in the

denial. (Tr. page 93.)

No other criticism of the testimony which was of-

fered in support of the right of the applicant to land



need be made in behalf of the appellee here, than

that which is found in the opinion of the Commis-

sioner General of Inmiigration. He carefully an-

alyzed the testimony and his opinion is logical and

convincing. We submit that the only question pre-

sented by this case is whether an applicant may retry

his case on a writ of habeas corpus. He had a fair

hearing. Every witness that either he or his counsel

could suggest was examined and after the testimony

was taken and reduced to writing, opportunity was

offered to supplement the record by additional proof

in behalf of the applicant, prior to the forwarding

of the record to AVashington, upon the appeal.

The Supreme Court in the recent case of Chin

Yow V. United States, 208 U. S. 8, expressly declared

that where an applicant had a fair hearing, the Judi-

cial Department would not review the evidence for

the purpose of determining whether the judgment of

the Immigration Department was correct.

It is not necessary that the hearing in these mat-

ters should be a judicial hearing within the stricter

meaning of that term.

United States v. Ju Toy, 198 U. S. 263; 49

L. Ed. 1044.

The exclusion or admission of aliens belongs to the

political department of the government.

Necessarily the proceedings of that department in

passing on the right of alien immigrants to land in

the United States, or upon the right of a Chinese
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l^ersou to land in the United States, are somewhat

summary.

Yamataya v. Fisher, 189 U. S. 100; i7 L. Ed.

725.

Rule 7 of the Immigration Department implies

that the applicant may supply additional evidence

on the taking of his appeal.

United States v. Sing Tuck, 194 U. S. 161; 48

L. Ed. 920.

A writ of habeas corpus cannot be used as a writ

of error.

Orteiza y Cortes v. Jacobs, 136 U. S. 330; 34

L. Ed. 464;

Ex parte Lenncn, 166 U. S. 548; 41 L. Ed.

1110.

It is respectfully submitted that the only point be-

fore the District Court for determination was

whether the applicant had had a fair hearing. On
the evidence in this case the opinion of the District

Court w^as clearly correct. In the Chin Yow case

the allegations of the petition for an order to show

cause why a writ of habeas corpus should not issue

expressly stated that the applicant Chin Yow had

offered testim.ony on the hearing of his application

to land, which testimony the Commissioner of Immi-

gration arbitrarily refused to receive, and which tes-

timony, had the same been received, would have

established the right of Chin Yow to land in the

United States. There is not a single element of un-



fairness in the proceedings which were had. m the

Immigration Department in the case of this Chinese.

The case is in no sense parallel to the Chin Yow case.

Respectfully submitted,

EoBT. T. Devlin^
United States Attorney,

George Clark^
Asst. United States Attorney,

Attorneys for' Appellee.
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Names and Addresses of Attorneys of Record.

GAEL RASCH, Esq., United States Attorney,

Helena, Montana,

Attorney for Plaintiff and Defendant in Er-

ror.

GEO. ^y. MYERS, Esq., Miles City, Montana,

and

Messrs. WALSH & NOLAN", Helena, Montana,

Attorneys for Defendant and Plaintiff in Er-

ror.

In the District Court of the United States, in and for

the District of Montana.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Ca.T)tion.

Rp it rpme-mh'ered. tKat on tlie 20tli dav of Deeem-

ber. A. D. 1907. an indirtwent was -nresentpd and

filed "herein, beins: in tHe words and fis^res following:,

to wit

:
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Indictment.

United States of America,

District of Montana,—ss.

In the District Court of tJie United States for the

District of Montana,

Of the Term of November, in the Year of our Lord

One Thousand N ine Hundred and Seven.

The Grand Jurors of the United States of America,

duly impaneled, sworn and charged to inquire within

and for the District of Montana, and true present-

ments ma/^e of all crimes and misdemeanors conunit-

ted against the laws of the United States mthin the

State and District of Montana, upon their oaths and

affirmations do find, charge and present

:

That the United States of America was, on the 17th

day of November, A. D. 1907, and at all the times

herein mentioned, the owner of that certain tract of

public lands, situate, lying and being in the County of

Custer, in the State and District of Montana,

described as follows, to wit: Sections fourteen (14)

and twenty-two (22), all of Section twentj^-six (26)

(except the northwest quarter of the northwest

quarter, and pai-t of the southeast quarter of the

southeast quarter, and part of the east half of the

northeast quarter), the principal part of the south-

east quarter of section twenty (20), and part of the

southeast quarter of the northeast quarter of section

twenty (20), all in township seven (7) north, of

range forty-nine (49), east of the Principal Meridian
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imately nineteen hundred and twenty acres of land in

the County of Custer, in the State and District of

Montana, a more particular description of which said

lands is to the Grand Jurors aforesaid unknown ; and

while the said United States was so the owner of all

the lands aforesaid, one Emil Bircher, late of the

State and District of Montana, on, to wit, the 17th

day of November, A. D. 1907, in the County of

Custer, in the State and District of Montana, did,

wrongfully and unlawfully, maintain and control,

and cause to be maintained and controlled by him,

the said Emil Bircher, an inclosure of the said lands

consisting of a fence of posts and wires, which said

fence, then and there, inclosed all of the said tract

of land comprising an area of approximately nine-

teen hundred and tv\^enty acres of land, said lands so

inclosed as aforesaid being public lands of the United

States, and he, the said Emil Bircher, at the time of

so maintaining and controlling said fence and inclos-

ure as aforesaid, has no claim or color of title made

or acquired in good faith, or an asserted right to said

lands by or under claun made in good faith with a

view to entry thereof at the proper land office under

the general law^s of the United States to said lands,

or any part or parcel thereof; contrary to the form

of the statute in such case made and provided, and

against the peace and dignity of the United States of

America.
GAEL RASCH,

United States Attorney.

[Endorsed] : No. 1253. United States District

Court, District of Montana. The United States of
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America, Plaintiff, vs. Emil Bircher, Defendant. In-

dictment—a True Bill. H. G. Pickett, Foreman of

Grand Jury. Carl Rascli, U. S. Atty., Dist. of Mont.

Witnesses: A. H. FESSLER.
ALBERT PRELLER.
E. S. FOLEY.

Presented to the Grand Jury in open court, by

their Foreman, and in their presence, and filed this

20th day of December, A. D. 1907. Geo. W. Sproule,

Clerk U. S. Dist. Court, Dist. of Montana. By C. R.

Garlow, Deputy. Bond fixed at $500. W. H. Hunt,

Judge.

Bench Warrant.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

U. S. of America,

District of Montana,—^^ss.

To the Marshal of the United States, for the District

of Montana, and his deputies, or any or either

of them. Greeting

:

Whereas, at a District Court of the United States

of America, for the District of Montana, begun and

held at the city of Helena, within and for the District

aforesaid, on the 20th day of December, in the year

of our Lord one thousand nine hundred and seven,

the Grand Jurors in and for the said District,

brought into the said court a true Bill of Indictment

against Emil Bircher, for unlawfully fencing U. S.

lands, as by the said Indictment now remaining on

file and of record in said court will more fully appear

;
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to which indictment the said Emil Bircher has not yet

appeared or pleaded:

Now, therefore, you are hereby commanded, in the

name of the President of the United States of Am-

erica, to apprehend the said Emil Bircher, and bring

him before the said Court, at the United States Dis-

trict Courtroom, in the Federal Building, at Helena,

Montana, to answer the Indictment aforesaid.

Witness the Honorable WILLIAM H. HUNT,
Judge of said Court, and the seal thereof at Helena,

in said District, on the 20th day of December, A. D.

1907.

[Seal of Court] GEO. W. SPROULE,

Clerk.

By C. R. Garlow,

Deputy Clerk.

MARSHAL'S OFFICE.

United States of America,

District of Montana,—ss.

In obedience to the Warrant, I have arrested the

said Emil Bircher, on the 21st day of January, 1908,

sixteen miles northeast of Miles City, in Custer

County, State of Montana, and on the same day con-

ducted him before the Honorable Frederick M.

Kreidler, the nearest U. S. Commissioner in and for

the District of Montana, who admitted him to bail in
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the sum of Five Hundred Dollars, whereupon I re-

leased him.

Dated this 22d day of January, A. D. 1908.

AETHUR W. MERRIFIELD,
U. S. Marshal.

By J. W. Haigler,

Deputy U. S. Marshal.

[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Bench

Warrant. Carl Rasch, U. S. Attorney. Bail Filed

at $500.00. Filed Jan. 27, 1908. Geo. W. Sproule,

Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, District

of Montana.

No. 1253.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.
vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Arraignment and Plea.

Defendant, with his counsel, Geo. W. Meyers, in

court and being arraigned, he answered that his true

name is Emil Bircher, and thereupon defendant

waived the reading of the indictment and time to

plead, and thereupon defendant pleaded that he is

not guilty and plea of not guilty entered.

Entered, in open court, January 25th, A. D. 1908.

GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

Attest a true copy of minute entry.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

By C. R. Garlow,
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In the District Court of the United States, District

of Montana.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

versus

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant,

Verdict.

We, tlie jury in the above-entitled cause, find the

defendant guilty in manner and form as charged in

the indictment.

JNO. J. FALLON,
Foreman.

[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Verdict.

Filed and Entered, Mar. 20, 1908. Geo. W. Sproule,

Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States in and for

the District of Montana.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Motion in Arrest of Judgment.

Comes now the defendant in the above named, and

moves' the Court that judgment herein be arrested

and the passing of sentence be stayed, and that the
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indictment herein be dismissed and that defendant

go hence without day, for that the said indictment

does not state facts sufficient to constitute a public

offense.

WALSH & NOLAN, and

G. W. MYERS,
Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Motion in

Arrest of Judgment. Filed March 21st, 1908. Geo.

W. Sproule, Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, District

of Montana.

105th day November Term, 1907, Saturday, March

21st, 1908.

In Open Court.

No. 1253.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER.

Order Denying Motion in Arrest of Judgment, etc.

Defendant with his counsel and the U. S. Attorney

present in Court. And thereupon defendant filed his

Motion in Arrest of Judgment ; and after due consid-

eration, it is ordered that said motion be, and the

same hereby is denied, to which ruling of the Court
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defendant duly excepted, and exception is hereby

noted.

And thereupon time for sentence waived.

Entered March 21st, 1908.

GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

Attest a true copy of minute entry.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPEOULE,
Clerk.

By C. R. Garlow,

Deputy Clerk.

In the District Court of the United States, District of

Montana.

No. 1253.

THE UNITED STATES OE AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Judgment.

The United States Attorney with the defendant

and his counsel present in court.

The defendant was duly informed by the Court of

the nature of the charge against him, for the offense

of wrongfully and unlawfully maintaining and con-

trolling an enclosure of certain public lands of the

United States, consisting of a fence of posts and

wires, and comprising an area of approximately 1920

acres of such public land, committed on the 17th day
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of November, A. D. 1907, in the County of Custer, in

the State and District of Montana ; of his indictment,

arraigmnent and plea of not guilty; of his trial and

the verdict of the jury of ''Guilty" as charged in the

indictment

;

And the defendant was then asked if he had any

legal cause to show why judgment should not be pro-

nounced against him, to which he replied that he had

none, and no sufficient cause being shown or appear-

ing to the Court, thereupon the Court rendered its

judgment as follows, to wit:

That whereas, said defendant having been duly

convicted in this court of the offense of wrongfully

and unlawfully maintaining and controlling an en-

closure of certain public lands of the United States

consisting of a fence of posts and wires, and com-

prising an area of approximately 1920 acres of such

public land, committed on the 17th day of November,

A. D. 1907, in the County of Custer, in the State and

District of Montana, as charged in the indictment

;

It is therefore considered, ordered and adjudged

that for said offense, you, the said Emil Bircher, be

confined in the Lewis and Clark County jail at

Helena, Montana, for the term of twenty days, and

that you pay a fine of Two Hundred and Fifty Dol-

lars, and be confined in said county jail until said fine

is paid, or you are legally discharged according to

law.
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Judgment rendered and entered March 21st, A. D.

1908.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

Attest a true copy of Judgment:

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

By C. R. Garlow,

Deputy Clerk.

Clerk's Certificate to Judgment-Roll.

United States of America,

District of Montana,—ss.

I, George W. Sproule, Clerk of the United States

District Court, for the District of Montana, do here-

by certify that the foregoing papers hereto annexed

constitute the Judgment-roll in the above-entitled ac-

tion.

Witness my hand and the seal of said court at

Helena, Montana, this 21st day of March, A. D. 1908.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

[Endorsed] : No. 1253. Title of Court and Cause.

Judgment-roll. Filed and Entered, Mar. 21, 1908.

Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk.



12 Emil Bircher vs.

And thereafter, to wit, on tlie 26tli day of March,

1908, defendant filed his Bill of Exceptions here-

in, which was settled and allowed and ordered

filed nunc pro tunc as of March 21st, 1908, said

Bill of Exceptions and Order allowing same be-

ing the words and figures following, to wit

:

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Montana.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Bill of Exceptions.

Be it remembered that heretofore, to wit, on the

18th day of March, A. D. 1908, being a day of the

November Term, 1907, of said Distirct Court, the

above-entitled cause came on regularly for trial be-

fore the United States District Court for the Dis-

trict of Montana, the Honorable William H. Hunt,

the judge thereof, presiding, Carl Rasch, Esq.,

United States Attorney appearing as attorney for

the plaintiff, and Messrs. Walsh & Nolan, and G. W.
Myers, Esq., appearing as attorneys for the defend-

ant. A jury of twelve persons was duly and regu-

larly empaneled to try said cause. Whereupon the

following proceedings were had, to wit:

Before the introduction of any evidence in said

cause, the defendant herein, by his attorneys, ob-

jected to the introduction of any evidence herein on

the ground that the indictment herein did not state
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facts sufficient to constitute a public offense, which

said objection was by the Court overruled to which

ruling of the Court defendant, by his counsel, then

and there duly excepted, which said exception was

then and there duly noted.

That thereupon the plaintiff introduced evidence

in support of the charges contained in said indict-

ment and evidence was by the defendant thereafter

introduced in opposition thereto, and thereafter the

jury returned their verdict wherein and whereby they

found the defendant guilty in the manner and form

charged in said indictment. That thereupon the

Court fixed the time for sentence for March 21st,

1908.

Be it further remembered that, on the 21st day of

March, 1908, being a day of the November Term of

said Court, and the time fixed for sentence and be-

fore judgment was rendered or sentence passed in

said cause, the defendant moved the Court in arrest

of judgment, which said motion was in words and

figures as follows:

(Title of Court and Cause as above.)

*' Comes now the defendant above named and

moves the Court that judgment herein be arrested

and the passing of sentence be stayed, and that the

indictment herein be dismissed and that the defend-

ant go hence without day, for that the said indict-

ment does not state facts sufficient to constitute a

public offense. »

WALSH & NOLAN and

G. W. MYERS,
Attorneys for Defendant."
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Wliicli said motion was by the Court overruled

and denied and the Court proceeded to render judg-

ment and passed sentence on the defendant, to which

ruling of the Court in overruling said motion in

arrest of judgment and in rendering judgment and

passing sentence in said cause, the defendant, by

his counsel, then and there duly excepted and said

exception was then and there duly noted.

And now, therefore, in furtherance of justice and

that right may be done, the defendant presents the

foregoing as and for his Bill of Exceptions in this

cause, and prays that the same may be settled and

allowed and signed and certified by the judge of the

above-entitled Court who tried said cause, as pro-

vided by law.

G. W. MYERS and

WALSH & NOLAN,
Attorneys for Defendants.

In the United States District Court for the District

of Montana.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Order Settling and Allowing Bill of Exceptions.

This castte coming on regularly before the Court

on this 26th day of March, 1908, being a day of the

November Term, 1907, of said District Court, upon

the application of the defendant for the settling and
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allowance of his proposed bill of exceptions herein,

heretofore duly and regidarly served and presented

for settlement within the time allowed by law and

the rules of court, and the plaintiff, by its attor-

ney, having waived in open court its right to pro-

pose amendments thereto, and having consented that

the same may be now settled and allowed,

—

It is now ordered that the foregoing Bill of Ex-

ceptions be and it is hereby settled and allowed as a

true Bill of Exceptions in this cause, and the same

is now hereby certified accordingly by the under-

signed, the presiding judge of said court, who tried

said cause, and it is ordered that the same be filed

nunc pro tunc as of March 21st, 1908, and made a

part of the record herein.

WILLIAM H. HUNT,
United States District Judge.

Admission of Service of Bill of Exceptions, etc.

Due personal service of within Bill of Exceptions

made and admitted and receipt of copy acknowl-

edged this 25th day of March, 1908, and it is hereby

stipulated that said Bill of Exceptions is true and

correct, and that the same may be signed and settled

as defendant's Bill of Exceptions to the rulings in

said bill referred to.

CARL RASCH,
United States Attorney and Attorney of Record for

Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Bill of

Exceptions. Entered and Filed Nunc Pro Tunc as

of March 21st, 1908. Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk.
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And thereafter, to wit, on the 21st day of March,

1908, the defendant filed his Assignment of Er-

rors herein, being in the words and figures fol-

lowing, to wit:

In the District Court of the United States, District

of Montana.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Assignment of Errors.

Comes now Emil Bircher, the defendant in the

above-entitled cause, and files the following assign-

ment of errors upon which he will rely upon the

prosecution of a writ of error to have reviewed a

judgment made and entered in said cause by the

above-entitled District Court, on the 21st day of

March, A. D. 1908, wherein and whereby the said

Court sentenced the said defendant to imprisonment

in the county jail of Lewis and Clark County, Mon-

tana, for the period of twenty days, and for the pay-

ment of a fine of $250.00, and assigns that in the rec-

ords and proceedings in the above-entitled cause,

there is manifest error in this, to wit

:

I.

That the Court erred in holding that the indict-

ment herein states facts sufficient to constitute a pub-

lic offense.
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II.

That tlie Court erred in overruling defendant's

objection to the introduction of any evidence in said

cause, on the ground that said indictment did not

state facts sufficient to constitute a public offense.

III.

That the Court erred in overruling defendant's

motion in arrest of judgment, on the ground that

said indictment did not state facts sufficient to con-

stitute a public offense.

IV.

That the Court erred in holding that the indict-

ment herein sufficiently charged a violation of the

act of the Congress of the United States of February

25, 1885, entitled "An Act to prevent unlawful occu-

pancy of the Public Lands, '

' in charging that, at the

time the defendant, as alleged, was maintaining and

controlling the fence and enclosure in said indict-

ment referred to he had no claim or color of title

made or acquired in good faith, with a view to entry

thereof, at the proper land office under the general

laws of the United States to the lands referred to in

said indictment, without charging that the person,

party, association or corporation making or control-

ling said enclosure had no claim or color of title, as

aforesaid, at the time such enclosure was made.

Wherefore, the defendant prays that the judg-
ment of said Court be reversed.

G. W. MYERS and

WALSH & NOLAN,
Attorneys for Defendants.
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[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Assign-

ment of Errors. Filed March 21st, 1908. Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk.

And thereafter, to wit, on the 21st day of March,

1908, the defendant filed his Petition for Writ

of Error herein, said petition being in the words

and figures following, to wit:

In the District Court of the United States, District

of Montana.

UNITED STATES OP AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIECHER,
Defendant.

Petition for Writ of Error.

Emil Bircher, the defendant in the above-entitled

cause, feeling himself aggrieved by the judgment

m^ade and entered in said District Court in said cause

on the 21st day of M'arch, A. D. 1908, and complain-

ing that in the record and proceedings had in said

cause, and also in the rendition of said judgment,

manifest error hath happened to the great damage of

said defendant, comes now and petitions the above-

entitled court for an order allowing said defendant

to prosecute a writ of error to the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, in and for the Ninth Circuit,

under and according to the laws of the United States

in that behalf made and provided, and also that an

order may be made fixing the amount of security

which said defendant shall give and furnish upon
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said writ of error, and that upon the giving of Much

security all further proceedings in this court shall

be suspended and stayed until the determination of

said writ of error by said United States Circuit Court

of Appeals, and for such other and further order as

to the Court may seem just.

G. W. MYEES and

WALSH & NOLAN,
Attorneys for Defendant.

Helena, Montana, March 21st, 1908.

[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Petition

for Writ of Error. Filed March 21st, 1908. Geo.

W. Sproule, Clerk.

And thereafter, to wit, on the 21st day of March,

1908, an Order Allowing Writ of Error was

made and entered herein, said Order being in

the words and figures following, to wit

:

In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the District of Montana.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,

Defendant.

Order Allowing Writ of Error, etc.

At a stated term, to wit, the November Term, A. D.

1907, of the District Court of the United States, in

and for the District of Montana, held at the city of
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Helena, in the District and State of Montana, on the

21st day of March, A. D. 1908.

Present, the Honorable WILLIAM H. HUNT,
District Judge.

Upon motion of Messrs. Walsh & Nolan, attorneys

for defendant, and upon filing a petition for writ of

error and assignment of errors, it is ordered that a

writ of error be and hereby is allowed to have re-

viewed in the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit, the judgment heretofoe en-

entered herein, on the 21st day of March, A. D. 1908,

and that the amount of bond on said writ of error be

and hereby is fixed at fifteen hundred ($1500.00) dol-

lars, and that upon said defendant Emil Bircher,

plaintiff in error, filing with the clerk of this court a

good and sufficient bond in said sum of fifteen hun-

dred ($1500.00) dollars, approved by this court or its

judge, execution on said judgment be stayed and all

further proceedings in this court be and they hereby

are suspended and stayed until the determination of

said writ of error by the said United States Circuit

Court of Appeals.

Dated this 21st day of March, 1908.

WILLIAM H. HUNT,
United States District Judge for the District of

Montana.

[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Order Al-

lowing Writ of Error. Filed and Entered March

21st, 1908. Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk.
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And thereafter, to wit, on the 21st day of March,

1908, the defendant filed his Bond on Writ of

Error herein, said Bond being in the words and

figures following, to wit

:

Jn the District Court of the United States in and for

the District of Montana.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Bond on Writ of Error.

Know all men by these presents, that Emil Bircher,

as principal, and The United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a corporation, as surety, are

held and firmly bound unto The United States of

America, above named, in the sum of fifteen hundred

($1500.00) dollars, to be paid to said United States

of America, for the pa5rment of which well and truly

to be made the said principal and surety bind them-

selves, their executors, administrators, successors

and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these

pesents.

Duly executed and dated this 21st day of March,

A. D. 1908.

The condition of the foregoing obligation is such

that whereas the above-bounden defendant, Emil

Bircher, has sued out or is about to sue out a writ of

error to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals
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in and for the Ninth Circuit to reverse the judgment

in the above-entitled cause by said District Court.

Now, therefore, the condition of the above obliga-

tion is such that if the said Emil Bircher, defendant

in said cause and plaintiff in error, shall apx3ear

either in person or by attorney in the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit on

such day or days as may be appointed for the hearing

of said cause, and prosecute his said writ of error to

effect, and, if he fail to make his plea good, shall an-

swer all damages and costs, and shall abide by and

obey all orders made by said Circuit Court of Ap-

peals in said cause, and shall surrender himself in ex-

ecution of the judgment and sentence sought to be re-

viewed, as said Circuit Court of Appeals may direct,

if the judgment and sentence against him shall be

affirmed, then the above obligation to be void, other-

wise in full force and effect.

EMIL BIECHEE.
THE UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND

GUARANTY COMPANY,
[Corporate Seal] By EDWARD C. MURRAY,

Its Attorney-in-fact.

The foregoing bond is approved as to form and

sufficiency this 21st day of March, A. D. 1908.

WM. H. HUNT,
United States District Judge for the District of

Montana.

[Endorsed] : Title of Court and Cause. Bond.

Filed Mar. 21, 1908. Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk.
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And thereafter, to wit, on the 21st day of March,

1908, a Writ of Error was duly issued herein,

which is hereto annexed, being in the words and

figures following, to wit:

In the Circuit Court of the United States, Ninth Cir-

cuit in and for the District of Montana.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.

Writ of Error (Original).

United States of America,—ss.

The President of the United States to the Honorable

the District Court of the United States for the

District of Montana, Greeting:

Because in the record and proceedings, as also in

the rendition of the judgment of a plea which is in

said District Court before you, between The United

States of America, defendant in error and plaintiff

in the court below, and Emil Bircher, plaintiff in

error and defendant in said District Court, manifest

error hath hai^pened to the great damage of said de-

fendant and plaintiff in error Emil Bircher, as by

liis petition and assignment of errors appears, we
being willing that error, if any there hath been,

should be duly corrected and full and speedy justice

done to the parties aforesaid in this behalf, do com-

mand you, if judgment be therein given, that then
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under your seal, distinctly and openly, you send the

records and proceedings aforesaid, with all things

concerning the same to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, together

with this writ, so that you have the same at the cit}^

of Francisco, in the State of California, within thirty

days from the date of this writ, in said Circuit Court

of Appeals, to be then and there held, that the record

and proceedings aforesaid being inspected, the said

Circuit Court of Appeals may cause further to be

done therein to correct that error what of right, and

according to the laws and customs of the United

States, should be done.

Witness, The Honorable MELVILLE W. FUL-
LER, Chief Justice of the United States, and the seal

of the Circuit Court of the United States , for the

District of Montana, this 21st day of March, 1908.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk U. S. Circuit Court, Ninth Circuit, District of

Montana.

Due personal service of the foregoing writ of er-

ror made and admitted and receipt of copy acknowl-

edged this 21st day of March, 1908.

CARL RASCH,
U. S. Attorney, in and for the District of Montana.

Return to Writ of Error.

The Answer of the Judge of the District Court of

the United States for the District of Montana.

The record and all proceedings of the plaintiff in

error, wherein mention is within made, with all things

touching the same, I hereby certify, under the seal
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of said court, to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit within mentioned, at

the day and place within contained, in a certain

schedule to this writ annexed, as within I am com-

manded.

By the Court.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

[Endorsed] : No. 1253. In U. S. Circijit Court,

Ninth Circuit, District of Montana. United States

of America, Plaintiff, vs. Emil Bircher, Defendant.

Writ of Error. Filed March 21st, 1908. Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk. Walsh & Nolan, Helena, Mont., and

G. W. Myers, Attorneys for Defendant.

And thereafter, to wit, on the 21st day of March,

1908, a Citation was duly issued herein, which is

hereto annexed, being in the words and figures

following, to wit:

In the District Court of the United States, District

of Montana.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

EMIL BIRCHER,
Defendant.
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Citation on Writ of Error (Original). .

United States of America,—ss.

To the United States of America, Greeting

:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear at the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit, to be held in the city of San

Francisco, State of California, thirty days from the

date hereof, pursuant to a writ of error filed in the

clerk's office of the District Court of the United

States for the District of Montana, wherein Emil

Bircher is plaintiff in error and 5^ou, the said United

States of America, are defendant in error, to show

cause, if any there be, wh}^ the judgment in the said

writ of error mentioned should not be corrected and

speedy justice done to the parties in that behalf.

Witness, the Honorable WILLIAM H. HUNT,
United States District Judge for the District of Mon-

tana, this 21st day of March, A. D. 1908.

WM. H. HUNT,
United States District Judge for the District of Mon-

tana.

Due personal service of the foregoing citation

made and admitted and receipt of copy acknowledged

this 21st day of March, 1908.

CAEL RASCH,
United States District Attorne.y and Attorney for

Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : No. 1253. In the District Court of

the United States, District of Montana. United
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States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Emil Bircher, De-

fendant. Citation. Filed March 21st, 1908. Geo.

W. Sproule, Clerk. Walsh & Nolan, Helena, Mont.,

and G. W. Myers, Attorneys for Defendant.

Clerk's Certificate to Transcript of Record.

United States of America,

District of Montana,—ss.

I, Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the District of Montana, do hereby

certif}^ and return to the Honorable, the United

States Circuit Court of Apj^eals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, that the foregoing volume, consisting of 32

pages, numbered consecutively from 1 to 32, is a true

and correct transcript of the pleadings, process, or-

ders, judgment-roll, and all proceedings had in said

cause, and of the whole thereof, as appears from the

original records and files of said court in my posses-

sion ; and I do further certify and return that I have

annexed to said transcript and included within said

paging the original writ of error and citation issued

in said cause with admission of service thereof.

I further certify that the costs of the transcript of

record amount to the sum of seventeen 25/100 dol-

lars ($17.25), and have been paid by the plaintiff in

error.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed the seal of said United States District
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Court for the District of Montana, at Helena, Mon-

tana, this 27th day of March, A. D. 1908.

[Seal] GEO. W. SPKOULE,
Clerk.

[Endorsed] : No. 1593. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Einil

Bircher, Plaintiff in Error, vs. The United States of

America, Defendant in Error. Transcript of

Record. Upon Writ of Error to the United States

District Court for the District of Montana.

Filed April 10, 1908.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

EMIL BIRCHEE,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Defendant in Error.

BRIEF OF PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

I.

STATEMENT OF CASE.

By an indictment returned in December, 1907, it is

alleged that certain described lands, comprising an area

of 1920 acres, were on the 17th day of November, 1907,

public lands within the state and district of Montana ; and

that Emil Bircher on that day

"Did wrongfully and unlawfully, maintain and con-

"trol, and cause to be maintained and controlled by

"him, the said Emil Bircher, an inclosure of the said

"lands consisting of a fence of posts and wires, which

"said fence, then and there, inclosed all of the said

"tract of land comprising an area of approximately

"nineteen hundred and twenty acres of land, said

"lands so inclosed as aforesaid being public lands of

"the United States, and he, the said Emil Bircher,
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"at the time of so maintaining and controlling said

"fence and inclosuro as aforesaid, has no claim or color

"of title made or acquired in good faith, or an assertbd

"right to said lands by or under claim made in good
"faith, or an asserted right to said lands by or under
"claim made in good faith with a view to entry thereof

"at the proper land ofiice under the general laws of the

"United States to said lands, or any part or parcel

"thereof; contrary to the form of the statute in such
"case made and provided, and against the peace and
"dignity of the United States of America."

Record, page 3.

Upon a 'plea of not guilty,

, 'Hecord, page 6,

the issues framed were tried by a jury, which returned a

verdict of "guilty in manner and form as charged in the in-

dictment."

Record, page 7.

Thereafter, a motion in arrest of judgment was inter-

posed, upon the ground that the indictment did not state

facts sufficient to constitute a public offense.

Record, page 7.

This motion was denied.

Record, page 8,

and a bill of exceptions Was duly presented, allowed and

filed, preserving the exception to the order of the court

denying the motion in arrest of judgment.

Record, pages 12-15.

On the 21st day of March, 1908, judgment was pronounc-

ed and entered against Bircher, imposing a fine of |250,

and sentencing him to confinement in jail for the term of

twenty days.

Record, pages 12-15.
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The plaintiff in error filed his assignment of errors,

Kecord, pages 16-17,

and with it his petition for a writ of error to this court,

Eecord, pages 18-19,

which was allowed,

Kecord, pages 19-20,

and a bond given as required in the order,

Eecord, pages 21-22,

and the case is regularly here on writ of error.

The question involved is whether or not the indictment

states facts sufficient to constitute a public offense and

that question is raised by the motion in arrest of judment,

the bill of exceptions taken to the order denying the motion,

and the assignment of errors.

II.

SPECIFICATION OF EERORS.

The plaintiff in error specifies and relies upon the fol-

lowing error committed by the trial court, to-wit

:

The court erred in denying defendant's motion in arrest

of judgment

III.

BEIEF OF AEGUMENT.

The contention of plaintiff in error is that the indictment

is fatally defective in that it omits to charge therein an

indispensable element clearly prescribed by the statute.

Omitting the parts which are irrelevant, the act of Feb-



ruary 25, 1885, under which the indictment was drawn,

declares

:

"Section 1. That all inclosures of any public lands
* * * heretofore or to be hereafter made, erected,

or constructed by any person, * * * to any of whicli

lands included within the inclosure the person * * *

making or controlling the inclosure had no claim or

color of title, made or acquired in good faith, or an
asserted right thereto by or under claim, made in good
faith, with a view to entry thereof at the proper
land office under the general laws of the United States,

at the time any such inclosure was or shall be made,
ai-e hereby declared to be unlawful, and the mainte-

nance, erection, construction or control of any such
inclosure is hereby forbidden and prohibited."

"Section 4. That any person violating any of the

provisions hereof, * * * shall be deemed guilty of

a misdemeanor, and fined in a sum not exceeding one
thousand dollars and be imprisoned not exceeding one
year for each otfense.''

It is obvious that to constitute the oifense created and

defined by this statute, the following elements must co-

exist :

First.—The land inclosed must be public land of the

United States.

Second.—The person erecting or maintaining or control-

ling the inclosure must have had "at the time any such in-

closure * * * aJiall be made" neither claim nor color

of title made or acquired in good faith to the land, nor any

asserted right thereto, by or under claim made in good

faith, with a view to the entry thereof.

The only inclosure which is denounced as unlawful is the

inclosure made by a jierson who at the time the inclosure

was made by him fiad neither claim nor asserted right to

the public lands included therein.
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The words "such inclosure" used in "and the mainte-

nance, erection, construction or control of any such in-

closure is hereby forbidden and prohibited" have reference

to and embrace only the inclosures defined as unlawful by

the preceding part of the section.

To dwell upon this palpable meaning, or to endeavor

to show that the words are not susceptible of any other

interpretation would simply be needless. It will not do

to say that the words "at the time any such inclosure was

or shall be made" have reference to and qualify only the

words "or an asserted right thereto by or under claim

made in good faith with a view to entry thereof at the proper

land office, under the general laws of the United States."

This vrould be to give the statute a meaning which it does

not reveal and cannot bear Such a contention would not

only be at war with the plain language of the first para-

graph of Section 1, but would also destroy the effect of the

emphatic word "had which just precedes any claim or

color of title." "Had no claim * » * made in good

faith or an asserted right thereto under claim made in good

faith, with a view to entry thereof" * * * is limited

and qualified by "at the time any such inclosure was or

shall be made."

When must a defendant charged with maintaining an

unlawful inclosure have had no claim or asserted right?

There can be but one answer, and it is that he must have

had no claim or asserted right at the time the inclosure

was made. The indictment in this case charges the de-

fendant with maintaining and controlling an inclosure
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of public lands, "he * * * at the time of so maintaining

and controlling said fence and in closure as aforesaid has

no claim or color of title made or acquired in good faith or

an asserted right to said lands by or under claim made in

good faith, with a view to entry thereof at the proper land

office under the general laws of the United States to said

lands."

There is neither statement nor recital that plaintiff in

error at the time the inclostire was made, was without claim

or asserted right. It is no answer to say that Congress

must have intended to declare that which it has not de-

clared, or to speculate or surmise as to its intention, or to

assert that the spirit of the statute has been violated. A
criminal case must be completely within all the words of

the statute', and no criminal case can be brought by con-

struction within the statute.

"If a case is fully within the mischief to be remedied,

and is even of the same class, and within the same reason

as other cases enumerated, still if not within the words,

construction will not be permitted to bring it within the

statute."

Bishop on Statutory Crime, Sec. 220.

Again

:

"A prisoner may defend himself by showing, if he
can, that either the main part of the enactment or
some clause put into it to create an exception, is so
unguardedly worded as to open an escape for him
through the letter, his act being still a complete viola-
tion of his spirit."

lb. 230.'j
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See also lb. Sections 80, 119, 218, 222, 224, 226, 227, 228,

232 and 340.

In

United States vs. Fox, 95 U. S. on page 672,

the court said

:

"It is quite possible that the framers of the statute

intended it to apply only to acts committed in con-

templation of bankruptcy ; but it does not say so, and
we cannot supply any qualifications which the legisla-

ture has failed to express."

In

United States vs. Harris, 177 U. S. 305,

44 L. Ed. 780,

the court said

:

"Giving all proper force to the contention of coun-

sel for the Government, that there has been some re-

laxation on the part of the courts in applying the rule

of strict construction to such statute, it still remains
that the intention of a penal statute must be found in

the language actually used, interpreted according to

its fair and obvious meaning. It is not permitted to

courts, in this class of cases, to attribute inadver-

tence or oversight to the legislature when enumerating
the cla.ss of persons who are subjected to a penal en-

actment, nor to depart from the settled meaning of

words or phrases in order to bring persons not named
or distinctly described within the supposed purpose of
statute,"

and then quoted with approval the following language

of Chief Justice Marshall in the case of

United States vs. Wiltberger, 5 Wheat. 76;

"Tlie rule that penal laws are to be construed
strictly is perhaps not much less old than construction
itself. It is founded on the tenderness of the law for
the rights of individuals, and on the plain principle
that the power of punishment is vested in the legisla-
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tive, and not in the judicial department. It is the

legislature, not the court, which is to define a crime

and ordain its punishment. It is said that, notwith-

standing this rule, the intention of the lawmaker must
govern in the construction of penal as well as other

statutes. * * * But this is not a new independ-

ent rule which subverts the old. It is a modification

of the ancient maxim, and amounts to this, that though
penal laws are to be construed strictly, they are not to

be construed so strictly as to defeat the obvious in-

tention of the legislature. The maxim is not to be so

applied as to narrow the words of the statute to the

exclusion of cases which those words, in their ordinary

acceptation, or in that sense in which the legislature

has obviously used them, would comprehend. The
intention of the legislatui*e is to be collected from the

words they employ Where there is no ambiguity in the

words there is no room for construction. The case

must be a strong one indeed which would justify a court

in departing from the plain meaning of words,—espe-

cially in a penal act, in seai'ch of an intention which
the words themselves did not suggest. To determine
that a case is within the intention of a statute its lin-

guage must authorize us to say so. It would be dan-
gerous, indeed, to carry the principle that a case which
is within the reason or mischief of a statute is within
its provisions, so far as to ])uuish a crime not ennuni-
erated in the statute because it is of equal atrocity, or
of a kindred character with those which are enumer-
ated. If this principle has ever been recognized in
exjjounding criminal law, it has been in cases of con-
siderable irritation, which it would be unsafe to con-
sider as precedents forming a general rule for other
caes."

And the same court, in the case of

United States vs. Gooding, 12 Wheat. 460,

6 L. Ed. 699,

said

:

"But it is sufficient to say, that the word 'such' has
an appropriate sense, and can be reasonably referred to
the ship or vessel previously spoken of ; and such ship
or vessel is not one merely built, fitted out, etc., but
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one built, fitted out, etc. in a port or place within the

United States. The whole description must be taken

together. If we were to adopt any other construc-

tion, we should read the words as if 'such' were struck

out, and the clause stood, 'any ship or vessel.' Such
a course would not be defensible in construing a penal

statute."

Declarations of like character will be found in the fol-

lowing cases

:

Ees Publica vs. Weidgle, 2 Dallas, 88,

1 L. Ed. 307;
Bolles vs. Outing Co., 175 U. S. 262;
Gardner vs. Collins, 2 Peters, 58-93

;

Railway Co. vs. Phelps, 137 U. S. 536

;

United States vs. Hartwell, 6 Wall. 395

;

Baldwin vs. Franks, 120 U. S. 678

;

United States vs. Reece, 92 U. S. 214

;

Williamson vs. U. S., 207 U. S. 458.

In the case of

United States vs. Churchill, 101 Fed. 443,

the precise question now presented was determined ad-

versely to the contention of the Government. Judge De

Haven in that case said

:

"The defendant is charged with unlawfully and
knowingly maintaining a certain inclosure of public
lands of the United States, in violation of section 1
of the act entitled ^An act to prevent unlawful occu-
pancy of the public lands,' approved February 25, 1885
(23 Stat. 321). Tlie indictment is fatally defective
in not charging at the time the alleged unlatcful
incloKure teas made or erected the defendant or other
person who constructed the same had no claim or color
of title to any of the public lands inclosed, 'made or
acquired in good faith, or an asserted right thereto by
or under claim made in good faith with a view to entry
thereof at the proper land office under the general laws
of the Untied States.' "
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It is asserted, however, that the Government is remediless

in cases such as the indictment specifies, unless by construc-

tion they are covered by the statute under consideration.

This by no means follows. The Government is at liberty

to proceed by a suit in equity, or by an action at law, to

remove or abate nuisances consisting of inclosures of pub-

lic lands, to which persons maintaining the inclosures were

without color of title or claim at the time they maintained

the inclosures.

United States vs. Kanch Co., 25 Fed. 465

;

lb. 26 Ted. 218;
United States vs. Cattle Co., 33 Fed. 323.

We respectfully submit that the acts charged are not

within the provisions of the statute under which the in-

dictment is framed, and, as charged, are insufficient to

constitute the olfense therein specified, and the motion in

arrest should have been granted.

The judgment ought to be reversed with directions to

sustain the motion and discharge the plaintiff in error.

Respectfully submitted,

GEO. W. MYERS,

WALSH & NOLAN,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.
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No. 1593.

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

EMIL BIRCHEE,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Defendant in Error.

I.

HISTORY OF THE CASE.

The plaintiff in error, Avho will hereinafter be called "the

defendant", was indicted by the Grand Jury of the District

Court of the District of Montana on the 20th day of De-

cember, 1907. The charging part of the indictment reads

as follows:

"Did wrongfully and unlawfully, maintain and control,

and cause to be maintained and controlled by him, the said

Emil Bircher, an inclosure of the said lands consisting

of a fence of posts and wires, which said fence, then and

there, inclosed all of the said tract of land comprising an

area of approximately nineteen hundred and twenty acres

of land, said lands so inclosed as aforesaid being public

lands of the United States, and he the said Emil Bircher,
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at the time of so maintaining and controlling said fence

and inclosure as aforesaid, had no claim or color of title

made or acquired in good faith, or an asserted right to said

lands by or under claim made in good faith, with a view

to entry theireof a.t the proper land oflflce under the gen-

eral laws of the United States to said lands, or any part or

parcel * * *"

Transcript of Record, Page 3.

On January 25th, A. D. 1908, the defendant entered his

plea of not guilty to the indictment.

Transcript of Record, page 6.

Thereafter, issues thus framed were tried by jury, and on

the 20th day of iMarch, A. D. 1908, said jury returned a ver-

dict of guilty of the crime charged in the indictment.

Transcript of Record, page 7.

Thereafter on the 21st day of ^larch, 1008, and before

Judgment, defendant moved in arrest of Judgment upon

the ground that the indictment did not state facts suffi-

cient to constitute a public offense.

Transcript of Record, page 7.

This motion was (]enied March 21st, 1908.

Transcript of Record, page 8.

On t|ip 26tli day of ^[arcli, 1908, defendant filed a Bill

qf Exceptions tq the order of tbe Court denying the motion

in arrest of judgment, which was allowed and filed,

transcript of Record, pages 12-15.

On ;March 21st, 1908, judgment was pronounced and en-



tered against the defendant, imposing a fine of $250.00,

and sentencing him to confinement in the Lewis &

Clark County Jail for a term of twenty days.

Transcript of Record, pages 9-11.

Thereafter, on the 21st day of March, 1908, defendant

filed his assionment of error.

Transcript of Record, pages 16-17.

And with the assignment of error filed his jietition for a

writ of error to this Court, (Transcript of Record, pages

18-19), which was allowed, (Transcript of Record, pages

19-20), and a bond given as required in the order, (Trans-

cript of Record, pages 21-22).

The allegations or assignment of error, and points

raised bv counsel for defendant will be considered.

ARGUMENT.

THE MOTION IN ARREST OF JUDGMENT WAS
PROPERLY OVERRULED.

This Indictment was found under the Act of February

25th, 1885, which is as follows:

"Section 1. Tlmt all inclosures of any public lands in

any State or Territory of the United States, heretofore or

thereafter made, erected, or constructed by any person,

party, association, or corporation, to any of which land

inchided within the inclosure the person, party, associa-

tion, or corporation making or controlling the inclosure
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had no claim or color of title made or acquired in good

faith, or an asserted right thereto by or under claim, made

in good faith with a view to entry thereof at the proper

land office under the general laws of the United States

at the time any such inclosure was or shall be made, are

hereby declared to be unlawful, and the maintenance,

erection, constiniction, or control of any such inclosure

is hereby forbidden and prohibited; and the assertion of a

right to the exclusive use and occupancy of any part of

the public lands of the United States in any state or any

of the Territories of the United States, without claim,

color of title, or asserted riglit as above specified as to

inclosures, is likewise declared unlawful, and hereby pro-

hibited."

"Section 4. That any person violntiu"- any of the provi-

sions hereof, whether as owner, part owner, nirent, or who

shall aid, abet, counsel, advise, or assist in any violation

hereof, shall be deeuK d uiiilty of a misdemeanor and fine<l

in a sum not excre;liug one thousand dollars and be im-

prisoned not exceeding one year for each offense/'

Judge Hunt, in his opinion overruling the ^Motion in

arrest of Jiulgment, in t]ie Court l^elow, said:

"The general views of the statute must have prevailed

because of the language which has suggested them, and

because the intenti(m of Congress in using the words it

did throughout the Act and in the title was obviously to

prevent occupa^ncy of the public domain. It may be that

t^iere has been no case which turned for decision solely

ujK)n the precise point presented by the motion filed in



—5—

this case; but we find several opinions by Judges as to

what the Act in effect declares, from which it is reason-

able to infer that close study and construction of the lat-

ter, as well as the spirit of the Act, must have been had

as predicates for the opinions delivered."

And again,

"But the law goes farther, and in order to make the

underlying purpose of the statute as effective as possible,

in the policy of prohibiting any inclosure of any public

lands, except by those who contemplate entry, it also for-

bids maintaining any inclosure by one who has no claim

with a view to entry, at the time the inclosure is to be kept.

Such as the inclosure forbidden to be kept, and such is the

kind included within the terms and obvious intent of the

law. That is to say, the words 'such inclosure,' as used

in the second clause of section one, refer to an inclosure of

public lands, to any of which land included within the in-

closure the maintainer has no claim of title wlien he is

keeping up the inclosure. They are to be read with rela-

tion to the word 'maintenance", signifying continuing acts.

The words in the first clause specifying the time when, if

maker of the inclosure had no title, he is liable under the

law qualify the definitions of the offense of the making

of the inclosure, and are to be construed with relation to

the verb 'made', which in turn but means passed action

which has caused the inclosure to exist. If the language

had meant that those only who had no claim when the in-

closure was made, or the fence was constructed, were liable

a>s maintainers, Congress could easily and perfectly



clearly have restricted the meaning of the word 'main-

tenance' by inserting the words 'or maintained' after the

verb 'mad<.'' in the first clause, so that the words of prohi-

bition would have road, 'all inclo«ures of public lands

heretofore or to be hereafter made, maintained, erected

etc' But they do not, and we must assume that the legis-

lation was delil>erately had. The distinct use of the noun

'maintenance' in the second clause leads, therefore^ to the

belief that a different but continuing offense was defined.

From this, it should naturally follow that the inclosure

described as one maintained must be regarded by relation

to what constitutes maintenance as forbidden, independ-

ently of the intent to enter the land at the time when the

inclosure was made."

"The whole statute is one framed with a view to stop

the occupation of the public lands, and to meet every situ-

ation that, it would seem, could possibly arise to annoy

or harrass or impede the bona fide homeseeker or claim-

ant under the land law".

To protect the public lands in every possible emergency

Congress, by section five of this Act provides the follow-

ing:

"That the President is hereby authorized to take such

measures as shall be necessary to remove and destroy any

unlawful inclosure of any of said lands, and to employ

such civil or military' force as uia,y be necessary for tliat

purpose,"

Tn execution of this authority. President Cleveland, on



August Tth, 1885, issued a proclamation with the follow-

ing preamble:

"Whereas, public policy demands that the public do-

main shall be reserved for the occupancy of actual settlers

in good faith, and that our people who seek homes upon

such domain shall in no wise be prevented by any wrong-

ful interference from the safe and free entry thereon to

which they may be entitled."

The substance of the proclamation may be stated in

these words ;
" * » * which declared to be unlawful

all inclosuref! of any public lands in any State or Terri-

tory, to any of which land included within said inclosure

the person making or controlling such inclosure, had no

claim or color of title made or acquired in good faith, or

any asserted right thereto * * * with a view to entry

thereof at the proper land offtce; Do hereby order and

direct that any and every unlawful inclosure of the public

lands * * * be immediately removed."

In Camfield vs. United States, 66 Fed. on pp. 103 and

104, the Circuit Court of Appeals, speaking through Judge

Thayer said:

"Section 1, of the Act of February 25, 1885, supra, de-

clared, in effect, that it should thereafter be deemed un-

lawful for any person, association, or corporation to make

or maintain an inclosure which embraced within its limits

any public land of the United States, to which the person

making or maintaining the inclosure had no claim or color

of title, and to which he asserted no right under a claim



made in good faithj wilh a "view to entry thereof at tlie

proper land offlce."

In Krause vs. U. S., 147 Fed. on p. 445, the same Circuit

Court of Appeals, speaking tliroiigh Judge Phillips, held

that an indictment charging the maintaining of an in-

elosure of public lands, the person, "so maintaining and

controlling said fence and inclosure as aforesaid, then nnd

flirrc having no claiiu or color of title to any of said land"

* * * "Clearly enough charges the offense of main-

taining and controlling an inclosure of pulvlic lands within

the prohihition of the statute/''

In Carrc-ll vs. U. S., 154 Fed. 425, the d-fendant was

chagre'd in the second count, in the identical language of

the indictment in the case at bar, with the maintaining

an unlawful enclosure of public lands and was convicted

upon tlmt count, th.e Circuit Court of Appeals of this Cir-

cuit afJirnied the judgment, saying:

"But it must be apparent that the plaintiff in ei*ror

might 1)0 guilty of erecting an unlawful enclosure of

pu])lic lauds as charged in thi' first count, and yet might

not be guilty of maintaining it, and it is equally clear that

he might not be guilty of erecting an inclosure and yet be

diargoiihle with maintaining and controlling it.'' p. 428.

A ca»se iu point upon the first ]>roposition suggested

by the Court of Appeals is U. S. v. Elliott, 74 Fed. 92, in

which the erection and construction of the enclosure was

illegal and within the prohibition of the statute, but the

maintGuance of the same enclosure was not. Smh a situ-

ation would be impossible if the defendant's counsel's con-
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tentiou as to the proper construction of the statute were

correct, because under the construction contended for by

them, the conditions existing at the time of the erection of

tlie fence would govern the case.

II.

Should these decisions, deliberately made by learned

courts, be ignored and overruled on the mere suggestion

that the identical question presented here was not raised

there? It certainly will and must be assumed that tlie

courts referred to were cognizant of the terms of the stat-

ute, familiar with its provisions, and fully understood

their import, meaning, and effect. A careful examina-

tion of the law will show that the rulings made by these

courts are entirely consistent with its provisions, and that

no other construction would have been justified.

The first part or clause of Secticm 1 of the Act pro-

vides that:

"All inclosures of public land, made, erected or con-

structed, to any of wliich land the person making or con-

trolling the inclosure had no claim or color of title, at the

time any such inclo;?ure was or shall be MADE, are hereby

declared unlawful."

The thing denounced is the making, erecting or con-

structing of the enclosure. These various terms were evi-

dently not used as synonymous or identical in meaning!.

Clearly, however, the making, the erecting, and the con-
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structing of aii enclosure, or either, is declared to be un-

lawful.

The statute then proceeds as follows

:

"And the maintenance^ erection, construction or control

of any such enclosure is hereby forbidden and prohibited."

It wull be perceived that the terms erection and con-

struction are repeated in the second clause, but the term

^'muke" is not. The term "maintenance" is used instead.

But, as was said in Moorhead vs. Railroad Company, 17

Ohio, 3i0, 353

:

"To build or construct a railroad is one tiling, to main-

tain the structure after it is erected or built is another."

And, again, as stated in Smith v. Grayson County, IS

Tex. Civ. App. 153; 44 S. W., 921, 923:

"Maintenance", is used in Const. Art. 8, Sec. 9, provid-

ing- that the Legislature may pass local laws for the main-

tenance of public roads, is not limited in its meaning to

the repair and RECONSTEUCTION of roads already con-

structed, Imt has reference to maintaining a system of

public roads and highways, and would authorize the pass-

age of a statute creating a road system, or of any laws

necessary to jirovide and keep up a system of highways.

The term includes the establishment of a highu^ay."

So, likewise, in Rhodes vs. Mummery, 48 Ind. 216, it was

held that a statute providing that partition fences "shall

be maintained throughout the year," equally by both par-

ties: "is not limited to repairs simply, but applies as

well to the rehuilding of a fence destroyed by fire."

The term "maintain" or "maintenance", is not a term
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of fixed or inflexible meaning, but its import and signi-

ficance depends upon the subject matter in connection

witli vvliich it is used. This will become at once appar-

ent in examining the different meanings given to the term

in the great variety of cases collated in 19 Ency. of Law

(2nd Ed.) on pp. 609-612. As has been seen the term

'•made", used in the first clause of the statute, is not again

used in the second clause of the Act, but the terms "main-

tenance" is used in the place of it, whereas the teinn "erect

and construct", also used in the first clause, are repeated

in the second. The crcciiufj or constructing of a fence

signify and import the process and manner and means of

the making of an inclosure, but the inclosure is not

"MADE" until completed. To inclose means "to sur-

round, to shut in, to confine on all sides", 22 Cyc. p. 62,

and an inclosure of land, is a tract of land shut in and

confined on all sides. It is a thing finished and com-

plete, and, quoting the language of the statute, "the time

any such inclosure was or shall be made'' is the time when

the inclosure is a complete thing and an accomplished

fact. As "\^'as said in Savings & Loan Co. vs. Miller

(Tenn.) 47 S. W. 17, 21, the term "'Made' contemplates

the completion of the contract, so that it is not made while

anything yet remains to be done to give it legal efficacy."

Of course, it is plain that, in as much as the terms "erec-

tion and construction" are used in the second clause as

well as in the first, but the term "make" or "making" is de-

liberately eliminated, and the term "maintenance" sub-

stituted, such change of phraseology was not accidental.
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As already pointed out the term "maintain" or "mainte-

nance" lias been and should be interpreted according to the

subject matter in connection with which it is used. To

maintain a railroad, for instance, either in making repairs,

or in reconstructing a part thereof, whicli may have been

destroyed, is not the "making" of the railroad, nor is the

maintenance of a lionse or building by repairing or re-

placing a part thereof, a "making" of the house or build-

ing. The maintenance by repairing of a ditch, out of re-

pair to such an extent that it cannot 1)e successfully used

is not the "making" of the ditch, nor is the maintenance of

a fence, the making of the enclosure. The inclosure

ceases to be an inclosure, just as soon as a part of the bar-

rier or obstruction surrounding the tract of land, is broken

down, removed, or gets out of repair to such an extent that

it fails to prevent access to the land Avithin. So that, as

an inclosure ceases to exist whenever the fences constitut-

ing the inclosure fail to serve the purpose for Avhich they

were originally erected and constructed, that is to say, "to

shut in" and "to confine on all sides", the repairing or re-

placing of such f('nces to accomplish that fact is a mal-ing

of an enclosure. Hence, in the light of the cases and au-

thorities cited, to the effect that the term "maintenance''

means to repair and to reconstruct, the conclusion is un-

voidable that the term "maintenance" as used in the second

clause of the Act to the exclusion of the term "make"

found in the first, implies and includes the term "making",

and for that reason was omitted from the second clause of

Section 1 of the Act in question.
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III.

We have siiown the con siraction of the Act as actually

made by the Appellate Courts, and we have likewise shown

that such construction is entirely consistent with the lan-

guage of the statute in question. It seems to us that,

from what h;is ];een said, there is nothing left upon which

t() support counsel's contention with respect to the

proper coiistraction of the Act. But let us assume, for

the purpose of argument, that all <h)ubt has not been dis-

pelled, what other sources of iuquiry are left open to us to

determine the meaning of the language used? The Su-

preme Court of the Ignited States in U. S. vs. Fisher, 2

Cifiuch on p. 380, gives tlie ansv\'er and points the way, as

follows:

"VHiere the intent is plain, nothing is left to con-

struction. Where tlie mind Ibors to discover the de-

sign of the legislature, it seizes everything from which
iiid can 1k' derived; and in such case the title claims a
degree of notice, and will have its due share of con-

sideration."

And so the rule has been crystallized into this form:

"In construing a statute, e\ery part is to be consid-

ered, including the titles."

Kose's Notes to U. S. vs. Fisher, and cases cited.

The title to the Act in question in this case is

:

"An Act to prevent unlawful occupancy of public
lands."

Now, the Government, in the language of Judge Brewer

in U. S. V. Cleveland and Colorado Cattle Co., 83 Fed., on

p. 330,
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"has not simply tlio rlglit of a propc-rty owner in re-

spect to these lands; it has all the powers of r,over-

eignty."

And as said hy the same learned Judge in U. S. v.

Brighton Ranch Co., 26 Fed. on p. 219

:

"Any encroachment upon the public domain," is an un-

lawful invasion of the GoTemment's rights and may be

restrained and ended by appropriate action.

To present such encroachmentB upon the public domain

was the avowed purpose of the Act of February 25, 1885,

and that the maintenance of an enclosure of such lands

to ^diich tlie person maintaining such enclosure had, at the

time of maintaining- the same, no claim or color of title is.

as said hy tiie Circuit Court of Appeals of the Eighth Cir-

cuit in the Krause case:

"Clearlv ononvh within the prohibition of the statute."

If the condiMons existing at the time of the original con-

struction of the fences were exclusive and de tenuin five

then, as already pointed out, no such situation as had

developed in U. S. v. Elliott, supra, decided by Judge

Marshall, would avail as a defense. But the startling and

absurd result of such a construction would still more glar-

ingly appear in a case where, for instance, a large number

of persons should file on 320 acres each under the desert

land law, and after making the initial payment of twenty-

five cents per acre, proceed to surround the entire tract

with a fence. The requirements of the law as to building

ditches and reclamation, are, however, not complied with

at all. The first annual proof is not made, nor is any
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proof marie at any time in compliance with the law. Six

years have elapsed and the enclosure remains. It is and

at all times has heen maintained. At the time of the con-

struction of the enclosure the parties making it had color

of title, and there was, therefore, no violation of the law

with respect to the construction of the fence. The fence

has been maintained for five years without a shadow of

right or color of title, and yet the Government would be

powerless in the premises, because at the time of the con-

struction of the enclosure the parties had color of title to

the land enclosed.

r>ufc the learned counsel for the defendant assert, that

the proper procedure in such a case would be a civil action

to recover possession of the land. Are we to infer that

Congress did not consider these questions? Certainly not,

this act was passed with a full knowledge of all civil

remedies existing in favor of the United States, and was

intended as a more effective way to clear the public domain.

We submit that a construction leading to such an ab-

surdity carries with it its own conedmnation. As was

said by the Supreme Court in Bates v. Bank, 100 U. S. 239

:

"Any construction should be disregarded which leads to

absurd consequences.''

Or, as stated by Judge Coole}' in his notes, 1 Blackstone

p. GO:

"The principle is, that we are not to suppose the

legislature intended absurd consequences, and must
therefore seek in their language for an intent which is

reasonable."

"Tlie language used", says Blackstone, "is always to be
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"understood as having regai-d to the 'subject-matter/ and,

"as to the effects and consequence, the rule is, that where

"words bear either none, or a very absurd signification, if

"literally understood, we must a little deviate from the re-

"ceived sense of them.

"But lastly, the most universal and effectual way of dis-

"covering the true meaning of the law, when the words are

"dubious, is by considering the reason and spirit of it, or

"the cause which moved the legislature to enact it."

1 Rlackstone, pp. 60-61,

And what that is in this case, is clearly and distinctly

enunciated in the title of the Act, viz:

"To prevent unlawful occupancy of public lands.''

IV.

The lonriird couns^^l for the defendant assort that "a

criminal case must l>o completoly within all the words of

the statute, and no criminal case can ever justly be brought

within a statute, although it may l>e declared to l>e within

a statute by fair iiitrrprrtntion of the vorflfi: 'if a case is

fully within the miscliief to lie remedied, and is ever of tlie

same class and within the words, construction will not

be permitted to bring it within the same statute."

The learned Judge, in the Court below, said

:

"Conceding, of course, the rule to be that penal laws are

to be strictly construed, for such, in effect, is the doctrine

defendant invokes, it is none the less true that in constru-

ing penal as well as other statutes the intention of the

legislative power is to govern ; and wheix^ the intention
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eau be gathered from the words used, no constnictiou

should prevail which will disregard the plain intent of the

lawmakers. Said Chief Justice Marshall in United States

V. Wilberger, 5 Wheaton, 76, in speaking of the maxim

that penal laws are to be strictly construed: 'The maxim

is not to be so applied as to narrow the words of the stat-

ute to the exclusion of cases which those words in their

ordinary acceptance, or in that sense in which the legisla-

ture has obviously used them, would comprehend.' "

In the United States v. Teacher, 134 U. S. 645, the Su-

preme Court speaking through ]Mr. Chief Justice Fuller,

said:

"As construed on behalf of the defendant, there can be

no comprehensive offenses, and l>efore a man can be pun-

ished, his case must be plainly and unmistakably within

tJie statute. But though penal laws are to be construed

strictly, yet the wtentlon of the Legislature must govern

in the eonstruetiou of penal as well as other stat-

utes, and they are not to be construed so strictly as to de-

feat the obvious intention of the Legislature."

Also in

United States v. Winn, 3 Sumn. 209, 211, quoted in

T"^. S. V. I^aelicr, supra, ^Ir. Justice Story, said:

"It appears to me, that the proper course, in all these

cases, is to search out and follow the true intent of the

Legislature, and adopt that sense of the words which har-

monize best with the context, and promotes in the fullest

manner the apparent policy and objects of the Legisla-

utre."
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To the same effect is the statement of Mr. Sedgwick, in

his work on Statutory and Constitutional Law, (2d, ed),

282, quoted in U. S. v. Leacher, supra:

"The rule that statutes of this class are to he construed

strictly is far from being a rigid or unbending one; or

either it has in modem times been so modified and ex-

plained away as to mean little more than that penal pro-

visions, like all others, are to be fairly construed accord-

ing to the legislative intent as expressed in the enactment

;

the Courts refusing on the one hand, to extend the punish-

ment to cases which are not clearly embraced in them, and

on the other, equally refusing, l>y any mere verbal nicety,

forced construction or equitable interpretation, to exon-

erate parts plainly within their scope."

In TTiii^ed States v. Morris 39 V. S. 4()4, on page 475, ^Jr.

Chief .Tuf-tice Taney, speaking for the Court said

:

"In expounding a penal statute the Court certainly will

not extend it beycmd the plain meaning of its words ; for it

has been long and well settled that such statutes must be

construed stnotly. Yet the evident 'uitentioii of the leg-

islature ought not to he defeated hy a forced and ovcrstrict

construction."

And in American Fur Company v. United States, 2

Peters, 358, the Court said

:

"Even penal lawp, which it is said should be strictly

construed, ought not to he construed .vo strictJi/ o.s to de-

feat the ohrious! intention of the legiy.hituve.'^
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So in United States v. Winn, Fed. Oa>ses 16, 740, the

Court said

:

"In sliort, it appears to me that the proper course in all

these cases is to search out and follow the true intent of

the legislature, and to adopt that sense of the words, which

harmonizes best with the context, and promote in the

fullest manner the apparent policy and objects of the leg-

islature. * * * ^We are undonbtedly bound to con-

strue penal statutes strictly, and not to extend them be-

yond their obvious meaning by strained inferences. On

the other hand, we are bound to interpret them according

to the manifest import of the words, and to hold all cases

which are witliin the words, and the mischiefs, to be within

the remedial influence of the statute. The most restricted

sense, then, is not, as a matter of course, to l>e adopted as

the true sense of the statute, unless it best harmonizes

with the context, and stands best with the words and with

the mischiefs to be remedied by the enactment."

The case of the United States v. Churchill, 101 Fed.

Rep. 443, cited by defendant, cannot stand against the

cases cited in support of the opposite view.

In many instances the cases cited by the learned counsel

for the defendant are in support of our contention, that is,

that penal statutes are to be strictly construed, but not be

such an extent as to deprive them of the purpose intended

by Congress.

It is apparent, from the language used in the Act, that

it was the intention of Congress to stop the occupancy of
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the public lands, and to meet every situation that, it would

seem, could possibly arise to annoy and harrass or impede

the bona fide homeseeker of claimant under the land laws.

For the reasons herein set forth, the Motion in Arrest of

Judgment was properly overruled.

J. W. FREEMAN,

United States Attorney, District of Montana.

S. C. FORD,

Assistant U. S. Attorney.
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